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GEARED FOR 
CHANGE

As we embark on another year, needless to say, a challenging one 
preceded by yet another, we have chosen to focus on our inherent 

strength and upon a legacy of identifying opportunity in the face 
of adversity. And as the world remains gripped within a new normal 

we have risen to the challenge to seek new ways in which we 
can advance and develop. And through it all, we will continue to 

demonstrate our resilience, dynamism and evolution, as we gear up 
for the progressive changes that lie ahead.
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To Be The most Trusted and Revered 
Finance Company where it’s Employees 
and Shareholders will be happy and 
Proud as one.

Being the Most Customer-centric Organisation 
in the Financial Services Industry with the 
urgency of serving “Now” not today.

VISION

MISSION

ABOUT US
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1.  MR. VICTOR RAMANAN
Chairman (Non-Executive)

Victor Ramanan is a Sri Lankan born 
British National residing in London. Being 
educated in Sri Lanka and the UK, Victor 
is a B.Sc. Graduate and holds a Diploma 
in Software Engineering, Business Admin 
& Sales Techniques (UK). 

He is a versatile marketer and 
administrator with more than 33 years 
of hands-on experience working in many 
countries including United Kingdom, 
Kuwait, Dubai, Baharain, Germany, 
France, USA and Sri Lanka. He has worked 
in areas such as IT, HR, Marketing and 
Business Development of which more 
than 19 years has been in the fields of Oil, 
Gas, Logistics and Real Estate sectors. 

3.  MR. JAGATH DISSANAYAKE
Senior Director (Non-Executive / Independent)
Joined w.e.f. 30th November 2020

Mr. Jagath Dissanayake is a Fellow 
Member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka and a Fellow 
Member of the Institute of Certified 
Management Accountants of Sri Lanka.

2.  MR. JAYAPRAKASH RUDRA
Director (Executive)

Appointed to the Board on 11th 
March 2011. He is a well-established 
businessman. Currently he serves as a 
Director in many other Companies. He 
has wide experience especially in the field 
of  Property Development

ABOUT US
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He carries over 35 years of Managerial 
Experience in the fields of Finance, 
Auditing, Marketing and Operations. 
Most of the experience and exposure, 
consociated with him are overseas. 
He speaks of a broadened intellectual 
knowledge and capacity of multi-tasking 
due to the exposure he acquired while 
working as Group Finance Director/ 
Group Chief Financial Officer, in many of 
the multi-national companies around 
the world and in few public listed 
conglomerates in Sri Lanka. He has 
held several Board Director positions in 
companies around the world.

03
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

6.  MR. H. JAYANTHA C. PERERA
Executive Director
Ceased to function w.e.f. 30th August 2020

Mr. H. Jayantha C Perera is a CFA 
Charter holder from the CFA Institute, 
Charlottesville, USA. He is also a Diploma 
Holder of the National Computing 
Centre, UK. Mr. Perera is licensed by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Sri Lanka to trade and provide investment 
advise on Securities.

Mr. Perera has well over two and a 
half decades of work experience in 
the corporate sector having worked in 
many divisions and in many capacities 
in numerous business establishments. 
He brings with him experiences in 
Management, Strategy, Treasury, Finance, 
Corporate Finance and Sales.

He is the Executive Director/ Chief 
Executive Officer and has previously 
worked in the Finance/Financial Services 
areas in the capacities of Managing 
Director, Director/CEO at Richard Pieris 
Securities (Private) Ltd., as the CEO of 
Richard Pieris Arpico Finance Limited, 
as the CFO of Nawaloka Hospitals 
PLC, as the Senior Manager heading 
Capital Markets at the Merchant Bank 
of Sri Lanka, and also as the VP Head of 
Research at DFCC Stock Brokers Private 
Limited. Prior to these appointments, 
he worked at NDBS Stock Brokers as 
an Investment Advisor, Stock Broker 
and Floor Trader and later became the 
Research Manager at Lanka Securities 
Private Limited. 

4.  MR. HARSHITH DHARMADASA
Deputy Chairman (Non-Executive)
Retired w.e.f. 22nd December 2020

Appointed to the Board on 11th March 
2011. He is an Associate Member of 
the Institute of Certified Professional 
Managers with over 28 years’ experience 
in Executive Management. He has 
acquired extensive experience in the 
fields of trading, manufacturing and 
construction sector.

He currently serves as a Director of 
Nawaloka Holdings Companies and all 
other Companies under its umbrella, 
and is the Deputy Chairman of Nawaloka 
Hospitals PLC and the Chairman of 
Millennium Housing Developers PLC.

5.  MR. SUNIL KANDEGEDERA
Director (Non-Executive/Independent)
Retired w.e.f. 10th February 2021

Mr. K. M. Sunil Kandegedara has a 
Diploma in Tax Administration from 
California, USA, and successfully 
completed his Hons. Degree in 
Mathematics and Chemistry at the 
University of Peradeniya.

He worked as a Commissioner General 
in the Department of Inland Revenue. 
He joined the Department in September 
1976 as an Assessor (Executive Staff) 
and served 36 years as an Assessor, 
Senior Assessor, Deputy Commissioner, 
Commissioner, Senior Commissioner 
and Commissioner General in various 
divisions such as Kandy, Negombo, 
Rathnapura and at the Head Office. 
He has completed “Double Taxation 
Agreements with several Countries. 
He has also worked as a Mathematics 
Lecturer at the University of Peradeniya 
(1974–1975). Mr. Sunil Kandegedara has 
been appointed as a Consultant of the 
Government of Maldives.

7.  MR. LALITH KARUNARATNE
Senior Director (Non-Executive/Independent)
Retired w.e.f. 30th September 2020

Appointed to the Board on 11th March 
2011. He is an Associate Member of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 
Lanka and holds a Postgraduate Degree 
in Business Management (MBA) from the 
University of Sri Jayawardenapura and a 
Master degree in Financial Mathematics 
from the University of Colombo. He also 
possesses 30 years’ experience in Senior 
Financial Management positions in both 
Private and Public Sectors.

ABOUT US
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM
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ABOUT US

1. MR. JAYAPRAKASH RUDRA
Director (Recoveries)

2. MR. SURESH M. AMERASEKERA
Chief Executive Officer

3. MR. PRASANNA HABARAGAMUWA
Chief Financial Officer

4. MR. PRADEEP BALASOORIYA
General Manager – Micro Credit

5. MR. DILAN WASANTHA
General Manager -  Investment and 
Business Development (Designation 
has been Changed to General 
Manager - Deposit Mobilisation and 
awaiting CBSL Approval)

6. MR. S. SASIKUMAR
General Manager –  
Administration & Special Projects

7. MS. SHUBHANI JAYAWARDENA
Compliance & Risk Officer

8. MR. CHAMINDA JAYAWARDANA
GM Core Finance  (Designation has 
been Changed to General Manager - 
Core Recoveries and awaiting CBSL 
Approval)

9. MR. DILIP KUMARA
Deputy General Manager –  
Internal Audit
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM
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1. MR. W. DHAMMIKE WIJERATHNE
Head of Collection & Recovery

2. MR. S. THINESHKUMAR
Head of Information Technology & 
Management Information System

3. MS. SHAMILA WICKRAMATHILAKE
Assistant General Manager - Credit  
(Designation has been Changed to 
Assistant General Manager - Special 
Recoveries and awaiting CBSL 
Approval)

4. MR. J. AKILA DINESH
Head of Pawning

5. MS. W. D. AMALI PRIYABASHINI
Manager – Legal

6. MR. R. SELVARAJ
Head of Credit and Operations

7. MR. MADHURA AMUNUTHUDUWA
Manager – Finance & Treasury

8. MR. T. JANAKA GOONASEKERA
Senior Accountant

9. MR. K. P. A. TISSA SILVA
Senior Manager –  
Real Estate & Property Sales

0907 08 09
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REGIONAL MANAGERS

ABOUT US
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1. MR. MITHILA RANASINGHA 2. MR. P. A. RUKSHAN D. THILAKARATHNE 3. MR. N. SURESHKUMAR

4. MR. P. KOVARTHAN 5. MR. S. ANGELO 6. MR. B. WASANTHA U. K. RODRIGO

7. MR. D. CHANDANA M. DE SILVA 8. MR. G. P. SURANGA D. PATHIRANA 9. MR. T. NIRUPAN

10. MR. G. ASELA K. ZOYSA 11. MR. T. D. RANGANA PRASAD
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REGIONAL MANAGERS
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12. MR. K. SRIKANTHAN 13. MR. S. PREMNATH 14. MR. V. DINESH

15. MR. W. W. LASITH D. WEERASINGHE 16. MR. B. SHUBASH RAVINDRA 17. MR. R. L. DILAN S. LIYANAGE

18. MR. ASHOKA N. GUNASINGHE 19. MR. V. VIGNESWARAN
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

ABOUT US

Group Company

2020/21
Rs. 000's

2019/20
Rs. 000's

Change
%

2020/21
Rs. 000's

2019/20
Rs. 000's

Change
%

Financial performance
Revenue  1,188,081  1,949,608 -39%  1,188,081  1,949,608 -39%
Gross Interest Income  1,179,017  1,938,725 -39%  1,179,017  1,938,725 -39%
Net Interest Income  425,726  907,694 -53%  425,726  907,694 -53%
Impairment of Loans and Other Losses  (108,130)  (156,527) 31%  (108,130)  (156,527) 31%
Net Operating Income  613,093  909,640 -33%  613,093  909,640 -33%
Operating Expenses  (739,249)  (973,430) 24%  (739,173)  (973,435) 24%
Profit/(Loss) before VAT & Income Tax  (126,157)  (63,789) -98%  (126,080)  (63,795) -98%
Profit/(Loss) for the year  (124,394)  8,591 -1548%  (124,317)  8,587 -1548%
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss)  (114,509)  10,163 -1227%  (114,431)  10,158 -1227%

Financial Position          
Accommodations (adjusted for Impairment)       
Lease  1,118,144  1,490,368 -25%  1,118,144  1,490,368 -25%
Loans  1,880,897  2,122,875 -11%  1,880,897  2,122,875 -11%
Hire Purchase  184,704  232,713 -21%  184,704  232,713 -21%
Micro Finance  729,352  1,228,658 -41%  729,352  1,228,658 -41%
Pawning  496,333  874,885 -43%  496,333  874,885 -43%
Other Assets  2,853,203  2,788,940 2%  2,853,203  2,788,940 2%
Total Assets  7,262,633  8,738,439 -17%  7,262,633  8,738,439 -17%
Public Borrowings  5,247,606  6,441,690 19%  5,247,606  6,441,690 19%
Bank & Other Borrowings  573,994  644,990 11%  573,994  644,990 11%
Subordinated Debentures  150,000  150,000 0%  150,000  150,000 0%
Other Liabilities  332,222  428,440 22%  332,853  429,148 22%
Total Liabilities  6,303,822  7,665,120 18%  6,304,453  7,665,828 18%
Retained Earnings  (309,992)  (192,874) -61%  (310,623)  (191,774) -62%
Net Assets  958,811  1,073,319 -11%  958,179  1,072,611 -11%
Core Capital         700,860  878,412 -20%

Information per Ordinary Share       
Earnings/(Loss) Rs.  (0.09)  0.01 -1,000%  (0.09)  0.01 -1,000%
Net Assets Rs.  0.71  0.79 -10%  0.71  0.79 -10%

Interest Income 2020/21
Rs. 000’s

2019/20
Rs. 000’s

Change
%

Lease  298,533  380,136 -21%
Term Loans  253,140  354,325 -29%
Micro Finance  375,169  863,103 -57%
Hire Purchase  59,783  61,582 -3%
Pawning  168,478  221,190 -24%
Other Lending  23,914  58,389 -59%
Total Interest Income (Gross)  1,179,017  1,938,725 -39%

PRODUCT WISE - INTEREST INCOME (COMPANY)
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Deposit Base Growth

(19%)
Lending Base Growth

(26%)
Earnings per Share 
Growth

(1,000%)

Asset Growth 

(17%)
Net Asset Growth 

(11%)
Net Asset per Share 
Growth

(10%)
Net Operating Income  
Growth

(33%)

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

ABOUT US

Product-wise - Interest Income  
FY 2020/21
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REPORT PROFILE

INTRODUCING THE FIRST CHAPTER 
OF OUR INTEGRATED REPORTING 
JOURNEY
This is the first Integrated Annual Report 
published by Nation Lanka Finance PLC. 
Through this report we are aiming to 
address the information requirements of 
all our stakeholders. 

SCOPE AND BOUNDARY
The report covers the period 01st April 
2020 to 31st March 2021 and provides 
a detailed account of our financial and 
non-financial performance to inform 
shareholders and other stakeholders of 
the progress that has been made during 
this period. Accordingly, in addition to 
the financial statements, the report 
also contains detailed information on 
the Company’s value creation process, 
vis-a-vis our business model and the 
allocation of capital resources. It also 
examines the key risks facing the 
Company in the context of the current 
operating environment and discusses 
the stewardship of risk and governance 
in order to provide the foundation for 
consistent value creation.

MATERIALITY 
We have applied the principle of 
materiality in assessing what information 
is to be included in this integrated report. 
Material matters are essentially those 
aspects that have the ability to affect our 
value creation capacity and thus forms 
the basis of the content of this report. 

REPORTING FRAMEWORKS

Financial 
Reporting 

Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards issued by the 
Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka

Companies Act no: 07 of 
2007

Finance Business Act,. No. 
42 of 2011

Governance, 
Compliance 
and Risk 
Reporting

The Code of Best Practice 
for Corporate Governance, 
jointly issued by the 
SEC and the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants.

Finance Companies 
direction (Corporate 
Governance) No. 3 of 2008

Listing rules of the 
Colombo Stock Exchange

Sustainability 
Reporting

International Integrated 
Reporting Council’s (IIRC) 
Integrated Reporting <IR> 
Framework six capitals 
model

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS
Certain statements mentioned in this 
report may be as forward-looking. Such 
statements involve known and unknown 
risks, uncertainties and other important 
factors that could cause the actual 
results, performance or achievements of 
the Company to be materially different 
from the future results, performance or 
achievements expressed or implied by 
such forward-looking statements. The 
Company undertakes no obligation to 
update publicly or release any revisions 
to these forward-looking statements to 
reflect events or circumstances after the 
date of this document, or to reflect the 
occurrence of anticipated events. 

ASSURANCE
We have adopted a combined assurance 
approach, where internally, the report 
content is reviewed and approved by 
the executive committee, the audit 
committee and the Board.

Our external auditors KPMG, Chartered 
Accountants have certified the 
Company’s Financial statements and 
related notes and disclosures published 
in this Report. (Please refer the 
Independent Audit Report on page 88).

BOARD RESPONSIBILITY
The Nation Lanka Finance PLC Board of 
Directors acknowledges its responsibility 
for ensuring the integrity of this 
integrated report. The Board confirms 
that it has collectively reviewed the 
contents of the report in conjunction with 
the assurance reports obtained from our 
various internal and external assurance 
providers, including assessments on risk 
and internal controls. 

Accordingly, the Board is of the view that 
the Integrated Annual Report for the FY 
2020/21 provides a fair and accurate 
assessment of the Company’s financial 
and non-financial performance for the 
year ended 31st March 2021. 

FEEDBACK
We welcome your questions regarding 
this report and your suggestions to help 
us improve the next edition and request 
that you direct your feedback to;  
info@nationlanka.com
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JAYANTHA DHARMADASA
Patron

MESSAGE FROM THE PATRON

REPORT PROFILE



NATION LANKA FINANCE PLC | ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

PAGE 13

MESSAGE FROM THE PATRON
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The sudden change of global situation 
due to the COVID -19 pandemic did not 
spare any company big or small. This 
is so as far as NLF is concerned. The 
challenge became enormous where 
administrative and financial matters 
coupled with social obligation were 
concerned. When the destructive 
COVID -19 hit us badly in 2019 for the 
first time in the history, we confidentially 
looked forward to 2020 for a happy and 
positive beginning. However,  as could 
be witnessed by everyone, that dream 
did not become a reality.  In spite of it,  
we had to divert our first and foremost 
attention and make plans to protect and 
sustain our number one resources - our 
employees and supporting our customers 
who are pillars in our business. I am 
deeply proud to witness  the swift action 
taken by NLF Board with the CEO and the 
senior management towards this. 

This experience taught us a valuable 
lesson to cope with any crisis and also 
make vast adjustments in our daily and 
routine management style . We learned 
many latest technology and adopted 
same to suit and carry out our business.  
The  immense support received from our 
teams in managing our business under 
this trying condition worth mentioning 
here and we sincerely thank them for 
all their hard work put in to assist the 
management. 

I am also thankful and grateful to 
the entire NLF Board and the senior 
management for shouldering all the 
responsibilities in leading the company in 
the challenging situation. I sincerely and 
earnestly hope that approval will be given 
by the regulators for the amalgamation 
of NLF with Sinhaputhra Finance which 
will help the company to get stronger .

Having said so, I must extend my very 
sincere thanks and appreciation to 
our business partners, Shareholders , 
customers  and stakeholders who mean 
a great deal to us without whose support 
the company would not have achieved its 
growth . Once again a VERY BIG THANK 
YOU TO ALL OF THEM.

In conclusion, I also assure my unstinted 
support as the Patron of the company 
to the Chairman Mr. Victor Ramanan, the 
Board and the CEO and wish them well 
in all their future endeavours. My best 
wishes also to Shareholders, and all other 
stakeholders of Nation Lanka Finance 
PLC.

Dr. Jayantha Dharmadasa
Patron

27th August 2021
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On behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Nation Lanka Finance PLC, it gives me 
great pleasure to present to you the 
Company’s  Annual Report and Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31st 
March 2021. Taking a major step forward 
in our reporting journey, we have for the 
first time structured our annual report as 
per the integrated reporting framework 
outlined by the International Integrated 
Reporting Council. Through this approach, 
we hope to provide our stakeholders with 
a more holistic view of the Company’s 
operations and also demonstrate how we 
are executing our strategy for the benefit 
of all stakeholders of Nation Lanka 
Finance PLC.
 
If I am to sum up the current financial 
year, finding the right words to describe 
the COVID-19 pandemic and its impact 
presents a challenge in itself. In fact I 
am inclined to think that the commonly 
quoted ‘unprecedented’ somehow fails 
to capture its full magnitude. However 
despite facing countless challenges 
owing to the COVID-19 pandemic, I am 
pleased to announce that your Company 
stayed on course to achieve certain 
financial objectives set for the year under 
review. When there are constraints to 
improve top line , we were successful 
in bringing down the average monthly 
overhead cost from Rs  81 Million in 
2019/20 period  to Rs 62 Million in 
2020/21 period. This gave a saving of 
Rs 234  Million, for the period under 
review, which included a tax reduction of 
Rs 32 Million.

The cost optimisation measures were 
adopted , keeping in mind our proposed 
merger with Sinhaputhara Finance 
PLC. These measures would improve 
the viability of the new entity, when the 
economic forecast both locally and 
globally is not in a  very satisfactory level.

It is pertinent to mention , that your 
Company operated under CAPs imposed 
on lending and deposits for the year, and 
will continue until, the Company satisfy the 
capital requirement of the Central Bank of 
Sri Lanka.

OPERATING CONTEXT 
Like most nations around the world, Sri 
Lanka too was thrust into a situation 
unlike any other country has encountered 
in its recent history. Weighed down by the 
2-month island-wide lockdown, frequent 
and often ad-hoc mobility restrictions 
and the closure of the airport for almost 
10 months consecutively, economic 
activity remained muted at best for much 
of 2020. The 3.6% contraction in GDP in 
2020 was therefore only to be expected. 

Meanwhile taking action to revive 
economic activity and bring relief 
to COVID affected businesses, the 
government made some clear policy 
changes. These accommodative 
monetary policy measures, while well 
intentioned, had a direct bearing on the 
performance of certain other sectors. In 
particular the ban on vehicle imports was 
a major blow for the non-bank financial 
services sector, which has long depended 
on vehicle leasing to drive its core 
lending business. The debt moratorium 
announced by the government in April 
2020 also proved to be a massive blow 
for financial institutions. The moratorium 
which allowed borrowers in most sectors 
to postpone their repayments initially 
for a period of six months, and later 
extended for a further six months for 
selected sectors considering the longer 
recovery period of those sectors, left 
financial institutions to deal with the 
prospect of diminishing cash flows for 
even longer. To add to this, the Central 
Bank directive announcing the interest 
on deferred rentals be charged at 11.5% 
only further exacerbated the situation, 
as this is well below the average cost 
of funds of NBFIs in Sri Lanka. The low 
interest rate environment was also 
another major drawdown that stifled 
the NBFI’s sectors’ deposit mobilisation 
activities in 2020. However, by far the 
most significant impact stems directly 
from the economic downturn itself, where 
poor credit appetite coupled with higher 
non-performing loans made for a very 
tough year overall for Sri Lanka’s financial 
sector and more so for the NBFI sector. 

On a positive note, the government 
continued with its ongoing policy reforms 
to strengthen the resilience of the 
NBFI sector, most notably through the 
Financial Sector Consolidation Master 
Plan (FSCMP). Having studied the FSCMP 
I feel it will address several of the current 
issues facing the non-bank financial 
sector and thereby pave the way for a 
more level playing field in the long term.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Under the shadow of the pandemic, 
Nation Lanka Finance PLC’s performance 
for the FY 2020/21 was affected. The 
inability to lend due to the economic 
downturn meant that the Company was 
unable to achieve its revenue targets 
for the year, while the impact of the 
moratorium brought pressure on our 
bottom line and cash flows.

As a result, Net operating income and 
net assets decreased by 33% and 11% 
respectively, with a net loss Rs. 124.3 
Million for the year.

DIGITAL INTEGRATION
As the pandemic continued to unfold, the 
importance of digital technology has never 
been more apparent. I am indeed proud to 
say that, having systematically deepened 
our digital integration over the past 
few years, NLF was able to seamlessly 
activate its BCP systems at the onset 
of the lockdown in order to provide an 
uninterrupted service to customers.  It was 
also how we were able to transition our 
staff to work from home, almost overnight. 

Moving ahead with the next phase of our 
digital transformation strategy, in the 
current financial year we initiated efforts 
to digitise all aspects of our human 
capital process. This forms part of a 
broader goal to embed the performance 
driven culture more holistically across all 
levels of the business.  

GOVERNANCE AND STEWARDSHIP
Good governance, as always, remains the 
foundation of our business. I would like 
to take this opportunity to share some 
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insights as to how the NLF Board ensures 
that strong corporate governance 
underpins the delivery of the Company’s 
strategy at all times. 

The Board continues to operate within 
the framework of a Board Charter, 
which clarifies the respective roles 
and responsibilities of the Chairman, 
Non-Executive Directors and the CEO 
as distinctly different from each other. 
The Board Charter further incorporates 
a schedule  of matters reserved for 
Board discussion and approval  and also 
outlines the terms of reference of Board 
Committees. 

In this way, the NLF Board leads the 
business based on the principles of 
honesty, transparency and accountability, 
to support the implementation of the 
Company’s strategy in order to optimise 
value creation for our stakeholders.

Despite being challenged on many fronts, 
I am pleased to say that we made good 
progress in our efforts to comply with 
the Central Bank’s Core Capital adequacy 
requirements. Taking a major step in this 
direction, NLF signed a memorandum of 
understanding with Sinhaputhra Finance 
to begin the amalgamation of the two 
entities. We expect the merger will ensure 
NLF meets the core capital requirements 
that have been mandated by the 
Monetary Board of the Central Bank and 
also enable NLF to move up the ranks to 
be recognised as a “Category A” non-
bank financial institution in Sri Lanka. 
Having made the necessary filings as at 
31st March 2021, we are now awaiting 
formal approval from the Monetary 
Board of Sri Lanka to proceed with this 
amalgamation. 

LOOKING AHEAD
Although the outlook for the Sri Lankan 
economy remains largely uncertain as 
the pandemic continues to spread in ever 
increasing intensity, we at Nation Lanka 
Finance PLC will continue to think and act 
bearing in mind the long term prospects 
of our business within the broader 

context of Sri Lanka's non-bank financial 
services sector. 

In preparation for this, our focus for 
the immediate future would be to 
consolidate our strengths and build 
resilience.  We will look to leverage on 
our core competencies to build market 
share, while at the same time, exploring 
new and emerging market segments to 
bolster NLF’s growth trajectory in the 
years ahead.  In this regard, I expect that 
the merger with Sinhaputhra Finance 
too will offer some important synergies 
especially to enhance our ability to 
grow our reach and visibility across the 
Country, and thereby strengthen NLF’s 
competitive positioning and market share 
in the local non-bank financial sector.

We also expect to further accelerate 
the pace of our digital transformation 
in order to derive greater efficiencies, 
improve scalability and augment our 
value proposition to the customer. 
Concurrently, we aim to invest in 
optimising our human capital. Our 
intention in all this is to make our 
organisation more agile in responding 
to the demands in our fast evolving 
operating environment.

BOARD CHANGES
Three long serving Directors resigned 
from the Board in the year under review. 
Mr. Harshith Dharmadasa - NLF’s former 
Deputy Chairman resigned with effect 
from 22nd December 2020, while Mr. 
Lalaith Karunaratne’s resignation came 
into effect on 30th September 2020 and 
Mr.  Sunil Kandegedara on  10th February 
2021. All three resignations are in line 
with the Central Bank directive stipulating 
the 9 year maximum service period for 
Directors serving on the Board of listed 
companies.

I wish to extend my grateful thanks to Mr. 
Dharmadasa, Mr. Karunaratna and Mr. 
Kandegedera for the invaluable service 
rendered to NLF during their tenures on 
the Board. I wish them well in their future 
endeavours.

On that note, I wish to welcome Mr. 
Jagath Dissanayake who was appointed 
to the NLF Board with effect from 30th 
November 2020.

I also wish to make a special appreciation 
to our former Executive Director/CEO, Mr. 
Jayantha Perera, who stepped down from 
the Board in August 2020 due to medical 
reasons and later passed away in February 
2021. Let me take this opportunity to offer 
my condolences to his family.

APPRECIATIONS 
As I conclude my statement, I would like 
to thank my colleagues on the Board 
for their steadfast support. Your wise 
counsel has been a source of immense 
strength to us all this past year. 

On behalf of the Board, I wish to thank 
the Management and staff who under the 
leadership of our CEO for rallying together 
to give their best to the Company not 
withstanding pandemic related challenges.   

My grateful thanks to the Director and all 
officials at the Department of Supervision 
of Non-bank Financial Institutions of the 
Central Bank of Sri Lanka,  the Securities 
and Exchange Commission and the 
Colombo Stock Exchange for their 
valuable support and guidance.

I acknowledge the contribution of our 
External Auditors M/s KPMG and Company 
Secretaries, Corporate Arcade Limited and 
advisory services by Ernst & Young.

Last, but not least, my deepest gratitude 
to all NLF customers and shareholders, 
for being with us on our journey these 
past few years. I am confident that if we 
continue to work together, we will be able 
to keep moving onward and upward in the 
years ahead.

Mr. Victor Ramanan
Chairman

27th August 2021
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Since penning my statement last year, 
many things have changed. It is indeed 
difficult to imagine that in the space of 
a mere twelve months, we would see the 
world shaken to the core. This past year 
has perhaps been one of the toughest 
times for Sri Lanka as heightened 
uncertainty caused by the COVID-19 
pandemic left individuals and businesses 
struggling in the face of the deepest 
recession the Country has experienced 
post-independence.

The cascading impact on the Country’s 
financial system too was quite significant. 
The non-bank financial services sector 
in particular found itself under stress 
as its main market - the MSME sector 
was among the worst affected by the 
pandemic induced economic downturn. 
To add to this, the ban on vehicle imports 
announced by the government at the 
onset of the pandemic also affected the 
NBFI sector prospects this past year. 

Being part of the NBFI sector ourselves, 
Nation Lanka Finance PLC too was not 
immune to these challenges. However, I 
believe it was the way we tackled these 
challenges that made all the difference 
in ensuring NLF stays grounded in this 
extremely fluid environment. 

Let me take this opportunity to provide 
some context on the areas we focused on 
during the year.

RE-STRATEGISING IN THE FACE OF 
UNCERTAINTY 
Like many businesses, NLF too was 
directly impacted by the weak credit 
appetite in the market. Taking these 
challenges in stride, we made necessary 
adjustments to focus on managing our 
costs, improving resilience and above 
all meeting the expectations of our 
stakeholders regardless of headwinds. 

Starting with our customers, we felt if 
there was ever a time for Nation Lanka 
Finance PLC to live up to its mission, it 
was in this past year. Seeing as many of 
the customers were under pressure, we 
moved quickly to assist them to access 
the debt moratorium declared by the 
government. In this way we were able to 
assist a total of 3,223 of our core lending 
customers - 2,364 customers (41% of 
NLF’s total lending customer base) were 
granted phase 1 of the moratorium, while 
another 859 customers were also able to 
benefit from phase 2. In addition, 26,486 
Micro customers were also given this 
concession. Beyond this, we took some of 
our own initiatives to support customers 
facing challenging times  and helped 
them to get back on track. At the same 
time our branch staff were asked to stay 
in regular contact with our customers 
via video conferencing. I must say, these 
efforts were deeply appreciated by our 
customers.

While doing whatever possible to support 
our customers, we did not lose sight of 
what was important to safeguard our 
business. With very few viable lending 
opportunities in the market in the first 
few months of the current financial year, 
we made a strategic decision to curtail 
lending and instead focus on recoveries. 
Pushing ahead with renewed force, we 
called in our entire sales force to focus 
on recoveries during the initial lockdown 
period. Moreover with the pandemic 
resurfacing intermittently, we further 
tightened other aspects of our recovery 
model in readiness for a possible spike in 
non-performing loans when customers 
reach the end of their debt moratorium.

Meanwhile with favourable market 
conditions in the latter part of 2020 
providing a conducive environment, we 
resumed lending activities. Nevertheless, 
given the persistent uncertainty on 
the economic front, it was decided to 
maintain a selective approach in order to 
control our exposure to certain sectors. 
On the other hand we were able to make 
good progress in growing our pawning 
portfolio.

Cost control was another major priority. 
As in the past our cost containment 
strategies were primarily aimed at 
improving our cost to income ratio. With 
the weak economic environment bringing 
pressure on income, we rolled out broad 
ranging containment initiatives to reduce 
NLF’s discretionary expenses at all levels 
of the business, which I am pleased to 
say has brought us significantly closer to 
our targeted cost to income ratio.   

Turning our attention towards building 
resilience for the future, we worked 
to strengthen our risk management 
processes. Specifically, we tested 
the effectiveness of our existing risk 
frameworks in meeting NLF’s risk 
management objectives  under varying 
stress scenarios. In parallel, we focused 
on improving risk identification and 
monitoring in order to determine new and 
emerging risks vis-a-vis the contentious 
operating environment brought about by 
the pandemic.  We also rolled out several 
initiatives to reinforce the risk culture at 
all levels of the business.

ADAPTING  TO NEW NORMAL WORK 
PRACTICES
Thrust into the midst of an 
unprecedented lockdown situation 
we had to react fast to safeguard the 
continuity of NLF business operations, 
while continuing to make proactive 
decisions to keep our employees and 
customers as safe as possible, in line 
with the advice of the health authorities. 
In response we implemented a range of 
measures to ensure safe and reliable 
operations for our employees and 
customers.

Immediately following lockdown orders, 
we  reduced branch opening hours and 
brought employees in on a shift basis 
which saw at least 50% of each branch / 
departmental teams working from home 
for several months after the lockdown 
ended. Meanwhile, seeking other ways 
to adapt to the “new normal”, certain job 
roles were given the option of maintaining 
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flexi hours. This adaptive approach has 
served us well this past year and together 
with our business continuity plans has 
allowed NLF to continue to operate with 
minimum disruptions throughout the 
year. 

At this point, I would also like to point out 
that we did not let the pandemic hold 
us back from moving ahead with our 
scheduled plan to relocate the Nation 
Lanka Finance PLC head office to new 
premises in Colombo 03. In preparing for 
this relocation, we appointed a special 
task force to embed the new normal 
work environment with all necessary 
safeguards to minimise the contact 
between customers and our employees.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
As the entire World, the country and the 
industry fell under the shadow of the 
pandemic, Nation Lanka Finance PLC’s 
performance for the FY 2020/21 was also 
affected in many aspects. 

The inability to lend due to the economic 
downturn meant that the Company was 
unable to achieve its revenue targets 
for the year, while the impact of the 
moratorium brought pressure on our 
bottom line and cash flows. The CAPs 
imposed by the Central Bank was a 
limitation in our revenue generation and 
sourcing required funds. The combined 
impact saw a depletion in all portfolios 
where Total Assets declined by 17% with  
our bottom line reporting  a net loss of 
Rs.  124.30 Mn for the year under review 
despite our efforts on operational cost 
reduction and revamping the recovery 
drive. 

FUTURE OUTLOOK
While it is clear that the macroeconomic 
impacts of the pandemic will likely persist 
over the next few years I am confident 
that after having managed the pandemic 
with relative ease, NLF is now on a firmer 
footing to tackle the challenges that lie 
ahead.

I also believe that, we will be shaped 
by experience as we navigate our way 
through the coming months. This 
experience will be a catalyst for new ideas 
while the lessons learned in this past year 
will help us evolve and develop the right 
competencies. This means reorienting 
every aspect of our operations to 
transform into a more dynamic and agile 
entity that is capable of pursuing an even 
better normal for all our stakeholders.

APPRECIATIONS
In what has perhaps been one of the 
toughest years in NLF’s history, I want 
to  thank all our employees who adapted 
rapidly and without question to the new 
reality. Let me also take the opportunity 
to thank the NLF Board for their strong 
and decisive leadership that has been the 
foundation of NLF’s pandemic response.

Thank you also to our customers and 
shareholders for supporting Nation Lanka 
Finance PLC and maintaining trust in our 
long-term potential. 

My appreciation to the Central Bank of 
Sri Lanka, the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Sri Lanka and the 
Colombo Stock Exchange for their advice 
and support during the year.

Finally I want to take a moment 
to acknowledge the healthcare 
professionals and other stakeholders 
who are at the forefront of fighting this 
pandemic and continue to risk their lives 
daily to keep our nation and its people 
safe. Thank you and stay safe.

Suresh M. Amerasekera
Chief Executive Officer

27th August 2021
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MANUFACTURED 
CAPITAL
25 branches/Service Centres 

INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL
Brand strength
IT infrastructure 
Tacit knowledge base
Ethics and Integrity Framework 

SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL 
Responsible products
Customer experience 
management strategy
Fair and equitable purchasing 
mechanism 
Community empowerment model

HUMAN CAPITAL
429 employees
Compliance and Best Practices 
HR Governance
HR Policy Framework 

NATURAL CAPITAL
Environmental impact 
management  

FINANCIAL CAPITAL
Equity Capital - Rs. 958 Mn
Debt Capital - Rs. 574 Mn
Deposit Base - Rs. 5.2 Bn
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Deposits
Leasing
Loans
Micro Finance
Pawning
Real Estate

Recoveries
IT
Finance and 
Administration 
Procurement 
Legal

SHAREHOLDERS
ROE (11.9%)

ROI (7.5%)

Dividend 0

CUSTOMERS 
Rs. 2.6 Bn of new loans

Island-wide reach

Increased Customer Satisfaction 

Faster complaint resolution

EMPLOYEES
Promotions - 4

Gender Balance - Male - 320

- Female - 109

Training Hours - 252

REGULATORS
Taxes Paid - Rs. 18 Mn

Central Bank - Rs. 2 Mn

Colombo Stock Exchange - 

Rs. 0.11 Mn

COMMUNITIES
Microfinance lending - Rs. 1.28 Bn

Conducted 0 Financial Literacy 

Programmes for the benefit of 0 

micro entrepreneurs 
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MATERIALITY
Nation Lanka Finance PLC is committed to becoming a more sustainable business 
entity capable of meeting the expectations of its stakeholders. For this reason and also 
because the priorities of different stakeholder groups can change in a dynamic market 
environment, we carry out a Materiality Analysis to determine the key issues that should 
influence our strategy and operational processes. We update this analysis continuously 
through discussions with our various business heads and operational managers as well 
as expert interviews with external stakeholders.

The information gathered in this way is analysed on the basis of how each one may 
affect our business or be of concern to stakeholders. The most relevant issues are then 
plotted on a Materiality Matrix to assess their significance to the business against their 
relative importance to our stakeholders.

The following Materiality Matrix provides a snapshot of the 17 most Material issues for 
Nation Lanka in the current financial year.
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Importance to Business
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HIGHMEDIUMLOW

  Financial stability

  Capital Adequacy and Liquidity

  IT Security and fraud

  Responsible Products and Services

  Governance and compliance
  Diversity and inclusion

  Supporting SMEs, entrepreneurs and starts ups

  Human and labour rights

  Local community development and support

  Responsible procurement

  Environmental footprint

  Business ethics and anti-corruption

  Supporting economic growth
Employee health and well-being   

Equal opportunities and anti discrimination     Best in class customer service

  Reach and Accessibility
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Our pledge is to create lasting stakeholder value and to make a sustainable contribution to society. We do this by getting to know 
our various stakeholders and then engaging with them to understand what matters most to them and also learn how and why these 
needs will change.

 ∫ invite stakeholders to engage
 ∫ brief stakeholders
 ∫ engage
 ∫ document engagement and output
 ∫ develop an action plan
 ∫ communicate plans

 ∫ mobilise resources
 ∫ build capacity
 ∫ identify and prepare for risks

 ∫ Monitor, evaluate and refine 
engagement

 ∫ learn and improve
 ∫ follow up on the action plan
 ∫ report on engagement

 ∫ identify stakeholders
 ∫ map stakeholders
 ∫ determine engagement methods
 ∫ determine disclosure boundaries
 ∫ draft engagement plan

STAKEHOLDER 
ENGAGEMENT 
FRAMEWORK

Act, Review and 
Improve 

Engage

Plan

Prepare

Engaging with stakeholders is an ongoing process that enables us to continuously refine our strategy and improve our processes to 
drive holistic value creation.

SHAREHOLDERS

METHOD OF ENGAGEMENT FREQUENCY OF ENGAGEMENT Material Concerns

- Financial Stability
- Capital Adequacy and Liquidity
- Governance and Compliance

Our Strategic Response: 

Financial Capital - Page 28
Corporate Governance Report - Page 41
Investor & Investor Information - Page 182

Annual General Meeting Annual

Annual Report Annual

Extraordinary General Meetings As needed

Interim Financial Statements Quarterly

CSE Announcements As needed

Press Conferences / Press 
Releases

As needed

Corporate Website Continuous and Ongoing

Social Media Platforms Continuous and Ongoing

CUSTOMERS

METHOD OF ENGAGEMENT FREQUENCY OF ENGAGEMENT Material Concerns

- Responsible Products and Services
- Best in-class customer service
- Reach and Accessibility
- Supporting SME’s, entrepreneurs and start-ups
- Business ethics and anti-corruption
- IT Security and fraud

Our Strategic Response: 

Social and Relationship Capital - Page 38
Intellectual Capital - Page 32
Manufactured Capital - Page 31

Sales Teams Continuous and Ongoing

Call Center Continuous and Ongoing

Promotional Activities Continuous and Ongoing

Press Conferences / Press 
Releases

As needed

Corporate Website Continuous and Ongoing

Social Media Platforms Continuous and Ongoing

Customer Surveys As needed
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EMPLOYEES

METHOD OF ENGAGEMENT FREQUENCY OF 
ENGAGEMENT

Material Concerns

- Employee health and wellbeing
- Diversity and inclusion 
- Business ethics and anti-corruption
- Human and labour rights

Our Strategic Response: 

Human Capital - Page 34
Intellectual Capital - Page 32

Sales Briefings / Team Meetings Continuous and 
Ongoing

Management Meetings As needed

Internal Communications Continuous and 
Ongoing

Employee Notice Board As needed

Training Activities Continuous and 
Ongoing

Awards Ceremonies Annual

Other Company events As scheduled

REGULATORS

METHOD OF ENGAGEMENT FREQUENCY OF 
ENGAGEMENT

Material Concerns

- Financial Stability
- Capital Adequacy and Liquidity
- Governance and Compliance 
- Business ethics and anti-corruption
- Human and labour rights
- IT Security and fraud
- Supporting economic growth
- Reach and accessibility 

Our Strategic Response: 

Financial Capital - Page 28
Corporate Governance Report - Page 41
Investor & Investor Information - Page 128
Intellectual Capital - Page 32
Manufactured Capital - Page 31

Directives and circulars Continuous and 
Ongoing

CBSL Audit Annual/Periodic

Interim Financials Quarterly

Annual Report Annual

Regulatory submissions / filings As mandated

Other meetings As needed

COMMUNITY

METHOD OF ENGAGEMENT FREQUENCY OF 
ENGAGEMENT

Material Concerns

- Local community development and support
- Supporting SME’s, entrepreneurs and startups
- Human and labour rights
- Supporting economic growth
- Responsible Procurement
- Environmental Footprint

Our Strategic Response: 

Social and Relationship Capital - Page 38
Intellectual Capital - Page 32

Press Conferences / Press Releases As needed

Corporate Website Continuous and 
Ongoing

Social Media Platforms Continuous and 
Ongoing

Annual Report Annual

Community Projects As needed

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 

REPORT PROFILE
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SRI LANKAN ECONOMY
The Sri Lankan economy contracted in 2020, as a direct consequence of the economic 
downturn attributed to the COVID-19 pandemic. As per estimates of the Department of 
Census and Statistics, the Sri Lankan economy contracted by 3.6% in 2020, compared 
to the 2.3% growth recorded in the preceding year.

Figure 1.1 
Activity-wise contribution to GDP Growth 
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All sectors of the economy recorded de-growth during 2020 - Agriculture by 2.4% 
Industry by 6.9% and services by 1.5% compared to the previous year. 

Effects of the pandemic were observed in other areas of the economy as well. The 
unemployment rate climbed to 5.5% in 2020 from 4.8% in the previous year, and the 
labour force participation rate meanwhile reduced to 50.6% in 2020 from 52.3% recorded 
in the preceding year. A culmination of these factors saw the size of the Sri Lankan 
economy contracting to 80.7 billion USD in 2020 from 84.0 billion USD in the previous 
year, while per capita GDP declined to 3,682 USD in 2020 from 3,852 USD in 2019.

There were however some notable positives as well. The Country’s trade deficit declined 
significantly thanks to a combination of lower import expenditure and a resilient 
performance from the export sector. Imports declined significantly in 2020, as a direct 
consequence of the government's decision to restrict all non-essential imports, in 
particular the importation of vehicles. The relatively low world crude oil prices during 
the year was also partly responsible for the lower expenditure on imports. The export 
sector meanwhile which was severely affected at the onset of the pandemic in Sri 
Lanka, rebounded strongly thereafter and performed consistently to reach pre-
pandemic levels by the end of the year.

Meanwhile the Central Bank continued 
with monetary policy easing measures 
in a bid to hasten the resumption of 
economic activity after several months of 
lockdown. Key policy interest rates were 
revised downward  with the Standing 
Deposit Facility Rate (SDFR) and the 
Standing Lending Facility Rate (SLFR), 
reduced on five separate occasions 
during the year by a total of 250 basis 
points, which saw both hit a historical 
lows of 4.50% and 5.5%, respectively, 
in 2020. Furthermore, considering the 
difficulties faced by borrowers in light 
of the pandemic induced economic 
downturn, the Central Bank took steps 
to offer a debt moratorium scheme. 
The scheme which was initially offered 
to most segments of the economy was 
later extended for selected sectors 
considering the longer recovery period 
of those sectors being affected by the 
pandemic. 

Source CBSL AR 2020

NON-BANK FINANCIAL (NBFI) 
SECTOR
It was a tough year for the non-bank 
financial sector. Two main factors 
affected the performance of the sector. 
The economic downturn caused by the 
pandemic and the restriction on vehicle 
imports, both collectively leading to 
a sizable deterioration in the credit 
appetite from the market. 
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Figure 8.9 
Total Loans and Advances (gross) product-wise for 2019 
and 2020
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Credit extended by the NBFI sector declined by 5.7% to Rs. 
1,039.9 Billion compared to the contraction of 3.0% reported in 
2019 as Loans and advances, which has long been the mainstay 
of  the sector’s lending model, came under pressure due to the 
underlying economic weaknesses and the restriction on vehicle 
imports. Consequently, sector Assets recorded de-growth 
in 2020, contracting by 2.2% to Rs.. 1,401.6 Billion by end-
December 2020. 

Stressed conditions all round saw the sectors’ gross NPL 
ratio shoot up to 13.9% by end December 2020 from 10.6% in 
December 2019, reflecting a severe deterioration in sector-wide 
asset quality.

Figure 8.10 

Profitability Indicators of the LFCs and SLCs sector
25
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Figure 8.11 
Non-Performing Loans and Provision Coverage of the 
LFCs and SLCs Sector
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Stymied by weak earning capacity on top of rising NPL’s, the 
NBFI sector posted a profit after tax of Rs. 13.7 Billion, a visible 
decline of 6.% compared to the profit recorded in 2019.

On a related note, the Central Bank introduced the Financial 
Sector consolidation master Plan (FSCMP) along with several 
other regulatory initiatives to strengthen the stability of the NBFI 
sector and safeguard the interest of depositors.

Source CBSL AR 2020
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LENDING
It was a challenging year for the Lending 
business as the economic downturn 
resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic 
had a cascading effect on almost all key 
sectors of the economy. The Micro and 
SME sector businesses which have always 
been particularly sensitive to economic 
shocks, were severely affected by the 
2-month island-wide lockdown declared 
by the government as part of its COVID 
control measures. Persistent economic 
uncertainty and weak economic recovery 
even after lockdown restrictions were 
lifted continued to bring pressure on the 
Micro and SME sector.

Amidst this backdrop Nation Lanka PLC 
decided to largely curtail its lending 
activities and instead prioritised recovery 
efforts with all field staff redirected 
towards collections throughout the 
lockdown and for several months 
thereafter. Additional resources were 
diverted to strengthen the legal recovery 
aspects as well.

In parallel, the Company also took steps 
to accommodate customer requests 
for the debt moratorium. On this basis, 
41% of core lending customers were 
granted phase 1 and 15% phase 2 of the 
debt moratorium. In addition, 26,486 
Micro Customers were also granted this 
concession.

With the low interest rate environment 
causing an upswing in the demand for 
credit towards the latter part of 2020, 
the Company resumed lending activities 
on a prudent basis. However taking 
cognizance of the underlying weaknesses 
likely to impact the economic recovery 
over the medium term, it was decided 
to adopt a selective lending strategy for 
short to medium term exposures such as 
leasing, hire purchase and micro finance. 
The decision to not to increase the 
exposure to long term lending  continued 
in this year as well.

Meanwhile as the demand for pawning 
grew for the second consecutive 
year amidst consistently high world 
gold prices, the Company seized the 
opportunity to take advantage of the 
ongoing expansion of the pawning 
market in order to grow its pawning 
portfolio in the year under review.
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DEPOSITS
With the pandemic-led economic 
downturn and low interest rate 
environment prompting investors to 
liquidate their deposits either to meet 
their debt service commitment or 
in search of more viable investment 
opportunities, the year under review did 
not provide a conducive environment for 
deposit mobilisation. 

Influenced by these factors, Nation Lanka 
PLC too decided against pursuing deposit 
taking activities and instead focused 
mainly on rationalising its deposit 
portfolio to improve the overall deposit 
mix with a view to lowering the Company’s 
overall funding costs. In this regard 
special emphasis was placed on reducing 
the concentration of longer term high 
cost deposits. The other key priority was 
to minimise customer attrition in the 
shorter tenure FD’s to allow the Company 

to benefit from the low interest rates and 
thereby lower its overall cost of funds. 
These efforts proved successful, enabling 
the Company to maintain its retention 
ratio at 61% and ensure a bulk of the 
deposit base remains intact.

Meanwhile, despite no aggressive deposit 
mobilisation and with no advertising or 
promotional activities being carried out 
during the year, the Nation Lanka brand 
continued to attract a steady stream 
of new deposits. The decision to move 
the Company’s head office to a new 
building in Colombo 03 also helped create 
greater visibility for the brand. In this 
way new deposit volumes amounting to 
Rs. 940 Million was mobilised for the FY 
2020/21, a commendable achievement 
given the persistently low interest rates 
and depressed market conditions that 
prevailed during the year. 

Deposit Base
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LKR 0.958 Bn
Shareholder funds

LKR 5.247 Bn
Deposits

LKR 0.574 Bn
Borrowings

FINANCIAL CAPITAL

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
Net Interest income 
Company’s NII declined by 53% during the year reflecting the slow -down / decrease in new lending as well as the demand for new 
credit from the market. Sustained reduction in interest rate ceilings on selected product categories affected the decline on interest 
income. Impact by the debt moratoriums granted to revive the affected business / individuals too contributed to the declined interest 
income. Company’s net interest margin (NIM) also narrowed to 36% from 47% in the previous year reflecting regulator –imposed rate 
ceilings and the reduction on market rates during the year. 

Financial Year 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17

Net Interest Income 425,725,921 907,694,380 1,251,187,033 1,228,973,697 1,492,559,797
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Other Operating Income 
Company’s other operating income 
is connected with the core business 
of lending and pawning. Low level of 
economic activities due to curtailment 
of new business and restricted hours of 
business operations during the pandemic 
had a sizeable impact on the volume of 
fee-based transactions carried out by the 
Company during the year. Suspending of 
charging certain penal charges from the 
clients considering the current difficulties 
faced by customers due to COVID 19 
pandemic also negatively impacted the 
fee-based income resulting in a drop over 
last year. 

However, there has been an increase in other income due to non-repetitive income 
unique to this year while we experienced a decrease in interest income on Fixed 
Deposits and Government securities as there has been a decline in the rates of those 
investment instruments and excess liquidity available at the latter part of the year. 

2021 2020

Interest on govt. securities & fixed deposits 45,426,618 64,377,222

Provision reversal of VAT of financial services 45,013,742 -

Provision reversal of debt repayment Levy 12,332,896 -

Provision reversal of Nation Building Tax 10,151,491 -

Direct Interest Cost
The Company saw a 27% reduction in the Direct Interest Cost with Rs. 278 Million 
absolute terms due to the depletion in the Deposits and Saving Bases. However, the 
other borrowings had a marginal increase due the new borrowings during the year. 

2021 2020

Interest on fixed deposits and savings 631,010,449 907,721,937

Interest on other borrowings 101,280,893 101,142,520

Interest on debenture 21,000,000 22,165,826

753,291,342 1,031,030,283



NATION LANKA FINANCE PLC | ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

PAGE 29

FINANCIAL CAPITAL

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Impairments

2020/21 2019/20

Impairment Charge 108,130,071 156,527,158

Company’s impairment charges decreased by 31% during the year, relatively better than the industry accretion. However, the 
collections efforts were disrupted heavily due to the pandemic resulting in the non-performing loans ratio increasing to 36% 
compared to 29% reported the last year. Regulator/ government imposed restrictions on several recovery actions due to pandemic 
too affected the normal  recovery methods which in return fuelled the impairment position heavily. However, we continue to engage 
closely with the customers in offering personalised repayment plans/ facility restructuring as proactive efforts to stem the escalation 
of NPL’s.   

Cost Management 
During the year strategic emphasis was placed on driving cost efficiencies through some changes done in the operational processes.  
Due to a scale down in business operations, there was a reduction of personnel cost as the Company did not replace most of the 
staff attritions at branch and head office level by internal transfers and re-assignment of job duties while maintaining the current 
support staff. In addition, changes in some branch locations to reduce rent including the head office premises of the Company 
in a decline in operational expenses. Staff rosters, restricted working hours, and work from home functions with the assistance 
of sophisticated IT system implemented by the Company contributed to a decline in operational cost by 24% (LKR.234 Million in 
absolute terms). 

Financial Year 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17

Operational Cost 739,172,625 973,435,279 1,028,002,610 932,039,585 848,550,675
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Taxation
Company’s tax expenses declined due 
to depletion in income and reflecting 
changes in the tax regime as the debt 
repayment levy and NBT on financial 
services was removed. Accordingly, taxes 
and levies on financial services reduced 
by 66% to LKR 16 Million while income 
tax expenses declined by 85% to LKR 18 
Million. The Tax Asset (Credit) increased 
to Rs. 466 Million mainly due to Expected 
Credit Loss and Brought Forward Tax 
Losses.

Profitability
Despite the decrease in operating 
expenses and cost of borrowing the 
decline in the Income was greater, thus 
the Company recorded a net loss during 
the year even after considering the 
impact of the Tax Credit and revaluation 
gains.
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FINANCIAL CAPITAL

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Year 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17

Profitability -114,431,744 10,158,310 167,290,715 -57,988,870 174,514,618
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FINANCIAL POSITION 
Asset Movement 
Due to the curtailment of new business and the strategy adopted with a greater emphasis on recoveries the asset base depleted by 
17% with Rs. 1.48 Billion in absolute terms.

Financial Year 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17

Total Assets 7,262,632,642 8,738,439,487 8,974,938,355 9,074,960,597 8,408,742,080

Capital and Funding 
Total liabilities declined by 18% during the year as the Company reduced exposure to borrowings. Fixed deposits base had reduced 
during the year due to changes in the consumer spending patterns and the caps imposed by Central Bank of Sri Lanka. Company 
had obtained a securitised facility from M-power Ltd for 862 Million and approximately Rs. 100 Million from Banks.  During the year, a 
capital depletion of 114 Million was observed due to the net losses during the year which was 11%.

Outlook 
The Company has been engaged in a merger process with another Licensed Finance Company after signing a MoU after initial 
negotiations and has also entered in to a Term Sheet by the majority shareholders. Subsequent to financial and tax due diligent 
audits, a proposal was handed over to the Central Bank by both Companies and are awaiting the final approval for the proposal.
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MANUFACTURED CAPITAL 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A majority of Nation Lanka Finance PLC 
branches are located on premises rented 
through long term rental agreements. 
Decisions to expand the branch network 
are based on the Board approved 
strategic plan. Stemming from this, 
relevant capex allocations are made by 
the CEO and the CFO with the approval of 
the Board. 

While the overall responsibility for the 
management of the branch network falls 
under the purview of the Company’s CEO, 
a decentralised branch management 
structure is in place to ensure the day 
to day management of the network is 
carried out effectively and efficiently in 
order to achieve its stated objectives. 

MANUFACTURED CAPITAL PROFILE

20/21 19/20 18/19

Fixed Assets 
(Book Value) 
Rs. Million

31.9 37.4 70.3

Additions to 
fixed assets 
Rs. Million

11.2 6.1 23.7

Expenditure 
on branch 
upkeep and 
maintenance 
Rs. Million

7.9 9.1 11.3

New branches 
opened

- - -

No. of 
branches 
relocated

4 - -

No. of 
branches on 
Company-
owned 
premises

- - -

No. of 
branches/
centres 
on rented 
premises

25 25 25

Our manufactured capital consists of the physical infrastructure, mainly the island-
wide network of Nation Lanka Finance branches where our customers can access the 
Company’s products and services. 

HOW WE OPTIMISE OUR MANUFACTURED CAPITAL
Since its inception in 1987, Nation Lanka Finance PLC has steadily expanded its branch 
footprint across the island driven by one fundamental principle - the desire to promote 
greater financial inclusion in Sri Lanka. Accordingly, the Nation Lanka branches have 
been established in hub towns around the island, based on their strategic importance 
in their respective areas. Developing a strong branch presence in these hub towns 
gives Nation Lanka Finance the visibility and reach to attract a broader spectrum of 
customer segments in the area, as well as to tap into rural masses who often lack 
access to formal financial channels. Our branch network also creates employment 
opportunities for local residents in these respective areas. 
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INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL consists of 
the intangible assets that are unique and 
distinct to Nation Lanka Finance PLC. In 
particular the Nation Lanka brand, our IT 
resources, the knowledge and leadership 
skills of our Board of Directors and the 
expertise of our management teams 
along with the operating principles that 
define the way we work to meet our 
stakeholder expectations.

HOW WE OPTIMISE OUR 
INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL
Brand Positioning
Since inception, our brand outlook has 
centered on building a distinct and 
unique identity that reflects the Nation 
Lanka mission “to be the most customer 
centric organisation in the financial 
services industry”. Operating in the 
fiercely competitive mainstream NBFI 
sector, we want our brand to depict the 
custodial role Nation Lanka Finance plays 
in Sri Lanka’s economic progress. Hence 
our strategies over the years have been 
focused on building our reputation as a 
strong, reliable financial services provider. 

Working to set Nation Lanka apart 
from its peers, we continue to put the 
customer at the center of everything we 
do. Our decision to expand our island-
wide reach, while consistently improving 
the versatility of our offerings in response 
to customer demands, have all been 
intended to position Nation Lanka as a 
highly inclusive financial service provider 
offering products and solutions for all 
customer segments, from corporates, 
SME’s and individuals and extending 
to the rural masses who are often 
overlooked by formal financial channels. 

Furthermore, to reflect our commitment 
to protect the authenticity of the 
Nation Lanka brand and ensure 
consistent messaging in all our brand 
communications, we have implemented 
strict brand guidelines. The brand 
guidelines sets clear standards for 
anyone including employees, channel 

partners, designers and marketing 
agencies who use the Nation Lanka brand 
and its components in their work. 

Today the Nation Lanka brand journey 
continues to evolve as we move forward 
with more dynamic and ambitious plans 
to play a leading role in Sri Lanka’s post-
COVID economic revival. 

Investing in IT Resources 
We invest in technology to improve our 
ability to provide reliable and convenient 
solutions that can enhance the customer 
overall experience. In recent years Nation 
Lanka has continued to increase its 
reliance on IT as a critical enabler of 
business transformation, in particular to 
support front and back end systems in 
a manner that would give the Company 
a distinct competitive advantage over 
peers.

In the current financial year, our 
attention was directed towards ensuring 
uninterrupted system availability to 
enable the Company to continue with 
normal operations despite COVID related 
challenges. In this regard, local vpn 
connectivity was established to allow 
employees to work from home during the 
lockdown period. A series of new system 
protocols were established to facilitate 
seamless network connectivity between 
the branch network and data center, while 
our data center capacity was further 
enhanced with a view to strengthening 
our DR architecture. Moreover new 
firewalls and additional security protocols 
were introduced to safeguard core 
systems against data loss and cyber 
security threats. 

Leveraging on knowledge based 
systems
The knowledge and leadership skills of 
our Board of Directors and the expertise 
of our management teams have proven 
to be invaluable assets in our journey so 
far. 

Our Board of Directors comprises 
individuals with diverse experience and 
accumulated industry experience of over 
20 years, which shows an appropriate 
mix of knowledge and experience in the 
Company’s main governing body. Director 
Profiles are on page 3 of this report.

Our senior management team consists 
of well-qualified experts who have been 
working in the corporate sector for many 
years. Together they are responsible for 
the successful management of day to 
day operations.

We provide regular training and support 
to enable our management teams to 
continuously improve their skills and 
knowledge in a way that will benefit the 
Company in the long term. More details 
regarding these initiatives are available in 
the Human Capital Report on Page 34.

Doing business the right way
We believe our credibility as a financial 
services institution rests on our ability 
to do business the right way at all times. 
Ethics and integrity therefore remains 
a fundamental aspect of our operating 
principles. The Nation Lanka Board 
sets the tone from the top and leads 
by example in promulgating a culture 
of ethics across the organisation. The 
culture of the ethics is reinforced across 
the Company via the following pillars;

The Code of Ethics and Business Integrity 
(Code) - The Code clearly articulates 
Nation Lanka’s stance on ethics and 
integrity. The Code is based on the 
general principle that all employees 
should always act with honesty and 
integrity in all matters, which includes 
complying with the applicable laws and 
regulations, and avoiding inappropriate 
behaviour,. The purpose of our Code 
is to provide guidance to employees 
to enable them to make sound ethical 
business decisions in their day-to-day 
work and to inspire dialogue about key 
ethics and compliance issues that they 
may face. The Code includes a section 
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managing conflicts of interest with 
special reference to situations where 
our employees may have an actual, 
perceived or potential conflict of interest 
between their job role and their personal 
interests. In this regard the Code offers 
clear guidelines to assist employees 
to identify, disclose, and manage such 
conflicts of interest in a manner that is 
not detrimental to the Company.

Anti-bribery and Anti-Corruption 
approach - Reflects Nation Lanka's zero 
tolerance approach towards bribery and 
corruption. We are aware that bribery and 
corruption are both illegal and unethical, 
and that engaging in either of these 
activities could cause serious damage to 
our reputation. Our commitment to act 
professionally, fairly, and with integrity in 
all business dealings and relationships 
is reinforced through-our Anti-bribery 
and Anti-Corruption approach, which 
all employees, including corporate 
management and the Board of Directors 
are expected to adhere to without 
exception. We take our responsibilities 
very seriously and remain proactive in our 
efforts to improve on an ongoing basis, 
the systems and procedures to ensure 
bribery and corruption is prevented at all 
times.

Anti-Competitive Behaviour guidelines - 
Demonstrates Nation Lanka's efforts to 
support fair competition. Operating in a 
highly competitive industry, Nation Lanka 
Finance welcomes fair and open and fair 
competition and remain fully committed 
to comply with laws and regulations that 
promote a level playing field.  Accordingly 
we do not make illegal agreements 
that restrict competition neither do we 
impose illegal restrictions or conditions 
on products and/or services. Anti-
competitive Behaviour guidelines are in 
place to help employees to determine 
situations that could lead to unlawful and 
anti-competitive conduct.

Anti-Money Laundering (AML) and 
Counter Terrorism Financing framework- 
Underpins Nation Lanka's commitment 
towards the prevention of financial 
fraud. As financial transactions become 
increasingly more complex, we continue 
to take all reasonable and appropriate 
steps to prevent persons engaging 
in money laundering, fraud, or other 
financial crimes, including the financing 
of terrorists or terrorist operations 
vis-a-vis the Company’s products or 
services. A framework of Board-approved 
policies and procedures are in place to 
comply with national AML laws and other 
statutory requirements that are aimed 
at combating Money Laundering and 
Financing of Terrorism.

INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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HUMAN CAPITAL 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Given the highly competitive environment 
in which we operate, the Nation Lanka 
team - our HUMAN CAPITAL,  is one of 
our strongest assets. It is their skills, 
expertise and commitment that enables 
the Company to render its products to 
the market  and thereby drive Nation 
Lanka forward to achieve its vision. 

HOW WE OPTIMISE OUR HUMAN 
CAPITAL
Compliance and Best Practices
Compliance and best practices are a 
vital component of our overall approach 
to Human Capital Management. As a 
financial services institution, Nation 
Lanka Finance PLC is governed by the 
Companies act No.07 of 2007and  we 
have voluntarily adopted the following 
best practices stated by the ILO 
convention and the human rights 
principles declared by the UN Global 
Compact. 
- Maintaining equality and diversity at 

every stage of the employment process 
from recruitment, selection, evaluation, 
promotion, training and development 
of employees. Our non-discriminatory 
approach ensures unbiased decisions 
that will not discriminate against any 
status or condition which is protected 
by law. In addition our leadership 
principles dictate that managers 
should lead by example in the 
respectful treatment of colleagues. 

- Create a platform to regularly evaluate 
and rate employee performance and 
ensure that high performers are 
recognised and rewarded, while poor 
performers are mentored and coached 
to enable them to improve their 
performance

- Provide training and development 
opportunities to allow employees to 
pursue personal and professional 
growth

- Providing a safe and secure work 
environment to assure the physical and 
mental wellbeing of employees

- Prohibition of child labour and the 
prevention of forced & compulsory  
labour

HR Governance 
All matters pertaining to Human Capital 
are handled centrally by our Human 
Resources Department (HRD). Headed 
by a dedicated HR Manager along with a 
03-member support team, the HRD works 
in tandem with the Company’s HR Manual 
which sets out a policy framework to 
strengthen Nation Lanka’s Human Capital. 

Recruitments During the Year 
2020/21

Employee 
Type

Total Gender

Male Female

Management 5 5 0

Executive 8 4 4

Non-Executive 24 5 19

Total 37 14 23

Attrition in 2020/21

Employee 
Type

Total Gender

Male Female

Management 12 12 0

Executive 61 53 8

Non-Executive 41 14 27

Total 114 79 35

HR Policy Framework 
 ∫ Recruitment and Selection Policy
 ∫ Training and Development Policy
 ∫ Performance Evaluation Policy
 ∫ Leave Administration Policy
 ∫ Succession Planning Policy
 ∫ Dress Code Policy
 ∫ Time and Attendance Policy
 ∫ Code of Ethics
 ∫ Disciplinary Administration Policy
 ∫ Whistleblower Policy
 ∫ Employee Exit Policy 

Attracting and Retaining the Best 
Talent
In our quest to attract the best talent, we 
hire based on the candidate’s suitability 
and best fit for the job role. We recruit 
qualified individuals who have the 
required skills, knowledge and experience 
and also demonstrate potential for 
growth. While current employees are 
given the opportunity to apply for vacant 
positions, we also make a concerted 
effort to hire locally to meet the staffing 
requirements of branches across the 
country, Our approach is strictly merit-
based and it is the best-fit candidate who 
is ultimately appointed to fill the role. 

The Company’s total human capital 
base stood at 429 as at the end of the 
financial year 2020-21 scattered across 
the 25-strong Nation Lanka Finance 
Service network islandwide.
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Total Workforce by Permanent, Probation & Contract 2020/21

Employee Type Permanent Total Probation Total Contract Total Grand Total

Male Female Male Female Male Female

Management Cooperate 5 1 6 0 0 0 3 1 4 10

Senior 25 0 25 0 0 0 1 0 1 26

Junior 85 13 98 3 0 3 0 0 0 101

Executive 151 27 178 6 2 8 0 0 0 186

Non Executive 33 51 84 5 11 16 3 3 6 106

Total 299 92 391 14 13 27 7 4 11 429

As at 31.03.2021,Nation Lanka Finance PLC, total staff cadre stood at 429, in 
comparison to 2020 where the total cadre was 506.
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Total Workforce by Region and Gender

Region No. of 
Branches

Male Female Total

Central 3 24 7 31

North Western - Wayamba 2 27 5 32

Sabaragamuwa 3 26 8 34

North Central 1 8 4 12

Western 6 121 55 176

Southern 2 14 6 20

Eastern 3 38 8 46

Northern 5 62 16 78

Total 25 320 109 429

HUMAN CAPITAL 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

To improve our ability to attract and 
retain the right talent, best suited for 
the needs of Nation Lanka, we offer a 
comprehensive benefit package. Our 
benefit structure is on par with industry 
standards ensuring that all employees 
are fairly and competitively compensated 
according to the nature of the job and 
their qualifications, experience and 
performance. Opportunities for pay 
increases and bonuses are contingent 
on the employee's overall performance 
and commitment to corporate values, 
while promotions are dependent on the 
individual employees’ performance rating 
and contributions to the Company made 
during a particular year. 

Our employee retention strategy is 
anchored to the Annual Performance 
Appraisal process, whereby the 
performance of all employees are 
assessed annually to determine their 
achievements against targeted KPI’s set 
at the start of each financial year. Target 
setting is a joint exercise undertaken by 
supervisors and their respective teams to 
serve as the basis of achieving branch / 
departmental goals. In this way the target 
setting process underpins our efforts to 
promote employee goal congruence by 
ensuring employees remain motivated 
and take ownership for the Company’s 
progress at all times. It also reflects 
Nation Lanka’s approach to develop 
working relationships with employees and 
reinforce the performance-based culture 
at all levels of the business. 
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Rewards and Recognition
Going hand-in-hand with our 
performance-driven culture is our 
Rewards and Recognition programme. 
In addition, high performing sales staff 
and branch teams are recognised at our 
annual awards ceremony.  In the current 
financial year, the awards programme 
was further expanded to include 
long service awards in recognition of  
employee loyalty to the Company. 

This year's ceremony was held on 21st 
January 2021 at the CR & FC, where 
a total of 2 long service awards were 
handed out to employees who had served 
the Company for more than 25 years, 
while another 11 long service awards 
were given to employees who had served 
for more than 20 years. 08 members of 
the deposit team were also recognised 
for their efforts in mobilising deposits 
during 2020.

HUMAN CAPITAL 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Appreciation for Training and 
Development of the Management 
Graduates – By the University of Kelaniya 
(Faculty of Management)

Training and Development
Training and Development is a critical 
component of our Human Capital 
Management approach. Training activities 
are conducted based on the needs of the 
Company as well as to meet individual 
developmental needs. Individual training 
needs are typically identified through 
the Annual Performance Appraisal 
process and fulfilled through the branch / 
departmental training budget allocation. 
Using a combination of both in-house 
and external training, we aim to provide 
timely and relevant training to equip our 
employees with the skills to perform their 
job roles and enable them to improve 
their capacity to dynamically adapt to 
changes in the business and regulatory 
environment. 

In  the current financial year, we were 
compelled to curtail such training 
programmes, due to the restrictive 
environment caused by the COVID 
pandemic.
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Training Programme 2020/21

Employee 
Type

Total Gender

Male Female

Management 0 0 0

Executive 2 1 1

Non-Executive 0 0 0

Total 2 1 1

Workplace safety and Employee 
Wellbeing 
We believe that a healthy team will give 
their best efforts to drive the Company 
towards achieving its strategic objectives. 
Premised on this, we place a strong 
emphasis on creating a safe and healthy 
work environment for our employees, 
which includes ensuring their physical 
and mental well being. 

As at 31st March 2021, the NLF staff 
members age and service analysis is 
given below.

Above 60
51-60
41-50
31-40
21-30
Below 21

Age Analysis

4%
1% 1%

16%

34%

44%

Above 20
15-20
10-15
5-10
1-5
Below 1 year

Service Analysis

1%17%

3% 3%

37%

39%

We have made sure that all relevant 
national building safety guidelines have 
been complied with at our physical 
locations. 

As part of our overall approach to 
employee wellbeing, we maintain an 
open door policy to encourage two-way 
dialogue between employees and the 
management. Meanwhile our grievance 
handling procedure serves as a formal 
channel for employees to raise any work 
related concerns, while the whistleblower 
mechanism allows employees to 
anonymously report any observed  
irregularities without fear of reprisal. 

Managing the COVID-19 pandemic 
impact
Taking immediate action to ensure 
the safety and wellbeing of all Nation 
Lanka employees, we implemented a 
series of  procedures with the lockdown 
announcement in March 2020. 

All employees were directed to work from 
home during the lockdown with necessary 
IT support provided to enable them 
continue performing their designated job 
roles from the safety of their homes. 

However with financial services declared 
as an essential service, it was decided to 
maintain only essential staff in the Head 
Office and at Branches. We implemented 
flexi-hours to minimise the number of 
employees present at the Head Office or 
at a branch at any given time.

It was mandated that all staff reporting 
to work should wear a face mask at all 
times. To promote this, face masks were 
provided by the Company free of charge 
to all employees. Mandatory temperature 
checks were done twice a day on all 
employees at work. A strict sanitisation 
schedule was implemented and carried 
out several times a day.

Meanwhile we allocated a separate 
area to handle the customers at the 
Head Office with necessary precautions 
implemented to ensure the safety of 
sales staff coming into contact with 
customers. We also began maintaining 
a database of customers who visited the 
Head Office and branches on a daily basis 
throughout the pandemic period.

Future Plans
Invest in a HRIS to create a platform to 
measure employee performance and also 
to streamline all other HR management 
activities.  

HUMAN CAPITAL 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Nation Lanka Finance PLC’s, Social and Relationship Capital forms the nexus of our business for they are the relationships we 
have forged with our customers and suppliers as well as the ties we have with the community that enable us to pursue our growth 
objectives and strengthen our position in the NBFI sector.

HOW WE OPTIMISE OUR SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL
Customer
Responsible Financial Products and Services 
At Nation Lanka we believe that every section of society should have access to financial services to enable them to secure 
their financial future and thereby contribute towards the Country’s economic progress. We respond to market needs through a 
comprehensive suite of products and services that support the financial needs of all customer segments.

DEPOSITS

MICRO FINANCE

LEASING

NATIONS OD  

THREE WHEELER LEASING  

NATION LANKA LEASING  

PAWNING

LOANS

BUSINESS LOANS  

PERSONAL LOANS  

REAL ESTATE

Customer Touch-points
Our network of 25 branches/centres serve as the key customer touch-points. All our branches are open from 8.30 am to 5.00 pm on 
all working days and equipped to offer the full gamut of products and services offered by the Company. 

As part of our ongoing strategy to increase the number of customer touch-points we signed up with Dialog in May 2021 to enable our 
customers to access over 40,000 Easy-Cash payment points across Sri Lanka.

Marketing and Communication 
We are committed to communicate information regarding our products and services in a responsible manner to enable our 
customers to receive timely and accurate information regarding our products and services. 
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SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

We ensure our marketing material is 
designed in conformity with the CBSL 
guideline regarding the disclosure of 
mandatory product information, including 
the display of interest rates and all 
our branches to give customers the 
opportunity to compare with peers before 
making an informed decision.

From a marketing perspective, we use 
a mix of both ATL and BTL channels 
in order to provide the customer with 
sufficient information on each product or 
service, so that they may fully understand 
every value proposition and be able to 
make an informed decision. Moreover 
our sales teams are trained to guide 
customers towards appropriate selection 
of products with due consideration of 
their financial needs and by advising 
them of the potential risks. 

Customer Relationship Building 
We maintain a two-pronged approach 
to strengthen customer relationships. 
On the one hand our sales teams 
continuously engage with customers 
through face-to-face interactions. On 
the other hand our call center agents 
are fully invested in handling customer 
queries and ensuring prompt resolution 
of customer queries. 

In recent years we have also increased 
Nation Lanka’s social media presence, 
to give our customers a wider range of 
platforms to engage with the Company.

From time to time, we also conduct 
regular customer feedback and 
surveys to connect with our customers 
and understand their behaviour and 
expectations. The feedback we receive 
in this manner serves as a key feeder for 
our new product development process, 
facilitates continuous improvement 
of our internal systems and helps to 
refine our service delivery procedures, 
ultimately leading to a better overall 
customer experience.

Customer Privacy 
As a financial institution, we recognise 
and respect our customer’s expectation 
of privacy and accept that safeguarding 
the customers information is critical 
in strengthening the bonds of trust. 
Accordingly, we gather only information 
required by law and this too is done 
through the KYC (Know-Your-Customer) 
form. Customer information gathered 
in this manner is archived and stored 
securely in Nation Lanka’s storage 
archives. Internally we have put in place 
multiple layers of physical, electronic 
and procedural safeguards to prevent 
unauthorised access to information. 
Furthermore we educate our employees 
so that they understand the importance 
of confidentiality and customer privacy 
and also take necessary disciplinary 
measures to enforce employee privacy 
responsibilities. 

Moreover, as a policy we do not reveal 
customer information to third parties 
unless mandated by law.

Supplier
Fair and Equitable Purchasing
We aim to build strong ties with our 
suppliers and service providers based 
on trust and mutual respect. In the 
interest of creating a level and promoting 
open and fair competition, we maintain 
a standard operating procedure 
for assessing suppliers and service 
providers, based solely on their overall 
strengths. 

However as a policy, we deal only with 
suppliers and service providers who 
comply with standard labour laws and 
practices, while upholding basic human 
rights including the non-employment of 
child labour, providing equal opportunity 
to women employees, ensuring health, 
safety and welfare of their employees and 
adopting safe environmental practices. 

Community
Community Empowerment
At Nation Lanka, we take our 
responsibility to the community very 
seriously. Being a financial services 
institution, we believe we have a critical 
role to play in empowering underserved 
communities by providing them with the 
tools to generate a sustainable livelihood 
and thereby uplift their living standards 
and quality of life over the longer term. 

Our Microfinance Lending scheme that 
focuses specifically on empowering 
women entrepreneurs is the key enabler 
in this regard. The scheme targets 
Micro and SME women entrepreneurs 
across the country and gives them the 
opportunity to improve their livelihoods 
and thereby contribute towards the 
socioeconomic development of their local 
economy. 

Through our lending activities over the 
years, Nation Lanka has supported over 
100,000 women-led businesses in the 
Agriculture sector, mainly in vegetable 
cultivation, poultry farming, animal 
husbandry and fishing as well as other 
small scale businesses such as grocery, 
carpentry etc. Our teams currently 
manage 1,750 Microfinance clusters 
around Sri Lanka.

Going beyond the provision of credit, 
Nation Lanka’s Microfinance model also 
seeks to promote the credit+culture 
among its women entrepreneur base. In 
this regard, we have developed a series 
of capacity building initiatives aimed at 
improving the entrepreneurial skills of our 
women entrepreneurs. These capacity 
building initiatives include: 
- Financial literacy programmes
- Leadership training
- Facilitation of technical assistance 
- Enabling participation in business 

innovation forums 
- Access to promotional trade fair 

exhibitions to give customers the 
ability to gain visibility for their 
products under Nation Lanka's 
community support brand - 'Diviyata 
Saviya'
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NATURAL CAPITAL

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Being a service organisation Nation 
Lanka Finance PLC does not depend on 
natural resources for its core business. 
Nonetheless, we are aware that the 
electricity and water we consume within 
our operations, do lead to the depletion 
of the environment (Natural Capital) over 
time. This knowledge has inspired Nation 
Lanka to be more responsible in the use 
of its resources.

HOW WE OPTIMISE OUR NATURAL 
CAPITAL
Energy Saving 
Being a service organisation, we use 
electricity to power the buildings that 
house the Nation Lanka Head Office and 
branch network. Recognising that we too 
can play a part in lowering our energy 
footprint, we have made energy saving a 
key priority at all levels of the business. 
We track our electricity consumption and 
educate employees on the importance 
of energy saving, all with the intention of 
lowering the number of units consumed.

Controlling Water Usage
Limited mainly to the day-to-day utility 
requirements of our staff and customers, 
our water footprint is relatively small. 
Nonetheless water management remains 
an important part of our efforts to 
safeguard water resources for the future. 

Waste Management 
Given the nature of our business, our 
waste footprint consists mainly of 
paper waste and to a lesser extent,  
e-waste. We exercise our commitment to 
manage waste in a responsible manner 
by promoting the fundamentals of 3R 
(Reduce, Reuse and Recycle) at all levels 
of the business. Furthermore we engage 
with licensed waste disposal partners 
to ensure both paper and e-waste is 
disposed of responsibly in line with CEA 
guidelines.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Corporate governance is the structures 
and processes for the direction and 
control of companies. It is also about the 
relationships among the Management, 
Board of Directors, Shareholders, Minority 
Shareholders and other stakeholders. 

The Board of Directors is responsible 
for the governance of the Company and 
developing and establishing an effective 
governance framework in reviewing and 
streamlining systems and controls to 
provide transparency and accountability 
and in ensuring adoption of best 
practices focusing on its stakeholders 
and in creating shareholder value.

Being open to public Information 
disclosure, high transparency and 
accountability are basic important 
elements of best corporate governance 
that towards the sustainability of 
companies and society. 

To achieve this, Nation Lanka Finance 
has a robust corporate governance 
framework, which provides systems 
of checks and controls to ensure 
accountability and promote sound 
decision-making.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE comprises of 
the following sections.
SECTION ONE
FINANCE COMPANIES DIRECTION 
NO. 03 OF 2008 (AND SUBSEQUENT 
AMENDMENTS THERETO) ON CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE FOR LICENSED FINANCE 
COMPANIES IN SRI LANKA
The Central Bank of Sri Lanka issued 
the Direction on Corporate Governance 
(Finance Companies Direction No. 03 
of 2008 and subsequent amendments 
thereto), in order to improve and sustain 
the Corporate Governance processes 
and practices of the Licensed Finance 
Companies in Sri Lanka.

The above Direction comprises of nine (9) 
fundamental principles, namely:
1. The responsibilities of the Board of 

Directors
2. Meetings of the Board
3. Composition of the Board
4. Criteria to assess the fitness and 

propriety of Directors
5. Delegation of functions
6. The Chairman and the Chief Executive 

Officer
7. Board appointed Committees
8. Related party transactions
9. Disclosures

SECTION TWO
Code of best practice on corporate 
governance issued jointly by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission and 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Sri Lanka.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The level of adoption of the above 
code which comprises of fundamental 
principles and conformance of the said 
principles by Nation Lanka Finance in 
summary form is disclosed in pages 41 
to 69.

SECTION THREE
RULE 7.10 of the Listing Rules and the 
compliance on same is discussed in 
page 66.
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GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK OF NATION LANKA FINANCE PLC
Main elements which encompasses the governance framework of the Finance Company.

Directions issued to Licenced Finance 
Companies by The Central Bank of Sri 

Lanka

Direction no.03 of 2008 on finance 
Companies (Corporate Governance) 

issued by the Central Bank of Sri 
Lanka and amendments there to

Policy on related Party 
Transactions

Employee Code of Conduct

Directions, Circulars issued 
by the Securities Exchange 
Commission of Sri Lanka

Investment Policy

Communication Policy

AML & CTF Policy

Continuing Requirements 
of the Colombo Stock 

Exchange

Code of Conduct for 
Directors

Risk Policies

Acts, Circulars Gazettes 
issued by tax authorities

Customer Complaint 
Handling Policy

Compliance Policy

Whistle Blowing Policy

Impairment Policy

Shop & Office Employee 
Act No.19 of 1954 and 
amendments thereto

Articles of Association of the Finance 
Company

Other Policies Governing Operational Areas

Companies Act No.07 of 2007
Finance Companies Act 78 of 1988 

and amendment there to

Code of Best Practice on Corporate 
Governance issued by CA Sri Lanka
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NATION LANKA FINANCE PLC GOALS OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
The Company’s Corporate Governance Structure has been designed based on recommended best practices, regulatory requirements and 
industry standards. It has been further developed in the recent past in order to incorporate additional requirements of the regulators.

Board of Directors

Shareholder

Chief Executive Officer

Corporate Management

Management Committees

Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

Integrated Risk 
Management Committee

Nomination Committee

Related Party Transaction 
Review Committee

IT Steering Committee

Credit Committee

Assets & Liability Committee

Procurement Committee

Investment Committee

Grievance Committee

Appointing Flow
Reporting Flow

Regulating Flow

CRM

Human Resources

Risk & Compliance

Investments

Legal

Core Credit

IT

Finance

Administration

Micro Finance

Pawning

Recoveries

Marketing

SEC/ CSE/ CBSL/ Com.Act

External Auditors

Board Committees

DECLARATION BY THE BOARD
The Board of Directors of the Company is firmly committed to observing the highest standards of Corporate Governance, Integrity 
and professionalism throughout all operations across the Company. Accordingly, the Board of Directors and all personnel have acted 
in compliance with the applicable regulatory and statutory requirements and have discharged their duties in accordance with the 
policies, procedures and standards covered by the Company’s Internal Code of Conduct relevant to the Board of Directors and the Key 
Management Personnel and other Personnel. 

Name of the Director Position

1. Mr. Victor Ramanan Chairman (Non-Executive)

2. Mr. Harshith Dharmadasa Deputy Chairman (Non-Executive) - retired w.e.f. 22.12.2020

3. Mr. Lalith Karunarathne Senior Director (Non-Executive/Independent) - retired w.e.f. 30.09.2020

4. Mr. Sunil Kandegedara Director (Non-Executive/Independent) - retired w.e.f. 10.02.2021

5. Mr. Jayaprakash Rudra Director (Recoveries) 

6. Mr. Jayantha Perera Executive Director - ceased to function w.e.f. 31.08.2020

7. Mr. Jagath Dissanayake Senior Director (Non-Executive/Independent) - joined w.e.f. 20.11.2020

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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DIRECTORS AND CEO’S SHAREHOLDING
As per the shareholder register of the Company the structure of the ownership for the financial year 2020/2021 is as follows,

As at 31-03-2021 31-03-2020

Mr. V. R. Ramanan 751,556,976 751,556,976

Mr. J. Rudra 38,905,422 38,905,422

Mr. N. J. K. Dissanayake  -     -    

Mr. U. H. Dharmadasa              235,861,375        235,861,375

Mr. H. J. C. Perera                          8,725,000 17,600,000

Mr. P. M. L. K. Karunaratne                     -     -    

Mr. K. M. S. Kandegedara                     -     -    

Mr. S. M. Amerasekera (CEO)             -  -

Chairman and CEO
The functions of the Chairman and the CEO are separate with a clear distinction drawn between responsibilities.

BOARD MEETINGS
The Board meets once a month at which a standard agenda is discussed together with any other matters that require the attention 
of the Board. Where necessary Special Meetings of the Board are held.

During the year ended 31st March 2021, 10 meetings of the Board were held.

The attendance was as follows:

Name of Directors 29th 
April

 2020

18th 
June

 2020

30th 
July

 2020

31st 
August

 2020

30th
 September

 2020

17th
December

 2020

18th
December 

2020

27th
January

 2021

12th
March
 2021

31st
 March
 2021

1. Mr. Victor Rajamanner 
Ramanan

         

2. Mr. Ugitha Harshith 
Dharmadasa

       RETIRED

3. Mr.  Hettiaratchige Jayantha 
Christopher Perera

    CEASED TO FUNCTION

4. Mr. Jayaprakash Rudra          

5. Mr. Peduru Menenna Lalith 
Kirethie Karunarathna

     RETIRED

6. Mr. Kande Mohottalalage 
Sunil Kandegedara

        RETIRED

7. Mr. Nayana Jagath Kumar 
Dissanayake
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The Finance Companies Direction No 3 of 2008 and subsequent Amendments there to on Corporate Governance for 
Registered Finance Companies issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

Requirement Level of 
Compliance

Finance Companies Direction (Corporate Governance) No.03 of 2008  

Direction will apply to all finance companies registered in terms of section 2 of the Finance Company Act No 78 of 
1988. 

Responsibilities of the Board Directors  

The Board of Directors shall strengthen the safety and soundness of the Finance Company.  

a) approving and overseeing the Finance Company’s strategic objectives and corporate values and ensuring that 
such objectives and values are communicated throughout the Finance Company.

Complied

b) approving the overall business strategy of the Finance Company, including the overall risk policy and risk 
management procedures and mechanisms with measurable goals, for at least immediate next three years;

Complied

c) identifying risks and ensuring implementation of appropriate systems to manage the risks prudently; Complied

d) approving a policy of communication with all stakeholders, including depositors, creditors, share-holders and 
borrowers;

Complied

e) reviewing the adequacy and the integrity of the Finance Company’s internal control systems and management 
information systems; 

Complied

f) identifying and designating key management personnel, who are in a position to: (i) significantly influence policy; 
(ii) direct activities; and (iii) exercise control over business activities, operations and risk management;

Complied

g) defining the areas of authority and key responsibilities for the Board and for the Key Management Personnel; Complied

h) ensuring that there is appropriate oversight of the affairs of the Finance Company by Key Management 
Personnel, that is consistent with the Finance Company’s policy;

Complied

i) periodically assessing the effectiveness of its governance practices, including: (i) the selection, nomination 
and election of Directors and appointment of Key Management Personnel; (ii) the management of conflict of 
interests; and (iii) the determination of weaknesses and implementation of changes where necessary;

Complied

j) ensuring that the Finance Company has an appropriate succession plan for Key Management personnel; Complied

k) meeting regularly with the Key Management Personnel to review policies, establish lines of communication and 
monitor progress towards corporate objectives;

Complied

l) understanding the regulatory environment; Complied

m) exercising due diligence in the hiring and oversight of External Auditors. Complied

The Board shall appoint the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer and define and approve the functions and 
responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in line with paragraph 7 of this direction.

Complied

There shall be a procedure determined by the Board to enable Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek 
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Finance Company’s expense. The Board 
shall resolve to provide separate independent professional advice to Directors to assist the relevant Director(s) to 
discharge the duties to the Finance Company.

Complied

A Director shall abstain from voting on any Board Resolution in relation to a matter in which he or any of his relatives 
or a concern in which he has substantial interest, is interested, and he shall not be counted in the quorum for the 
relevant agenda item at the Board Meeting.

Complied

The Board shall have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to it for decision to ensure that the direction 
and control of the Finance Company is firmly under its authority.

Complied

The Board shall, if it considers that the Finance Company is, or is likely to be, unable to meet its obligations or is 
about to become insolvent or is about to suspend payments due to depositors and other creditors, forthwith inform 
the Director of the Department of Supervision of Non-Bank Financial Institutions of the situation of the Finance 
Company prior to taking any decision or action.

Not 
applicable
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Requirement Level of 
Compliance

The Board shall include in the Finance Company’s Annual Report, an Annual Corporate Governance Report setting 
out the compliance with this direction.

Complied

The Board shall adopt a scheme of self-assessment to be undertaken by each Director annually, and maintain 
records of such assessments. 

Complied

Meeting of the Board  

The Board shall meet at least 12 times a financial year at approximately monthly intervals. Obtaining the Board’s 
consent through the circulation of written or electronic resolutions/papers shall be avoided as far as possible. The 
Board met only 10 times during the financial year. The balance two meetings could not be held due to COVID -19 
pandemic.

Not
complied. 

The Board shall ensure that arrangements are in place to enable all Directors to include matters and proposals in 
the agenda for regular Board meetings where such matters and proposals relate to the promotion of business and 
the management of risks of the Finance Company.

Complied

A notice of at least seven days shall be given of a regular Board meeting to provide all Directors an opportunity to 
attend. For all other Board meetings, a reasonable notice shall be given.

Complied

A Director who has not attended at least two-thirds of the meetings in the period of 12 months immediately 
preceding or has not attended the immediately preceding three consecutive meetings held, shall cease to be a 
Director. Provided that participation at the Directors’ meetings through an Alternate Director shall, however, be 
acceptable as attendance. 

Complied

The Board shall appoint a Company Secretary whose primary responsibilities shall be to handle the secretarial 
services to the Board and shareholder meetings and to carry out other functions specified in the statutes and other 
regulations. 

Complied

If the Chairman has delegated to the Company Secretary the function of preparing the agenda for a Board meeting, 
the Company Secretary shall be responsible for carrying out such function. 

Complied

All Directors shall have access to advice and services of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board 
procedures and all applicable laws, directions, rules and regulations are followed.

Complied

The Company Secretary shall maintain the minutes of Board meetings and such minutes shall be open for 
inspection at any reasonable time, on reasonable notice by any Director. 

Complied

Minutes of Board meetings shall be recorded in sufficient detail so that it is possible to gather from the minutes, as 
to whether the Board acted with due care and prudence in performing its duties. The minutes of a Board Meeting 
shall clearly contain or refer to the following: (a) a summary of data and information used by the Board in its 
deliberations; (b) the matters considered by the Board; (c) the fact-finding discussions and the issues of contention 
or dissent which may illustrate whether the Board was carrying out its duties with due care and prudence; (d) the 
explanations and confirmations of relevant executives which indicate compliance with the Board’s strategies and 
policies and adherence to relevant laws and regulations; (e) the Board’s knowledge and understanding of the risks 
to which the Finance Company is exposed and an overview of the risk management measures adopted; and (f) the 
decisions and Board resolutions. 

Complied

Composition of the Board  

Subject to the transitional provisions contained herein, the number of Directors on the Board shall not be less than 
five and not more than 13.
*In view of the merger we have requested time from Central Bank of Sri Lanka to rectify same

Not 
complied

Subject to the transitional provisions contained herein and subject to paragraph 5(1) of this Direction the total 
period of service of a Director other than a Director who holds the position of Chief Executive Officer or Executive 
Director shall not exceed nine years. The total period in office of a Non-Executive Director shall be inclusive of the 
total period of service served by such Director up to the date of this direction. 

complied
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Requirement Level of 
Compliance

Subject to the transitional provisions contained herein, an employee of a Finance Company may be appointed, 
elected or nominated as a director of the Finance Company (hereinafter referred to as an "Executive Director") 
provided that the number of Executive Directors shall not exceed one-half of the number of Directors of the Board. 
In such an event, one of the Executive Directors shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. 

Complied

With effect from three years from the date of this direction, the number of Independent Non-Executive Directors of 
the Board shall be at least one fourth of the total numbers of Directors.

Complied

A Non-Executive Director shall not be considered independent if such director:  

a) has shares exceeding 2% of the paid up capital of the Finance Company or 10% of the paid up capital of another 
Finance Company

Complied

b) has or had during the period of two years immediately preceding his appointment as Director, any business 
transactions with the Finance Company as described in paragraph 9 hereof, aggregate value outstanding of 
which at any particular time exceeds 10% of the capital funds of the Finance Company as shown in its last 
audited balance sheet;

Complied

c) has been employed by the Finance Company during the two year period immediately preceding the appointment 
as Director

Complied

d) has a relative, who is a Director or Chief Executive Officer or a Key Management Personnel or holds shares 
exceeding 10% of the paid up capital of the Finance Company or exceeding 12.5% of the paid up capital of 
another Finance Company. 

Complied

e) represents a shareholder, debtor, or such other similar stakeholder of the Finance Company; Complied

f) is an employee or a Director or has a share holding of 10% or more of the paid up capital in a company or 
business organisation:

Complied

i. which has a transaction with the Finance Company as defined in paragraph 9, aggregate value outstanding of 
which at any particular time exceeds 10% of the capital funds as shown in its last audited balance sheet of the 
Finance Company; or 

 Complied

ii. in which any of the other directors of the Finance Company is employed or is a Director or holds shares 
exceeding 10% of the capital funds as shown in its last audited balance sheet of the Finance Company; 

 Complied

iii. in which any of the other Directors of the Finance Company has a transaction as defined in paragraph 9, 
aggregate value outstanding of which at any particular time exceeds 10% of the Capital Funds, as shown in its 
last Audited Balance Sheet of the Finance Company. 

 Complied

In the event an Alternate Director is appointed to represent an Independent Non-Executive Director, the person so 
appointed shall also meet the criteria that apply to the Independent Non-Executive Director.

Not 
applicable

Non-Executive Directors shall have necessary skills and experience to bring an objective judgment to bear on issues 
of strategy, performance and resources.

Complied

With effect from three years from the date of this direction, a meeting of the Board shall not be duly constituted, 
although the number of Directors required to constitute the quorum at such meeting is present, unless at least one 
half of the number of Directors that constitute the quorum at such meeting are Non-Executive Directors. 

Complied

The Independent Non-Executive Directors shall be expressly identified as such in all corporate communications 
that disclose the names of Directors of the Finance Company. The Finance Company shall disclose the composition 
of the Board, by category of directors, including the names of the Chairman, Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors in the annual Corporate Governance Report which shall be an 
integral part of its Annual Report.

Complied

There shall be a formal considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors to the Board. 
There shall also be procedures in place for the orderly succession of appointments to the Board.

Complied

All Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first general 
meeting after their appointment.

Not 
applicable
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Requirement Level of 
Compliance

If a Director resigns or is removed from office, the Board shall announce to the shareholders and notify the Director 
of the Department of Supervision of Non-Bank Financial Institutions of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka, regarding the 
resignation of the Director or removal and the reasons for such resignation or removal, including but not limited to 
information relating to the relevant director’s disagreement with the Board, if any. 

Complied

Criteria to assess the fitness and propriety of directors  

Subject to the transitional provisions contained herein, a person over the age of 70 years shall not serve as a 
director of a Finance Company.

Complied

A Director of a Finance Company shall not hold office as a Director or any other equivalent position in more than 20 
companies/societies/ bodies corporate, including associate companies and subsidiaries of the Finance Company. 
Provided that such Director shall not hold office of a Director or any other equivalent position in more than 10 
companies that are classified as Specified Business Entities in terms of the Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing 
Standards Act No. 15 of 1995.

Complied

Delegation of Functions  

The Board shall not delegate any matters to a Board Committee, Chief Executive Officer, Executive Directors or Key 
Management Personnel, to an extent that such delegation would significantly hinder or reduce the ability of the 
Board as a whole to discharge its functions.

Complied

The Board shall review the delegation processes in place on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain relevant to 
the needs of the Finance Company.

Complied

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer  

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer shall be separated and shall not be performed by the one and the 
same person after three years commencing from January 1, 2009. 

Complied

The Chairman shall be a Non-Executive Director. In the case where the Chairman is not an Independent Non-
Executive Director, the Board shall designate an independent Non-Executive Director as the Senior Director with 
suitably documented terms of reference to ensure a greater independent element. The designation of the Senior 
Director shall be disclosed in the Finance Company’s Annual Report

Complied

The Board shall disclose in its Corporate Governance report, which shall be an integral part of its Annual Report, 
the name of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer and the nature of any relationship [including financial, 
business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)], if any, between the chairman and the Chief Executive 
Officer and the relationships among members of the Board.

Complied

The Chairman shall: (a) provide leadership to the Board; (b) ensure that the Board works effectively and discharges 
its responsibilities; and (c) ensure that all key issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

Complied

The Chairman shall be primarily responsible for the preparation of the agenda for each Board meeting. The 
Chairman may delegate the function of preparing the agenda to the Company Secretary.

Complied

The Chairman shall ensure that all Directors are informed adequately and in a timely manner of the issues arising at 
each Board Meeting. 

Complied

The Chairman shall encourage each Director to make a full and active contribution to the Board’s affairs and take 
the lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the Finance Company. 

Complied

The Chairman shall facilitate the effective contribution of Non-Executive Directors in particular and ensure 
constructive relationships between Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

Complied

Subject to the transitional provisions contained herein, the Chairman, shall not engage in activities involving direct 
supervision of Key Management Personnel or any other Executive duties whatsoever. 

Complied

The chairman shall ensure that appropriate steps are taken to maintain effective communication with shareholders 
and that the views of shareholders are communicated to the Board. 

Complied

The Chief Executive Officer shall function as the apex Executive-in-charge of the day-to-day-management of the 
Finance Company’s operations and business. 

Complied
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Requirement Level of 
Compliance

Board Appointed Committees  

Every Finance Company shall have at least the two Board Committees set out in paragraphs 8(2) and 8(3) hereof. 
Each committee shall report directly to the Board. Each committee shall appoint a secretary to arrange its 
meetings, maintain minutes, records and carry out such other secretarial functions under the supervision of the 
Chairman of the Committee. The Board shall present a report on the performance, duties and functions of each 
committee, at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Complied

Audit Committee  

a) The Chairman of the committee shall be a Non-Executive Director who possesses qualifications and experience 
in accountancy and/or audit.

Complied

b) The Board Members appointed to the committee shall be Non-Executive Directors. Complied

c) The Committee shall make recommendations on matters in connection with: (i) the appointment of the external 
auditor for audit services to be provided in compliance with the relevant statutes; (ii) the implementation of 
the Central Bank guidelines issued to auditors from time to time; (iii) the application of the relevant accounting 
standards; and (iv) the service period, audit fee and any resignation or dismissal of the auditor, provided that 
the engagement of an Audit Partner shall not exceed five years, and that the particular audit partner is not re-
engaged for the audit before the expiry of three years from the date of the completion of the previous term.

Complied

d) The Committee shall review and monitor the External Auditor’s independence and objectivity and the 
effectiveness of the audit processes in accordance with applicable standards and best practices.

Complied

e) The Committee shall develop and implement a policy with the approval of the Board on the engagement of 
an External Auditor to provide non-audit services that are permitted under the relevant statutes, regulations, 
requirements and guidelines. In doing so, the committee shall ensure that the provision by an External Auditor 
of non-audit services does not impair the External Auditor’s independence or objectivity. When assessing the 
External Auditor’s independence or objectivity in relation to the provision of non-audit services, the committee 
shall consider:

Complied

f) The Committee shall, before the audit commences, discuss and finalise with the External Auditors the nature 
and scope of the audit, including: (i) an assessment of the Finance Company’s compliance with directions 
issued under the Act and the management’s internal controls over financial reporting; (ii) the preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with relevant accounting principles and reporting obligations; and (iii) the 
co-ordination between Auditors where more than one Auditor is involved.

Complied

g) The Committee shall review the financial information of the Finance Company, in order to monitor the integrity of 
the Financial Statements of the Finance Company, its Annual Report, Accounts and Periodical Reports prepared 
for disclosure, and the significant financial reporting judgments contained therein. In reviewing the Finance 
Company’s Annual Report and Accounts and Periodical Reports before submission to the Board, the committee 
shall focus particularly on: (i) major judgemental areas; (ii) any changes in accounting policies and practices; 
(iii) significant adjustments arising from the audit; (iv) the going concern assumption; and (v) the compliance 
with relevant accounting standards and other legal requirements.

Complied

h) The Committee shall discuss issues, problems and reservations arising from the Interim and Final Audits, and 
any matters the Auditor may wish to discuss including those matters that may need to be discussed in the 
absence of Key Management Personnel, if necessary.

Complied

i) The Committee shall review the External Auditor’s Management Letter and the Management’s response thereto. Complied. 

j) The Committee shall take the following steps with regard to the internal audit function of the Finance Company  

(i) Review the adequacy of the scope, functions and resources of the Internal Audit Department, and satisfy itself 
that the department has the necessary authority to carry out its work;

Complied

(ii) Review the Internal Audit Programme and results of the Internal Audit Process and, where necessary, ensure 
that appropriate actions are taken on the recommendations of the Internal Audit Department;

Complied
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Requirement Level of 
Compliance

(iii) Review any appraisal or assessment of the performance of the head and senior staff members of the Internal 
Audit Department;

Complied

(iv) Recommend any appointment or termination of the head, senior staff members and outsourced service 
providers to the Internal Audit function;

Complied

(v) Ensure that the Committee is apprised of resignations of senior staff members of the Internal Audit Department 
including the Chief Internal Auditor and any outsourced service providers, and to provide an opportunity to the 
resigning senior staff members and outsourced service providers to submit reasons for resigning;

Complied. 
Exit 
interviews 
are held 
when 
senior staff 
members 
resign

(vi) Ensure that the Internal Audit Function is independent of the activities it audits and that it is performed with 
impartiality, proficiency and due professional care;

Complied

k) The Committee shall consider the major findings of internal investigations and management’s responses 
thereto;

Complied

l) The Chief Finance Officer, the Chief Internal Auditor and a representative of the External Auditors may normally 
attend meetings. Other Board members and the Chief Executive Officer may also attend meetings upon the 
invitation of the Committee. However, at least once in six months, the committee shall meet with the external 
auditors without the Executive Directors being present.

Complied

m) The Committee shall have: (i) explicit authority to investigate into any matter within its terms of reference; 
(ii) the resources which it needs to do so; (iii) full access to information; and (iv) authority to obtain external 
professional advice and to invite outsiders with relevant experience to attend, if necessary.

Complied

n) The committee shall meet regularly, with due notice of issues to be discussed and shall record its conclusions in 
discharging its duties and responsibilities.

Complied

o) The Board shall, in the Annual Report, disclose in an informative way, (i) details of the activities of the audit 
committee; (ii) the number of audit committee meetings held in the year; and (iii) details of attendance of each 
individual member at such meetings. 

Complied

p) The Secretary to the committee (who may be the Company Secretary or the head of the Internal Audit Function) 
shall record and keep detailed minutes of the Committee Meetings. 

Complied

q) The Committee shall review arrangements by which employees of the Finance Company may, in confidence, 
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. Accordingly, 
the committee shall ensure that proper arrangements are in place for the fair and independent investigation of 
such matters and for appropriate follow-up action and to act as the key representative body for overseeing the 
Finance Company’s relations with the External Auditor.

Complied. 
Board 
approved 
whistle 
blower policy 
is in place 
enabling 
employees 
to voice their 
concerns

Integrated Risk Management Committee  

a) The Committee shall consist of at least one Non-Executive Director, CEO and Key Management Personnel 
supervising broad risk categories, i.e., credit, market, liquidity, operational and strategic risks. The committee 
shall work with key management personnel closely and make decisions on behalf of the Board within the 
framework of the authority and responsibility assigned to the committee.

Complied
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b) The Committee shall assess all risks, i.e., credit, market, liquidity, operational and strategic risks to the Finance 
Company on a monthly basis through appropriate risk indicators and management information. In the case of 
subsidiary companies and associate companies, risk management shall be done, both on the Finance Company 
basis and group basis.

Complied

c) The Committee shall review the adequacy and effectiveness of all management level committees such as the 
Credit Committee and the Asset-Liability Committee to address specific risks and to manage those risks within 
quantitative and qualitative risk limits as specified by the Committee.

Complied

d) The Committee shall take prompt corrective action to mitigate the effects of specific risks in the case such risks 
are at levels beyond the prudent levels decided by the Committee on the basis of the Finance Company’s policies 
and regulatory and supervisory requirements.

Complied

e) The Committee shall meet at least quarterly to assess all aspects of Risk Management including updated 
business continuity plans. 

Complied 

f) The Committee shall take appropriate actions against the officers responsible for failure to identify specific risks 
and take prompt corrective actions as recommended by the Committee, and/or as directed by the Director of 
the Department of Supervision of Non-Bank Financial Institutions of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

Complied

g) The Committee shall submit a Risk Assessment Report within a week of each meeting to the Board seeking the 
Board’s views, concurrence and/or specific directions

Complied

h) The Committee shall establish a Compliance Function to assess the Finance Company’s compliance with laws, 
regulations, directions, rules, regulatory guidelines, internal controls and approved policies on all areas of 
business operations. A dedicated compliance officer selected from Key Management Personnel shall carry out 
the compliance function and report to the Committee periodically.

Complied

Related Party Transaction  

The following shall be in addition to the provisions contained in the Finance Companies (Lending) Direction, No. 1 of 
2007 and the Finance Companies (Business Transactions with Directors and their Relatives) Direction, No. 2 of 2007 
or such other directions that shall repeal and replace the said directions from time to time. 

 

The Board shall take the necessary steps to avoid any conflicts of interest that may arise from any transaction 
of the Finance Company with any person, and particularly with the following categories of persons who shall be 
considered as “related parties” for the purposes of this Direction: 

Complied 

a) A subsidiary of the Finance Company

b) Any associate Company of the Finance Company

c) A Director of the Finance Company;

d) A Key Management Personnel of the Finance Company;

e) A relative of a Director or a Key Management Personnel of the Finance Company ;

f) A Shareholder who owns shares exceeding 10 % of the paid up capital of the Finance Company; 

g) A concern in which a Director of the Finance Company or a relative of a Director or a Shareholder who owns 
shares exceeding 10 % of the paid up capital of the Finance Company, has substantial interest.

The transactions with a related party that are covered in this Direction shall be the following  

a) Granting accommodation Complied

b) Creating liabilities to the Finance Company in the form of deposits, borrowings and investments, Complied

c) Providing financial or non-financial services to the Finance Company or obtaining those services from the 
Finance Company

Not 
Applicable
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d) Creating or maintaining reporting lines and information flows between the Finance Company and any related 
party which may lead to share proprietary, confidential or otherwise sensitive information that may give benefits 
to such related party. 

Not 
Applicable

 The Board shall ensure that the Finance Company does not engage in transactions with a related party in a manner 
that would grant such party ‘more favourable treatment’ than that is accorded to other similar constituents of the 
Finance Company. For the purpose of this paragraph, ‘more favourable treatment’ shall mean:

Complied

a) Granting of ‘total net accommodation’ to a related party, exceeding a prudent percentage of the Finance 
Company’s regulatory capital, as determined by the Board.  
 The ‘total net accommodation’ shall be computed by deducting from the total accommodation, the cash 
collateral and investments made by such related party in the Finance Company’s share capital and debt 
instruments with a remaining maturity of 5 years or more.

Complied

b) Charging of a lower rate of interest than the Finance Company’s best lending rate or paying a rate of interest 
exceeding the rate paid for a comparable transaction with an unrelated comparable counter-party;

Complied

c) Providing preferential treatment, such as favourable terms, covering trade losses and/or waiving fees/
commissions, that extends beyond the terms granted in the normal course of business with unrelated parties;

Complied

d) Providing or obtaining services to or from a related party without a proper evaluation procedure; Complied

e) Maintaining reporting lines and information flows between the Finance Company and any related party which 
may lead to share proprietary, confidential or otherwise sensitive information that may give benefits to such 
related party, except as required for the performance of legitimate duties and functions.

Complied

Disclosures  

(1) The Board shall ensure that: (a) Annual Audited Financial Statements and Periodical Financial statements are 
prepared and published in accordance with the formats prescribed by the regulatory and supervisory authorities 
and applicable accounting standards, and that (b) such statements are published in the newspapers in an 
abridged form, in Sinhala, Tamil and English. 

Complied

(2) The Board shall ensure that at least the following disclosures are made in the Annual Report:  

a) A statement to the effect that the Annual Audited Financial Statements have been prepared in line with 
applicable accounting standards and regulatory requirements, inclusive of specific disclosures.

Complied

b) A report by the Board on the Finance Company's internal control mechanism that confirms that the financial 
reporting system has been designed to provide a reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting, and that the preparation of financial statements has been done in accordance with relevant 
accounting principles and regulatory requirements. 

Complied

c) The External Auditor’s Certification on the effectiveness of the Internal Control Mechanism in respect of any 
statements prepared or published after 31st March 2010.

Complied. 

d) Details of Directors, including names, transactions with the Finance Company. Complied

e) Fees/remuneration paid by the Finance Company to the Directors in aggregate, in the Annual Reports published 
after 1st January 2010.

Complied

f) Total net accommodation as defined in paragraph 9(4) outstanding in respect of each category of related 
parties and the net accommodation outstanding in respect of each category of related parties as a percentage 
of the Finance Company’s capital funds. 

Complied. 

g) The aggregate values of remuneration paid by the Finance Company to its Key Management Personnel and the 
aggregate values of the transactions of the Finance Company with its Key Management Personnel during the 
financial year, set out by broad categories such as remuneration paid, accommodation granted and deposits or 
investments made in the Finance Company.

Complied

h) A report setting out details of the compliance with prudential requirements, regulations, laws and internal 
controls and measures taken to rectify any non-compliances.

Not 
applicable
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i) A statement of the regulatory and supervisory concerns on lapses in the Finance Company’s risk management, 
or non-compliance with the Act, and rules and directions that have been communicated by the Director of 
the Department of Supervision of Non-Bank Financial Institutions, if so directed by the Monetary Board to be 
disclosed to the public, together with the measures taken by the Finance Company to address such concerns.

Not 
applicable

j) The external auditor’s certification of the compliance with the Act and rules and directions issued by the 
Monetary Board in the annual corporate governance reports published after 1st January 2011.

Complied

The code of best practice on Corporate Governance issued jointly by the Securities and Exchange commission and 
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

Corporate Governance 
Principles

SEC & CA 
Sri Lanka Code 
Reference

Description Level of  
Compliance

A.1  Board of Directors

Effective Board Every public Company should be headed by an Effective Board, 
which should direct, lead and control the Company.

Adopted

Regular meetings A.1.1 The Board should meet regularly. During the period under review 
10 Board meetings were held, in order to effectively execute 
board’s responsibilities, while providing information to the Board 
on a structured and regular basis. 

Not
Complied

Board’s Responsibilities

 A.1.2 Ensure the formulation and implementation of sound business 
strategy

Complied

A.1.2 Ensure that the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and management 
team possess the skills, experience and knowledge to implement 
the strategy.

Complied

A.1.2 Ensure effective CEO and senior Management succession strategy Complied

A.1.2 Ensure effective systems to secure integrity of information, 
internal controls, business continuity and risk management

Complied

A.1.2 Ensure compliance with laws, regulations and ethical standards Complied

A.1.2 Ensure all stakeholder interests are considered in corporate 
decisions

Complied

A.1.2 Ensuring that the Company’s values and standards are set with 
emphasis on adopting appropriate accounting policies and 
fostering compliance with financial regulations

Complied 

A.1.2 Fulfill such other Board functions as are vital, given the scale, 
nature and complexity of the business concerned.

Complied

Act in accordance with the laws 
and regulations

A.1.3 Act in accordance with laws relevant to the organisation and 
procedure for Directors to obtain independent professional advice 
at Company expense.

Complied
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Corporate Governance 
Principles

SEC & CA 
Sri Lanka Code 
Reference

Description Level of  
Compliance

Access to the advice and 
services of the Company 
Secretary,

A.1.4 All Directors should have access to the advice and services of the 
Company Secretary, who is responsible to the Board in ensuring 
that Board procedures are followed and that applicable rules and 
regulations are complied with. Any question of the removal of the 
Company Secretary should be a matter for the Board as a whole.

Complied

Independent judgment A.1.5 All Directors should bring independent judgment to bear on issues 
of strategy, performance, resources (including key appointments) 
and standards of business conduct.

Complied

Dedicate adequate time and 
effort to matters of the Board 
and the Company,

A.1.6 Every Director should dedicate adequate time and effort to 
matters of the Board and the Company, to ensure that the duties 
and responsibilities owed to the Company are satisfactorily 
discharged. It must be recognised that Directors have to dedicate 
sufficient time before a meeting to review Board papers and call 
for additional information and clarification, and after a meeting 
to follow up on issues consequent to the meeting. This should 
be supplemented by a time allocation for familiarisation with 
business angles, operations, risks and controls.

Complied

Training for Directors A.1.7 Every Director should receive appropriate training when first 
appointed to the Board of a Company, and subsequently as 
necessary. Training curricular should encompass both general 
aspects of directorship and, matters specific to the particular 
industry/Company concerned. A Director must recognise that 
there is a need for continuous training and an expansion of the 
knowledge and skills required to effectively perform his duties as a 
Director. The Board should regularly review and agree the training 
and development needs of the Directors.

Complied

A.2  Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Division of responsibilities of 
the Chairperson and CEO

There are two key tasks at the top of every public 
Company – conducting of the business of the Board, and 
facilitating executive responsibility for management of the 
Company’s business. There should be a clear division of 
responsibilities at the head of the Company, which will 
ensure a balance of power and authority, such that no 
one individual has unfettered powers of decision.

Complied

Separation of the roles of 
Chairman & Executive Director.

A.2.1 Chairman and Executive Director Positions held by two individuals 
and the functions of the Chairman and Executive Director are 
clearly defined.

Complied

A.3  Role of the Chairman

Role of the chairman The Chairman’s role in preserving good Corporate Governance 
is crucial. As the person responsible for running the Board, the 
Chairman should preserve order and facilitate the effective 
discharge of Board functions.

 Complied
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Principles

SEC & CA 
Sri Lanka Code 
Reference

Description Level of  
Compliance

The Chairman should conduct 
Board proceedings in a proper 
manner and ensure, inter-alia

A.3.1 The effective participation of both Executive and Non- Executive 
Directors is secured;
 ∫ all Directors are encouraged to make an effective contribution, 

within their respective capabilities, for the benefit of the 
Company;

 ∫ a balance of power between Executive and Non- Executive 
Directors is maintained;

 ∫ the views of Directors on issues under consideration are 
ascertained; and

 ∫ the Board is in complete control of the Company’s affairs and 
alert to its obligations to all shareholders and other stakeholders.

Complied

A.4  Financial Acumen

Availability of financial acumen 
and knowledge to offer 
guidance on matters of finance

Chairman of the Audit Committee Mr.Lalith Karunaratne is an 
Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 
Lanka and holds a Postgraduate Degree in Business Management 
(MBA) from the University of Sri Jayawardenapura and a Masters 
degree in Financial Mathematics from the University of Colombo 
(retired w.e.f. 30.09.2020). Mr. Jayantha C Perera is a CFA Charter 
holder from the CFA Institute, USA (ceased to function w.e.f. 
31.08.2020). And Mr. Sunil Kandegedara has a Diploma in Tax 
Administration at California, USA, and successfully completed Hons. 
Degree in Mathematics and Chemistry at the University of Peradeniya 
(retired w.e.f. 10.02.2021). Mr. Jagath Dissanayake is a Fellow 
Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and a 
Fellow Member of the Institute of Certified Management Accountants 
of Sri Lanka. (joined w.e.f. 30.11.2020) These Members of the Board 
has the ability to offer guidance on matter Finance to the Board.

Complied

A.5  Board Balance

Non-Executive Directors of 
sufficient caliber and number

A.5.1 The Board should include Non-Executive Directors of sufficient 
caliber and number for their views to carry significant weight in 
the Board’s decisions. The Board should include at least two Non-
Executive Directors or such number of Non-Executive Directors 
equivalent to one third of total number of Directors, which ever 
is higher. In the event the Chairman and CEO is the same person, 
Non-Executive Directors should comprise a majority of the Board. 
The total number of Directors is to be calculated based on the 
number as at the conclusion of the immediately preceding Annual 
General Meeting. Further, any change occurring to this ratio should 
be rectified within 90 days from the date of the change.

Complied

Independence of Non-Executive 
Directors

A.5.2
A.5.3

For a Director to be deemed ‘independent’ such Director should 
be independent of management and free of any business or 
other relationship that could materially interfere with or could 
reasonably be perceived to materially interfere with the exercise of 
their unfettered and independent judgement.

Complied

Annual declarations of 
independence from Directors

A.5.4 Each Non-Executive Director should submit a signed and 
dated declaration annually of his/her independence or non-
independence against the specified criteria set out in the 
Specimen in Schedule H.

Complied
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SEC & CA 
Sri Lanka Code 
Reference

Description Level of  
Compliance

Annual Declaration by the 
Board on the Independence of 
Directors.

A.5.5 The Board should make a determination annually as to the 
independence or non-independence of each Non- Executive Director 
based on such a declaration made of decided criteria and other 
information available to the Board. The Board should determine 
whether the Director is independent in character and judgment and 
whether there are relationships or circumstances which are likely to 
affect, or could appear to affect, the Director’s judgment. The Board 
should specify the criteria not met and the basis for its determination 
in the annual report, if it determines that a Director is independent 
notwithstanding the existence of relationships or circumstances 
which indicate the contrary and should set out in the Annual Report 
the names of Directors determined to be ‘independent’. A Director 
would not be independent if he/she:
 ∫ has been employed by the Company, subsidiary or parent of the 

Company during the period of two years immediately preceding 
appointment;

 ∫ currently has or has had within last two years immediately 
preceding appointment as Director, a Material Business 
Relationship with the Company, whether directly or indirectly;

 ∫ has a close family member who is a Director or chief executive 
officer or Key management Personnel (and/or an equivalent 
position);

 ∫ is a significant shareholder of the Company or an officer of, or 
otherwise associated directly with, a significant shareholder of 
the Company;

 ∫ has served on the Board of the Company continuously for a period 
exceeding nine years from the date of the first appointment; 
- is employed in another Company or business:
- in which a majority of the other directors of the 

Company are employed or are Directors; or
- in which a majority of the other Directors of the Company 

have a significant shareholding or material business 
relationship; or

- that has a significant shareholding in the 
Company or with which the Company has a Business 
Connection; 6

 Complied

Alternate Director A.5.6 If an alternate Director is appointed by a Non-Executive 
Director such alternate Director should not be an 
executive of the Company. If an alternate Director is 
appointed by an Independent Director, the person who is 
appointed also should meet the criteria of independence 
and the provision on minimum number of Independent 
Directors also should be satisfied.

Not 
Applicable

Senior Independent Director A.5.7 In the event the Chairman and CEO is the same person, 
the Board should appoint one of the Independent Non-Executive 
Directors to be the “Senior Independent Director” (SID) and 
disclose this appointment in the Annual Report.

Mr. Jagath 
Dissanayake 
has been 
appointed 
as Senior 
Independent 
Director
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Principles

SEC & CA 
Sri Lanka Code 
Reference

Description Level of  
Compliance

Confidential discussion with the 
Senior Independent Director

A.5.8 The Senior Independent Director should make himself 
available for confidential discussions with other 
Directors who may have concerns which they believe 
have not been properly considered by the Board as a 
whole and which pertain to significant issues that are 
detrimental to the Company.

Complied

Conducting meeting with Non-
Executive Directors only

A.5.9 Chairman to hold meetings with Non-Executive Directors, without 
Executive Directors being present

Complied

Recording of concerns in Board 
Minutes

A.5.10 Where Directors have concerns about the matters of the 
Company which cannot be unanimously resolved, they 
should ensure their concerns are recorded in the Board 
Minutes.

Complied

A.6  Supply of Relevant Information

Information to the Board by the 
Management

A.6.1 Management has an obligation to provide the Board with 
appropriate and timely information, but information volunteered 
by management may not be enough in all circumstances and 
Directors should make further inquiries where necessary. The 
Chairman should ensure all Directors are properly briefed on 
issues arising at Board meetings.

Complied

Adequate time for effective 
Board meetings

A.6.2 The minutes, agenda and papers required for a Board Meeting 
should ordinarily be provided to Directors at least seven (7) days 
before the meeting, to facilitate its effective conduct.

Complied

A.7  Appointments to the Board

Formal and transparent 
procedure for new 
appointments through an 
established Board Nomination 
Committee

 

A Nomination Committee 
should be established to make 
recommendations to the Board 
on all new Board appointments. 
Terms of Reference for 
Nomination members of 
the Nomination Committee 
should be identified in the 
Annual Report. Committees 
are set out in Schedule A. The 
Chairman and members of the 
Nomination Committee should 
be identified in the Annual 
Report.

A.7.1  Complied
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Assessment of Board 
Composition Committee

A.7.2 The Nomination Committee or in the absence of a Nomination 
Committee, the Board as a whole should annually assess Board-
composition to ascertain whether the combined knowledge and 
experience of the Board matches the strategic demands facing 
the Company. The findings of such assessment should be taken 
into account when new Board appointments are considered and 
when incumbent Directors come up for re-election.

Complied. 

Disclosure of details of new 
Directors to shareholders

A.7.3 Upon the appointment of a new Director to the Board, the 
Company should forthwith disclose to shareholders:
a brief resume of the Director;
the nature of his expertise in relevant functional areas;
the names of companies in which the Director holds directorships 
or memberships in Board committees; and
whether such Director can be considered ‘independent’.

Complied

A.8  Re - election

Appointment of Non-Executive 
Directors

A.8.1 Non-Executive Directors should be appointed for specified terms 
subject to re-election and to the provisions in the Companies Act 
relating to the removal of a Director, and their re-appointment 
should not be automatic.

Complied

Election of Directors by the 
shareholders

A.8.2 All Directors including the Chairman of the Board, should be 
subject to election by shareholders at the first opportunity after 
their appointment, and to re-election thereafter at intervals of 
no more than three years. The names of Directors submitted 
for election or re-election should be accompanied by a resume 
minimally as set out in paragraph A.7.3 above, to enable 
shareholders to make an informed decision on their election. 

Complied

A.9  Appraisal of Board Performance 

Appraisal of Board Performance A.9.1 The Board should annually appraise itself on its performance in 
the discharge of its key responsibilities as set out in A.1.2.

Complied

Appraisal of Board Sub
Committees.

A.9.2 The Board should also undertake an annual self-evaluation of its 
own performance and that of its Committees.

Complied

Disclosure of the method of 
Appraisal of Board Committee 
performance

A.9.3 The Board should state how such performance evaluations have 
been conducted, in the Annual Report.

Complied
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A.10  Disclosure of Information in Respect of Directors

Annual Report to disclose 
specified information regarding 
Directors

A.10.1 The Annual Report of the Company should set out the following 
information in relation to each Director:
 ∫ name, qualifications and brief profile;
 ∫ the nature of his/her expertise in relevant functional areas;
 ∫ immediate family and/or material business relationships with 

other Directors of the Company;
 ∫ whether Executive, Non-Executive and/or Independent Director;
 ∫ names of listed companies in Sri Lanka in which the Director 

concerned serves as a Director;
 ∫ names of other companies in which the Director concerned 

serves as a Director, provided that where he/she holds 
directorships in companies within a Group of which the 
Company is a part, their names need not be disclosed; it is 
sufficient to state that he/she holds other directorships in such 
companies

 ∫ number/percentage of Board meetings of the Company 
attended during the year;

 ∫ the total number of Board seats held by each Director indicating 
listed and unlisted Companies and whether in an executive or 
non-executive capacity;

 ∫ names of Board Committees in which the Director serves as 
Chairman or a member; and

 ∫ number/percentage of committee meetings attended during 
the year.

Complied

A.11  Appraisal of Chief Executive Officer

Set reasonable financial and 
non-financial targets to be met 
by the CEO

A.11.1 At the commencement of every fiscal year, the Board in 
consultation with the CEO, should set, in line with the short, 
medium and long-term objectives of the Company, reasonable 
financial and non-financial targets that should be met by the CEO 
during the year.

Complied

Evaluate performance of the 
CEO with reference to targets

A.11.2 The performance of the CEO should be evaluated by the Board at 
the end of each fiscal year to ascertain whether the targets set 
by the Board have been achieved and if not, whether the failure to 
meet such targets was reasonable in the circumstances.

Complied
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B.1  Directors’ Remuneration

Appointment of a Remuneration 
Committee

B.1.1 To avoid potential conflicts of interest, the Board of 
Directors should set up a Remuneration Committee to make 
recommendations to the Board, within agreed terms of reference, 
on the Company’s framework of remunerating Executive Directors. 
(These also include Post Employment Benefits as well as Terminal 
Benefits)

Complied

Remuneration Committees 
should consist exclusively of 
Non-Executive Directors, and 
should have a Chairman,

B.1.2  Complied

The Chairman and members of 
the Remuneration Committee 
should be listed in the Annual 
Report each year.

B.1.3  Complied

Remuneration of the Non-
Executive Directors

B.1.4 The Board as a whole, or where required by the Articles of 
Association the shareholders, should determine the remuneration 
of Non-Executive Directors, including members of the 
Remuneration Committee, within the limits set in the Articles 
of Association. Where permitted by the Articles, the Board may 
delegate this responsibility to a sub-committee of the Board, 
which might include the CEO.

Complied

Ability to consult The Chairman 
and / or Executive Director and 
to seek Professional advice by 
the Committee

B.1.5 The Remuneration Committee should consult the Chairman 
and/or CEO about its proposals relating to the remuneration 
of other Executive Directors and have access to professional 
advice from within and outside the Company, in discharging their 
responsibilities.

Complied

B.2  Level and Make-up of Remuneration

Remuneration for Executive 
Directors should attract, retain 
and motivate

B.2.1 The Remuneration Committee should provide the packages 
needed to attract, retain and motivate Executive Directors of the 
quality required but should avoid paying more than is necessary 
for this purpose.

Complied

Competitiveness of Levels of 
Remuneration

B.2.2 The Remuneration Committee should judge where to position 
levels of remuneration of the Company, relative to other 
companies. It should be aware what comparable companies are 
paying and should take account of relative performance, but 
should use such comparisons with caution, mindful of the risk 
that they can result in an increase of remuneration levels with no 
corresponding improvement in performance.

Complied

Positioning Company 
remuneration levels relative to 
other companies

B.2.3 The Remuneration Committee should be sensitive to remuneration 
and employment conditions elsewhere in the Company or Group 
of which it is a part, especially when determining annual salary 
increases.

Complied
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Performance related elements 
of remuneration for Executive 
Directors

B.2.4 The performance-related elements of remuneration of Executive 
Directors should be designed and tailored to align their interests 
with those of the Company and main stakeholders and to give 
these Directors appropriate incentives to perform at the highest 
levels.

Complied

Share option schemes B.2.5 Executive share options should not be offered at a discount (i.e. 
less than market price prevailing at the time the exercise price is 
determined), save as permitted by the Listing Rules of the Stock 
Exchange.

Not 
Applicable

Designing Remuneration of 
Executive Director

B.2.6 In designing schemes of performance-related remuneration, 
Remuneration Committees should follow the provisions set out in 
Schedule E.

Complied

Compensation commitments in 
the event of early termination of 
Executive Director

B.2.7 Remuneration Committees should consider what compensation 
commitments (including pension contributions) their Directors’ 
contracts of service, if any, entail in the event of early termination. 
Remuneration Committees should in particular, consider the 
advantages of providing explicitly for such compensation 
commitments to apply other than in the case of removal for 
misconduct, in initial contracts.

Not Arisen

Dealing with early termination B.2.8 Where the initial contract does not explicitly provide for 
compensation commitments, Remuneration Committees should, 
within legal constraints, tailor their approach in early termination 
cases to the relevant circumstances. The broad aim should be, to 
avoid rewarding poor performance while dealing fairly with cases 
where departure is not due to poor performance.

Not Arisen

Levels of remuneration for Non-
Executive Directors

B.2.9 Non-Executive Directors of the Company are paid a nominal fee 
for their time and role in the Company

Complied

Disclosure of Remuneration

Composition of Remuneration 
Committee, Remuneration 
Policy and disclosure of 
aggregate remuneration paid to 
Directors

B.3.1 The Annual Report should set out the names of Directors (or 
persons in the parent Company’s committee in the case of a 
group Company) comprising the remuneration committee, contain 
a statement of remuneration policy and set out the aggregate 
remuneration paid to Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

Adopted

C.1  Relations with Shareholders

Count of all proxy votes lodged C.1.1 Companies should count all proxy votes and should indicate the 
level of proxies lodged on each resolution, and the balance for and 
against the resolution and withheld, after it has been dealt with on 
a show of hands, except where a poll is called.

Complied

Separate resolutions for each 
substantially separate issue

C.1.2 Companies should propose a separate resolution at the AGM on 
each substantially separate issue and should in particular propose 
a resolution at the AGM relating to the adoption of the report and 
accounts.

Complied

Availability of Board Sub- 
Committee Chairpersons at 
AGM

C.1.3 The Chairman of the Board should arrange for the Chairman of the 
Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees to be available 
to answer questions at the AGM if so requested by the Chairman.

Complied
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Circulation of notice of AGM 
and related documents to 
shareholders

C.1.4 Companies should arrange for the Notice of the AGM and related 
papers to be sent to shareholders as determined by statute, 
before the meeting.

Complied

C.2  Communication with Shareholders

Channel to reach all 
shareholders of the Company

C.2.1 There should be a channel to reach all shareholders of the 
Company in order to disseminate timely information.

Complied

Policy and methodology 
for communication with 
shareholders

C.2.2 Communication policy with stakeholders defining areas of concern Complied

Implementation of the 
Policy and methodology 
for communication with 
shareholders

C.2.3  Complied

Contact Person in relation to 
shareholders’ matters.

C.2.4 and C.2.6  Complied

Process to make all Directors 
aware of major issues and 
concerns of shareholders

C.2.5  Complied

The process responding to 
shareholder matters

C.2.7  Complied

C.3  Major and Material Transactions

Disclosure of major 
transactions

C.3. 1 Directors should disclose to shareholders all proposed material 
transactions, which if entered into, would materially alter/vary 
the Company’s net assets base or in the case of a Company with 
subsidiaries, the consolidated group net asset base.

Complied
No material 
transactions

D.1  Accountability and Audit

Statutory and Regulatory 
reporting

D.1.1 The Board’s responsibility to present a balanced and 
understandable assessment extends to interim and other price-
sensitive public reports and reports to regulators, as well as to 
information required to be presented by statutory requirements.

Complied

Directors’ report in the Annual 
Report

D.1.2 The Directors’ Report, which forms part of the Annual Report, 
should contain declarations by the Directors to the effect that:
the Company has not engaged in any activity, which contravenes 
laws and regulations;
 ∫ the Directors have declared all material interests in contracts 

involving the Company and refrained from voting on matters in 
which they were materially interested;

 ∫ the Company has made all endeavours to ensure the equitable 
treatment of shareholders;

 ∫ the business is a going concern, with supporting assumptions 
or qualifications as necessary; and

 ∫ they have conducted a review of the internal controls, covering 
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk 
management and have obtained reasonable assurance of their 
effectiveness and successful adherence therewith,

Complied
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Statement of Directors’, and 
Auditor’s responsibility for the 
Financial Statements.

D.1.3 The Annual Report should contain a statement setting out the 
responsibilities of the Board for the preparation and presentation 
of financial statements, together with a statement by the Auditors 
about their reporting responsibilities. Further, the Annual Report 
should contain a Report/Statement on Internal Control. Refer 
Annexure K for the contents of the Statement on Internal Control. 

Complied

Management Discussions and 
Analysis

D.1.4 The Annual Report should contain a ‘Management 
Discussion & Analysis’, discussing, among other issues:
 ∫ industry structure and developments;
 ∫ opportunities and threats;
 ∫ risks and concerns;
 ∫ internal control systems and their adequacy;
 ∫ social and environmental protection activities carried out by the 

Company;
 ∫ financial performance;
 ∫ material developments in human resource / industrial relations; 

and
 ∫ prospects for the future.

Complied

Declaration by the Board 
that the business as a going 
concern

D.1.5  Complied

Summoning an EGM to notify 
serious loss of capital

D.1.6 In the event the net assets of the Company fall below 50% of 
the value of the Company’s shareholders’ funds, the Directors 
shall forthwith summon an Extraordinary General Meeting of the 
Company to notify shareholders of the position and of remedial 
action being taken.

No such 
event 
occurred 
during the 
Financial 
Year 

Related Party Transactions D.1.7 Internal controls are in place within the Company to Identify, 
Record and disclose related party transactions

Complied

D.2  Internal Control

Maintain a sound system of 
internal control to safeguard 
shareholders’ investments and 
the Company’s assets.

D.2.1 The Directors should, at least annually, conduct a review of the 
risks facing the Company and the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control

Complied. 

Need for an Internal audit 
function

D.2.2  Company has its own in-house Internal Audit Department Complied

Need for an review of the 
process and effectiveness of 
risk management and internal 
controls

D.2.3 The Board should require the Audit Committee to carry out reviews 
of the process and effectiveness of risk management and internal 
controls, and to document to the Board and Board takes the 
responsibility for the disclosures on internal controls.

Complied.

Responsibilities of Directors in 
maintaining a sound system of 
internal Control

D.2.4  Complied
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D.3  Audit Committee

Composition of the Board Audit 
Committee

D.3.1 The Audit Committee should be comprised of a minimum of 
two independent Non-Executive Directors (in instances where 
a Company has only two Directors on its Board) or exclusively 
by Non-Executive Directors, a majority of whom should be 
independent, whichever is higher. The Chairman of the Committee 
should be a Non- Executive Director, appointed by the Board.
(Complied up to the retirement of 1 independent NED on 10th 
February 2021)

Complied

Review of Objectivity of the 
Audit Committee

D.3.2 Board Audit Committee regularly reviews the scope of the External 
Auditors results and effectiveness of the Audit

Complied

Terms of reference of the Audit 
Committee

D.3.3 Terms of Reference of the Board Audit committee is clearly 
defined in the character of the audit committee approved by the 
Board of Directors. The Committee mainly deals with the matters 
pertaining to statutory and regulatory compliance financial 
reporting

Complied

Disclosures of the Audit 
Committee

D.3.4 The names of Directors (persons in the parent Company’s 
committee in the case of a group Company) comprising the 
Audit Committee should be disclosed in the Annual Report. 
The Committee should also make a determination of the 
independence of the Auditors and should disclose the basis of 
such determination in the Annual Report. The Annual Report 
should contain a report by the Audit Committee, setting out the 
manner of compliance by the Company, in relation to the above, 
during the period to which the Annual Report relates.

Complied

D.4  Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Code of Business Conduct and 
Ethics

D.4.1 All Companies must disclose whether they have a Code of Business 
Conduct & Ethics for Directors and Key Management Personnel and if 
they have such a Code, make an affirmative declaration in the Annual 
Report that all Directors and Key Management Personnel have declared 
compliance with such Code, and if unable to make that declaration, state 
why they are unable to do so. Each Company may determine its own policies 
in the formulation of such a Code, but all Companies should address the 
following important topics in their respective Codes:
 ∫ conflict of interest;
 ∫ bribery and corruption;
 ∫ entertainment and gifts;
 ∫ accurate accounting and record-keeping;
 ∫ corporate opportunities;
 ∫ confidentiality;
 ∫ fair dealing;
 ∫ protection and proper use of Company assets;

Complied

Affirmation by the Chairman 
that there is no violation of the 
code of conduct & ethics

D.4.2  Please refer Chairman’s message on page 14 for details Complied
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D.5  Corporate Governance Disclosures

Disclosure of Corporate 
Governance

D.5.1 The Directors should include in the Company’s Annual Report a 
Corporate Governance Report, setting out the manner and extent 
to which the Company has complied with the principles and 
provisions of this Code.

Complied

E.1 Sec 2. Shareholders – Institutional Investors

Institutional shareholders E.1.1 A listed Company should conduct a regular and structured 
dialogue with shareholders based on a mutual understanding 
of objectives. Arising from such dialogue, the Chairman should 
ensure the views of shareholders are communicated to the Board 
as a whole.

Complied

E.2  Evaluation of Corporate Governance Initiatives

Encourage institutional 
investors to give due weight 
to relevant governance 
arrangements

E.2. 1 When evaluating Companies’ governance arrangements, 
particularly those relating to Board structure and composition, 
institutional investors should be encouraged to give due weight to 
all relevant factors drawn to their attention.

Not 
Applicable

F.  Other Investors

F.1 – Investing / Divesting Decisions
Shareholder Relations – Individual Shareholders

Individual Shareholders F.1 Individual shareholders, investing directly in shares of companies 
should be encouraged to carry out adequate analysis or seek 
independent advice in investing or divesting decisions.

Complied

F.2  Shareholder Voting

Individual shareholders voting F.2 Individual shareholders should be encouraged to participate in 
General Meetings of companies and exercise their voting rights.

Complied

G.  Sustainability Reporting

Sustainability is a business 
approach that creates long 
term stakeholder value by 
embracing opportunities and 
managing risks derived from 
economic, environmental 
and social developments and 
their potential implications 
and impacts on the business 
activities of the entity.

G.1 Complied
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Sustainability reporting is 
the practice of recognising, 
measuring, disclosing and 
being accountable to internal 
and external stakeholders for 
organisational performance 
towards the goals of 
sustainable development in the 
context of the overall business 
activities and strategy of the 
entity and directed to the 
target stakeholders, usually 
shareholders, employees 
customers, society and 
government.

G.1  

Economic Sustainability G.1.1 Please refer pages 20 to 24 Complied

The Environment G.1.2 Please refer pages 25 and 26 Complied

Labour Practice G.1.3 Please refer Human Resource Development on pages  
34 to 37

Complied

Society G.1.4 Please refer Corporate Social Responsibility on pages  
38 and 39

Complied

Product & Service 
Responsibility

G.1.5 Please refer pages 25 and 33 Complied

Stakeholder identification, 
engagement and effective 
communication

G.1.6 Please refer pages 25 and 33 Complied

Sustainable Reporting and 
Disclosure

G.1.7 Please refer Management Discussion and Analysis on pages  
40 and 41

Complied

Report on the compliance with requirements on the Corporate Governance requirements in rule 7.10 of the Listing 
Rules

Rule
#

Sub sections - 
Description

Description Level of 
Compliance

7.10  Compliance

a. Affirmative 
statement

A listed entity shall publish in the Annual Report commencing after 1st April 2007 a 
statement confirming that as at the date on the Annual Report that they are in compliance 
with the corporate governance rules (CGR).

Complied

b. A listed entity shall comply with these Corporate Governance Rules with effect from the 
financial year commencing on or after 1 April 2008 and the annual report must contain 
the relevant affirmative statements.

Complied

7.10.1  Non- Executive Directors  

7.10.1 A At least two NED's or 1/3 of total Directors, which ever is higher should be Non-
Executive Directors

Complied

7.10.1 B Total number of Directors considers soon after AGM should be Non-Executive Directors Complied

7.10.1 C Any change to the ratio rectified in within 90 days Complied
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7.10.2  Independent Director

7.10.2 A At least two NEDs or 1/3 of Non-Executive Directors, should be independent Complied

 Where 7.1a applies, both NEDs should be independent Complied

7.10.2 B Board requirement of annual signed declaration of independence Complied

7.10.3  Disclosure Relating to Directors

7.10.3 A Boards assessment on the independence of the Directors and disclose their names as 
independent in annual report.

 Complied

7.10.3 B If the Director is not independent, the Board shall justify and disclose that he is  
nevertheless independent

Complied

7.10.3 C Resume of Directors, including information on nature of his/her expertise in relevant 
functional areas 

Complied

 7.10.3 D Appointing a new Director exchange a brief resume as rules discussed in A,B,C Complied

7.10.4  Criteria for defining "independence"

7.10.4 A Has been employed by the listed entity during a period of 2 years immediately preceding 
appointment as Directors.

Complied

7.10.4 B Currently has had during the period of 2 years immediately preceding appointment as 
Director had material business relationship with the listed entity.

Complied

7.10.4 C Has a close family member as a Director/CEO in the listed entity Complied

7.10.4 D Has a significant shareholding in the listed entity Complied

7.10.4 E Has served on the Board continuously for more than 9 years from the date of first 
appointment, however if he is re-appointed for a period 2 years from the date of 
completion of the preceding nine years

Complied

7.10.4 F if employed in another company or business,  

a) in which majority of the other directors are employed or Directors Complied

b) Other Directors have significant shareholding Complied

c) That has a significant shareholding in a listed entity or which the listed Entity has 
business connection

Complied

7.10.4 G Is a Director of another Company  

a) in which majority of the other Directors are employed or Directors Not 
applicable

b) having business connection in the listed company or a significant shareholding Not 
applicable

7.10.4 H Has material business relationship or significant shareholding with another company or 
business
i. In which a majority of other Directors of the listed entity are employed or are 

Directors and /or
ii. Which has a business connection with the listed entity or significant shareholding in 

the same

Not 
applicable
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7.10.5  Remuneration Committee

7.10.5 A
 

Composition

2 independent NED's or majority Independent Directors, which ever is higher
(Complied up to the retirement of 1 independent NED on 10th February 2021)

Complied

7.10.5 B
 

Functions  

Recommend the remuneration payable to the Executive Directors Complied

7.10.5 C Disclosure in the annual report;  

Names of the Directors comprising the Remuneration Committee Complied

Statement of Remuneration Policy Complied

An aggregate remuneration paid to Executive and Non-Executive Directors Complied

7.10.6  Audit Committee

7.10.6 A Composition

2 independent NED's or majority Independent Directors, which ever is higher
(Complied up to the retirement of 1 independent NED on 10th February 2021)

Complied

Chairman should be an NED Complied

CEO and CFO should attend the meetings held by the Audit Committee Complied

Chairman or one member of the Audit Committee, should be a member of a profession 
accounting body

Complied

7.10.6 B Functions of Audit Committee  

Oversee the preparation and presentation and adequacy of disclosures in FS Complied

Oversee Compliance and financial reporting requirements and regulatory bodies Complied

Oversee Internal control processes to & risk management adequacy Complied

Assessing the independence and performance of the entity's External Auditors Complied. 

Recommendations to the Board regarding, re-appointment & removal of External 
Auditors & to approve the remuneration & terms of engagement of Auditors.

Complied

7.10.6 C Disclosure in the Annual Report  

The names of Directors with brief resume Complied

Disclosure of determination of the Independence of the Auditors Complied

A report containing compliance to all regulations and internal controls Complied

By the order of Board

Names of Listed/Other Companies In Sri Lanka in which the Directors Concerned Serves as a Directors

Mr. Victor R. Ramanan 

Company Designation

1. Nawaloka College of Higher Studies (Pvt) Ltd Deputy Chairman

2. Millennium Housing Developers PLC Deputy Chairman

3. Achieve-Via Education (Pvt) Ltd Chairman

4. Nawaloka Hospitals PLC Director

5. Ideal Getaways (Private) Limited Director

6. Uniq Assets (Pvt) Ltd Chairman
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Mr. Ugitha Harshith Dharmadasa

 Company Designation

1. Koala (Pvt) Ltd Managing Director
2. Ceyoka ( Pvt) Ltd Managing Director
3. Nawaloka College of Higher Studies (Private) Limited Director
4. Nawaloka Construction Company (Private) Limited Director
5. New Nawaloka Hospitals (Pvt) Ltd Director
6. Nawaloka Professional Academy (Pvt) Ltd Director
7. East West Marketing (Private) Limited Director
8. Nawaloka Trading (Pvt) Ltd Director
9. Nawaloka Hospitals PLC Director
10. Zhiraz Developers (Private) Limited Director
11. Nawaloka Steel Industries (Pvt) Ltd Director
12. Nawaloka Care (Private) Limited Director
13. Nawaloka Green Cross Laboratories (Pvt) Ltd Director
14. Nawaloka Holdings (Pvt) Ltd Director
15. Millennium Housing Developers PLC Chairman
16. Ceyoka Engineering (Pvt) Ltd Director
17. Ceyoka Health (Pvt) Ltd Director
18. East West M F Agri Industries (Pvt) Ltd Director
19. Nawaloka Healthcare Institute (Private) Limited Director

Mr. Jayaprakash Rudra

Company Designation

1. Ideal Getaways (Private) Limited Director
2. Lucre (Pvt) Ltd. Director
3. Tropical Foliage Limited Director
4. Tropical Agro Livestock (Pvt) Ltd Director
5. Millennium Housing Developers Ltd Director
6. Achieve Via Education (Pvt) Ltd Director
7. Nawaloka College of Higher Studies (Private) Limited Director
8. M C Universal Ltd Director
9. M C Urban Ltd Director
10. Rudra Residencies (Pvt) Ltd Director

Mr. Sunil Kandegedera

Company Designation

1. North Lanka Trading Ltd                                                                     Director

Mr. Lalith Karunaratne

Company Designation

1.  NIL  NIL

Mr. Jagath Dissanayake

Company Designation

1.  NIL  NIL

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Integrated Risk Management 
Committee is a Sub-Committee of the 
Board of Directors established to oversee 
the risk management aspects of the 
Company.

The Board Integrated Risk Management 
Committee (the Committee) comprises 
One (01) Non-Executive Director and 
members from the Management. 

The Committee’s composition during the 
year under review was as follows

Mr. P. M.L. K. Karunaratne –  
Chairman/Independent Non-Executive 
Director (Chairman until 30.09.2020)

Mr. J. Dissanayake –  
Independent/Non-Executive Director 
(Chairman with effect from 30.11.2020)

Management representatives are;

Mr. S. Amerasekera –  
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. P. Habaragamuwa –  
Chief finance Officer

Ms. L. S. Jayawardana –  
Compliance & Risk Officer

Mr. P. Balasooriya –  
GM Micro finance

Mr. Dilan Wasantha –  
GM Investments & Business Development

Mr. C. Jayawardana –  
GM Core Finance 

Mr. Sasi Kumar –  
GM Administration and Special Projects

Ms. S. Wickremathilake –  
AGM – Credit 

Mr. T. Kumar –  
Head of IT & MIS 

Mr. D. Wijeratne –  
Head of Collections & Recoveries 

Mr. R. Selvaraj –  
Head of Credit & Branches

Mr. A. Jayaweera –  
Head of Pawning

Ms. Amali Priyabashini –  
Manager Legal

Participates by invitation

Mr. G.R.N. D. Kumara –  
DGM Internal Audit 

  

TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Duties set out in the Terms of 
Reference set out by the board of 
directors, include the following;

To recommend to the Board the 
Company’s appetite for risk and its policy 
for risk management

To recommend and review the 
implementation of the Company’s 
internal controls and risk management 
framework

To review the processes and procedures 
for ensuring that all material business 
risks are properly identified and that 
appropriate systems of monitoring and 
controls are in place

To receive and review risk management 
and relevant regulatory information and 
reports and make recommendations for 
changes in policies and procedures as 
and when appropriate

To consider material breaches of the 
agreed risk limits, review the action taken 
in response and to prevent a repeat

To consider the effect on the risks of 
the Company of material findings of 
compliance risks as well as reported 
breaches and any proposed regulatory 
changes

To consider the effect on the risks 
of the Company of material findings 
of the Internal Auditor (if any) or any 
independent review carried out for the 
Audit Committee

To review the adequacy and effectiveness 
of all management level committees 
such as the Credit Committee and the 
Asset-Liability Committee to address 
specific risks and to manage those risks 
within quantitative and qualitative risk 
limits as specified by the Committee

To take appropriate actions against 
the officers responsible for failure to 
identify specific risks and take prompt 
corrective actions as recommended by 
the Committee and/or as directed by the 
Director of the Department of Supervision 
of Non-Bank Financial Institution of the 
Central Bank of Sri Lanka

To establish a Compliance function 

to assess the finance Company’s 
compliance with laws, regulations, 
directions, rules, regulatory guidelines, 
internal controls and approved policies 
on all areas of business operations. A 
dedicated Compliance officer selected 
from Key Management Personnel shall 
carry out the Compliance function and 
report to the Committee periodically

The committee determines the adequacy 
and effectiveness of measures taken by 
the management in order to ensure that 
the overall risk of the company conforms 
to parameters approved by the Board

EXTERNAL PROFESSIONAL ADVICE 
The Committee has the authority to seek 
external professional advice on matters 
under its purview and if required to 
engage external experts during the year.

MEETINGS
The Committee met four times during the 
year and the attendance of the Directors 
at the meetings is given on page 70 of 
the Annual Report. The discussions and 
conclusions reached at the meetings are 
recorded in minutes and circulated to the 
Board of Directors for information and 
advice.

Dates the meetings were held are as 
follows:
15-06-2020
30-12-2020
12-02-2021
12-03-2021

Jagath Dissanayake
Chairman – Board Integrated 
Risk Management Committee

27th August 2021
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD AUDIT 
COMMITTEE
The Board Audit Committee (“the 
Committee”) appointed by the Board 
of Directors of Nation Lanka Finance 
PLC comprises of three Non-Executive 
Directors of whom two are independent 
Directors (The position changed with the 
retirement of three directors and the 
appointment of one director during the 
year). The Committee is chaired by Mr. 
Jagath Dissanayake, a fellow member 
of the Institute of Chartered Accountant 
of Sri Lanka, who possess over 30 years 
Managerial Experience in field of Finance, 
Auditing, Marketing and Operations. 
Most of the experience and exposure, 
consociated with him are overseas.

 ∫ Mr. Jagath Dissanayake (Chairman) - 
Independent /Non – Executive Director 
(with effect from 30th November 2020)

 ∫ Mr. Lalith Karunaratne (Chairman) - 
Senior Independent /Non – Executive 
Director (Retired on 30th September 
2020)

 ∫ Mr. K. M. Kandegedara - Independent/ 
Non – Executive Director(Retired on 
10th February 2021)

 ∫ Mr. Harshith Dharmadasa - Non-
Executive Director(Retired on 22nd 
December 2020)

 
Mr. Lalith Karunarathne, was appointed 
as the Chairman together with 
Mr. K. M. Kandegedara, and Mr. Harshith 
Dharmadasa as Committee members 
with effect from January 2013. With the 
resignation of Mr. Lalith Karunarathne, 
Mr. Jagath Dissanayake was appointed 
as the Chairman of the Audit Committee 
with effect from 30th November 2020.

Brief profiles of the members are given in 
the page 3 of the Annual Report.

By invitation of the Audit Committee, 
Executive Directors, Chief Executive 
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Internal Auditor, General Managers, 
and the External Auditors attend 
Audit Committee meetings whenever 

requested by the Audit Committee. The 
Chief Internal Auditor functions as the 
Secretary of the Audit Committee.

Objectives and Role of the Audit 
Committee
The Audit Committee is responsible:
 ∫ To assist the Board of Directors in 

fulfilling its oversight responsibilities 
for financial reporting process, the 
system of internal control, the audit 
process, and the Company’s process 
for monitoring compliance with laws 
and regulations and the code of 
conduct. 

 ∫ Examine any matters relating to 
financial and other related affairs of 
the Company internally.

 ∫ Monitor and follow up the internal and 
external audit programme and plan, 
review the external and internal audit 
reports and follow up on findings and 
recommendations.

 ∫ Review the risk management measures 
and examine the adequacy, efficiency 
and effectiveness of the internal 
control systems and procedures in 
place to avoid or to mitigate the risk.

 ∫ Ensure that efficiency and sound 
financial reporting system is in place 
to provide accurate, appropriate and 
timely information to the Board.

 ∫ Review the quality and appropriateness 
of accounting policies and disclosures 
in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards /Sri Lanka 
Financial Reporting Standards.

 ∫ Review the compliance of financial 
reporting obligation under Colombo 
Stock Exchange (CSE) listing rules and 
regulation of Security and Exchange 
Commission (SEC), Companies Act 
No. 7 of 2007, Finance Business Act 
No. 42 of 2011 and other reporting 
requirements under the Central Bank 
of Sri Lanka (CBSL) regulations.

 ∫ Review of the financial information of 
the Company in order to monitor the 
integrity of the financial statements 
of the Company, its annual report, 
accounts and quarterly reports 
prepared for disclosure.

 ∫ Reviewing accounting and financial 
reporting, risk management processes 
and regulatory compliance.

 ∫ Reviewing effectiveness of the 
Company’s system of internal control 
over financial reporting to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes has been 
done in accordance with applicable 
accounting standards and regulatory 
requirements.

 ∫ Make recommendation on matters 
that concern with engagement, 
re-engagement and removal of 
external auditors and service period 
and audit fees.

 ∫ Engaging independent advisors on 
specialised functions where it is 
deemed necessary. The Committee 
periodically reviews the independence, 
objectivity and effectiveness of audit 
process in compliance with applicable 
standards and best practices.

AUTHORITY
The committee has the explicit authority 
to investigate any matter including 
call any employee to be questioned at 
meetings of the committee within its 
terms and reference, obtain required 
resources, access to information, obtain 
external professional advice if necessary 
and invite outsiders with relevant 
experience to attend if necessary.
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MEETINGS 
The Committee held four meetings during 
the financial year under review. The 
attendance of the committee members 
at the meetings were as follows,

Meetings conducted for the period from 
01st April 2020 to 30th September 2020:

Name of the 
Member

Number of 
meetings

 held

Number of 
meetings 
attended

Mr. Lalith 
Karunaratne 
(Chairman)

2 2

Mr. K. M. 
Kandegedara

2 1

Mr. Harshith 
Dharmadasa

2 2

Meetings conducted for the period from 
01st December 2020 to 31st March 2021:

Name of the 
Member

Number of 
meetings

 held

Number of 
meetings 
attended

Mr. Jagath 
Dissanayake 
(Chairman)

2 2

Mr. K. M. 
Kandegedara

2 2

INTERNAL AUDIT
The Audit Committee monitored 
and reviewed the scope, extent and 
effectiveness of the activity of the 
Company’s Internal Audit Department 
that included updates on audit 
activities and achievements against 
the Company’s audit plan, advising 
corporate management to take 
precautionary measures on significant 
audit findings and assessment of 
resource requirements of the Internal 
Audit Department. The Audit Committee 
had provided the Chief Internal Auditor 
with necessary information throughout 
the year.
 
During the year, Audit Committee had 
also reviewed the internal audit plan and 
monitored the progress on a regular 
basis. The sections covered and the 
extensiveness of audits depends on the 
risk level of each section, with higher risk, 
being audited more frequently.

The Internal Audit Dept. comprises 
of 4 broad areas namely, Branch, 
Functional Department / Corporate 
Governance, Compliance, and Procedure 
Manual Review / Forensic and Fraud 
Investigations/ IT auditing. 

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
The Audit Committee reviewed and 
monitored the independence of the 
External Auditors and the objectivity and 
the effectiveness of the audit process 
and provided the Board of Directors with 
its recommendation to the shareholders 
on the reappointment of M/S KPMG 
as External Auditors for the financial 
year ended 31st March 2022 at the 
last Annual General Meeting. The Audit 
Committee recommended the scope and 
fees for audit and permitted non-audit 
services provided by M/S KPMG.

The Committee has received a 
declaration from M/S KPMG as required 
by the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, 
confirming that they do not have any 
relationship or interest in the Company, 
which may have a bearing on their 
independence within the meaning of 
the Code of Conduct and Ethics of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 
Lanka.

The Committee reviewed the external 
audit plan as well as management letters 
and followed up on issues raised. Private 
meetings were held with M/S KPMG to 
ensure that there were no restrictions on 
the scope of their audit and to discuss 
matters without the key Management 
Personnel.

Jagath Dissanayake
Chairman – Board Audit Committee

27th August 2021
Colombo, Sri Lanka

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
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BOARD REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

COMPOSITION
The Board Remuneration Committee appointed by the Board of Directors comprised 
of three Non-Executive Directors (Complied up to the retirement of 1 NED on 10th 
February 2021).

The Committee composition is as follows:

1. Mr. V. R. Ramanan - Chairman (NED)
2. Mr. P. M. L. K. Karunaratne - (IND/NED) - retired w.e.f. 30.09.2020
3. Mr. K. M. S. Kandegedara - (IND/NED) - retired w.e.f. 10.02.2021
4. Mr. N. J. K. Dissanayake (IND/NED) - joined w.ef. 30.11. 2020

The Chief Executive Officer and HR Manager attend the meetings by invitation to assist 
the Committee’s deliberations.

MEETINGS
During the year under review one meeting was held. The attendance of the members at 
this meeting is given below.

Name of Directors 15th May 2020

Mr. Victor Rajamanner Ramanan 

Mr. Peduru Merenna Lalith Kirethie Karunarathne 

Mr. Kande Mohottalalage Sunil Kandegedara 

The Company Secretary functions as the Secretary to the Committee.

REGULATIONS RELEVANT TO THE FUNCTIONS OF THE COMMITTEE
The role and functions of the Committee were identified as in previous years with 
reference to Direction No. 3 of 2008 of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka on Corporate 
Governance for Licensed Finance Companies and the Code of Best Practice on 
Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

SCOPE AND THE RESPONSIBILITIES
The scope includes the determining of the Remuneration Policies (i.e.salaries, 
allowances and other financial payments relating to Directors, CEO and Key 
Management Personnel (KMP) of the Company.

REPORTING TO THE BOARD
The Minutes of the Committee meetings were tabled at the Board meetings thereby 
providing Board members with access to same.

Victor Ramanan
Chairman – Remuneration Committee

27th August 2021
Colombo, Sri Lanka
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BOARD NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

COMPOSITION
The Nomination Committee of the Board of Directors presently consists of two Non-Executive Directors.

The composition of the Committee during financial year ended 31st March 2021 was

1. Mr. V. R. Ramanan - Chairman (NED)
2. Mr. P. M. L. K. Karunaratne - (IND/NED) - retired w.e.f. 30.09.2020
3. Mr. H. J. C. Perera - (ED)- ceased to function w.e.f. 31.08.2020
4. Mr. N. J. K. Dissanayake (IND/NED) - joined w.ef. 30.11. 2020

The Chief Executive Officer attends the meetings by invitation, while the Secretary to the Board functions as the Secretary of the 
Committee.

MEETINGS
During the financial year only one meeting was held. The attendance by the Committee members at each of this meeting is given 
below.

Name of Directors 12th May 
2020

30th July 
2020

31st August 
2020

30th September 
2020

Mr. Victor Rajamanner Ramanan    

Mr. Peduru Merenna Lalith Kirethie Karunarathne    

Mr. Hettiaratchige Jayantha Christopher Perera Indisposed Indisposed Ceased to function

The Committee reviewed the succession plan and assessed the fitness and propriety of Directors and Key Management Personnel 
(KMP).

The Committee also reviewed Job Descriptions (JDs) of Key Management Personnel and incorporated necessary changes to the JDs 
of the respective KMPs.

PROCEDURE
The Committee meets when required and acts within its mandate approved by the Board of Directors and makes recommendations 
to the Board for consideration.

PROFESSIONAL ADVICE
The Committee has the authority to seek external professional advice on matters under its purview.

REPORTING TO THE BOARD
The minutes of the Board Nomination Committee meetings are tabled at the Board meetings providing all Board members access to 
same.

Victor Ramanan
Chairman – Nomination Committee

27th August 2021
Colombo, Sri Lanka

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION REVIEW COMMITTEE REPORT

The Related Party Transactions Review Committee assist the Board to ensure that 
interest of shareholders as a whole are taken into account when entering into 
transactions with related parties.

COMPOSITION AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The Related Party Transactions Review Committee is appointed by the Board of 
Directors of the Company.

The Committee met five times during the year under review.

Name of Directors 30th 
January 

2020

29th 
May 

2020

30th 
September 

2020

18th 
December

 2020

23rd 
March 
2021

Mr. Peduru Merenna 
Lalith Kirethie 
Karunarathne

   Retired Retired

Mr. Hettiaratchige 
Jayantha Christopher 
Perera

Indisposed Indisposed Ceased to
 function

Ceased to
 function

Ceased to
 function

Mr. Kande 
Mohottalalage Sunil 
Kandegedara

    Retired

Mr. Jayaprakash Rudra     

Mr. S. M. Amerasekera
(COO/CEO) By Invitation

    

Mr. N. J. K. Dissanayake  

SCOPE OF THE COMMITTEE
Assist the Board of Directors in implementing, reviewing and overseeing policies and 
procedures relating to related party transactions of the Company and avoidance of 
conflicts of interests.

FUNCTIONS OF THE COMMITTEE
Reviewing in advance all proposed related party transactions of the Company.

Adopting policies and procedures to review related party transactions of the Company 
and overseeing existing policies and procedures.

Determining whether related party transactions that are to be entered in to by the 
Company require the approval of the Board or the shareholders of the Company.

Establishing guidelines to be followed by the Senior Management in respect of ongoing 
related party transactions.

Ensuring that no Director of the Company shall participate in any discussion of a 
proposed related party transaction for which he or she is related party, unless such 
Director is requested to do so by the Committee for providing information to the 
Committee.

Ensuring that immediate market 
disclosures and disclosures in the Annual 
Report are made complying to applicable 
rules and timely and detailed manner.

AUTHORITY
The Committee has the authority 
to discuss issues under its purview 
and report to the Board with 
recommendations enabling the Board to 
take final decision on the matter.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
DURING 2020/2021
Details of related party transactions are 
disclosed under note 40 on pages 149 to 
151.

STATEMENT
Committee has reviewed RPT 
transactions during the financial year 
and has communicated the comments 
observations to the board.

DECLARATION
The declaration by the Board of Directors 
that no related party transaction falling 
within the ambit of the listing rules was 
entered in to by the Company during 
2020/21.

Jagath Dissanayake
Chairman - Related Party Transactions 
Review Committee

27th August 2021
Colombo, Sri Lanka
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In the course of our daily operations the 
Company takes on a wide variety of risks. 
These risks arise from the products/
services we offer and the business 
activities that the Company is engaged 
in. An effective risk management is 
fundamental to the business activities of 
the Company.

The Board determines the risk appetite 
based on current and anticipated 
exposures and views on the economy 
in normal and stressed conditions. In 
effect, the risk appetite is designed to 
measure the market volatility and stress, 
which the Company can withstand, 
while meeting its financial goals and 
regulatory requirements. Also the many 
unprecedented challenging volatilities in 
the political, health and socio-economic 
issues that took place during the year 
under review, affected the operations of 
financial institutions.

Domestic Situation: Based on the 
statistics given by the Central Bank of 
Sri Lanka, real GDP grew by 1.5% in the 
third quarter of 2020. The industrial 
sector contributed 0.6% and the services 
sector 2.1% to the GDP growth in the 
third quarter of 2020. Unemployment 
rose to 5.8% in the third quarter of 2020 
from 4.8% in 2019. In October 2020, the 
deficit in the trade account narrowed to 
514 Million USD from 838 Million USD 
in October 2019. Earnings from tourism 
in January to October 2020 recorded 
a decline of 66.1% reflecting partly 
the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic 
situation. Many industries such as 
tourism, construction and entertainment 
was affected due to the pandemic. 
However many essential areas such 
as education and industries such as 

tourism and foreign worker remittances will continue to be affected during 2021. In 
the meantime the ban on non-essential goods will have an impact on trading activities 
while restrictions on vehicle imports will highly impact the local finance companies. 
Though the concessions provided by the regulator on statutory reserves and low 
interest regimes seems a positive move, less activities in local markets will impact the 
turnover of the financial products. While vehicle registrations have declined by more 
than 75% there is less demand for new leasing business. While the interest rates on 
deposits are coming down, the public will try out alternate investment opportunities.

The Board has delegated the authority to focus on the management of risk to the 
Integrated Risk Management Committee, in turn IRMC updates the Board every quarter. 
All the risks related to various departments are taken in to consideration at the IRMC 
and ALCO Committee.

Risk 
Identification

Risk Monitoring & 
Review

Risk Assessment

Risk 
Communication

Risk Mitigation & 
Control

The Risk Identification, Assessment, Control and Review are a cyclic process and Risk 
Communication, current and reliable information flow, both internal and outward is a 
pre-requisite for reliable risk management output. All risk information received and 
collected are analysed in order to ascertain the probability and impact of the identified 
risks and act based on the severity . 

Risk information reaching the risk owners and relevant management personel in 
a timely manner is vital for taking rectification action and initiating required risk 
mitigating action. The Management is appraised of the risks on a monthly basis and 
IRMC meetings are held on a quarterly basis unless otherwise a situation arises that 
IRMC should meet to discuss an emerging material risk.

Organisational level risks related to anti money laundering(AML) and Counter Terrorism 
Financing (CTF) are analysed on a quarterly basis and reported to IRMC.

The key risk indicators (KRI) pertaining to Credit, Market and Operational risks are 
identified and risk appetites are set by the Management by way of tolerance limits. The 
key risk indicators, its values and behaviour trends are reported and discussed in length 
at IRMC meetings.
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Board of 
Directors

Board Audit Committee

Board Integrated Risk 
Management Committee

Board Remuneration 
Committee

Board Nomination 
Committee

Board Related Party 
Transaction Committee

Board 
Subcommittees

Chief Executive 
Officer

Corporate 
Management

Internal Audit

Integrated Risk 
Management Unit

The directive for risk management is descending from the Board of Directors which has 
a strategic view for risk management activities of the Company. They are responsible 
for upholding of far sighted risk management mechanisms and orderly implementation 
of the risk framework in the Company. The Board approves the policies, strategies and 
systems and operational approach for risk management. 

 The Board Integrated Risk Management Committee and the corporate management of 
the Company carry out the efficient implementation of the risk management function 
in the Company. 

INTEGRATED RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The Board Integrated Risk Management Committee(BIRMC) is the Board subcommittee 
responsible for overseeing the risk management function in line with the Board 
approved policies and strategies. They also recommend approval of required and 
relevant policies for integrated risk management to the Board and provide instructions 
of identified risks. The Committee interacts with the CEO, Board Audit Committee and 
risk related activities. Besides the Board representatives, BIRMC consists of CEO and 
all Heads of Divisions personnel covering the key risk areas of the Company covering 
Credit, Liquidity, Market, operations including Deposits, Business, Reputational risks.

INTERNAL AUDIT
Annual planning for the internal audit takes place in consideration of the risks faced by 
branches, processes and departments. The annual plan presented and approved by the 
audit committee form the basis of the audit operations for the year. Progress of audit 
activities are monitored quarterly at audit committee level.

General audits conducted include credit audits, department level audits, system 
audits, branch audits and field audits for Micro Finance operations. Audit findings are 
discussed with the management and rectification actions are taken. Any audit query 
which is critical is taken up immediately at the point of audit itself. Summary findings 
are tabled at the Audit Committee. All audits are subject to follow up. All branches are 
required to sign off on rectification of audit findings and are reviewed at the time of 
the following audit, while the other audit queries are followed up by the auditors for 

successful rectification.  In addition, 
decisions taken at the audit committee 
are separately followed up and a feedback 
on the status is given at the subsequent 
Audit Committee meeting thereby 
ensuring all audit issues are resolved.

The Company is exposed to risks which 
have the potential to impact the Company’s 
ability to achieve agreed strategic goals 
including financial performance. There are 
certain types of risks that can be managed 
by the Company, there are some other risks 
that need to be monitored to assess their 
impact.

Risks that can be monitored but cannot 
be managed by the Company include:
- Regulatory Risk/Legal Risk
- Political Risk 
- Environment Risk
- Inflation Risk

Risks that are managed by the Company 
include:
- Credit Risk
- Market Risk
- Operational Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Business Risk 
- Technology Risk
- Compliance Risk
- Reputational Risk

Credit Risk
Credit Risk is the risk of potential 
loss from the failure of a customer to 
honour its contractual obligations to the 
Company. Credit risk may result in the 
loss of the principal amount and interest 
with adverse implications on profits due 
to the impairment provisions or write-off 
of non-performing facilities.

Company Credit Risk Management Policy 
is not to eliminate the credit risk but 
to accept the risk with certain limits. 
All credit exposure limits are approved 
within a delegated credit approval 
authority framework. The credit division 
has developed a credit scoring system 
considering the risk indicators. 
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Market Risk
Market Risk is the risk of loss arising 
from movements in interest rates, 
foreign exchange risk, commodity prices, 
equity and debt prices. Our objective in 
risk management is to obtain the best 
balance of risk and return whilst meeting 
the customer requirements.

Interest rate risk is the volatility in 
interest sensitive products and the 
susceptibility of the future income and 
expense levels to the changes in line with 
the market interest rates.

Operational Risk
The identification of operational risk 
factor is very important to our Company 
because the main business activities of 
the Company are associated with the 
highly volatile financial industry. The risk 
identification process is mainly gathered 
through the Risk Appetite statement 
provided by the product owners and the 
internal audit functions of the Company.

When operational risks materialise, 
it often causes other risks such as 
reputational, compliance, credit, market 
and liquidity risks etc.

The measurement criteria are set with 
the risk factors identified by the product 
owner and the internal audit function 
with the assistance of Integrated Risk 
Management Committee of the Company. 
The Company considers the selected risk 
factors as primary risk warning indicators 
of Company’s entire operational activities. 
The Key Risk Indicators(KRIs) and audit 
findings are used to identify and assess 
these risk events. KRIs are categorised 
as pre operational risk causes in each 
business process. The KRIs are objective 
risk measurements which allow trends 
to be monitored and can be used to 
anticipate problems in advance.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the potential loss of 
earning and/or erosion of capital arising 
from the inability to meet the Company’s 
obligations in a timely manner as and 

when they fall due. Liquidity risk can also 
be identified as the risk we will face by 
not having adequate financial resources.

The Company has clearly articulated 
a liquidity risk tolerance level that is 
appropriate for its business strategy 
and its role in the financial system. The 
senior management of the Company is 
mainly responsible to develop a strategy, 
policies and practices to manage liquidity 
risk in accordance with the risk tolerance 
levels decided by the Board appointed 
committees and to ensure that the 
Company maintains sufficient liquidity 
position in line with the set requirements.

The ALCO holds overall responsibility for 
ensuring that the Company maintains 
adequate liquidity levels to fulfil its 
contractual obligations.

Business Risk 
Business risk is a part of strategic risk 
which arises from the competitiveness 
within the financial services industry. 
As is the case in the present context, 
intense competition in the industry 
together with the volatilities in 
the macroeconomic environment, 
particularly, the changes in policy interest 
rates and import duty levels, adversely 
impact business volumes and market 
share and in turn, the profitability of 
the Company. Business volume risk is 
assessed based on the variance between 
budgeted disbursements and actual 
disbursements.

Technology Risk
Technology risk can end up in financial 
loss, disruption or damage to the 
reputation of the Company due to 
unauthorised access to systems or data/
information, failures of the existing 
information technology systems and 
use of obsolete information technology 
systems. Any Company which relies 
heavily on information system is 
vulnerable to system break-downs and 
various types of difficulties. The Company 
uses modern information systems in 
all its main activities in order to provide 

a better service to customers and to 
improve the quality of management 
information system. The Company has 
adopted all the available precautionary 
measures at present. Password and 
access control policies have been 
implemented to authenticate the user 
access and necessary validation and 
verification functions are activated at the 
information entry level.

In order to overcome unforeseen events 
like a disaster we have developed a 
disaster recovery site and as planned in 
our overall Business Continuity Plan that 
has been rolled out. A disaster recovery 
site has been established in a separate 
geographical area which has capabilities 
to continue operations in the event the 
primary site becomes unavailable.

Compliance Risk
The compliance of the Company with 
relevant regulations and laws including 
directions and regulations issued by the 
Central Bank of Sri Lanka and Colombo 
Stock Exchange is monitored by the 
Compliance officer.

The impact of compliance risk can 
be rather far-reaching. It could even 
lead to loss of earnings and business 
opportunities, tarnish the company 
image and imminent lawsuits.

Reputational Risk
Reputational risk is an event or incident 
that could adversely impact on the 
corporate brand. Reputation is always 
linked to how the Company operations 
are carried out and how effectively 
the Company can mitigate risks in its 
businesses including credit, liquidity, 
market, business, reputational and other 
operational risks. Reputational risk may 
also arise from a failure to comply with 
environmental and social standards. A 
list of legal and regulatory compliance is 
tabled at monthly Board meetings. The 
Company insures deposit liabilities in a 
deposit insurance scheme operated by 
the Monetary Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE AFFAIRS 
OF THE COMPANY

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Board of Directors of Nation Lanka 
Finance PLC present their report on 
the affairs of the Company together 
with the Audited Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Group for the year 
ended 31st March 2021.

The Report contains pertinent 
information and disclosures required 
under the Companies Act  No. 07 of 
2007, the Listing Rules of the Colombo  
Stock Exchange, the Finance Companies 
Act, recommended Best Practices 
of Corporate Governance and the 
requirements of the Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal business activities of the 
Group are Lending including Financial 
Leases, Hire Purchase, Micro Finance, 
Loans, Pawning, Financial Services 
and Trading in Real Estate & Property 
Development. There were no significance 
changes in the nature of the principal 
activities of the Company and the Group 
during the Financial year under review.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The Financial Statements of the 
Company and the Group are given on 
Pages 92 to 176 of this Annual Report.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS & 
PERFORMANCE
The Chairman’s Review provides an 
overall assessment of the Company’s 
Operations and Performance during the 
Financial year under review on Page 14.

MISSION STATEMENT & CORPORATE 
GOALS
The Vision and Mission Statement of the 
Company are given on Page 2.

BRANCH NETWORK
The Company has 25 Branches/Service 
centres in different parts of the Island 
and the Location map is given on 
Page 31. 

INVESTMENTS
Details of Investments held by the 
Company are described in Note 15, 16 
and 17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group expenditure on the acquisition of 
fixed assets during the year amounted 
to Rs. 11.199 Million and information 
relating to movement in Fixed Assets is 
given in Note 24 to the Accounts

STATED CAPITAL
The Stated Capital of the Company as at 
31st March 2021 was Rs.1,224,042,009/- 
representing 1,353,792,606 Ordinary 
Shares. The structure of the Stated 
Capital is given in Note 39 to the 
Accounts.         

ISSUANCE OF DEBENTURES 
The Company issued 250,000 Unlisted, 
Unsecured, Redeemable, Non-
Convertible, Subordinated Debentures, 
for a period of Five years at the rate of 
Rs.1,000/- per Debenture and raised 
a sum of Rs.250,000,000/-. On 6th 
September 2018, the Company redeemed 
100,000 Debentures to the value of 
Rs. 100,000,000/-.

MAJOR SHAREHOLDINGS
The number of shares and the 
percentage of the respective holdings 
of the 20 Major Shareholders of the 
Company as at 20th March 2020 and 
31st March 2021 are listed on Page 182 
under the title “Shareholder and Investor 
Information”.

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
As at 31/03/2021 there were 13,643 
Registered Shareholders. The Public 
Holding as at the said date was 24.19% 
representing 13,640 Shareholders.

The Company complies with the Minimum 
Public Holding Requirement Rule 7.13.1 
(a) under Option 5 as at 31st March 2021 
as per the details set out below;

Float Adjusted Market Capitalisation - 
Rs. 229,237,702/-

Public Holding Percentage - 24.19%

Total Number of Public Shareholders - 
13,640

The distribution, categories and location 
of shareholders are indicated on Page 
183 under “Shareholders and Investors” 
information.

DIRECTORATE
The Members of the Board during the 
Financial year under review were as 
follows:-

Mr. V R Ramanan             

Mr. J Rudra   

Mr. N J K Dissanayake  
(Joined w.e.f. 30th November 2020)

Mr. U H Dharmadasa 
(Retired w.e.f. 22nd December 2020)

Mr. H J C Perera 
(Ceased to function w.e.f. 30th August 2020)

Mr. P M L K Karunaratne 
(Retired w.e.f. 30th September 2020)

Mr. K M S Kandegedara 
(Retired w.e.f. 10th February 2021)
 
The Profile of the Board of Directors of 
the Company are given in Pages 3 to 4.

RESIGNATION / RETIREMENT OF 
DIRECTORS
Mr. Jayantha Perera, the Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO) of the Company ceased to 
function as the CEO with effect from 16th 
June 2020 and as a Director w.e.f. 31st 
August 2020, due to his health condition. 

The following Directors retired in 
complying with the Sec. 4(2) of 
the Finance Companies (Corporate 
Governance) Direction No.03 of 2008 of 
the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

Mr. U H Dharmadasa retired on 22-12-
2020 

Mr. P M L K Karunaratne retired on 30-
09-2020 

Mr. K M S Kandegedara retired on 10-02-
2021
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The Board wishes to place on record their appreciation for the valuable services 
rendered by the above Directors during their tenure in Office. 

Consequent to the above retirements the Company could not comply with the 
Corporate Governance Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR
Mr. N J K Dissanayake, was appointed as a Non – Executive / Independent Director with 
effect from 30th November 2020 and designated as the Senior Director. 

RETIREMENT &  ELECTION OF DIRECTOR
In accordance with Article 95 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. N J K 
Dissanayake, retires and is eligible for election.

The Nomination Committee has recommended the election of Mr. N J K Dissanayake.

DIRECTORS & CEO’S SHAREHOLDING
The Directors and CEO’s Shareholdings at the beginning and end of the Financial year 
are set out below

As at 31-03-2021 20-03-2020

Mr. V R Ramanan 751,556,976 751,556,976

Mr. J Rudra 38,905,422 38,905,422

Mr. N J K Dissanayake  -     -    

Mr. U H Dharmadasa              235,861,375        235,861,375

Mr. H J C Perera                          8,725,000 17,600,000

Mr. P M L K Karunaratne                     -     -    

Mr. K M S Kandegedara                     -     -    

Mr. S M Amerasekera (CEO)             -  -

DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION   
The remuneration paid to the Executive and Non-Executive Directors during the 
financial year under review is given in Note 10 to the financial statements. 

DECLARATIONS BY INDEPENDENT / NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Non-Executive / Independent Director has submitted signed declaration 
confirming his independent status in compliance with Rules 7.10.3 of the Colombo 
Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Consequent  to  the  retirement  of  
Directors  Mr. N J K Dissanayake was 
appointed to the Audit Committee and  
he functions as the Chairman of the 
Committee. 

The report of the Audit Committee is 
given on Page 71.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee was 
restructured consequent to  the  
retirement of Directors and currently 
comprise of Mr. V R Ramanan  and   Mr. N 
J K Dissanayake   of   whom Mr. Ramanan, 
functions as the Chairman of the 
Committee. 

DIVIDENDS
The Board of Directors do not 
recommend the payment of a dividend 
for the Shareholders for financial year 
under review.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
REVIEW COMMITTEE
The Related Party Transaction Review 
Committee was restructured consequent 
to  the  retirement of Directors and 
currently comprise of Mr. N J K 
Dissanayake and Mr. J Rudra, of whom Mr. 
Dissanayake functions as the Chairman 
of the Committee

The Board of Directors has given the 
following statement in respect of 
the Related Party Transactions. The 
Related Party Transactions of the 
Company during the financial year have 
been reviewed by the Related Party 
Transactions Review Committee and are 
in compliance with the Section 09 of the 
CSE Listing Rules. 

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE AFFAIRS OF THE 
COMPANY
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Consequent to the restructure of the 
Nomination Committee it comprises 
of Mr. V R Ramanan,   Mr.  J Rudra  and 
Mr. N J K Dissanayake, of whom Mr. V R 
Ramanan functions as the Chairman of 
the Committee.

GOING CONCERN
The Board of Directors of the Company 
are satisfied that the Company has 
adequate resources to continue its 
operations in the foreseeable future. 
Therefore, the Company continues 
to adopt a going concern concept in 
preparing the accounts of the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
The Board of Directors has taken 
adequate precautions to ensure that 
the Company and the Group does not 
engage in any activities which could be 
detrimental to the environment.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board of Directors has structured 
proper systems and controls to identify 
probable risk. These systems are 
periodically evaluated and reviewed by 
the Board through the Integrated Risk 
Management Committee to ensure 
smooth functioning. Remedial measures 
also have been implemented to mitigate 
risk.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS
The Board has overall responsibility 
for the Company’s Systems of Internal 
Control. The Company’s internal control 
and check systems have been designed 
to provide the Directors with reasonable 
assurance that the Assets are protected, 
safeguarded and transactions are 
authorised thereby ensuring that errors 
and irregularities are either prevented 
or detected within a timely period, whilst 
ensuring that Corporate Governance is 
properly practiced and adhered to.

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT ON 
INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING
The Board has issued a statement 
on the internal control mechanism of 
the Company as per Section 10 (2) 
(b) of Finance Companies (Corporate 
Governance) Direction No.03 of 2008. 
The said statement which forms an 
integral part of the Annual Report of the 
Board of Directors on the Affairs of the 
Company is given on pages 80 to 83 The 
Board has obtained an Assurance Report 
from the Independent Auditors on the 
Directors’ Statement on Internal Control 
over Financial Reporting as referred to in 
page 85.

SUBSIDIARIES
The Principal activities and the 
performance of the subsidiary is set out 
in Page 100 The Company currently has 
01 Subsidiary maintained to venture into  
different lines of business activity.

CONTRIBUTIONS TO CHARITIES
The Company has not contributed to 
charities during the   financial year under 
review.

INTERESTS REGISTER
An Interests Register is maintained, in 
compliance with the Companies Act 
No.07 of 2007. 

The particulars of the entries made 
in connection with the General 
Disclosure in terms of Section 192(2) 
of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007 are 
given in Note 40 under Related Party 
transactions.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 
PERIOD
Subsequent to the balance Sheet no 
circumstance has arisen which require 
adjustments to the accounts after the 
reporting period.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTOR’S 
RESPONSIBILITIES
The Directors Responsibilities in 
compliance with the requirements in 
preparation of financial statements are 
set out in Page 84.

STOCK MARKET INFORMATION
Information relating to earnings, 
dividends, net assets per share, trading 
price, are given on Page 184.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
The details of the contingent liabilities 
are disclosed in Note 44 to the Financial 
Statements.

STATUTORY PAYMENTS
The Directors, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief are satisfied that all 
statutory payments have been made up 
to date or provided for same.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
There has been no change in the 
Accounting Policies adopted by the 
Company in preparation of Financial 
Statements during the Financial Year 
under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Board of Directors place great 
emphasis on good Corporate Governance 
practices and principles and ensures that 
the Company adheres with the codes of 
Best Practice on Corporate Governance. 
The compliance of Corporate Governance 
by the Company is set out on Page 41.

CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICE 
ADDRESS 
The Company changed its Registered 
Office Address to No.690, Galle Road, 
Colombo – 03, with effect from 03rd 
November 2020. 

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE AFFAIRS OF THE 
COMPANY
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS
Ten Board Meetings were held during 
the financial year under review. Schedule 
of Directors attendance at the Board 
meetings and attendance of Board Sub 
Committee meetings are presented 
under the Corporate Governance Report 
in this Annual Report on Pages 41 to 69.

EQUITABLE TREATMENT TO 
SHAREHOLDERS
The Company has at all times ensured 
that all Shareholders are treated 
equitably.

AUDITORS
The accounts   for   the   year have 
been audited by M/s KPMG, Chartered 
Accountants, who retire and are eligible 
for re-appointment. The Directors 
recommend their re-appointment.

The Auditors were paid a sum of 
Rs. 2,750,000 as Audit Fees and Rs. 
450,000 as Non Audit Fees by the 
Company for the financial year under 
review. As far as the Board is aware the 
Auditors do not have any relationship with 
the Company other than carrying out the 
External Audit. 

AUDITOR’S REPORT
The Auditor’s Report on the Financial 
Statements of the Company and the 
Group is given on Page 88.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
The Annual General Meeting is scheduled 
to be held on 30th September 2021 at 
10.00 a.m  via online. The Notice of the 
meeting is given on Page 185. 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

V Ramanna
Chairman

J Rudra
Director 

Corporate Arcade Ltd 
Chairman Director Company Secretaries

27th August 2021

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE AFFAIRS OF THE 
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In terms of Section 150(1), 151, 152(1) 
& 153 of the Companies Act No.07 of 
2007, the Directors are responsible to 
ensure compliance with the requirements 
set out therein to prepare Financial 
Statements for each financial year giving 
a true and fair view of the state of the 
affairs of the Company and the Group 
as at the end of financial year and the 
Financial Performance of the Company 
and the Group for the financial year. The 
Directors are also responsible, in terms 
of Section 148 for ensuring that proper 
accounting records are maintained to 
disclose with reasonable accuracy, the 
financial position and to enable the 
preparation of Financial Statements. The 
Financial Reporting System was reviewed 
by the Board through the Management 
Accounts submitted monthly at Board 
meetings.

The Board to the best of their knowledge 
confirms that proper books of account 
have been maintained and have also 
taken reasonable steps to ensure the 
accuracy and reliability of accounting 
records and accepts responsibility for the 
integrity and objectivity of the Financial 
Statements prepared and presented 
in this Annual Report. The Directors 
confirm that in preparing the Financial 
Statements, appropriate accounting 
policies have been selected and applied 
consistently so that the form and 
substance of transactions are properly 
reflected. The Financial Statements 
provide the information required by the 
Companies Act, Listing Rules of the 
Colombo Stock Exchange and the Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards based on 
SLFRS.

The Directors are of the opinion, based on 
their knowledge that adequate resources 
are available to support the Company on 
a going concern basis in the foreseeable 
future. These Financial Statements have 
been prepared on that basis.    

The Directors have taken reasonable 
measures to maintain a sound system 
of internal control to safeguard 
Shareholder’s investments and the 
Company’s assets to ensure continuity 
of operations and in that concept have 
instituted appropriate systems of internal 
control with a view to prevent and detect 
fraud and other irregularities. 

The external Auditors, M/s. KPMG, were 
re-appointed in accordance with a 
resolution passed at the last Annual 
General Meeting, and they were provided 
with every opportunity to undertake the 
inspections they considered appropriate 
to enable them to form their opinion on 
the Financial Statements. The Report of 
the Auditors shown on pages 88 to 91 
sets out their responsibilities in relation 
to the Financial Statements.

COMPLIANCE REPORT    
The Directors confirm that to the 
best of their knowledge, all Statutory 
Payments relating to employees and the 
Government that were due in respect of 
the Company and its Subsidiaries as at 
the Balance Sheet date have been paid 
or provided for, in arriving at the financial 
results for the year under review.

The Directors are of the view that they 
have discharged their obligations as set 
out in this Statement.

By Order of the Board

Corporate Arcade Ltd
Company Secretaries

27th August 2021
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 Responsibility In line with the section 
10(2) (b) of the Finance Companies 
(Corporate Governance) Direction No 
03 of 2008 as amended by the Finance 
Companies Direction No 06 of 2013, the 
Board of Directors present this report 
on system of Internal Controls over 
the financial reporting. The Board of 
Directors is responsible for the adequacy 
and effectiveness of system of internal 
controls of Nation Lanka Finance PLC. 
It has been designed to manage the 
Company’s key operational areas whilst 
keeping its associated risk elements 
within acceptable levels when deciding 
the policies and achieving the business 
objectives of the Company, rather than 
eliminating the total risk of failure. 

Accordingly, the system of internal 
control may not provide an absolute 
assurance against material 
misstatements of management, financial 
information, records or against the 
possible frauds and malpractices .Hence, 
only a reasonable assurance could be 
placed on the efficiency of the internal 
control procedures.

The Board has established a continuous 
process of identifying, evaluating 
and managing the significant risks 
encountered by the Company and this 
process includes strengthening the 
system of internal controls as and when 
there are changes to the business 
environment or regulatory guidelines. 

The process is regularly reviewed by the 
Board. The management assist the Board 
in implementation of the Board’s policies 
and procedures on risks and controls by 
identifying and assessing the associated 
risks encountered by the Company. Based 
on this process, the Board is of the view 
that the existing system of internal 
control is sound and adequate to provide 
reasonable assurance that the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements are in accordance 
with the relevant accounting principles 
and regulatory requirements.

Key Features of the process adopted 
in Reviewing the Effectiveness of the 
Systems of Internal Control. 
Steps have been taken by the Board of 
Directors to ensure effective internal 
control mechanisms and they are given 
below. 
 ∫ Sub-committees are established 

to assist the Board in ensuring the 
effectiveness of the Company’s daily 
operation in agreement with the 
corporate objectives, strategies, annual 
budget, policies and procedures that 
have been approved by the Board. 

 ∫ The Internal Audit Division of the 
Company checks for compliance 
with policies and procedures and 
the effectiveness of the Internal 
Control System on an on-going basis 
highlighting the significant findings in 
respect of any non-compliance. Audits 
are carried out on all divisions and 
Branches to provide an independent 
and objective reporting. Finding of the 
Internal Audit Division are submitted 
to the Audit Committee for review at 
their meetings. The annual audit plan 
is reviewed and approved by the Audit 
Committee. 

 ∫ The Audit Committee reviews the 
internal control issues identified by 
the Internal Audit Division and reviews 
the adequacy and the effectiveness 
of the Internal Control System. The 
salient points of the Audit Committee 
meetings are tabled at the Board 
meetings. 

 ∫ A Board paper is also submitted on 
a monthly basis stating the non-
compliance issues with regard to the 
rules and guidelines, if any. 

 ∫ Consequent to full convergence of Sri 
Lanka accounting standards with Sri 
Lanka Financial Reporting Standards, 
the Company is in the process of 
implementing required controls and 
adjustment to the financial reporting 
process. 

CONFIRMATION 
Based on the above, the Board of 
Directors confirm that the financial 
reporting system of the Company 
is designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and preparation 
of Financial Statements are made in 
accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards and regulatory requirements 
of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka and 
Colombo Stock Exchange. 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Victor Ramanan 
Chairman 

Jagath Dissanayake
Chairman – Audit Committee 

Suresh M. Amerasekera 
Chief Executive Officer

27th August 2021
Colombo.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
NATION LANKA FINANCE PLC
Report on the Directors’ Statement 
on Internal Control 
We were engaged by the Board of 
Directors of Nation Lanka Finance PLC 
(“the Company”) to provide assurance 
on the Directors’ Statement on Internal 
Control (“Statement”) included in the 
annual report for the year ended 31 
March 2021.

Management’s responsibility
Management is responsible for the 
preparation and presentation of the 
Statement in accordance with the 
“Guidance for Directors of License 
Finance Company on the Directors’ 
Statement on Internal Control” issued in 
compliance with the section 10 (2) (b) 
of the Finance Companies (Corporate 
Governance) Direction no. 3 of 2008, by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Sri Lanka.

Our Independence and Quality 
Control
We have complied with the independence 
and other ethical requirement of the Code 
of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka, which is 
founded on fundamental principles 
of integrity, objectivity, professional 
competence and due care, confidentiality 
and professional behaviour.

The firm applies Sri Lanka Standard 
on Quality Control 1 and accordingly 
maintains a comprehensive system of 
quality control including documented 
policies and procedures regarding 
compliance with ethical requirements, 
professional standards and applicable 
legal and regulatory requirements.

Auditor’s Responsibilities 
Our responsibility is to assess whether 
the Statement is both supported by 
the documentation prepared by or for 
directors and appropriately reflects the 
process the directors have adopted in 
reviewing the design and effectiveness 
of the internal control of the License 
Finance Company.

We conducted our engagement in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Standard on 
Assurance Engagements (SLSAE) 3051, 
Assurance Report for License Finance 
Company on Directors’ Statement on 
Internal Control, issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. 

This standard requires that the auditor’s 
plan and perform procedures to obtain 
limited assurance about whether 
Management has prepared, in all material 
respects, the Statement on Internal 
Control.

For purposes of this engagement, we are 
not responsible for updating or reissuing 
any reports, nor have we, in the course of 
this engagement, performed an audit or 
review of the financial information.

Summary of work performed
Our engagement has been conducted 
to assess whether the Statement is 
both supported by the documentation 
prepared by or for directors and 
appropriately reflects the process the 
directors have adopted in reviewing 
the system of internal control for the 
Company. 

To achieve this objective, appropriate 
evidence has been obtained by 
performing the following procedures:
(a) Enquired the Directors to obtain 

an understanding of the process 
defined by the Board of Directors 
for their review of the design and 
effectiveness of internal control and 
compared their understanding to the 
Statement made by the Directors in 
the Annual Report.

(b) Reviewed the documentation 
prepared by the Management to 
support their Statement made.

(c)  Related the Statement made by the 
Directors to our knowledge of the 
Company obtained during the audit 
of the Financial Statements.
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(d) Reviewed the minutes of the 
meetings of the Board of Directors 
and of relevant Board Committees.

(e) Considered whether the Directors’ 
Statement on Internal Control covers 
the year under review and that 
adequate processes are in place 
to identify any significant matters 
arising. 

(f) Obtained written representations 
from Directors on matters material 
to the Statement on Internal Control 
where other sufficient appropriate 
audit evidence cannot reasonably be 
expected to exist.

SLSAE 3051 does not require us to 
consider whether the Statement covers 
all risks and controls, or to form an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s risk and control procedures. 
SLSAE 3051 also does not require us 
to consider whether the processes 
described to deal with material internal 
control aspects of any significant 
problems disclosed in the annual report 
will, in fact, remedy the problems.

The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, having regard to the 
auditor’s understanding of the nature of 
the Company, the event or transaction in 
respect of which the Statement has been 
prepared.

We believe that the evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our conclusion.

Auditor’s conclusion
Based on the procedures performed, 
nothing has come to our attention 
that causes us to believe that the 
Statement included in the annual report 
is inconsistent with our understanding of 
the process, the Board of Directors have 
adopted in the review of the design and 
effectiveness of internal control of the 
License Finance Company.

Chartered Accountants 
Colombo, Sri Lanka 

27th August 2021
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To the Shareholders of Nation Lanka 
Finance PLC
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements 
of Nation Lanka Finance PLC (“the 
Company”) and the consolidated financial 
statements of the Company and its 
subsidiary (“the Group”), which comprise 
the statement of financial position as 
at 31 March 2021, and the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity 
and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information set out on pages 
98 to 170 of the Annual Report.

In our opinion, the accompanying 
financial statements of the Company and 
the Group give a true and fair view of the 
financial position of the Company and the 
Group as at 31 March 2021, and of their 
financial performance and cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards 
(SLAuSs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the 
Group in accordance with the Code of 

Ethics issued by CA Sri Lanka (“Code of 
Ethics”) and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty in relation to 
going concern 
We draw attention to Note 42.7 and 50 of 
the financial statements, which indicates 
that the Company has not complied 
with the Capital Adequacy requirements 
(Direction No 03 of 2018) and Minimum 
Core Capital (Direction No 02 of 2017) as 
at the reporting date.

Further the Company has incurred 
continuous losses over the years 
accumulated as at 31 March 2021 
amounting to Rs. 310,622,889. The core 
capital level of the Company is currently 
at a deficit of Rs.1,300Mn as at 31 March 
2021, against the minimum regulatory 
core capital of 2,000 million resulting in 
non-compliance with the Minimum Core 
Capital Direction No 02 of 2017. The Total 
capital adequacy ratio of the Company 
is currently at 3.98% as at 31 March 
2021 against the minimum regulatory 
requirement of 10.50% resulting in non-
compliance with the Capital Adequacy 
Direction No 03 of 2018. These conditions 
cast a substantial doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern.

In order to apply the going concern 
basis of accounting the Group/ the 

Company has to satisfy the regulatory 
requirements with the concurrence of the 
Central Bank of Sri Lanka. Our opinion is 
not modified in respect of this matter.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 9 and 44 to 
the financial statements. The company 
has reversed a provision for VAT on 
Financial Services  (“FSVAT”),Nation 
Building Tax (“NBT”) and Debt Repayment 
Leavy (“DRL”) liability of Rs.67Mn 
during the year which relating to the 
year of assessment 2018/19. The said 
liability has been reversed based on an 
amended return filed with department of 
Inland Revenue. However, the amended 
return is still under the review of Inland 
Revenue department. No finality has 
been reached on the final liability based 
on the amended return as at 31st March 
2021. The Management of the view that 
there is no additional liability to the 
financial statements. However, no final 
resolution has been made on this with 
the tax authorities yet. The ultimate 
outcome of the matter cannot presently 
be determined, and no provision for any 
liability that may result has been made in 
these financial statements. Our opinion is 
not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters 
that, in our professional judgment, 
were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the 
current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit 
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of the financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. In addition to the matter 
described in the material uncertainty 
related to going concern section, we 
have determined the matters described 
below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report.

1.  Impairment allowance for  loans 
and receivables  
Refer accounting policies in Note 3.2.7 to 
the financial statements “Identification 
and measurement of impairment ”, Note 
2.6.1 to the financial statements “Critical 
accounting judgements and estimates”, 
Note 11 and 18 to the financial 
statements “Loans and advances”.

Risk Description
As described in note 18, the Company has 
estimated impairment provision for loan 
and advances of Rs. 1,884,661,764 as at 
31st March 2021.

Allowance for expected credit losses is a 
key audit matter due to the significance 
of the loans and receivables balance to 
the financial statements and the inherent 
complexity and judgment involved in  the 
Company’s Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 
models used to measure ECL allowances. 
These models are reliant on data and 
a number of estimates including the 
impact of multiple economic scenarios 
and other assumptions such as defining 
a significant increase in credit risk (SICR).

SLFRS 9 Financial Instruments requires 
the Company to measure ECLs on a 
forward-looking basis reflecting a range 
of economic conditions.  Post-model 
adjustments are made by the Company 
to address known ECL model limitations 
or emerging trends in the loan portfolios. 
We exercise significant judgement in 
challenging the economic scenarios 
used and the judgmental post model 
adjustments the Company applies to 
the ECL results. The Company’s criteria 
selected to identify a SICR are key areas 
of judgement within the Company’s ECL 
methodology as these criteria determine 

if a forward-looking 12 month or lifetime 
allowance is recorded.

The COVID-19 pandemic has meant that 
assumptions regarding the economic 
outlook are more uncertain which, 
combined with varying government 
responses, increases the level of judgement 
required by the Company in calculating 
the ECL, and the associated audit risk. 
Additionally, allowances for individually 
significant loans exceeding specific 
thresholds are individually assessed by the 
Company. We exercise significant judgment 
in challenging the assessment of specific 
allowances based on the expected future 
cash repayments and estimated proceeds 
from the value of the collateral held by the 
Company in respect of the loans.

The disclosures regarding the Company’s 
application of SLFRS 9 are key to 
explaining the key judgements and 
material inputs to the SLFRS 9 ECL 
results.

Our audit procedures included;
Testing key controls of the Company in 
relation to:
 ∫ Reconciliation of the data used in 

the ECL calculation process to gross 
balances recorded within the general 
ledger as well as source systems;

 ∫ IT system controls which record loans 
days past due, and non-performing 
loan classification. 

Assessing impairment for 
individually significant customers  
We selected a sample (based on 
quantitative thresholds) of larger 
customers where impairment indicators 
have been identified by management 
and assessed as higher risk or impaired, 
and a sample of other loans, focusing 
on larger exposures assessed by 
the Company as showing signs of 
deterioration, or in areas of emerging 
risk (assessed against external market 
conditions and in particular considering 
the impacts of COVID-19).

We obtained management’s assessment 
of the recoverability of these exposures 

(including individual impairment 
calculations) and assessed whether 
individual impairment provisions, or lack 
of, were appropriate. 

This included the following procedures 
 ∫ Challenging recoverability of the 

forecasted cash flows by comparing 
them to the historical performance of 
the customers and the expected future 
performance where applicable;

 ∫ Assessing external collateral 
valuer’s credentials and comparing 
external valuations to values used in 
management’s impairment assessments

 ∫ Exercising our judgment, our 
procedures included using our 
understanding of relevant industries 
and the macroeconomic environment 
and comparing with the data and 
assumptions used by the Company 
in recoverability assessment. Where 
relevant we assessed the forecast 
timing of future cash flows in the 
context of underlying valuations and 
business plans and challenged key 
assumptions in the valuations

 ∫ Testing the implementation of the 
Company’s Significant Increase in 
Credit Risk (SICR) methodology by re-
performing the staging calculation for 
a sample of loan

 ∫  For a sample of customers loans 
which were not identified as 
displaying indicators or impairment 
by management, challenged this 
assessment by reviewing the historical 
performance of the customers and 
from our own view whether any 
impairment indicators were present.

Assessing the adequacy of 
collectively assessed provisions 
We tested key controls of the Company in 
relation to:
 ∫ The ECL model governance and 

validation processes which involved 
assessment of model performance;

 ∫ The assessment and approval of the 
forward-looking macroeconomic 
assumptions and scenario weightings, 
trends in the credit risk concentration 
of specific portfolios and our 
understanding of economic conditions. 
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As part of this work we challenged 
the reasonableness of the Bank’s 
considerations of the economic 
uncertainty relating to COVID-19. 

Our further audit procedures included; 
 ∫ Assessing the ongoing effectiveness 

of the SICR criteria and independently 
calculated the loans’ stage. In addition, 
we assessed the reasonableness 
of the Company’s treatment of 
COVID-19 payment relief customers 
(moratorium/ debt concessionary) 
from a SICR perspective. 

 ∫ Challenging key assumptions in 
the components of the Company’s 
post-model adjustments to the ECL 
allowance balance. This included 
assessing the requirement for 
additional allowances considering 
the Company’s ECL model and data 
limitations identified by the Company’s 
ECL model validation processes, 
particularly in light of the extreme 
volatility in economic scenarios caused 
by the current COVID-19 pandemic and 
government responses;

 ∫ Assessing the completeness of 
additional allowance overlays by 
checking the consistency of risks we 
identified in the loan portfolios against 
the Company’s assessment.

 ∫ Assessing the appropriateness of the 
Company’s disclosures in the financial 
report using our understanding 
obtained from our testing and against 
the requirements of the Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards

2.  Valuation of Investment 
Properties
Refer accounting policies in Note 3.2.19 
to the financial statements “Investment 
property”, Note 2.6.1 to the financial 
statements “Critical accounting judgements 
and estimates” and Note 23 to the financial 
statements “Investment property”.

Risk Description
Management’s assessment of fair value 
of the investment properties is based 
on valuations performed by a qualified 
independent property valuer in accordance 
with recognised industry standards.

We identified valuation of investment 
properties as a key audit matter because 
the determination of the fair values 
involves significant judgement and 
estimation, particularly determining the 
underlying assumptions and because 
the valuations are sensitive to the key 
assumptions applied. 

Our audit procedures included;
 ∫ Assessing the objectivity, 

independence, competence and 
professional qualifications of the 
external valuer.

 ∫ With the assistance of our internal 
property valuation specialists 
assessing the key assumptions applied 
and conclusions made in deriving 
the fair value of the properties and 
comparing the fair value of properties 
with evidence of current market values. 
In addition assessing the valuation 
methodologies with reference to 
recognised industry standards.

 ∫ Discussions with the management 
and the external valuer in relation 
to the possible impact on the key 
assumptions and the resulting 
valuation to COVID-19.

 ∫ Assessing the adequacy of disclosures 
made in the financial statements.

3.  Recoverability of deferred tax 
assets
Refer accounting policies in Note 3.2.22.4 
to the financial statements “Deferred 
taxation ”, Note 2.6.1 to the financial 
statements “Use of estimates and 
judgements” and Note 31 to the financial 
statements “Deferred tax asset”. 

Risk Description
The Company has recognised significant 
deferred tax assets for deductible 
temporary differences and unused tax 
losses, which the management believes 
are recoverable.

The recoverability of recognised deferred 
tax assets is in part dependent on the 
Company’s ability to generate future taxable 
profits sufficient to utilised deductible 
temporary differences and tax losses. 

We have determined this to be a key audit 
matter, due to the inherent uncertainty 
in forecasting the amount and timing of 
future taxable profits and the reversal of 
temporary differences.

Our audit procedures included;
 ∫ Assessing and challenging the 

Company approach for evaluating 
the likelihood of the recoverability 
of deferred tax assets. This included 
challenging the key assumptions in 
future taxable profit forecasts of the 
Company by comparing the most 
significant inputs used in the forecasts, 
including future revenue, margins and 
operating cost growth rates, with the 
historical performance of the Company, 
management’s forecasts used for 
other purposes and our knowledge of 
the business gained from other audit 
procedures.

 ∫ Assessing adequacy of disclosures 
made in the financial statements, 
including disclosures of key 
assumptions and judgments.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the 
other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the 
annual report but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon. The annual report is 
expected to be made available to us after 
the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements 
does not cover the other information and 
we will not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

Responsibilities of Management and 
Those Charged with Governance for 
the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the 
preparation of financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and 
for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the 
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preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing 
the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate 
the Group or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are 
responsible for overseeing the Group’s 
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SLAuSs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 
SLAuSs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
 ∫ Identify and assess the risks of 

material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

 ∫ Obtain an understanding of internal 
control relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Company and 
the Group’s internal control.

 ∫ Evaluate the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

 ∫ Conclude on the appropriateness 
of management’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Group to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

 ∫ Evaluate the overall presentation, 
structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged 
with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

We also provide those charged with 
governance with a statement that we 
have complied with ethical requirements 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with 
those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the 
financial statements of the current period 
and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements
As required by section 163 (2) of the 
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we 
have obtained all the information and 
explanations that were required for the 
audit and, as far as appears from our 
examination, proper accounting records 
have been kept by the Company. However, 
the Company has not complied with the 
Capital Adequacy requirements (Direction 
No 03 of 2018) and Minimum Core 
Capital (Direction No 02 of 2017) as at 
the reporting date. 

CA Sri Lanka membership number of 
the engagement partner responsible for 
signing this independent auditor’s report 
is 4557.

Chartered Accountants 
Colombo, Sri Lanka 

27th August 2021



NATION LANKA FINANCE PLC | ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

PAGE 92

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND  
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Income 6  1,188,081,167  1,949,607,742  1,188,081,167  1,949,607,742 

Interest Income 7  1,179,017,263  1,938,724,663  1,179,017,263  1,938,724,663 

Interest Cost 8  (753,291,342)  (1,031,030,283)  (753,291,342)  (1,031,030,283)

Net Interest Income  425,725,921  907,694,380  425,725,921  907,694,380 

Net Gain on Land and Property Development  58,669,015  32,585,183  58,669,015  32,585,183 

Fees and Commission Income 6.1  9,063,904  10,883,079  9,063,904  10,883,079 

Net fair value gains/(losses) from financial 
instruments at fair value through profit or loss 16  14,454,166  (2,091,683)  14,454,166  (2,091,683)

Change in Fair value of Investment property 23  63,620,000  35,975,000  63,620,000  35,975,000 

Other Operating Income 9  104,493,143  52,352,494  104,493,143  52,352,494 

Collection from Contracts Written Off  45,196,461  28,769,157  45,196,461  28,769,157 

Total Operating income  721,222,610  1,066,167,610  721,222,610  1,066,167,610 

Expected credit loss charge 11  (108,130,071)  (156,527,158)  (108,130,071)  (156,527,158)

Net Operating income  613,092,539  909,640,452  613,092,539  909,640,452 

Operating Expenses

Personnel  Costs 10.1  (320,988,003)  (404,812,593)  (320,988,003)  (404,812,593)

Premises Equipment & Establishment 
Expenses  (96,548,083)  (106,762,697)  (96,548,083)  (106,762,697)

Other Overhead Expenses  (318,954,713)  (458,907,379)  (318,877,863)  (458,912,479)

Other Finance Cost  (2,758,676)  (2,947,510)  (2,758,676)  (2,947,510)

Total Operating Expenses  (739,249,475)  (973,430,179)  (739,172,625)  (973,435,279)

Loss Before VAT on Financial Services & 
Income Tax Expense  (126,156,936)  (63,789,727)  (126,080,086)  (63,794,827)

Value Added Tax on Financial Services  (16,429,164)  (48,749,357)  (16,429,164)  (48,749,357)

Loss Before Income Tax Expense  (142,586,100)  (112,539,084)  (142,509,250)  (112,544,184)

Income Tax Expense 12  18,191,954  121,130,684  18,191,954  121,130,684 

(Loss)/Profit for the Year  (124,394,146)  8,591,600  (124,317,296)  8,586,500 

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

Items that will never be reclassified to Profit or 
Loss

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Retirement Benefit 
Obligations 30.4  9,455,298  (6,909,662)  9,455,298  (6,909,662)

Deferred Tax on Actuarial (gain)/loss 31.1  (2,269,272)  1,934,705  (2,269,272)  1,934,705 

Change in Fair Value on Investments in 
Financial Assets measured at  Fair Value 
through Other Comprehensive Income 17  2,999,473  7,274,186  2,999,473  7,274,186 

Deferred tax on Change in Fair value of 
Investments in Financial Assets measured 
at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive 
Income 31.1  (299,947)  (727,419)  (299,947)  (727,419)

Total Other Comprehensive Income  9,885,552  1,571,810  9,885,552  1,571,810 

Total Comprehensive (Loss)/Income for the Year  (114,508,594)  10,163,410  (114,431,744)  10,158,310 
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Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to:

Equity Holders of the Company  (124,394,146)  8,591,600  (124,317,296)  8,586,500 

Non Controlling Interest  -    -    -    -   

 (124,394,146)  8,591,600  (124,317,296)  8,586,500 

Total Comprehensive (Loss)/Income 
Attributable to:

Equity Holders of the Company  (114,508,594)  10,163,410  (114,431,744)  10,158,310 

Non Controlling Interest  -    -    -    -   

 (114,508,594)  10,163,410  (114,431,744)  10,158,310 

Basic (Loss)/Earning Per Share 13 (0.09) 0.01 (0.09) 0.01 

The Accounting Policies and other explanatory information set out on notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Financial 
Statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions
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Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 14  105,174,695  86,410,165  105,174,695  86,410,165 

Deposits With Licensed Commercial Banks 15  305,228,039  72,356,761  305,228,039  72,356,761 

Financial Assets Recognised Through Profit or 
Loss-Measured at fair value 16  30,843,505  16,229,355  30,843,505  16,229,355 

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value 
Through Other Comprehensive Income 17  35,030,504  32,031,031  35,030,504  32,031,031 

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

- Loans and Advances 18  4,409,429,298  5,949,499,039  4,409,429,298  5,949,499,039 

- Debt and Other Instruments 19  335,160,032  654,303,689  335,160,032  654,303,689 

Investments in Subsidiaries 20  -    -    -    -   

Amounts Due From Related Parties 21  2,353,690 4,460,004  2,353,690 4,460,004 

Real Estate Stock 22  281,984,900  281,552,888  281,984,900  281,552,888 

Investment Property 23  830,675,000  770,555,000  830,675,000  770,555,000 

Property, Plant & Equipment 24  31,898,390  37,432,034  31,898,390  37,432,034 

Right-of-use Asset 25  103,416,469  107,722,481  103,416,469  107,722,481 

Net investment in sub lease receivable 26  -    4,942,477  -    4,942,477 

Intangible Assets 27  3,707,618  9,044,061  3,707,618  9,044,061 

Trade and Other Receivables 28  103,180,100  87,818,440  103,180,100  87,818,440 

Other Assets 29  128,354,344  89,428,844  128,354,344  89,428,844 

Retirement Benefit Plan Assets 30  89,720,901  83,800,796  89,720,901  83,800,796 

Deferred Tax Asset 31  466,475,157  450,852,422  466,475,157  450,852,422 

Total assets  7,262,632,642  8,738,439,487  7,262,632,642  8,738,439,487 
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Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Liabilities

Due to Banks and Financial Institutions 32  277,325,289  34,376,452  277,325,289  34,376,452 

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost-due to 
depositors 33  5,247,605,975  6,441,689,805  5,247,605,975  6,441,689,805 

Lease liability 34  83,533,152  106,507,532  83,533,152  106,507,532 

Amounts Due To Related Parties 35  -    -    699,756  790,006 

Other Borrowings 36  296,668,534  610,613,507  296,668,534  610,613,507 

Retirement Benefit Obligations 30  47,023,840  46,735,803  47,023,840  46,735,803 

Trade and Other Payables 37  201,665,290  275,197,232  201,596,794  275,115,336 

Subordinated Debentures 38  150,000,000  150,000,000  150,000,000  150,000,000 

Total liabilities  6,303,822,080  7,665,120,331  6,304,453,340  7,665,828,441 

Capital and reserves

Stated Capital 39  1,224,042,009 1,224,042,009  1,224,042,009 1,224,042,009 

Reserve Fund  131,422,068 131,422,068  131,422,068 131,422,068 

Fair value reserve (95,661,886) (98,361,412) (95,661,886) (98,361,412)

Other Reserves  9,000,000 9,000,000  9,000,000 9,000,000 

Retained Earnings (309,991,629) (192,783,509) (310,622,889) (193,491,619)

Total equity attributable to equity holders of 
the company  958,810,562  1,073,319,156  958,179,302  1,072,611,046 

Non-Controlling Interest  -    -    -    -   

Total equity  958,810,562  1,073,319,156  958,179,302  1,072,611,046 

Total liabilities & equity  7,262,632,642  8,738,439,487  7,262,632,642  8,738,439,487 

Net Assets Per Share 0.71 0.79 0.71 0.79

The Accounting Policies and other explanatory information set out on notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

It is certified that the Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007.

        
Prasanna Habaragamuwa
Chief Finance Officer

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.
Signed for and on behalf of the Board

 
Victor Ramanan Suresh M. Amerasekera
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

27th August 2021
Colombo        
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Company Stated 
Capital 

Rs.

Reserve 
Fund 

Rs.

Fair value  
reserve 

Rs.

General 
Reserve 

Rs.

Retained  
Earnings 

Rs.

Total 

Rs.

Balance as at 01 April 2019 as Previously 
Reported  1,224,042,009  129,704,768  (104,908,179)  9,000,000  (181,703,011)  1,076,135,587 

Adjustment on initial application of SLFRS 16 

net of tax  -    -    -    -    (13,682,851)  (13,682,851)

Restated balance as at 01 April 2019  1,224,042,009  129,704,768  (104,908,179)  9,000,000  (195,385,862)  1,062,452,736 

Total comprehensive income/(loss)  -   

Profit for the year  -    -    -    -    8,586,500  8,586,500 

Other comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the 

year  -    -    6,546,767  (4,974,957)  1,571,810 

Total comprehensive income/(loss)  -    -    6,546,767  -    3,611,543  10,158,310 

Net Change in Fair Value net of tax

Transfer to Reserve Fund  -    1,717,300  -    -    (1,717,300)  -   

Balance as at 31 March 2020  1,224,042,009  131,422,068  (98,361,412)  9,000,000  (193,491,619)  1,072,611,046 

Balance as at 01 April 2020  1,224,042,009  131,422,068  (98,361,412)  9,000,000  (193,491,619)  1,072,611,046 

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

Loss for the year  -    -    -    -    (124,317,296)  (124,317,296)

Other comprehensive Income for the year  -    -    2,699,526  7,186,026  9,885,552 

Total comprehensive income/(loss)  -    -    2,699,526  -    (117,131,270)  (114,431,744)

Transfer to Reserve Fund  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31 March 2021  1,224,042,009  131,422,068  (95,661,886)  9,000,000  (310,622,889)  958,179,302 

As per the Finance Companies (Capital Funds) Direction No.1 of 2003 Issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka the Company shall 
transfer to a reserve fund out of the net profits of each year, after due provision has been made for Taxation and Bad and Doubtful 
Debts :–
(i) so long as the capital funds are not less than 25% of total deposit liabilities, a sum equal to not less than 5% of the net profits;
(ii) so long as the capital funds are less than 25% of total deposit liabilities, but not less than 10% thereof, a sum equal to not less 

than 20% of the net profits; and
(iii) so long as the capital funds are less than 10% of the total deposit liabilities, a sum equal to not less than 50% per cent of the net 

profits.
          
The Accounting Policies and other explanatory information set out on notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Financial 
Statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Group Stated 
Capital 

Rs.

Reserve 
Fund 

Rs.

Fair value  
reserve 

Rs.

General 
Reserve 

Rs.

Retained  
Earnings 

Rs.

Non
 Controlling

Interest
Rs.

Total 

Rs.

Balance as at 01 April 2019 
as Previously Reported  1,224,042,009  129,704,768  (104,908,179)  9,000,000  (181,000,001)  -    1,076,838,597 

Adjustment on initial 

application of SLFRS 16 net 

of tax  -    -    -    -    (13,682,851)  (13,682,851)

Restated balance as at 01 
April 2019  1,224,042,009  129,704,768  (104,908,179)  9,000,000  (194,682,852)  -    1,063,155,746 

Total comprehensive income/
(loss)

Profit for the year  -    -    -    -    8,591,600  -    8,591,600 

Other comprehensive Income/

(Loss) for the year  -    -    6,546,767  (4,974,957)  -    1,571,810 

Total comprehensive income/
(loss)  -    -    6,546,767  -    3,616,643  -    10,163,410 

Transfer to Reserve Fund  -    1,717,300  -    -    (1,717,300)  -    -   

Balance as at 31 March 2020  1,224,042,009  131,422,068  (98,361,412)  9,000,000 (192,783,509)  -   1,073,319,156 

Balance as at 01 April 2020  1,224,042,009  131,422,068  (98,361,412)  9,000,000  (192,783,509)  -    1,073,319,156 

Total comprehensive income/
(loss)

Loss for the year  -    -    -    -    (124,394,146)  -    (124,394,146)

Other comprehensive Income 

for the year  -    -    2,699,526  7,186,026  -    9,885,552 

Total comprehensive income/
(loss)  -    -    2,699,526  -    (117,208,120)  -    (114,508,594)

Transfer to Reserve Fund  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31 March 2021  1,224,042,009  131,422,068  (95,661,886)  9,000,000  (309,991,629)  -    958,810,562 

As per the Finance Companies (Capital Funds) Direction No.1 of 2003 Issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka the Company shall 
transfer to a reserve fund out of the net profits of each year, after due provision has been made for Taxation and Bad and Doubtful 
Debts :– 
(i) so long as the capital funds are not less than 25% of total deposit liabilities, a sum equal to not less than 5% of the net profits;
(ii) so long as the capital funds are less than 25% of total deposit liabilities, but not less than 10% thereof, a sum equal to not less 

than 20% of the net profits; and
(iii) so long as the capital funds are less than 10% of the total deposit liabilities, a sum equal to not less than 50% per cent of the net 

profits.

The Accounting Policies and other explanatory information set out on notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Financial 
Statements.

Figures In Brackets Indicate Deductions.          
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Loss before Income Tax Expense (142,586,100)  (112,539,084) (142,509,250)  (112,544,184)

Adjustments for

Net fair value gains/(losses) from financial 

instruments at FVTPL 16 (14,454,166)  2,091,683 (14,454,166)  2,091,683 

Dividend Income 9 (3,938,734)  (2,363,037) (3,938,734)  (2,363,037)

Depreciation and amortisation 10.1 23,588,665  45,328,449 23,588,665  45,328,449 

Amortisation of ROU Assets 10.1  51,489,492  51,398,022  51,489,492  51,398,022 

Interest expense on Lease Liability 8  16,000,059  18,803,987  16,000,059  18,803,987 

Gain on derecognition of ROU Assets (7,991,108)  - (7,991,108)  - 

Interest expenses 8  737,291,283  1,012,226,296  737,291,283  1,012,226,296 

Interest income on Government Securities 7  (23,510,840)  (57,397,547) (23,510,840)  (57,397,547)

Interest income on Sub Lease 7  (402,463)  (991,853)  (402,463)  (991,853)

Impairment of Loans and receivables 18.6.1 193,900,161  166,256,718 193,900,161  166,256,718 

Provision for Impairment of Trade and Other 

Receivable 11 (85,495,209)  (6,914,089) (85,495,209)  (6,914,089)

Provision for fall In Value of Real Estate Stock 22 (1,607,314)  2,045,212 (1,607,314)  2,045,212 

Change in Fair Value of Investment Property 23 (63,620,000)  (35,975,000) (63,620,000)  (35,975,000)

Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Investment Property 800,000  (1,350,000) 800,000  (1,350,000)

Provision for Retiring Benefit Obligations 30.5 5,674,855  6,078,296  5,674,855  6,078,296 

Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment 9 (83,000)  (3,103,500) (83,000)  (3,103,500)

Impairment of other investments 15.1  -    (2,815,471)  -    (2,815,471)

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 685,055,582  1,080,779,082 685,132,432  1,080,773,982 

Working Capital Changes

Increase in Other Assets 29 (38,925,500)  (28,054,775) (38,925,500)  (28,054,775)

Decrease in Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 18 1,346,169,580  390,035,074 1,346,169,580 390,035,074 

(Increase)/Decrease in Investment in Real Estate 22 1,175,302  (28,185,329) 1,175,302 (28,185,329)

(Increase)/Decrease in Amounts Due From Related 

Parties 21 2,106,314  (1,129,653) 2,106,314 (1,129,653)

Decrease in Amounts Due to Related Companies 35  -    - (90,250)  - 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade & Other  Receivables 28  70,133,549  (6,495,053) 70,133,549  (6,495,053)

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables (78,483,942)  28,895,344 (78,470,542)  28,900,444 

Decrease Financial Liabilities at amortised cost -due 

to depositors (1,194,083,830)  (701,542,695) (1,194,083,830)  (701,542,695)

Cash from Operations 793,147,055  734,301,995 793,147,055  734,301,995 

Income Tax Paid  -    -  -    - 

Interest expenses paid (700,643,313)  (973,864,012) (700,643,313)  (973,864,012)

Retiring Gratuity Paid (1,851,625)  (6,136,375) (1,851,625)  (6,136,375)

Net Cash generated from/(used in) Operating 
Activities 90,652,117  (245,698,392) 90,652,118  (245,698,392)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Proceeds from the Sale of Property, Plant & 

Equipment 83,000  3,103,500 83,000  3,103,500 

Acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment 24 (11,198,688)  (6,146,988) (11,198,688)  (6,146,988)

Acquisition of Intangible Assets 27 (1,519,891)  (3,916,679) (1,519,891)  (3,916,679)

Proceeds from Disposal of  Investment Property 2,700,000  5,600,000 2,700,000  5,600,000 

Acquisition of Government Securities 19 (171,851,234)  (58,569,317) (171,851,234)  (58,569,317)

Net Proceeds from Government Securities  514,505,731  63,380,378  514,505,731  63,380,378 

Dividend Income Received from Other Investments 9 3,778,750  2,363,037 3,778,750  2,363,037 

Net cash generated from investing activities 336,497,668  5,813,931 336,497,668  5,813,931 

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Repayment of Loans 36 & 32 (660,535,459)  (247,329,481) (660,535,459)  (247,329,481)

Proceeds from Borrowings 36 & 32 300,000,000  650,000,000 300,000,000  650,000,000 

Cash receipts from net investment in sub lease 1,899,779  3,256,764 1,899,779  3,256,764 

Lease rental Payments (69,769,651)  (75,491,925) (69,769,651)  (75,491,925)

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (428,405,330)  330,435,358 (428,405,330) 330,435,358 

Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (1,255,546) 90,550,897 (1,255,546) 90,550,897 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 139,326,279  48,775,382 139,326,279  48,775,382 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the year 138,070,734 139,326,279 138,070,734 139,326,279 

Reconciliation of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash in Hand & at Bank 14 105,174,695  86,410,165 105,174,695  86,410,165 

Short Term Investments 15 305,437,484  72,566,206 305,437,484  72,566,206 

Bank Overdraft 32 (272,541,445)  (19,650,092) (272,541,445)  (19,650,092)

138,070,734  139,326,279 138,070,734  139,326,279 

The Accounting Policies and other explanatory information set out on notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these Financial 
Statements.

Figures In Brackets Indicate Deductions
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

1.  CORPORATE INFORMATION
1.1  Reporting Entity
Nation Lanka Finance PLC, (the 
“Company”) regulated under the Finance 
Business Act No. 42 of 2011, was 
incorporated on 15th July 1987 as a 
public limited liability Company domiciled 
in Sri Lanka under the provisions of the 
Companies Act No. 17 of 1982 and re 
registered under the Companies Act No. 7 
of 2007. Ordinary Shares of the Company 
were listed on the main board of the 
Colombo Stock Exchange on 31st June 
1994.

The Company’s registered office and the 
principal place of business is located at 
No. 690, Galle Road, Colombo 3.

The Company has a fully owned 
subsidiary, Nation Micro Investments 
LTD, which is a limited liability Company 
incorporated in Sri Lanka under the 
provisions of the Companies Act No. 07 
of 2007. The immediate and the ultimate 
parent of the subsidiary is the Nation 
Lanka Finance PLC.

1.2  Principal activities and Nature 
of Operations
The principal activities of the Company 
are granting of loans, providing finance 
leases, hire purchase asset financing, 
pawning and mobilisation of deposits 
and trading of real estate. There were 
no significant changes in the nature of 
principal activities of the Company and 
the Group during the financial year.

During the year, the subsidiary, Nation 
Micro Investments LTD has not carried 
out any of its activities.

1.3  Consolidated Financial 
Statements
The Consolidated financial statements 
of the Company as at, and for the year 
ended 31st March 2021 comprise the 
financial statements of Company and its 
subsidiary (together referred to as the 
“Group”).

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1  Statement of compliance
The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance 
with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (herein referred to as SLFRSs/LKASs) 
effective from 1st April 2012, laid down by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Sri Lanka and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 
2007 and the Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing Standards Act No. 15 of 1995. These 
Financial Statements, except for information on cash flows have been   prepared 
following the accrual basis of accounting.

The Group did not adopt any inappropriate accounting treatment, which is not in 
compliance with the requirements of the SLFRSs and LKASs, regulations governing the 
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements.

2.2  Responsibility for Financial Statements
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements of the Group and the Company as per the 
provision of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

These Financial Statements include the following components;
- an Income Statement and a Statement of Comprehensive Income providing the 

information on the financial performance of the Group and the Company for the year 
under review.

- a Statement of Financial Position providing the information on the financial position 
of the Group and the Company as at the year-end.

- a Statement of Changes in Equity depicting all changes in shareholders’ funds during 
the year under review of the Group and the Company. 

- a Statement of Cash Flows providing the information to the users, on the ability of 
the Group and the Company to generate cash and cash equivalents and utilisation of 
those cash flows. 

- Notes to the Financial Statements comprising Significant Accounting Policies and 
other explanatory information.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were authorised for issue by the Board of 
Directors in accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 27th 
August 2021.

2.3  Basis of measurement
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis 
except for the following material items in the statement of financial position:

Item Basis of measurement Note number

Financial Assets measured at FVTPL Fair Value 16

Financial Assets measured at FVOCI Fair Value 17

Financial Assets measured at Amortised 
Cost-Loans and Advances

Amortised Cost 18

Financial Assets measured at Amortised 
Cost- Debt and Other Instruments

Amortised Cost 19

Real Estate Stock Cost / Net Realizable Value 22

Investment Properties Fair Value 23

Retirement benefit obligation/Plan 
Assets

Present value of the 
defined benefit obligation

30
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Assets and Liabilities are grouped by 
nature and listed in an order that reflects 
their relative liquidity and maturity 
pattern.

2.4  Going Concern
The Directors have made an assessment 
of the Group/ Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern in the 
foreseeable future and they do not 
foresee a need for liquidation or 
cessation of business. The impact arising 
from COVID – 19 on the Group/Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern 
is discussed in note 50 to the financial 
statements.

2.5  Functional and Presentation 
Currency
The Consolidated Financial Statements 
have been presented in Sri Lankan 
Rupees, which is the Group’s / Company’s 
functional currency. All the financial 
information presented in Sri Lankan 
Rupees has been rounded to the nearest 
Rupee.

2.6  Use of Estimates and 
Judgments
The preparation of Consolidated Financial 
Statements in conformity with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards (SLFRSs / LKASs) 
requires the management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that effect the application of policies 
and reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical 
experience and various other factors that 
are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstance, the results of which form 
the basis of making the judgments about 
carrying values of assets and liabilities 
that are not readily apparent from the 
other sources.

The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which 

the estimates are revised if the revision 
affects only that financial year or in the 
period of the revision and future periods 
if the revision affects both current and 
future financial years.

2.6.1  Critical accounting judgments 
and estimates 
2.6.1.1  General 
In the preparation of separate financial  
statements, the Group makes judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect 
the application of accounting policies 
and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income, and expenses.

Management discusses with the Board 
Audit Committee the development, 
selection, and disclosure of critical 
accounting policies and  their application, 
and assumptions made relating to major 
estimation uncertainties. 

The use of available information and 
application of judgment are inherent in 
the formation of estimates; actual results 
in the future may differ from estimates 
upon which financial information is 
prepared.

Estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Changes to estimates in a subsequent 
financial year, if any, are adjusted 
prospectively.

2.6.1.2  Judgments
Information about judgments made in 
applying accounting policies that have 
the most significant effects on the 
amounts recognised in the separated 
financial statements is included in the 
following notes

- Note 3.2.4.2: classification of financial 
assets: assessment of the business 
model within which the assets are 
held and assessment of whether the 
contractual terms of the financial 
assets are Solely Payment of Principal 
and Interest (SPPI) on the principal 
amount outstanding.

- Note 42.1.3: establishing the criteria 
for determining whether credit 
risk on the financial asset has 
increased significantly since initial 
recognition, determining methodology 
for incorporating forward-looking 
information into measurement of 
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) and 
selection and approval models used to 
measure ECL.

- Going Concern: the directors have 
assessed the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern and are 
satisfied that it has the resources 
to continue in business for the 
foreseeable future. The impact arising 
from COVID – 19 on the Group/
Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern is discussed in note 50 
to the financial statements.

- Coronavirus (COVID-19) Pandemic 
- The COVID-19 pandemic and its 
effect on the global economy have 
impacted the customers, operations 
and Group performance. The outbreak 
necessitated the Government to 
respond at unprecedented levels to 
protect the health of the population, 
local economy and livelihoods. Thus 
the pandemic has significantly 
increased the estimation uncertainty 
in the preparation of these financial 
statements including, the extent 
and duration of the disruption to 
businesses, expected economic 
downturn, and subsequent recovery. 
The significant accounting estimates 
impacted by these forecasts and 
associated uncertainties are 
predominantly related to expected 
credit losses. fair value measurement, 
and the assessment of the recoverable 
amount of non-financial assets. The 
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on 
each of these estimates is discussed 
further in the relevant notes of these 
financial statements. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to estimates are recognised 
prospectively.
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2.6.1.3  Assumptions and estimation 
uncertainties
Information about assumptions and 
estimation uncertainties that have a 
significant risk of resulting in a material 
adjustment included in the following 
notes.
- Note 18 and note 42.1: impairment 

of financial instruments: determining 
inputs into the ECL measurement 
model, including incorporation of 
forward-looking information.

- Note 41: determination of the fair 
value of financial instruments with 
significant unobservable inputs.

- Note 31.5: measurement of defined 
benefit obligations: key actuarial 
assumptions.

- Note 12 and note 31: recognition of 
deferred tax assets: availability of 
future taxable profit against which 
carry- forward tax losses can be 
utilised.

- Note 3.2.7: impairment of financial 
instruments: key assumptions used in 
estimating recoverable cash flows

- Note 23: Fair value measurement 
of investment properties – use of 
significant unobservable inputs

2.7  Presentation of Financial 
Statements
The assets and liabilities of the Group/ 
Company presented in the statement of 
financial position are grouped by nature 
and listed in an order that reflects their 
relative liquidity and maturity pattern.

2.8  Materiality and Aggregation
Each material class of similar items is 
presented separately in the financial 
statements. Items of dissimilar nature or 
function are presented separately unless 
they are immaterial as permitted by LKAS 
1: Presentation of Financial Statements.

Financial assets and financial liabilities 
are offset and the net amount report 
in the statement of financial position, 
only when there is a legally enforceable 
right to offset the recognised amounts 

and there is an intention to settle on net 
basis, or to realise the assets and settle 
the liability simultaneously. 

2.9  Determination of Fair Values
‘Fair value’ is the price that would 
be received to sell an asset or paid 
to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date in the principal 
or, in its absence, the most advantageous 
market to which the Group / Company 
has access at that date. The fair value of 
a liability reflects its non-performance 
risk. Several of the Group’s/ Company’s 
accounting policies and disclosures 
require the determination of fair value, for 
both financial and non-financial assets 
and liabilities.

When measuring fair value of an asset 
or liability, the Group/ Company’s uses 
observable market data as far as 
possible. Fair values are categorised into 
different levels in a fair value hierarchy 
based on the inputs used in the valuation 
techniques.

Level 1: inputs are unadjusted quoted 
prices in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs are inputs other than 
quoted prices included within Level 1 that 
are observable for the asset or liability 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly 
(i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs are inputs that are 
not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs).

If inputs used to measure the fair value 
of an asset or liability fall into different 
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the 
fair value measurement is categorised 
in its entirety in the same level of the 
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level 
input that is significant to the entire 
measurement.

2.10  Fair Value of Non-Financial 
Assets
The fair value used by the Group/ 
Company in the measurement of 
non-financial assets is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell 
the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either in the principal market for 
the asset or liability, or in the absence 
of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market that is accessible 
by the Group/ Company for the asset or 
liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is 
measured using the assumptions that 
market participants would act in their 
economic best interest when pricing the 
asset or liability.

A fair value measurement of a non-
financial asset takes into account a 
market participants ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset 
in its highest and best use or by selling 
it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and 
best use. The Group/ Company uses 
valuation techniques that are appropriate 
in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure 
fair value, maximizing the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimizing the use 
of unobservable inputs.

2.11  Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities 
are offset and the net amount reported in 
the statement of financial position, only 
when there is a legally enforceable right 
to offset the recognised amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis or to realise the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously.

Income and expenses are not offset in 
the income statement, unless required 
or permitted by Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards and as specifically disclosed 
in the significant accounting policies of 
the Group.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES
3.1  Summary of significant 
accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below 
have been applied consistently for 
all periods presented in the financial 
statements by the Group and the 
Company unless otherwise indicated.

3.2.1  Consolidation
I.  Basis of consolidation
Business combinations are accounted 
for using the acquisition method as at 
the acquisition date - i.e. when control 
is transferred to the Group. Control is 
the power to govern the financial and 
operating policies of an entity so as to 
obtain benefits from its activities.

The Group has an option to apply a 
‘concentration test’ that permits a 
simplified assessment of whether 
an acquired set of activities and 
assets is not a business. The optional 
concentration test is met of substantially 
all pf the fair value of the gross assets 
acquired is concentrated in the single 
identifiable asset or group of similar 
identifiable assets.

II.  Business Combination
Business combinations are accounted 
for using the acquisition method as at 
the acquisition date - i.e. when control 
is transferred to the Group. Control is 
the power to govern the financial and 
operating policies of an entity so as to 
obtain benefits from its activities.

The Group measures goodwill at the 
acquisition date as:
 ∫ the fair value of the consideration 

transferred; Minus
 ∫ the net recognised amount (generally 

fair value) of the identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain 
purchase gain is recognised immediately 
in profit or loss.

III.  Subsidiary
Subsidiary is entities controlled by 
the Group. The financial statement 
of subsidiary are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from 
the date, that control commence, until 
the date that control ceases.

IV.  Loss of Control
On the loss of control, the Group 
derecognises the assets and liabilities 
of the subsidiary, any non-controlling 
interest and the other components of 
equity related to the subsidiary. Any 
surplus or deficit arising on the loss of 
control is recognised in profit or loss.

V.  Transactions eliminated on 
consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, 
and any unrealised income and expenses 
arising from intra group transactions are 
eliminated in preparing the consolidated 
financial statements. Unrealised gains 
arising from transactions with equity 
accounted investees are eliminated 
against the investment to the extent 
of the Group’s interest in the investee. 
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the 
same way as unrealised gains, but only 
to the extent that there is no evidence of 
impairment.

3.2.2  Foreign Currency
All foreign exchange transactions are 
converted to functional currency, at the 
rates of exchange prevailing at the time 
the transactions are effected. Monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currency are retranslated to 
functional currency equivalents at the 
spot exchange rate prevailing at the 
reporting date.

Non-monetary items that are measured 
in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are translated using the 
exchange rates as at the dates of the 
initial transactions. Non-monetary 
assets and liabilities are translated using 
exchange rates that existed when the 
values were determined. The gain or loss 

arising on translation of non-monetary 
items is recognised in line with the gain 
or loss of the item that gave rise to the 
translation difference.

3.2.3  Assets and bases of their 
valuation
Assets classified as current assets in the 
Statement of Financial Position are cash 
and bank balances and those, which are 
expected to be realised in cash during the 
normal operating cycle, or within one year 
from the Balance Sheet date, whichever 
is shorter. Assets other than current 
assets are those, which the Company 
intends to hold beyond the one year 
period calculated from the reporting date.

3.2.3.1  Property, plant and 
equipment
3.2.3.1.1  Recognition and 
measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated 
at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses.

3.2.3.1.2  Owned Assets
The cost of an item of property, plant and 
equipment comprise its purchase price 
and any directly attributable costs of 
bringing the asset to working condition 
for its intended use. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost 
of materials, direct labor, and any other 
costs directly attributable to bringing 
the asset to the working condition for its 
intended use. This also includes cost of 
dismantling and removing the items and 
restoring in the site on which they are 
located and borrowing costs on qualifying 
assets.

Purchased software that is integrate to 
the functionality of the related equipment 
is capitalised as part of equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant 
and equipment have different useful lives, 
they are accounted for separate items 
(major component) of property, plant and 
equipment.
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3.2.3.1.3  Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is 
recognised in the carrying amount of 
the item if it is probable that the future 
economic benefits embodied within 
the part will flow to the Company and 
its cost can be measured reliably. The 
carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognised.

The costs of the day to day servicing 
of property, plant and equipment are 
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

3.2.3.1.4  Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly 
attributable to acquisition, construction 
or production of a qualifying asset which 
takes a substantial period of time to 
get ready for its intended use or sale, 
are capitalised as a part of the asset. 
The amounts of the borrowing costs 
which are eligible for capitalisation are 
determined in accordance with LKAS 23 - 
Borrowing Costs.

Borrowing costs that are not capitalised 
are recognised as expenses in the period 
in which they are incurred and charged to 
the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income.

3.2.3.1.5  Derecognition
The carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is de-
recognised on disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its 
use or disposal. Gains or losses on de-
recognition are recognised within sundry 
income in profit or loss.

3.2.3.1.6  Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in profit or 
loss on the straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of each part of 
item of Property, Plant and Equipment. 
Depreciation of an asset begins when it 

is available for use whereas depreciation 
of an asset ceases at the earlier of the 
date that the asset is classified as held 
for sale (or included in a disposal group 
that is classified as held for sale) and 
the date that the asset is derecognised. 
Depreciation is not charged on Freehold 
Land.

The estimated useful lives of Property 
Plant and Equipment used by the Group 
are as follows:

Buildings - 5%

Plant and Machinery -20%

Furniture and Fittings -16.67

Motor Vehicles -25%

Computer Equipment and 
Software 

-33.33%

Office Equipment -33.33% 

Other Equipment -20%

Depreciation method, useful lives and 
residual values are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted if 
appropriate.

3.2.3.2  Intangible Assets
An intangible asset is recognised where 
it is probable that economic benefits 
are attributable to the assets will flow 
to the entity and cost of the assets can 
be measured reliably and carried at cost 
less accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses.

3.2.3.2.1  Computer Software
All computer software costs incurred, 
which are not internally related to 
associate hardware, which can be 
clearly identified, reliably measured 
and its probable that they will lead to 
future economic benefits, are included 
in the Statement of Financial Position 
under the category of intangible assets. 
Amortisation is calculated at an annual 
rate of 33.33%.

3.2.3.2.2  Subsequent Expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
only when it increases the future 
economic benefits embodied in the 
specific asset to which it relates. All other 
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss 
as incurred.

3.2.3.2.3  Goodwill
Business combinations are accounted 
for using the acquisition method. The 
cost of an acquisition is measured as 
the aggregate of the consideration 
transferred, which is measured at 
acquisition date fair value and the 
amount of any non-controlling interest in 
the acquiree.

3.2.3.2.3.1  Initial Recognition and 
Measurement
Goodwill is initially measured at cost 
and any previous interest held over the 
net identifiable assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed. If the fair value of 
the net assets acquired is in excess of 
the aggregate consideration transferred, 
the Group re-assesses whether it has 
correctly identified all of the assets 
acquired and all of the liabilities 
assumed and reviews the procedures 
used to measure the amounts to be 
recognised at the acquisition date. If the 
reassessment still results in an excess of 
the fair value of net assets acquired over 
the aggregate consideration transferred, 
then the gain is recognised in profit or 
loss.

3.2.3.2.3.2  Subsequent Measurement
After initial recognition, goodwill is 
measured at cost less any accumulated 
impairment losses.

Goodwill is tested for impairment. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill 
acquired in a business combination is, 
from the acquisition date, allocated to 
each of the Group’s cash-generating 
units that are expected to benefit from 
the combination, irrespective of whether 
other assets or liabilities of the acquiree 
are assigned to those units.
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3.2.4  Financial assets
3.2.4.1  Recognition and 
measurement
The financial asset is measured initially 
at fair value plus, for an item not at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction 
cost that are directly attributable to its 
acquisition.

Loans and advances are initially 
recognised on the date at which they are 
originated at fair value which is usually 
the loan amount granted and subsequent 
measurement is at amortised cost.

The amortised cost of a financial asset 
is the amount at which the financial 
asset is measured at initial recognition 
minus principal repayments, plus or 
minus the cumulative amortisation using 
the effective interest method of any 
difference between the initial amount 
recognised and the maturity amount, 
minus any reduction for impairment.

All other financial assets are initially 
recognised on the trade date at which the 
Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.

3.2.4.2 Classification
On initial recognition, the Group classifies 
financial assets as measured at:
 ∫ Amortised cost,
 ∫ Fair value through other 

comprehensive income (FVOCI); and,
 ∫ Fair value through profit or loss 

(FVTPL)

The subsequent measurement of 
financial assets depends on their 
classification.

3.2.4.2.1 Financial assets measured 
at amortised costs
A financial asset is measured at 
amortised cost if it meets both of 
the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL:
 ∫ The asset is held within a business 

model whose objective is to hold assets 
to collect contractual cash flows; and

 ∫ The contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.

3.2.4.2.2  Financial assets at fair 
value through other comprehensive 
income
A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI 
only if it meets both of the following 
conditions and is not designated as at 
FVTPL:
 ∫ The asset is held within a business 

model whose objective is achieved by 
both collecting contractual cash flows 
and selling financial assets; and

 ∫ The contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity 
investment that is not held for trading, 
the Group may irrevocably elect to 
present subsequent changes in fair 
value in OCI. This election is made on an 
investment-by-investment basis.

3.2.4.2.3  Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss
All financial assets other than those 
classified at amortised costs or FVOCI are 
classified as measured at FVTPL.

3.2.4.2.3.1  Financial assets are 
mandatorily fair valued through 
profit and loss when the instruments
 ∫ are held for trading, or
 ∫ are managed, evaluated and reported 

internally on a fair value basis, or
 ∫ designation eliminates or significantly 

reduces an
 ∫ accounting mismatch which would 

otherwise arise, or
 ∫ contains an embedded derivative that 

significantly modifies the cash flows 
which would otherwise have been 
required under the contract.

3.2.4.2.4  Financial assets designated 
at fair value through profit or loss
In addition, on initial recognition, the 
Group may irrevocably designate a 
financial asset that otherwise meets 
the requirements to be measured at 
amortised cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL 
if doing so eliminates or significantly 
reduces an accounting mismatch that 
would otherwise arise.

The Group has not designated any 
financial asset upon initial recognition at 
fair value through profit or loss as at the 
reporting date.

3.2.4.2.5  Business model 
assessment
The Group assesses the objective of 
a business model in which an asset is 
held at a portfolio level because this 
best reflects the way the business is 
managed, and information is provided 
to the Management. The information 
considered includes:
 ∫ the stated policies and objectives 

for the portfolio and the operation of 
those policies in practice. In particular, 
whether Management’s strategy 
focuses on earning contractual interest 
revenue, maintaining a particular 
interest rate profile, matching the 
duration of the financial assets to the  
duration of the liabilities that are 
funding those assets or realizing cash 
flows through the sale of the assets;
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 ∫ how the performance of the portfolio is 
evaluated and reported to the Group’s 
Management;

 ∫ the risks that affect the performance 
of the business model (and the 
financial assets held within  
that business model) and how those 
risks are managed;

 ∫ how managers of the business 
are compensated – e.g. whether 
compensation is based on the fair  
value of the assets managed or the 
contractual cash flows collected; and

 ∫ the frequency, volume and timing of 
sales in prior periods, the reasons 
for such sales and its expectations 
about future sales activity. However, 
information about sales activity is not 
considered in isolation, but as part 
of an overall assessment of how the 
Group’s stated objective for managing 
the financial assets is achieved and 
how cash flows are realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading 
or managed and whose performance 
is evaluated on a fair value basis are 
measured at FVTPL because they are 
neither held to collect contractual cash 
flows nor held both to collect contractual 
cash flows and to sell financial assets.

3.2.4.2.6  Assessments whether 
contractual  cash flows are solely 
payments of principal and interest
For the purposes of this assessment, 
“principal” is defined as the fair value of 
the financial asset on initial recognition. 
“Interest” is defined as consideration 
for the time value of money and for the 
credit risk associated with the principal 
amount outstanding during a particular 
period of time and for other basic lending 
risks and costs, as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual 
cash flows are solely payments of 
principal and interest, the Group 
considers the contractual terms of the 
instrument. This includes assessing 
whether the financial asset contains a 
contractual term that could change the 

timing or amount of contractual cash 
flows such that it would not meet this 
condition.

In making the assessment, the Group 
considers:
- contingent events that would change 

the amount and timing of cash flows;
- leverage features;
- prepayment and extension terms;
- terms that limit the Group’s claim to 

cash flows from specified assets; and
- features that modify consideration of 

the time value of money

3.2.4  Reclassification
Financial assets are not reclassified 
subsequent to their initial recognition, 
except and only in those rare 
circumstances when the Group’s changes 
its objective of the business model for 
managing such financial assets.

Financial Liabilities are not reclassified as 
such reclassifications are not permitted 
by SLFRS 9.

3.2.4.1  Timing of reclassification of 
financial assets
Consequent to the change in the 
business model, the Group reclassifies all 
affected assets prospectively from the 
first day of the next reporting period (the 
reclassification date). Prior periods are 
not restated.

3.2.4.1.2  Measurement of 
reclassification of financial assets 
3.2.4.1.2.1  Reclassification of 
financial instruments at “fair value 
through profit or loss”

- To Fair value through other 
comprehensive income. The fair value 
on reclassification date becomes the 
new gross carrying amount. The EIR 
is calculated based on the new gross 
carrying amount. Subsequent changes 
in the fair value are recognised in OCI.

- To amortised costs the fair value on 
reclassification date becomes the new 
carrying amount. The EIR is calculated 
based on the new gross carrying 
amount

3.2.4.1.2.2  Reclassification of 
financial instruments at “fair value 
through other comprehensive 
income
- To fair value through profit or loss.  

The accumulated balance in OCI is 
reclassified to profit and loss on the 
reclassification date.

- To amortised costs 
 The financial asset is reclassified at 

fair value. The cumulative balance in 
OCI is removed and is used to adjust 
the reclassified fair value. The adjusted 
amount becomes the amortised cost. 
EIR determined at initial recognition 
and gross carrying amount are not 
adjusted as a result of reclassification.

3.2.4.1.2.3  Reclassification of 
financial instruments at “amortised 
costs”
- To Fair value through other 

comprehensive income the asset is 
remeasured to fair value, with any 
difference recognised in OCI. EIR 
determined at initial recognition 
is not adjusted as a result of  
reclassification.

- To Fair value through profit or loss

The fair value on the reclassification date 
becomes the new carrying amount. The 
difference between amortised cost and 
fair value is recognised in profit and loss.

3.2.5 De recognition of financial 
assets
Financial assets are derecognised when 
the contractual right to receive cash 
flows from the asset has expired; or when 
Group has transferred its contractual 
right to receive the cash flows of the 
financial assets, and either –
- Substantially all the risks and rewards 

of ownership have been transferred; or
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- Group has neither retained nor 
transferred substantially all the risks 
and rewards but has not retained 
control  of the financial asset.

From 1 April 2018 any cumulative gain/
loss recognised in OCI in respect of equity 
investment securities designated as at 
FVOCI is not recognised in profit or loss 
on derecognition of such securities. Any 
interest in transferred financial assets 
that qualify for derecognition that is 
created or retained by the Group is 
recognised as a separate asset or liability.

3.2.6 Modifications of financial 
assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets
If the terms of a financial asset are 
modified, then the Group evaluates 
whether the cash flows of the modified 
asset are substantially different.

If the cash flows are substantially 
different, then the contractual right to 
cash flows from the original financial 
asset are deemed to have expired. In 
this case, the original financial asset is 
derecognised, and new financial asset is 
recognised at fair value plus any eligible 
transaction cost. Any fees received as 
part of the modification are accounted as 
follows:
- Fees that are considered in 

determining the fair value of the 
new asset and fees that represent 
reimbursement of eligible transaction 
costs are included in the initial 
measurement of the asset;  
and

- Other fees are included in profit or 
loss as part of the gain or loss on the 
derecognition.

If cash flows are modified when the 
borrower is in financial difficulty, then 
the objective of the  modification is  
usually to minimise recovery of the 
original  contractual  term rather than to 
originate a new asset with substantially 
different terms. If the Group plans to 
modify a financial asset in a way  that 

would result in  forgiveness of  cash 
flows, then it first considers whether a 
portion of the asset should be written 
off before the modification takes place. 
This approach impacts the result of the 
quantitative evaluation and means that 
the derecognition criteria are not usually 
met in such cases.

If the modification of a financial asset 
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI 
does not result in derecognition  of the 
financial asset, then the Group first 
recalculates a gross carrying amount 
of the financial asset using the original 
effective interest rate of the asset and 
recognises the resulting adjustment as 
modification gain or loss in profit or loss. 
For floating- rate financial asset, the 
original effective interest rate used to 
calculate the modification gain or loss is 
adjusted to reflect current market terms 
at the time of modification. Any costs 
or fees incurred, and  fees received as 
part of the modification adjust the gross 
carrying amount of the modified financial 
asset and are amortised over the 
remaining term of the financial asset. 

3.2.7  Identification and 
measurement of impairment
3.2.7.1  Recognition of impairment 
of financial assets
The Group recognises loss allowances 
for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on the 
following financial instruments that are 
not measured at FVTPL:
- Loans and advances to customers;
- Financial assets that are debt 

instruments;
- Lease receivables;
- Financial guarantee contracts issued;
- and Loan commitments issued.

No impairment loss is recognised on 
equity investments.

The Group measures loss allowances at 
an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except 
for the following, for which they are 
measured as 12-month ECL:
- Debt investment securities that are 

determined to have low credit risk at 
the reporting date; and

- Other financial instruments (other than 
lease receivables) on which credit risk 
has not increased significantly since 
their initial recognition.

The Group considers a debt security to 
have low credit risk when their credit 
risk rating is equivalent to the globally 
understood definition of “investment 
grade”. 12-month ECL are the portion of 
ECL that result from default events on 
a financial instrument that are possible 
within the 12 months after the reporting 
date.

3.2.7.2  Presentation of allowance 
for ECL in the statement of financial 
position
Loss allowances for ECL are presented 
in the statement of financial position as 
follows:
- Financial assets measured at 

amortised cost: as a deduction from 
the gross carrying amount of the 
assets;

- Loan commitments and financial 
guarantee contracts: generally, as a 
provision;

- Where a financial instrument 
includes both a drawn and an 
undrawn component, and the Group 
cannot identify the ECL on the loan 
commitment component separately 
from those on the drawn component: 
the Group presents a combined loss 
allowance for both components: The 
combined amount is presented as  a 
deduction from the gross carrying 
amount of the drawn component. Any 
excess of the loss allowance over the 
gross amount of the drawn component 
is presented as a provision; and
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- Debt instruments measured at FVOCI: 
no loss allowance is recognised in 
the statement of financial position 
because the carrying amount of these 
assets is their fair value. However, 
the loss allowance is disclosed and is 
recognised in the fair value reserve.

3.2.7.3  Impairment for loans and 
advances to customers
Individually assessed loans and 
advances 

These are exposures, where evidence 
of impairment exists and those that 
are individually significant meriting 
individual assessment for objective 
evidence of impairment and computation 
of impairment allowance. The factors 
considered in determining that the 
exposures are individually significant 
include:
- the size of the loan; and
- the number of loans in the portfolio

For all loans and advances to customers 
that are considered individually 
significant, Group assesses on a case by 
case basis, whether there is any objective 
evidence of impairment. The criteria used 
by the Group to determine that there is 
such objective evident include:
- Significant financial difficulty of the 

borrower or issuer;
- A breach of contract such as a default 

or past due event;
- The restructuring of a loan or advance 

by the Group on terms that the Group 
would not consider otherwise;

- It is becoming probable that the 
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other 
financial reorganisation; or

- The disappearance of an active market 
for a security because of financial 
difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due 
to a deterioration in the borrower’s 
condition is usually considered to be 
credit-impaired unless there is evidence 
that the risk of not receiving contractual 
cash flows has  reduced  significantly 
and there are no other indicators of 

impairment. In addition, a retail loan 
that is overdue for 60 days or more is   
considered impaired.

Impairment allowance on loans and 
advances and other financial instruments 
measured at amortised cost are 
calculated as the difference between the 
carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows discounted 
at the asset’s original effective interest 
rate

Measurement of impairment of 
financial assets
ECL are a probability-weighted estimate 
of credit losses. They are measured as 
follows:
- Financial assets that are not credit-

impaired at the reporting date: as the 
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. 
the difference between the cash flows 
due to the entity in accordance with 
the contract and the cash flows that 
the Group expects to receive);

- Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date: as the 
difference between the gross carrying 
amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows; 

- Undrawn loan commitments: as the 
present value of the difference between 
the contractual cash flows that are 
due to the Group if the commitment 
is drawn down and the cash flows that 
the Group expects to receive; and

- Financial guarantee contracts: the 
expected payments to reimburse the 
holder less any amounts that the Group 
expects to recover

Collective assessment:
This includes all loans and advances of 
smaller value where there is no evidence 
of impairment and those individually 
assessed for which no evidence of 
impairment has been specifically 
identified on an individual basis.

These loans and advances are grouped 
together as  per Basel Guidelines and 
product level according  to their credit 

risk characteristics for the purpose 
of calculating an estimated collective 
impairment.

In assessing whether an investment in 
debt instrument is credit-impaired, the 
Group considers the following factors;
- The market’s assessment of 

creditworthiness as reflected in the 
bond yields.

- The rating agencies’ assessments of 
creditworthiness

- The country’s ability to access the 
capital markets for new debt issuance

- The probability of debt being 
restructured, resulting in holders 
suffering losses through voluntary or 
mandatory debt forgiveness

Reversals of impairment
If the amount of an impairment loss 
decreases in a subsequent period, and 
the decrease can be related objectively to 
an event occurring after the impairment 
was recognised, the excess is written-
back by reducing the loan impairment 
allowance accordingly. The write-back is 
recognised in the income statement.

Restructured financial assets
If the terms of a financial asset are 
renegotiated or modified or an existing 
financial asset is replaced with a new 
one due to financial difficulties of the 
borrower, then an assessment is made 
of whether the financial asset should be 
derecognised and ECL are measured as 
follows:

If the expected restructuring will not 
result in derecognition of the existing 
asset, then the expected cash flows 
arising from the modified financial asset 
are included in calculating the cash 
shortfalls from the existing asset.

If the expected restructuring will result 
in derecognition of the existing asset, 
then the expected fair value of the new 
asset is treated as the final cash flow 
from the existing financial asset at the 
time of its derecognition. This amount is 
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included in calculating the cash shortfalls 
from the existing financial asset that are 
discounted from the expected date of 
derecognition to the reporting date using 
the original effective interest rate of the 
existing financial asset.

3.2.8  Fiduciary assets
Assets held in a fiduciary capacity are not 
reported in these financial statements as 
they do not belong to the Group. 

3.2.9  Write-off of financial assets
The Group writes off a loan or an 
investment debt security, and any 
related allowances for impairment 
losses, when Group determines that the 
loan or security is uncollectible. This 
determination is made after considering 
information such as the occurrence of 
significant changes in the borrower’s/
issuer’s financial position such that 
the borrower/issuer can no longer pay 
the obligation, or that proceeds from 
collateral will not be sufficient to pay back 
the entire exposure. For smaller balance 
standardised loans, write-off decisions 
generally are based on a product-specific 
past due status.

3.2.10  Financial liabilities
3.2.10.1  Recognition and 
measurement of financial liabilities
On initial recognition, the Group classifies 
financial liabilities, other than financial 
guarantees and loan commitments, into 
one of the following categories:
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost; 

and
- Financial liabilities at fair value through 

profit or loss

3.2.10.2  Classification and 
subsequent measurement of 
financial liabilities
The subsequent measurement of 
financial liabilities depends on their 
classification.

3.2.10.2.1 Financial liabilities at 
amortised cost
Financial Liabilities issued by the Group 
that are not designated at fair value 
through profit or loss are recognised 
initially at fair value plus any  directly 
attributable transaction costs, by 
considering any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are 
an integral part of the EIR. Subsequent 
to initial recognition these financial 
liabilities are measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method. 
Deposit liabilities including savings 
deposits, current deposits, fixed/time 
deposits, call deposits, certificates of 
deposit and debentures are classified 
as financial liabilities measured at 
amortised cost.

The EIR amortisation is included in  
“Interest  expense”  in the income 
statement. Gains and losses too are 
recognised in the income statement 
when the liabilities are derecognised 
as well as through the EIR amortisation 
process.

3.2.10.2.2  Financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss include derivative liabilities 
held for risk management purposes. 

3.2.10.3  Derecognition of Financial 
Liabilities
Group derecognises a financial liability 
when its contractual obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or expired.

3.2.11  Offsetting of Financial 
Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities 
are offset with the net amount reported 
in the Statement of Financial Position 
only if there is a current enforceable legal 
right to offset the recognised amounts 
and intent to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

Income and expense will not be offset in 
the Income Statement unless required or 
permitted by any accounting standard or 
interpretation, as specifically disclosed in 
the accounting policies of the Company.

3.2.12  Impairment of Non-Financial 
Assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-
financial assets, other than inventories 
are reviewed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is any indication 
of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, then the asset’s recoverable 
amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or 
cash-generating unit is the greater of 
its value in use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. In assessing value in use, 
the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using 
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to 
the asset. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, assets that cannot be tested 
individually are grouped together into the 
smallest group of assets that generates 
cash inflows from continuing use that are 
largely independent of the cash inflows 
of other assets or groups of assets (the 
“cash-generating unit, or CGU”).

The Group’s corporate assets do not 
generate separate cash inflows. If there 
is an indication that a corporate asset 
may be impaired, then the recoverable 
amount is determined for the CGU to 
which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if 
the carrying amount of an asset or its 
CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable 
amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment 
losses recognised in respect of CGUs 
are allocated first to reduce the carrying 
amount of any goodwill allocated to the 
units, and then to reduce the carrying 
amounts of the other assets in the unit 
(Company of units) on a pro rata basis.
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Impairment losses recognised in prior 
periods are assessed at each reporting 
date for any indications that the loss 
has decreased or no longer exists. An 
impairment loss is reversed if there has 
been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount. An 
impairment loss is reversed only to the 
extent that the asset’s carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net 
of depreciation or amortisation, if no 
impairment loss had been recognised.

3.2.13  Due to Companies, 
customers, debt securities issued 
and other borrowing
Financial liabilities are recognised 
when Group enters into the contractual 
provisions of the arrangements with 
counterparties, which is generally 
on trade date, and initially measured 
at fair value, which is normally the 
consideration received, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs incurred. 
Subsequent measurement of financial 
liabilities is at amortised cost, using the 
effective interest method to amortise the 
difference between proceeds received, 
net of directly attributable transaction 
costs incurred, and the redemption 
amount over the expected life of the 
instrument.

3.2.14  Provision, Contingent 
Liabilities, Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognised when the 
Company has a present obligation (legal 
or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, where it is probable that an outflow 
of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation.

All contingent liabilities are disclosed as 
a note to the financial statements unless 
the outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets are disclosed, where 
inflow of economic benefit is probable.

3.2.15  Post-Employment Benefits
i. Defined benefit plans
a.) Defined benefit obligation

The liability recognised in the Statement 
of Financial Position is the present value 
of the defined benefit obligation at the 
reporting date, with the advice of an 
actuary, using the projected unit credit 
(PUC) method.

b.) Defined benefit plan
The Company has a pension fund, which 
was incorporated upon Deed of Trust No. 
3543 of 30th January 2004. Gratuity is 
provided to employees from the 1st year 
of service. However, under the Payment 
of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the liability 
to employees arises only on five years of 
continued services. 

ii. Defined contributions plans – 
Employees’ Provident Fund and 
Employees’ Trust Fund
All employees who are eligible for 
Employees’ Provident Fund Contributions 
and Employees’ Trust Fund Contributions 
are covered by relevant contributions 
funds in line with the relevant statutes. 
Employer’s contributions to the defined 
contribution plans are recognised as an 
expense in profit or loss when incurred.

3.2.16  Stated Capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. 
Incremental costs directly attributable 
to the issue of ordinary shares are 
recognised as a deduction from equity, 
net of any tax effects.

3.2.17  Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost 
and estimated net realizable value, after 
making due allowances for obsolete and 
slow moving items. Net realizable value 
is the price at which inventories can be 
sold in the normal course of business 
after allowing for cost of realisation and/
or cost of conversion from their existing 
state to saleable condition.

3.2.18  Investment in Real Estate
Land purchase cost, development cost 
and borrowing cost incurred during the 
development period of the real estate 
projects have been capitalised as 
investment in real estate.

3.2.19  Investment Property
Investment Property principally comprise 
freehold land and building held either 
to earn rental income or for capital 
appreciation or for both, but not for sale 
in the ordinary course of business, use 
in the production or supply of goods or 
services or for administrative purposes. 
Investment property is measured at cost 
on initial recognition and subsequently 
at fair value with any change therein 
recognised in profit or loss.

Cost includes expenditure that is 
directly attributable to the acquisition 
of the investment property. The cost of 
self-constructed investments property 
includes the cost of materials and direct 
labor, any other costs directly attributable 
to bring the investment property to a 
working condition for their intended use 
and capitalised borrowing costs.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an 
investment property (calculated as the 
difference between the net proceeds 
from disposal and the carrying amount 
of the item) is recognised in profit or 
loss. When an investment property that 
was previously classified as property, 
plant and equipment is sold, any related 
amount included in the revaluation 
reserve is transferred to retained 
earnings.

When the use of a property changes such 
that it is reclassified as property, plant 
and equipment, its fair value at the date 
of reclassification becomes its cost for 
subsequent accounting.

Investment Property is carried at 
fair value determined annually by an 
independent valuer. A gain or loss 
arising from a change in the fair value 
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of investment property is recognised in 
profit or loss for the period in which it 
arises.

3.2.20  Non-current assets held for 
sale
Non-current assets that are expected 
to be recovered primarily through a 
disposal rather than through continuing 
use are classified as  held for sale. 
Immediately before classification as held 
for sale, these assets (or components 
of a disposal group) are re-measured in 
accordance with the Group’s accounting 
policies. Thereafter the assets (or 
disposal group) are measured at the 
lower of their carrying amount and fair 
value less cost to sell. Any impairment 
loss on the above assets is first allocated 
to goodwill and then to the remaining 
assets and liabilities on a pro-rata 
basis, except that no loss  is allocated 
to inventories, financial assets, deferred 
tax assets, employee benefit assets and 
investment property, which are continued 
to be measured in accordance with the 
Group’s accounting policies. Impairment 
losses on initial classification as held 
for sale and subsequent gains or losses  
on re-measurement are recognised in 
the income statement. Gains are not 
recognised in excess of any cumulative 
impairment loss.

Once classified as held for sale, intangible 
assets and property, plant and equipment 
are no longer amortised or depreciated, 
and any equity- accounted investee is no 
longer accounted.

3.2.21  Capital Commitments and 
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are possible 
obligations whose existence will be 
confirmed only by uncertain future events 
or present obligations where the transfer 
of economic benefits is not probable or 
cannot be reliably measured.

Capital commitment and contingent 
liabilities of the Group are disclosed in 
the respective notes to the financial 
statements.

3.2.22  Income Statement
3.2.22.1  Revenue from contracts 
with customers
Revenue represents the amounts derived 
from the provision of goods and services 
which fall within the Group’s ordinary 
activities net of trade discounts and 
turnover related taxes.

3.2.22.1.1  Interest Income
Interest Income and expense for all 
interest-bearing financial instruments 
are recognised under “Interest Income” 
and “Interest Expense” in the income 
statement, using the effective interest 
rate of the financial assets or financial 
liabilities to which they relate.

The effective interest rate is the rate that 
discounts estimated future cash receipts 
or payments earned or paid on a financial 
asset or financial liability through its 
expected life (or, where appropriate, 
a shorter period) to the net carrying 
amount of the financial asset or financial 
liability. When calculating the effective 
interest rate, Group estimates future 
cash flows considering all contractual 
terms of the financial instruments 
but not expected credit losses. The 
calculation of the effective interest 
includes all transaction cost, premiums 
or discounts and fees paid or received 
by the Group that are an integral part of 
the effective interest rate. Transaction 
costs include incremental costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of a financial asset or liability.

From 1 April 2018, with the adoption of 
Sri Lank Accounting Standard – SLFRS 
9 “Financial Instruments” the Group has 
aligned its interest recognition policy with 
internal risk management practices. As 
per the internal risk management policies 
of the Group, the facilities are considered 
to be credit impaired when three or more 
installments are in  arrears and the Group 
has estimated that the probability of 
recoverability of the interest income from 
such loan facilities are low. Accordingly, 
the Group discontinues recognition of 

interest income on such loan facilities 
and cash flows are assessed based on 
the amortised cost net of interest. If the 
asset is no longer credit impaired the 
calculation of interest income reverts to 
the gross basis.

3.2.22.1.2  Interest on Bills
Interest income from bills is recognised 
proportionately over the period of the bill 
discounted commencing from the date of 
discounting.

3.2.22.1.3  Income from Fee-Based 
Activities
Commission from underwriting, 
management of funds and all other 
commissions and fees are recognised 
in the period in which such transactions 
were effected based on the conditions 
stipulated in the respective agreements 
and contracts.

3.2.22.1.4  Overdue Charges
Overdue charges of leasing, hire 
purchase, loans and advances have been 
accounted for on a cash basis.

3.2.22.1.5  Gain on Sale of Equity 
Investments
Gains earned on the sale of equity 
investments has been accounted for in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss on the 
basis of realised net profit.

3.2.22.1.6  Dividend Income
The dividend income is recognised when 
the Group’s right to receive payment is 
established.

3.2.22.1.7  Real Estate Income
Income is recognised when the property 
is sold, and the risks and rewards of the 
property is passed on to the buyer. For 
this purpose the property is deemed to 
be sold once 30% of the outright sales 
price has been received.
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However, when there is insufficient 
assurance as to the receipt of the total 
consideration, income is accounted on a 
cash received basis.

3.2.22.1.8  Gain on Sale of Property, 
Plant and Equipment
Profits or losses of a revenue nature 
on the disposal of Property, Plant & 
Equipment have been accounted for in 
the statement of  profit or loss.

3.2.22.1.9  Interest on Overdue 
Rentals
Interests from overdue rentals have been 
accounted for on a cash received basis.

3.2.22.1.10  Other Income
All other income is recognised on an 
accrual basis.

3.2.22.2  Reserve Fund
The Group is maintaining a reserve fund 
in compliance with Direction No. 01 of 
2003 – Finance Companies (Capital 
Funds) issued to Finance companies 
and it will be used only for the purpose 
specified in the said Direction. 

3.2.22.3  Expenditure Recognition
All the expenditure incurred in 
the running of the business and 
in maintaining the Property, Plant 
Equipment in a state of efficiency has 
been charged to profit or loss.

3.2.22.3.1  Interest Expense on 
Borrowings and Deposits
The interest expenses on deposits and 
borrowings are recognised on an accrual 
basis in the Statement of Profit or 
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 
Statement.

3.2.22.4  Tax
Tax expense comprises current and 
deferred tax. Current tax and deferred 
tax is recognised in profit or loss except 
to the extent that it relates to a business 
combination, or items recognised directly 
in equity or in other comprehensive 
income.

The Group has determined that interest 
and penalties related to income taxes, 
including uncertain tax treatment, do not 
meet the definition of income taxes, and 
therefore accounted for them under LKAS 
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets. 

i. Current Tax
Current Income tax liabilities for the 
current and prior periods are measured 
at the amount expected to be recovered 
from or paid to the Commissioner 
General of Inland Revenue. The tax 
rates and tax laws used to compute the 
amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting 
date. The relevant details are disclosed 
in the respective notes to the Financial 
Statements.

ii. Deferred Tax
Deferred taxation is provided, using 
the liability method, on all temporary 
differences at the reporting date between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amounts for financial 
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for 
all deductible temporary differences, 
carry forward of unused tax losses and 
unused tax credits to the extent that it is 
probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences and carry forward 
of unused tax losses/ credits can be 
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax 
assets is reviewed at each reporting 
date and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that the related tax 
benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply to the year when the 
asset is realised or the liability is settled, 
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively 
enacted as at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities are offset if legally enforceable 
right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and when 
the deferred taxes relate to the same 
taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority.

3.2.22.5  VAT on Financial Services
VAT on Financial Services is calculated 
in accordance with the amended VAT Act 
No. 7 of 2003.

3.2.22.6  Earnings Per Share
The Group presents basic and diluted 
earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary 
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by 
dividing the profit or loss attributable to 
ordinary shareholders of the Group by 
the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting 
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders and the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding 
for the effects of all dilutive potential 
ordinary shares.
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3.2.22.7  Segmental Reporting
An operating segment is a component 
of the Group that engages in business 
activities from which it may earn 
revenues and incur expenses, including 
revenues and expenses that relating to 
transactions with any of the Group’s other 
components. All operating segments 
operating results are reviewed regularly 
by the Group’s operating decision marker 
to make decisions about the resources 
to each segment and to assess its 
performance, and for which discrete 
financial information is available.

Assets and liabilities directly attributable 
to each segment are allocated to 
the respective segments. Assets 
and liabilities, which are not directly 
attributable to a segment, are allocated 
on a reasonable basis wherever possible.

3.2.22.8  Events occurring after the 
reporting date
Events after the reporting period are 
those events favorable and unfavorable, 
that occur between the end of the 
reporting period and the date when the 
financial statements are authorised for 
issue.

The materiality of the events occurring 
after the reporting period are considered 
and appropriate adjustments to or 
disclosures are made in the Financial 
Statements, where necessary.

3.2.22.9  Cash Flow Statements
Cash and Cash Equivalents are defined 
as cash in hand and short term highly 
liquid investments readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash and subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of Statement of Cash 
Flows, cash and cash equivalent consists 
of cash in hand and deposits in Groups 
net of outstanding Group overdrafts, 
investment in gold coins and lending 
against government securities.

For the purpose of Statement of Cash 
Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist 
of cash in hand and deposits in Groups 
net of outstanding Group overdrafts. 
Investments with short maturities i.e. 
three months or less from the date of 
acquisition are also treated as cash 
equivalents.

The Statement of Cash Flows has been 
prepared using the “indirect method”.

Interest paid are classified as operating 
cash flows, interest and dividend received 
are classified as investing cash flows 
while dividends paid are classified as 
financing cash flows for the purpose of 
presenting of Statement of Cash Flows.

4.  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES
Definition of a Business
The Group applied Definition of a 
Business (Amendments to SLFRS 
3) to business combinations whose 
dates of acquisition are on or after 1 
January 2020 in assessing whether it 
had acquired a business or a group of 
assets. The amendments do not have a 
material effect on the Group’s financial 
statements because the Group has not 
acquired any subsidiaries during the 
year. However, the Group has amended 
its accounting policies for acquisition 
on or after 1 April 2020. The details of 
accounting policies are set out in Note 
3.2.1.

Except for the change above, the Group 
has consistently applied the accounting 
policies as set out in Note 3.2.1 to all 
periods presented in these consolidated 
financial statements.
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5.  NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE AS AT 
REPORTING DATE
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Sri Lanka has issued the following new Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards which will 
become applicable for financial periods 
beginning on or after 1st April 2021. 
Accordingly, this Standards has not been 
applied in preparing these Consolidated 
Financial Statements. The Group has not 
early adopted new standards in preparing 
Consolidated financial statements.

 ∫ COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions 
(Amendments to SLFRS 16)

 ∫ Property, Plant and Equipment: 
Proceeds before Intended Use 
(Amendments to LKAS 16)

 ∫ Classification of Liabilities as Current or 
Non-current (Amendments to LKAS 1)

 ∫ Reference to Conceptual Framework 
(Amendments to SLFRS 3)

 ∫ Insurance Contracts (SLFRS 17).
 ∫ Interest Rate Benchmark Reform. 

(Amendments to SLFRS 9, LKAS 39 
and SLFRS 7)

 ∫ Annual improvements SLFRS 2018-
2020



NATION LANKA FINANCE PLC | ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

PAGE 114

6.  INCOME

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Interest Income 7  1,179,017,263  1,938,724,663  1,179,017,263  1,938,724,663 

Fees and Commission Income 6.1  9,063,904  10,883,079  9,063,904  10,883,079 

 1,188,081,167  1,949,607,742  1,188,081,167  1,949,607,742 

6.1  Fees and Commission Income

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Fees and Commission Income  9,063,904  10,883,079  9,063,904  10,883,079 

7.  INTEREST INCOME

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Finance Leases  298,533,491  380,135,818  298,533,491  380,135,818 

Pawning  168,477,815  221,190,475  168,477,815  221,190,475 

Term Loans  253,140,192  354,324,587  253,140,192  354,324,587 

Term Loans-Micro Finance  375,169,319  863,102,768  375,169,319  863,102,768 

Hire Purchase  59,783,143  61,581,615  59,783,143  61,581,615 

Interest income on Government Securities  23,510,840  57,397,547  23,510,840  57,397,547 

Interest Income on Sub-Lease  402,463  991,853  402,463  991,853 

 1,179,017,263  1,938,724,663  1,179,017,263  1,938,724,663 

Interest Income from Loans and advances to customers includes modification loss made to loans due to moratorium/ debt 
concessionary schemes implemented by the Government as a measure to support the recovery of businesses/ customers affected 
by COVID 19 pandemic.
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8.  DIRECT INTEREST COST

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Interest on Fixed Deposits  614,381,218  874,582,558  614,381,218  874,582,558 

Interest on Bank Borrowings  1,076,933  2,988,349  1,076,933  2,988,349 

Interest on Other Borrowings  71,235,848  76,849,489  71,235,848  76,849,489 

Interest on Overdrafts  12,968,053  2,500,695  12,968,053  2,500,695 

Interest on Savings  16,629,231  33,139,379  16,629,231  33,139,379 

Interest on Leases  16,000,059  18,803,987  16,000,059  18,803,987 

Interest on Debentures  21,000,000  22,165,826  21,000,000  22,165,826 

 753,291,342  1,031,030,283  753,291,342  1,031,030,283 

 
9.  OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Dividend Income  3,938,734  2,363,037  3,938,734  2,363,037 

Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant & 
Equipment  83,000  3,103,500  83,000  3,103,500 

Gain on Disposal of Investment Property  -    1,350,000  -    1,350,000 

Interest Income from Fixed Deposits  21,915,778  6,979,675  21,915,778  6,979,675 

Rent Income  1,550,000  1,950,000  1,550,000  1,950,000 

Miscellaneous Income  1,516,394  34,656,619  1,516,394  34,656,619 

Gain/(loss) on disposal of Units of Unit Trust  -    1,949,663  -    1,949,663 

Net Gain from derecognition of lease Assets  7,991,108  -    7,991,108  -   

Provision reversal of VAT on Financial Service  45,013,742  -    45,013,742  -   

Provision reversal of Debt Repayment Levy  12,332,896  -    12,332,896  -   

Provision reversal of Nation Building Tax  10,151,491  -    10,151,491  -   

 104,493,143  52,352,494  104,493,143  52,352,494 
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10.  OPERATING EXPENSES INCLUDE  THE FOLLOWING

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Directors' Emoluments  - Short Term 
Employment Benefit

- Board meeting fees  250,000  1,613,975  250,000  910,050 

- Board approved committees  334,900  1,810,820  334,900  1,808,837 

- Executive duties  1,632,400  14,339,086  1,632,400  10,610,791 

Auditors Remuneration - Audit 2,750,000  2,445,196 2,750,000  2,445,196 

                                          - Non Audit  450,000  407,204  450,000 407,204

Depreciation and Amortisation 75,078,157  96,726,471 75,078,157  96,726,471 

Personnel Cost (Note 10.1)  320,988,003  404,812,593  320,988,003  404,812,593 

Debt Repayment Levy  -    19,878,873  -    19,878,873 

Donations  17,045  214,826  17,045  214,826 

Legal Expenses  2,170,641  3,897,646  2,170,641  3,897,646 

* Directors’ Emoluments include the salaries, benefits and fees paid to both Executive and Non-Executive   Directors of the Company and Group.

10.1  Personnel Cost

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Salaries and Other Staff Cost  282,583,739  356,065,712  282,583,739  356,065,712 

Defined Contribution Plans  -  EPF & ETF   32,729,409  42,668,585  32,729,409  42,668,585 

Provision for Retirement Benefit Obligations 30.5  5,674,855  6,078,296  5,674,855  6,078,296 

 320,988,003  404,812,593  320,988,003  404,812,593 

Number of Employees 429  506 429  506 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INFORMATION



NATION LANKA FINANCE PLC | ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

PAGE 117

11.  IMPAIRMENT CHARGES FOR LOANS, ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Term Loan 18.1.1A &
18.1.1B

201,592,077 (20,631,930)  201,592,077 (20,631,930)

Micro Finance Receivables 18.1.2A 8,986,367 84,082,983  8,986,367 84,082,983 

Lease Receivables 18.4.1 &
 18.4.2

3,949,850 46,629,973  3,949,850 46,629,973 

Pawning Advances 18.2.1 (1,882,147)  229,293 (1,882,147) 229,293 

Hire Purchase Receivables 18.3.1 &
 18.3.2

9,450,804 10,073,990  9,450,804 10,073,990 

Loans & Receivables (Repossessed Collaterals) 18.5 (28,196,790)  45,872,409 (28,196,790) 45,872,409 

Trade receivables 28.1 (419,477)  1,089,200 (419,477) 1,089,200 

Other Receivables 28.2 (85,075,732) (8,003,289) (85,075,732) (8,003,289)

Impairment of Amounts Due from Related 
Parties

21.1  1,332,434  -    1,332,434  -   

Impairment Real Estate Stock 22 (1,607,313)  -   (1,607,314)  -   

Impairment of other investments 15.1  -   (2,815,471)  -   (2,815,471)

 108,130,071  156,527,158  108,130,071  156,527,158 

11.1  Impairment charges

 Company/Group 

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Financial assets at amortised cost-Loans and receivables from customers 

Loans and Advances 

Stage 1 (1,589,246) 36,855,330 

Stage 2 (6,109,219) 519,767 

Stage 3 209,290,542 (58,007,027)

201,592,077 (20,631,930)

Lease Receivables

Stage 1 315,568 (17,795,741)

Stage 2 (6,751,800) (869,945)

Stage 3 10,386,082 65,295,659 

 3,949,850  46,629,973 
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 Company/Group 

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Hire Purchase Receivables

Stage 1 2,474,734 733,525 

Stage 2 7,483,812 2,754,146 

Stage 3 (507,742) 6,586,319 

9,450,804 10,073,990 

Repossess Stock (28,196,790)  45,872,409 

Pawning Advances (1,882,147) 229,293 

Micro Finance Receivables 8,986,367 84,082,983 

Other Investments  -   (2,815,471)

Trade receivables  (419,477)  1,089,200 

Other Receivables  - Provision for impairment (85,075,732) (8,003,289)

Impairment of Amounts Due from Related Parties 1,332,434  -   

Impairment Real Estate Stock (1,607,313)  -   

Total  108,130,071  156,527,158 

12.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

12.1  Current Income Tax Expense 12.2  -    -    -    -   

Deferred taxation reversal 31.1  (18,191,954)  (121,130,684)  (18,191,954)  (121,130,684)

 (18,191,954)  (121,130,684)  (18,191,954)  (121,130,684)
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12.2  Reconciliation of Accounting Profit with Taxable Profit

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Loss before Income Tax Expense  (142,586,100)  (112,544,184)  (142,509,250)  (112,544,184)

Income not liable for Taxation  (67,558,734)  (38,338,037)  (67,558,734)  (38,338,037)

Aggregate Disallowed Items  1,103,041,463  599,578,541 576,114,238  599,578,541 

Allowable Expenses  (631,119,404)  (550,307,242)  (627,823,479)  (550,307,242)

Total assessable income from business  261,777,225  (101,610,922)  (261,777,225)  (101,610,922)

Taxable Profit/(Loss) 12.3  261,777,225  (101,610,922)  (261,777,225)  (101,610,922)

Taxation @ 28%  -    -    -    -   

Taxation on profit for the year  -    -    -    -   

Reconciliation of Tax Loss

Tax Loss Brought Forward  1,422,891,787  1,422,891,787  1,422,891,787  1,573,957,121 

Over/(under) provision for income tax  72,639,192  (252,676,256)  72,639,192  (252,676,256)

Tax Loss for the year  261,777,225  101,610,922  261,777,225  101,610,922 

Tax Loss Carried Forward  1,757,308,204  1,422,891,787  1,757,308,204  1,422,891,787 

12.3  Company 
(a)  As instructed by the Ministry of Finance on January 31, 2020, changes to the current tax rate was proposed, pending formal 
amendments being made to the Act and to be implemented with effect from January 01, 2020. The Bill to amend the Inland Revenue 
Act No. 24 of 2017 was gazetted and issued on 18 March 2021. The Bill was presented at the Parliament for first reading and 
approved on 26th March 2021. Accordingly, the new tax rate of 24% (2020 - 28%) has been considered to be substantially enacted 
as at reporting date for the computation of Current and Deferred tax for the year ended 31 March 2021.

13.  BASIC EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE
Basic Earnings/(Loss) per ordinary share has been calculated based on the profit/(loss) attributable to the ordinary shareholders 
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 

There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at any time during the year, hence diluted earnings per share is equal 
to the basic earnings per share.

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Profit/(Loss) attributable to Ordinary Shareholders (Rs.) (124,394,146) 8,591,600 (124,317,296) 8,586,500 

Weighted Average No. of Shares (Note 13.1)  1,353,792,606 1,353,792,606 1,353,792,606  1,353,792,606 

Basic Earning/(Loss) Per Share (0.09) 0.01 (0.09) 0.01 
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13.1  Weighted Average Number of Shares

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Brought forward number of shares  1,353,792,606  1,059,397,523  1,353,792,606  1,059,397,523 

Current year effect of the Right Issue  -    294,395,083  -    294,395,083 

Weighted Average Number of Shares  1,353,792,606  1,353,792,606  1,353,792,606  1,353,792,606 

14.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Cash in Hand  51,423,721  36,801,718  51,423,721  36,801,718 

Cash at Bank  53,750,974  49,608,447  53,750,974  49,608,447 

 105,174,695  86,410,165  105,174,695  86,410,165 

15.  DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED COMMERCIAL BANKS

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Seylan Bank PLC  65,437,484  72,566,206  65,437,484  72,566,206 

NDB  240,000,000  -    240,000,000  -   

Impairment Allowance for Fixed deposits 15.1 (209,445) (209,445) (209,445) (209,445)

 305,228,039  72,356,761  305,228,039  72,356,761 

15.1  Impairment Allowance for Fixed deposits

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance  as at beginning of the year  209,445  15,402  209,445  15,402 

Impairment charge/(reversal) for the year  -   194,043  -   194,043 

Balance as at end of the year  209,445  209,445  209,445  209,445 
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16.  FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FVTPL

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year  16,229,355  18,321,038  16,229,355  18,321,038 

Scrip dividend received  159,984  -    159,984  -   

Net change in Fair Value  14,454,166  (2,091,683) 14,454,166  (2,091,683)

Balance at the end of the year  30,843,505  16,229,355  30,843,505  16,229,355 

16.1  Equity Securities - Quoted

Group/Company

2021 2020

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

No. of Shares Market Value
Rs.

No. of Shares Market Value
Rs.

Diversified Holdings

Softlogic Holding PLC  19,201  226,572  19,201  236,172 

Sunshine Holding PLC  45,828  1,214,442  15,276  578,960 

Vallibel One PLC  83,855  3,949,571  80,000  960,000 

 5,390,585  1,775,132 

Hotels And Travels

Galadari Hotel PLC  89,849  691,837  89,849  548,079 

Anilana Hotels & Properties PLC  13,907,348  15,298,083  13,907,348  9,735,144 

 15,989,920  10,283,223 

Telecom

Dialog Axiata PLC  250,000  3,250,000  250,000  2,125,000 

Manufacturing

Piramal Glass Ceylon PLC  500,000  5,550,000  500,000  1,650,000 

Construction  And Engineering

Access Engineering PLC  30,000  663,000  30,000  396,000 

Total  30,843,505  16,229,355 

17.  FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FVOCI

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Equity Securities - Unquoted   32,031,031  129,665,025  32,031,031  129,665,025 

Impairment provision for equity securities 17.2  -   (103,670,968)  -   (103,670,968)

 32,031,031  25,994,057  32,031,031  25,994,057 

Net change in Fair Value  2,999,473  6,036,974  2,999,473  6,036,974 

17.1  35,030,504  32,031,031  35,030,504  32,031,031 
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Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,  No of
 Shares 

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

17.1  E-futures (Private) Limited  2,280,000  24,426,406  22,066,282  24,426,406  22,066,282 

Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka  100  2,098,266  1,980,257  2,098,266  1,980,257 

Nation Lanka Promotions Ltd  1,000,000  8,505,832  7,984,492  8,505,832  7,984,492 

 35,030,504  32,031,031  35,030,504  32,031,031 

17.2  Equity Securities - Unquoted - Impairment provision  

2020

For the year ended 31st March,  No of Shares Cost
Rs.

 Asian Finance Ltd  2,636,402  26,239,020 

 Cey Homes Credit & Investments Ltd.  100,000  1,000,000 

 Ceycom Global Communication Ltd.  50,000  250,000 

 Ceylinco Capital Ltd  25,000  250,000 

 Ceylinco Cellular Company (Pvt) Ltd  20,000  200,000 

 Ceylinco CISCO Ranaviru Services (Pvt) Ltd.  12,500  125,000 

 Ceylinco CISCO Cash Management &Transit Co.Ltd  12,500  125,000 

 Ceylinco Design & Project Management Co.(Pvt) Ltd.  37,500  375,000 

 Ceylinco Diamond Trading Co (Pvt). Ltd.  616,037  7,186,830 

 Ceylinco Fashion Trends Co. Ltd.  30,000  300,000 

 Ceylinco Foliage Export (Pvt) Ltd.  1,784,534  17,919,235 

 Ceylinco Freight International (Pvt) Ltd.  10,200  102,000 

 Ceylinco Grameen Credit Co. Ltd.  15,000  150,000 

 Ceylinco Holding (Pvt) Ltd.  1,000  10,000 

 Ceylinco Homes International Ltd.  500,000  5,000,000 

 Ceylinco Hotels Ltd.  47,000  470,000 

 Ceylinco Investment & Reality Ltd.  25,000  250,000 

 Ceylinco Management & Accountancy Services Ltd.  100,000  1,000,000 

 Ceylinco Net Assist (Pvt) Ltd.  12,500  125,000 

 Ceylinco Niranjan Invention (Pvt) Ltd.  9,875  61,250 

 Ceylinco Packaging Co. Ltd.  50,000  500,000 

 Ceylinco Pharmaceuticals Ltd  25,000  250,000 

 Ceylinco Profit Sharing Investment Corporation Ltd.  12,500  125,000 

 Ceylinco Seylan Housing & Commercial Properties Ltd.  40,540  405,400 

 Ceylinco Shriram Capital Management Services Co.(Pvt) Ltd.  2,500  25,000 

 Ceylinco Tax & Financial Consultants (Pvt) Ltd.  23,000  230,000 

 Ceylinco Travels & Tours Ltd.  20,000  200,000 

 Ceylinco Universal Ltd.  5,000  50,000 

 Ceylinco Venture Capital Co. Ltd.  145,000  1,450,000 

 Ceylinco Worldwide Trading  (Pvt) Ltd.  150  7,572 
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2020

For the year ended 31st March,  No of Shares Cost
Rs.

 Ceynergy Electronic Co.(Pvt) Ltd.  30,000  300,000 

 eceylinco.com  (Pvt) Ltd.  10,000  100,000 

 Economic Resurgence Association (Pvt) Ltd  200,000  1,000,000 

 IC & CS Software Solution Co. (Pvt) Ltd  10,000  100,000 

 Independent Financial News & Views (Pvt) Ltd  14,290  142,900 

 International College of Business Technology Ltd.  40,000  400,000 

 International Consultancy & Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd.  20,000  200,000 

 Knoelt  (Pvt) Ltd.  3,000  312,500 

 MBSL Savings Bank Ltd  10,833  108,330 

 Middleway Ltd.  416  5,437 

 Middleway Printing (Pvt) Ltd.  20,000  200,000 

 Peoples Reality Ltd  18,244,504  18,246,718 

 San Michele Ltd.  1,750  175,000 

 Seraka Investments Ltd.  410,000  4,100,000 

 South Asian Travels Ltd  25,000  250,000 

 The Finance & Guarantee Company Ltd  2,500  250,000 

 The Golden Key Credit Card Co. Ltd.  55,030  669,804 

 Tropical Foliage Ltd  100,000  890,932 

 Equity Investment Lanka Ltd.  50,000  600,000 

 Lanka Tractors Ltd.  36,000  518,040 

 92,950,968 

 In Preference Shares 

 Ceylinco Hotels Ltd. - 10%  820,000  8,200,000 

 Tropical Foliage Ltd  250,000  2,500,000 

 10,700,000 

 In Others 

 Ceylinco Building Society Ltd.  40  20,000 

 20,000 

 Total  103,670,968 
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18.  FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST-LOANS AND ADVANCES

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Loans 18.1  2,610,248,526  3,351,532,152  2,610,248,526  3,351,532,152 

Pawning 18.2  496,332,837  874,884,915  496,332,837  874,884,915 

Hire Purchase 18.3  180,284,700  227,397,356  180,284,700  227,397,356 

Leasing 18.4  1,065,619,264  1,407,348,237  1,065,619,264  1,407,348,237 

Loans & Receivables (Repossessed Collaterals) 18.5  56,943,971  88,336,379  56,943,971  88,336,379 

 4,409,429,298  5,949,499,039  4,409,429,298  5,949,499,039 

18.1  Loans

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Term Loans 18.1.1  1,878,400,273  2,109,272,723  1,878,400,273  2,109,272,723 

Micro Finance Receivables 18.1.2  729,352,204  1,228,658,408  729,352,204  1,228,658,408 

Staff Loans  2,496,049  13,601,021  2,496,049  13,601,021 

 2,610,248,526  3,351,532,152  2,610,248,526  3,351,532,152 

18.1.1  Term Loans

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Term Loans  2,873,129,384  2,902,409,757  2,873,129,384  2,902,409,757 

Impairment Allowance for Loans - Individual 18.1.1A (271,203,685)  (236,062,641)  (271,203,685)  (236,062,641)

Impairment Allowance for Loans - Collective 18.1.1B (723,525,426)  (557,074,393)  (723,525,426)  (557,074,393)

 1,878,400,273  2,109,272,723  1,878,400,273  2,109,272,723 

18.1.1.A  Impairment Allowance for Term Loans - Individual 

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance  as at beginning of the year  236,062,641  105,793,344  236,062,641  105,793,344 

Impairment charge for the year  35,141,044  130,269,297  35,141,044  130,269,297 

Balance as at end of the year  271,203,685  236,062,641  271,203,685  236,062,641 
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18.1.1.B  Impairment Allowance for Term Loans - Collective 

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance  as at beginning of the year  557,074,393  707,975,621  557,074,393  707,975,621 

Impairment charge for the year  166,451,033  (150,901,228)  166,451,033  (150,901,228)

Balance as at end of the year  723,525,426  557,074,393  723,525,426  557,074,393 

18.1.2  Micro Finance Receivables

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Micro Finance Receivables  1,400,207,760  1,890,527,597  1,400,207,760  1,890,527,597 

Impairment Allowance for Micro Finance Loans 18.1.2A  (670,855,556)  (661,869,189)  (670,855,556)  (661,869,189)

 729,352,204  1,228,658,408  729,352,204  1,228,658,408 

18.1.2.A  Impairment Allowance for Micro Finance Loans

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance  as at beginning of the year  661,869,189  577,786,206  661,869,189  577,786,206 

Impairment charge for the year  8,986,367  84,082,983  8,986,367  84,082,983 

Balance as at end of the year  670,855,556  661,869,189  670,855,556  661,869,189 

18.2  Pawning Advances

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Pawning  500,151,805  880,586,030  500,151,805  880,586,030 

Impairment Allowance for Pawning Advances (Note 18.2.1) (3,818,968) (5,701,115) (3,818,968) (5,701,115)

 496,332,837  874,884,915 496,332,837  874,884,915 

18.2.1  Impairment Allowance for Pawning  Advances

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance  as at beginning of the year  5,701,115  5,471,822 5,701,115  5,471,822 

Impairment (reversal)/charge for the year  (1,882,147)  229,293  (1,882,147)  229,293 

Balance as at end of the year  3,818,968  5,701,115  3,818,968  5,701,115 
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18.2.2  Interest in suspense Pawning

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance  as at beginning of the year  -    10,550,198  -    10,550,198 

Impairment reversal for the year  -    (10,550,198)  -    (10,550,198)

Balance as at end of the year  -    -    -    -   

18.3  Hire Purchase Receivable

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Hire Purchase Stock  286,902,681  340,465,026  286,902,681  340,465,026 

Deferred Interest  (81,890,244)  (97,790,737)  (81,890,244)  (97,790,737)

 205,012,437  242,674,289  205,012,437  242,674,289 

Impairment Allowance for HP Receivables - 
Individual 18.3.1  (516,929)  (1,798,002)  (516,929)  (1,798,002)

Impairment Allowance for HP Receivables - 
Collective 18.3.2  (24,210,808)  (13,478,931)  (24,210,808)  (13,478,931)

 180,284,700  227,397,356  180,284,700  227,397,356 

18.3.1  Impairment Allowance for HP Receivables – Individual 

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance  as at beginning of the year  1,798,002  -    1,798,002  -   

Impairment (reversal)/charge for the year (1,281,073)  1,798,002 (1,281,073)  1,798,002 

Balance as at end of the year  516,929  1,798,002  516,929  1,798,002 

18.3.2  Impairment Allowance for HP Receivables - Collective 

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance  as at beginning of the year 13,478,931  5,202,943  13,478,931  5,202,943 

Impairment charge for the year  10,731,877  8,275,988  10,731,877  8,275,988 

Balance as at end of the year 24,210,808  13,478,931 24,210,808  13,478,931 
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18.4  Finance Leases

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Gross Investment  1,589,005,930  2,173,298,806  1,589,005,930  2,173,298,806 

Unearned Income (388,521,697) (635,035,450) (388,521,697)  (635,035,450)

 1,200,484,233  1,538,263,356  1,200,484,233  1,538,263,356 

Impairment Allowance for Finance Leases - 
Individual 18.4.1  (3,217,327)  (5,155,246)  (3,217,327)  (5,155,246)

Impairment Allowance for Finance Leases - 
Collective 18.4.2  (131,647,642)  (125,759,873)  (131,647,642)  (125,759,873)

Net Lease Rental receivables  1,065,619,264  1,407,348,237  1,065,619,264  1,407,348,237 

18.4.1  Impairment Allowance for Finance Leases - Individual 

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance  as at beginning of the year  5,155,246  1,334,565  5,155,246  1,334,565 

Impairment (reversal)/charge for the year  (1,937,919)  3,820,681  (1,937,919)  3,820,681 

Balance as at end of the year  3,217,327  5,155,246  3,217,327  5,155,246 

18.4.2  Impairment Allowance for Finance Leases - Collective 

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance  as at beginning of the year  125,759,873  82,950,581  125,759,873  82,950,581 

Impairment charge for the year  5,887,769  42,809,292  5,887,769  42,809,292 

Balance as at end of the year  131,647,642  125,759,873  131,647,642  125,759,873 

18.5  Loans & Receivables (Repossessed Collaterals)

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Hire Purchase 18.5.1  4,418,623  5,316,000  4,418,623  5,316,000 

Leasing 18.5.2  52,525,348  83,020,379  52,525,348  83,020,379 

 56,943,971  88,336,379  56,943,971  88,336,379 
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18.5.1  Hire Purchase (Repossessed Collaterals)

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Capital Outstanding  5,823,669  7,789,339  5,823,669  7,789,339 

Impairment allowance for Repossessed 
collaterals 18.5.1.1  (1,405,046)  (2,473,339)  (1,405,046)  (2,473,339)

 4,418,623  5,316,000  4,418,623  5,316,000 

18.5.1.1  Impairment Allowance for Hire Purchases (Repossessed Collaterals)

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance  as at beginning of the year  2,473,339  3,247,863  2,473,339  2,473,339 

Impairment reversal for the year  (1,068,293)  (774,524)  (1,068,293)  (1,068,293)

Balance as at end of the year  1,405,046  2,473,339  1,405,046  1,405,046 

18.5.2  Leasing (Repossessed Collaterals)

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Capital Outstanding  106,785,725 164,409,253  106,785,725 164,409,253 

Impairment allowance for Repossessed 
collaterals 18.5.2.1  (54,260,377) (81,388,874)  (54,260,377)  (81,388,874)

 52,525,348  83,020,379  52,525,348  83,020,379 

18.5.2.1  Impairment Allowance for Leasing (Repossessed Collaterals)

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance  as at beginning of the year  81,388,874  34,741,941  81,388,874  34,741,941 

Impairment (reversal)/charge for the year  (27,128,497)  46,646,933  (27,128,497)  46,646,933 

Balance as at end of the year  54,260,377  81,388,874  54,260,377  81,388,874 
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18.6  Expected credit loss provision for loans and receivables
18.6.1  Total Impairment Provision

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year  1,690,761,603  1,524,504,885  1,690,761,603  1,524,504,885 

Impairment charge for the year  193,900,161  166,256,718  193,900,161  166,256,718 

Balance as at end of the year  1,884,661,764  1,690,761,603  1,884,661,764  1,690,761,603 

18.6.1.A  Individual Impairment Provision

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year  241,763,756  112,599,734  241,763,756  112,599,734 

Impairment charge for the year  36,993,152  129,164,022  36,993,152  129,164,022 

Balance as at end of the year  278,756,908  241,763,756  278,756,908  241,763,756 

18.6.1.B  Collective Impairment Provision

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year  1,448,997,847  1,411,905,151  1,448,997,847  1,411,905,151 

Impairment charge for the year  156,907,009  37,092,696  156,907,009  37,092,696 

Balance as at end of the year  1,605,904,856  1,448,997,847  1,605,904,856  1,448,997,847 
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18.6.2  Movements in impairment during the year

 Company/Group 

As at 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Stage 1

Balance at the beginning of the year  115,071,809  95,278,696 

Charge to profit or loss  1,201,056  19,793,113 

Balance as at end of the year  116,272,865  115,071,809 

Stage 2

Balance at the beginning of the year  120,984,157  118,580,188 

Charge to profit or loss (5,377,209)  2,403,969 

Balance as at end of the year  115,606,948  120,984,157 

Stage 3

Balance at the beginning of the year  703,273,120  689,398,169 

Charge to profit or loss  219,168,883 13,874,951 

Balance as at end of the year  922,442,003  703,273,120 

Repossess stock  55,665,423  83,862,213 

Micro Finance  670,855,556  661,869,189 

Pawning  3,818,968  5,701,115 

Impairment provision of Loans and Advances to Customers  1,884,661,764  1,690,761,603 

Other Investments  209,445  209,445 

Total impairment  1,884,871,209  1,690,971,048 

18.7  Loans And Advances To Related Companies
This balance is included in loans and receivables given in Note 18. Given below is additional information and this has been disclosed 
separately as it is a balance with a related party.

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Loan Receivables - Related companies

Nation Lanka Equities (Pvt) Ltd  -    33,356,684  -    33,356,684 

Ceyoka (Private) Ltd  -    72,782,803  -    72,782,803 

Nawaloka Hospitals PLC  -    6,651,370  -    6,651,370 

 -    112,790,857  -    112,790,857 

During the period the balances of Nation Lanka Equities (Pvt) Ltd and the Ceyoka (Private) Ltd have been removed from the 
clasification of Related companies after the  retirement of Mr.Harshith Dharmadasha and the demise of Mr.Jayanth Perera.

COVID-19 Initiatives
For facilities subject to the COVID-19 repayment deferral arrangements, an assessment of Significant Increase in Credit Risk (SICR) 
has been determined based on various measures of the customer’s current financial position, future earnings capacity and the 
sectors in which the customers operate from which the facilities are categorised into risk categories. SICR is then determined based 
on the resulting risk categorisation. Based on the risk categorisation, facilities have been stress tested and required allowance 
overlays have been made.
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KEY JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
In estimating collectively assessed ECL, the Company makes judgements and assumptions in relation to:
 ∫ the selection of an estimation technique or modelling methodology, noting that the modelling of the Company ECL estimates are 

complex; and
 ∫ the selection of inputs for those models, and the interdependencies between those inputs

The following table summarises the key judgements and assumptions used by the Company in relation to the ECL model inputs, the 
interdependencies between those inputs, and highlights the significant changes during the current year.

The judgements and associated assumptions have been made within the context of the impact of COVID-19, and reflect historical 
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant, including expectations of future events that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. In relation to COVID-19, judgements and assumptions include the extent and duration of the 
pandemic, the impacts of actions of governments and other authorities, and the responses of businesses and consumers in different 
industries, along with the associated impact on the economy. Accordingly, the Company’s ECL estimates are inherently uncertain 
and, as a result, actual results may differ from these estimates.

Judgement/Assumption Description Considerations for the year ended

Determining when a 
Significant Increase in Credit 
Risk (SICR) has occurred

In the measurement of ECL, judgement is 
involved in setting the rules and trigger points to 
determine whether there has been a SICR since 
initial recognition of a loan, which would result 
in the financial asset moving from ‘Stage 1’ to 
‘Stage 2’. This is a key area of judgement since 
transition from Stage 1 to Stage 2 increases the 
ECL from an allowance based on the probability 
of default in the next 12 months, to an allowance 
for lifetime expected credit losses. 

In response to the impacts of COVID-19, various  
moratorium/ debt concessionary schemes  have  
been offered to eligible customers.

The Company does not consider that when 
a customer is first provided assistance it 
automatically results in a Significant Increase 
in Credit Risk (SICR) and a consequent impact 
on ECL when assessing provisions. Subsequent 
to take-up, assessments have been carried out 
based on the discussions with the customers on 
the future business cashflows, financial  position, 
the sectors in which the businesses operate, 
and ability to recommence loan  repayments at 
the end of the moratorium/ debt  concessionary 
period to conclude whether there is  SICR. 

Measuring both 12- month 
and lifetime credit losses

The probability of default (PD), loss given default 
(LGD) and exposure at default (EAD) credit risk 
parameters used in determining ECL are point-
intime measures reflecting the relevant forward 
looking information determined by management. 
Judgement is involved in determining which 
forward-looking information variables are 
relevant for particular lending portfolios and 
for determining each portfolio’s point-in-time 
sensitivity.

In addition, judgement is required where 
behavioral characteristics are applied in 
estimating the lifetime of a facility to be used in 
measuring ECL.   

The PD, EAD and LGD models are subject to the 
Company’s policy on impairment model that 
stipulates periodic model monitoring, periodic 
revalidation and the approval procedures and 
authorities according to model materiality.

There were no material changes to the policies 
during the period ended 31 March 2021.  Due 
to the implications of moratorium/ debt 
concessionary schemes on PDs and LDGs (due to 
limited movements to Stage 2 & 3), adjustments 
have been made as overlays based on stress 
testing and historic patters to better reflect the 
adequacy of ECL.

There were no material changes to behavioral 
lifetime estimates during the year ended 31 
March 2021.
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Judgement/Assumption Description Considerations for the year ended

Base case economic forecast The Company derives a forward-looking “base 
case” economic scenario which reflects the it’s 
view of the most likely future macro-economic 
conditions.

There have been no changes to the types of  
forward-looking  variables (key economic drivers)
used as model inputs in the current year.

As at 31 March 2021, the base case assumptions 
have been updated to reflect the rapidly evolving 
situation with respect to COVID-19 by using the 
economic forecast provided by the Central Bank 
of Sri Lanka. 

Probability weighting of 
each economic scenario 
(base case, best and worst 
scenarios)

Probability weighting of each economic scenario 
is determined by management considering the 
risks and uncertainties surrounding the base 
case economic scenario at each measurement 
date.

The key consideration for probability weightings 
in the current period is the continuing impact of 
COVID-19.

In addition to the base case forecast which 
reflects the negative economic consequences of 
COVID-19, greater weighting has been applied 
to the worst scenario given the Company’s 
assessment of downside risks. The assigned 
probability weightings are subject to a high 
degree of inherent uncertainty and therefore the 
actual outcomes may be significantly different to 
those projected.

Management temporary 
adjustments

Management temporary adjustments to the ECL 
allowance are used in circumstances where it 
is judged that the existing inputs, assumptions 
and model techniques do not capture all the risk 
factors relevant to Company’s lending portfolios. 
Emerging local or global macroeconomic, 
microeconomic or political events, and natural 
disasters that are not incorporated into the 
current parameters, risk ratings, or forward-
looking information are examples of such 
circumstances. The use of management 
temporary adjustments may impact the amount 
of ECL recognised.

Management have applied a number of 
adjustments to the modelled ECL primarily due to 
the uncertainty associated with COVID-19.

The uncertainty associated with the COVID-19 
pandemic, and the extent to which the actions 
of governments, businesses and consumers 
mitigate against potentially adverse credit 
outcomes are not fully incorporated into existing 
ECL models. Accordingly, management overlays 
have been applied to ensure credit provisions are 
appropriate.

Management overlays (including COVID-19 
overlays) which add to the modelled ECL 
provision have been made for risks particular for 
risk elevated sectors identified by the Company.
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19.  FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST- DEBT AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Government of Sri Lanka Treasury Bills  335,160,032  654,303,689  335,160,032  654,303,689 

 335,160,032  654,303,689  335,160,032  654,303,689 

20.  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended  
31st March,

Company

2021 2020

 No of shares  Holding %  Cost Rs.  No of shares  Holding %  Cost Rs.

Ordinary Shares

Nation Micro 
Investments Ltd  500,000  99.99  5,000,000  500,000  99.99  5,000,000 

 5,000,000  5,000,000 

Provision for 
Impairment  (5,000,000)  (5,000,000)

 -    -   

21.  AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Millennium Housing Developers Ltd.  811,124  2,310,004  811,124  2,310,004 
Ceylinco Constructions Company Ltd.  830,937  830,937  830,937  830,937 
Tropical Agro Livestock (Pvt) Ltd.  1,875,000  1,150,000  1,875,000  1,150,000 
Tropical Foliage Ltd.  107,750  107,750  107,750  107,750 
Mr. Harshith Dharmadasa  1,000,000  1,000,000  1,000,000  1,000,000 

 4,624,811  5,398,691  4,624,811  5,398,691 
Impairment of amounts due from related companies  
(Note 21.1)  (2,271,121)  (938,687)  (2,271,121)  (938,687)
Total amount due from Related Parties  2,353,690  4,460,004  2,353,690  4,460,004 
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21.1  Impairment of amount due from related parties

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year  938,687  110,772,407  938,687  110,772,407 

Impairment charge for the year  1,332,434  -    1,332,434  -   
Transferred During the year (Note 28.2)  -    (109,833,720)  -    (109,833,720)
Balance as at end of the year  2,271,121  938,687  2,271,121  938,687 

22.  REAL ESTATE STOCK

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year  281,552,888  119,212,771  281,552,888  119,212,771 

Disposed during the year  (42,154,802)  (15,041,941)  (42,154,802)  (15,041,941)
Acquired during the year  -    13,227,270  -    13,227,270 
Stocks recognised during the year  40,979,500  30,000,000  40,979,500  30,000,000 
Transferred from investment Properties  -    136,200,000  -    136,200,000 
Impairment reversal/(charge) of real estate stocks  1,607,314  (2,045,212)  1,607,314  (2,045,212)
Balance at the end of the year  281,984,900  281,552,888  281,984,900  281,552,888 

23.  INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year  770,555,000  875,030,000  770,555,000  875,030,000 

Disposed during the year (3,500,000)  (4,250,000) (3,500,000)  (4,250,000)
Transferred to Real Estates  -    (136,200,000)  -    (136,200,000)
Change in Fair Value 63,620,000  35,975,000 63,620,000  35,975,000 
Balance at the end of the year  830,675,000  770,555,000  830,675,000  770,555,000 
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Investment properties are stated at fair value. The fair value of investment property was determined by external, independent 
property valuers, Mr. P.P.T.Mohideen and Mr. Sunil Fernando who are Fellow members of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors of 
the United Kingdom (RICS) and they have recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued.

The Investment Property of the Company/Group includes the following:

Extent

Property Location of the 
Property

Last 
Valuation 
Date

Buildings 
Sq. Ft

Land in 
Extent

Name of the 
Independent  
Valuer

Market 
Value (Rs.)/
perch

Method 
of the 
Valuation

Fair Value

For the year 
ended 31st 
March,

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Land and 

Building

Athurugiriya 31-Mar-19*  5000 3 R 31 P Mr.P.P.T.Mohideen  425,000 Market 

Value

 83,500,000  83,500,000 

Land Wennappuwa 31-Mar-21  - A0-R 

2-P3.5 

Mr.P.P.T.Mohideen  500,000 Market 

Value

 30,925,000  27,730,000 

Land and 

Building

Kurunegala 30-Sep-20  13500 20 P Sunil Fernando & 

Associates Pvt Ltd

 2,675,000 Market 

Value

 116,200,000  114,800,000 

Land Katana Foliage 31-Mar-21  - A13-

R2-P29 

Sunil Fernando & 

Associates Pvt Ltd

 145,000 Market 

Value

 143,700,000  138,700,000 

Land Katukenda 31-Mar-21  - A18-

R0-P25. 

Mr.A.R.Ajith 

Fernando

 35,625 Market 

Value

 103,500,000  81,700,000 

Land Korathota 31-Mar-20*  - A0-R 

1-P16.58 

Mr.P.P.T.Mohideen  225,000 Market 

Value

 6,250,000  6,250,000 

Land Thanthimulla, 

Kalutara

31-Mar-21  - A0-R1-P0 Mr.D.G.A.Jayalal  375,000 Market 

Value

 15,000,000  8,000,000 

Land Badalgama 31-Mar-21  - A29-R0-P0 Mr.P.P.T.Mohideen  34,375 Market 

Value

 159,500,000  148,625,000 

Land Dawatagahawatte 31-Mar-20*  - A0-R0-P15 Mr.P.P.T.Mohideen  235,000 Market 

Value

 -    3,500,000 

Land Pilihudugolla 31-Mar-20*  - A0-R2-P00 Sunil Fernando & 

Associates Pvt Ltd

 17,500 Market 

Value

 1,400,000  1,400,000 

Land Panichankerni 31-Mar-20*  - A13-

R0-P6.7 

Mr.P.P.T.Mohideen  68,750 Market 

Value

 71,900,000  71,900,000 

Land and 

Building

Kahatagahawatta 31-Mar-21  3120 A0-

R0-P14.15 

Mr.P.P.T.Mohideen  4,000,000 Market 

Value

 66,350,000  52,500,000 

Land Piliyandala 31-Mar-20*  - A0-

R0-P10.55 

Sunil Fernando & 

Associates Pvt Ltd

 900,000 Market 

Value

 6,850,000  6,850,000 

Land and 

Building

Nelliady 31-Mar-21  2164 A0-

R0-P26.7 

Sunil Fernando & 

Associates Pvt Ltd

 315,000 Market 

Value

 14,500,000  14,000,000 

Land Gelioya 31-Mar-20*  - A0-

R0-P26.25 

Sunil Fernando & 

Associates Pvt Ltd

 325,000 Market 

Value

 11,100,000  11,100,000 

830,675,000 770,555,000 

*As per Directors assessment these property prices are not changed compared to previous valuation.

Above investment properties include four buildings.
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23.1  The amounts recognised in profit or loss for rental income from investment property and direct operating expenses arising 
from investment property are as follows.

 Location No. of Buildings Rental income from investment 
property (Rs.) 

Direct Operating Expense

Katana Foliage -  1,550,000  - 

24.  PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
24.1  Company

Description Office 
Equipment

Furniture &
 Fittings

 Motor 
Vehicles

Computer
 Equipment  

2021 2020

Cost  
Rs.

 
Rs.

 
Rs.

 
Rs.

Total 
Rs.

 Total 
Rs.

Balance at the 
beginning of the year

 142,977,270  137,547,743  426,272  134,615,802  415,567,087  414,506,454 

Additions during the 
year

 1,196,620  980,890  -    9,021,178  11,198,688  6,146,988 

Transfers during the 
year

 5,966,973  -    -    (5,966,973)  -    -   

Disposals during the 
year

 -    -    -    (94,860)  (94,860)  (5,086,355)

Balance at the end of 
the year

 150,140,863  138,528,633  426,272  137,575,147  426,670,915  415,567,087 

Depreciation

Balance at the 
beginning of the year

 138,262,932  114,667,320  426,272  124,778,529  378,135,053  344,215,370 

Depreciation for the 
year

 7,292,638  5,670,761  -    3,768,933  16,732,332  39,006,038 

Disposal during the 
year

 -    -    -    (94,860)  (94,860)  (5,086,355)

Balance at the end of 
the year

 145,555,570  120,338,081  426,272  128,452,602  394,772,525  378,135,053 

W.D.V as at 31.03.2021  4,585,293  18,190,552  -    9,122,545  31,898,390 

W.D.V as at 31.03.2020  16,223,182  33,381,867  -    20,686,035  37,432,034 

Property plant and equipment includes fully depreciated assets which are still in use of Rs.346,125,208 as at 31st March 2021 
(Rs.309,713,292/- as at 31st March 2020).

24.1.1  There were no restrictions on the title of the property plant and equipment as at the reporting date. Further there were no 
items pledged as securities for liabilities.

24.1.2  Temporarily idle property, plant and equipment
There were no property, plant and equipment idle as at 31st March 2021 and 31st March 2020.
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24.2  Group

Description Office 
Equipment

Furniture &
 Fittings

 Motor 
Vehicles

Computer
 Equipment  

2021 2020

Cost  
Rs.

 
Rs.

 
Rs.

 
Rs.

Total 
Rs.

 Total 
Rs.

Balance at the 
beginning of the year

 142,977,270  137,547,743  426,272  134,615,802  415,567,087  414,506,454 

Additions during the 
year

 1,196,620  980,890  -    9,021,178  11,198,688  6,146,988 

Transfers during the 
year

 5,966,973  -    -    (5,966,973)  -    -   

Disposals during the 
year

 -    -    -    (94,860)  (94,860)  (5,086,355)

Balance at the end of 
the year

 150,140,863  138,528,633  426,272  137,575,147  426,670,915  415,567,087 

Depreciation

Balance at the 
beginning of the year

 138,262,932  114,667,320  426,272  124,778,529  378,135,053  344,215,370 

Depreciation for the 
year

 7,292,638  5,670,761  -    3,768,933  16,732,332  39,006,038 

Disposal during the 
year

 -    -    -    (94,860)  (94,860)  (5,086,355)

Balance at the end of 
the year

 145,555,570  120,338,081  426,272  128,452,602  394,772,525  378,135,053 

W.D.V as at 31.03.2021  4,585,293  18,190,552  -    9,122,545  31,898,390 

W.D.V as at 31.03.2020  4,714,338  22,880,423  -    9,837,273  37,432,034 

Property plant and equipment includes fully depreciated assets which are still in use of Rs.346,125,208 as at 31st March 2021 
(Rs.309,713,292/- as at 31st March 2020).

24.2.1  There were no restrictions on the title of the property plant and equipment as at the reporting date. Further there were no 
items pledged as securities for liabilities.

24.2.2  Temporarily idle property, plant and equipment
There were no property, plant and equipment idle as at 31st March 2021 and 31st March 2020.
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25.   RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Cost

Balance at the beginning of the year  159,120,503  -    159,120,503  -   

Adjustment on Initial Application of SLFRS 16  -    113,041,364  -    113,041,364 

Adjusted balance at the beginning of the year  159,120,503  113,041,364  159,120,503  113,041,364 

Additions during the year 78,012,131  46,079,139 78,012,131  46,079,139 

Disposal during the year (30,828,651)  -   (30,828,651)  -   

Balance at the end of the year  206,303,983  159,120,503  206,303,983  159,120,503 

Accumulated Amorisation 

Balance at the beginning of the year  51,398,022  -    51,398,022  -   

Charge for the year  51,489,492  51,398,022  51,489,492  51,398,022 

Balance at the end of the year  102,887,514  51,398,022  102,887,514  51,398,022 

Net Carrying Value  103,416,469  107,722,481  103,416,469  107,722,481 

26.  NET INVESTMENT IN SUB LEASE RECEIVABLE

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year  4,942,477  -    4,942,477  -   

Adjustment on Initial Application of SLFRS 16  -    7,207,388  -    7,207,388 

Adjusted balance at the beginning of the year  4,942,477  7,207,388  4,942,477  7,207,388 

Interest Income  402,463  991,853  402,463  991,853 

Lease rentals received (1,899,779) (3,256,764) (1,899,779) (3,256,764)

Transfers to Right of Use Assets (3,445,161)  -   (3,445,161)  -   

Balance at the end of the year  -    4,942,477  -    4,942,477 
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27.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer Software

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Cost

Balance at the beginning of the year  84,614,321  80,697,642  84,614,321  80,697,642 

Additions during the year  1,519,891  3,916,679  1,519,891  3,916,679 

Balance at the end of the year  86,134,212  84,614,321  86,134,212  84,614,321 

Amortisation

Balance at the beginning of the year  75,570,260  69,247,849  75,570,260  69,247,849 

Charge for the year  6,856,334  6,322,411  6,856,334  6,322,411 

Balance at the end of the year  82,426,594  75,570,260  82,426,594  75,570,260 

Net Book Value  3,707,618  9,044,061  3,707,618  9,044,061 

28.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Trade Receivables  5,872,411  7,246,888  5,872,411  7,246,888 

Impairment of Trade Receivables 28.1 (5,872,411) (6,291,888) (5,872,411) (6,291,888)

 -    955,000  -    955,000 

Trade Related - Other Receivables  160,730,754  229,489,826  160,730,754  229,489,826 

Impairment of Other Receivables 28.2 (57,550,654) (142,626,386) (57,550,654) (142,626,386)

 103,180,100  87,818,440  103,180,100  87,818,440 

28.1  Impairment of Trade Receivables

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance  as at beginning of the year  6,291,888  5,202,688  6,291,888  5,202,688 

Impairment (reversal)/charge for the year  (419,477)  1,089,200  (419,477)  1,089,200 

Balance as at end of the year  5,872,411  6,291,888  5,872,411  6,291,888 
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28.2  Impairment of Other Receivables

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance  as at beginning of the year  142,626,386  40,795,955  142,626,386  40,795,955 

Impairment reversal for the year  (85,075,732)  (8,003,289)  (85,075,732)  (8,003,289)

Transferred During the year (Note 21.1)  -    109,833,720  -    109,833,720 

Balance as at end of the year  57,550,654  142,626,386  57,550,654  142,626,386 

Nations Lanka Finance PLC (identified as the “Seller”) entered into a tri party agreement with Nation Lanka Equities (Private) Limited 
and Mr. Asanga Chandana Seneviratne (identified as the “Purchaser”) on 28th March 2016 to dispose 20,676,379 ordinary shares 
of Nation Lanka Equities (Pvt) Limited held by Nations Lanka Finance PLC to Mr.Asanga Chandana Seneviratne for a consideration 
of Rs160,000,000. The total consideration consisted of Rs. 100,000,000 payable by the Purchaser within 12 months from the 
date of the agreement and Rs. 60,000,000 or 25% of the proceeds to be received by Nation Lanka Equities (Private) Limited on 
the demutualisation of the Colombo Stock Exchange to be payable to Nation Lanka Finance PLC, which was jointly agreed by the 
Purchaser and Nation Lanka Equities (Pvt) Limited.

The aforesaid shares in Nations Lanka Equities (Private) Limited were transferred to the Purchaser on receipt of approval from the 
Central Bank of Sri Lanka on 6th April 2016. In accordance with the agreement the Purchaser pledged the above referred shares 
and mortgaged a property in favour of the Seller. In the event the Purchaser defaulted payment of the aforesaid cash payable of 
Rs.100,000,000, the Seller could enforce the mortgage bond and pledge bond.

The Purchaser did not settle the Rs. 100,000,000 prior to the end of the 12 months as stipulated in the said agreement. As per the 
agreement the Seller is entitled to enforce the mortgage bond and pledge bond which would enable them to take ownership of the 
20,676,379 ordinary shares of Nation Lanka Equities (Private) Limited and gain ownership of the property mortgaged. Nation Lanka 
Finance PLC enforced the mortgage bond and has taken ownership of the said property. However the Company has not taken action 
to enforce the pledge bond to take ownership of the shares of Nation Lanka Equities (Private) Limited, During the period purchaser 
has requested to convert receivable balance into the a loan. Board of Directors have approved the facility and purchaser is paying the 
loan according to the loan repayment schedule. Outstanding balance of the  loan and the Expected credit loss related to this loan  
the same present under the note no. 18 “Financial Assets Measured at Amortised cost - Loans and receivables”.

29.  OTHER ASSETS

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Deposits, Advances and Prepayments  100,760,215  78,681,869  100,760,215  78,681,869 

Impairment of advances  29.1  (58,456,461)  (58,456,461)  (58,456,461)  (58,456,461)

 42,303,754  20,225,408  42,303,754  20,225,408 

Other Receivables  86,050,590  69,203,436  86,050,590  69,203,436 

 128,354,344  89,428,844  128,354,344  89,428,844 
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29.1  Impairment of Advances

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance  as at beginning of the year  58,456,461  58,456,461  58,456,461  58,456,461 

Impairment charge for the year  -    -    -    -   

Balance as at end of the year  58,456,461  58,456,461  58,456,461  58,456,461 

30.  RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - GRATUITY
30.1  Defined Benefit Obligations (Net)

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations  30.2  47,023,840  46,735,803  47,023,840  46,735,803 

Defined Benefit Plan Assets  30.3  (89,720,901)  (83,800,796)  (89,720,901)  (83,800,796)

 (42,697,061)  (37,064,993)  (42,697,061)  (37,064,993)

30.2   Movement in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance as at 1st April  46,735,803  32,982,597  46,735,803  32,982,597 

Current Service Cost  8,524,332  9,730,560  8,524,332  9,730,560 

Interest Cost  4,907,259  3,641,278  4,907,259  3,641,278 

Payments made 
(including benefits paid by the plan)  (1,851,625)  (6,136,375)  (1,851,625)  (6,136,375)

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss  (11,291,929)  6,517,745  (11,291,929)  6,517,745 

Balance as at 31st March  47,023,840  46,735,803  47,023,840  46,735,803 

30.3   Movement in Plan Assets

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance as at 1st April  83,800,796  76,899,171  83,800,796  76,899,171 

Expected return on Plan Assets  8,799,084  8,489,663  8,799,084  8,489,663 

Administrative Expense  (1,042,348)  (1,196,121)  (1,042,348)  (1,196,121)

Actuarial (Loss) on Plan Assets  (1,836,631)  (391,917)  (1,836,631)  (391,917)

Balance as at 31st March  89,720,901  83,800,796  89,720,901  83,800,796 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INFORMATION



NATION LANKA FINANCE PLC | ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

PAGE 142

30.3.1  Retirement Benefit Plan Assets
Plan assets are assets in investments of funded defined benefit plan, in which the Company guarantees a minimum payout to 
its employees eligible for terminal benefit. As we have an adequate Asset for the purpose, in contrast to the general practice, the 
Company does not contribute any amount periodically to the plan. The Fund is invested in the Government Financial Instruments 
such as Treasury Bills, Bonds and Term Deposits with Licensed Commercial Banks where placements are periodically reviewed 
subject to maturity of such instruments for better yield. Terminal Benefit Payments are done against this Plan Asset. 

30.4  Actuarial (Gain) or Loss 

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss for year- Obligation  (11,291,929)  6,517,745  (11,291,929)  6,517,745 
Actuarial Loss for year- Plan Assets  1,836,631  391,917  1,836,631  391,917 
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income  (9,455,298)  6,909,662  (9,455,298)  6,909,662 

30.5  Amount Recognised in profit or loss

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Current Service Cost  8,524,332  9,730,560  8,524,332  9,730,560 
Interest Cost  4,907,259  3,641,278  4,907,259  3,641,278 
Expected Return on Plan Assets  (8,799,084)  (8,489,663)  (8,799,084)  (8,489,663)
Administrative Expense  1,042,348  1,196,121  1,042,348  1,196,121 
Loss Recognised in profit or Loss  5,674,855  6,078,296  5,674,855  6,078,296 

In accordance with the Gratuity Act No 12 of 1983, a liability arises for a defined benefit obligation for employees. Such defined 
benefit obligation is a post employment benefit obligation falling within the scope of Sri Lanka Accounting Standards LKAS-19 on 
“Employee Benefits”.

An actuarial valuation of the gratuity liability and the fair value of assets of the gratuity fund of the Company were carried out as at 
31st March 2021 by Mr. Piyal S. Goonetilleke. Fellow of the Society of Actuaries (USA), Member of the American Academy of Actuaries. 
The valuation method used  by the actuaries to value the fund is the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method’ recommended by the Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standard  LKAS - 19 ‘Employee Benefits’. The liability is externally funded.
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The following key assumptions were made in arriving at the retirement benefit obligations are as follows;

Nation Lanka Finance PLC

2021 2020

Discount rate 7.00% 10.50%
Rate of Salary Increase 5.00% 10.00%
Staff Turnover Factor 14% 14%
Retirement Age 55 years 55 years

30.6  Sensitivity of Assumptions Used in Actuarial Valuation
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the key assumptions employed with all other 
variables held constant in the employment benefit liability measurement for the Company.

+/-1% on discount rate and salary increase-effect on PVDBO
Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (PVDBO)

31-03-2021

Discount rate 6.00% 7.00% 8.00%
Total PVDBO (Rs.)  49,537,004  47,023,840  44,775,255 

Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (PVDBO)

31-03-2020

Basic Salary Scale 4.00% 5.00% 6.00%
Total PVDBO (Rs.)  44,764,909  47,023,840  49,501,678 

Future Cash Flow - Expected Benefit Payout in the next 10 years

Year Retirement Term Death Disab. Total

1. 2021/22 2,949,889 4,638,325 64,787 102,493 7,755,494

2. 2022/23 1,095,935 4,738,634 75,984 120,765 6,031,318

3. 2023/24 3,200,933 4,954,281 90,743 145,749 8,391,706

4. 2024/25 6,666,611 5,533,730 111,157 177,087 12,488,585

5. 2025/26 3,145,367 5,471,570 109,206 175,089 8,901,232

6. 2026/27 1,938,122 5,210,067 112,192 177,480 7,437,861

7. 2027/28 1,521,414 4,888,443 121,179 188,972 6,720,008

8. 2028/29 1,528,502 4,573,149 133,599 208,568 6,443,818

9. 2029/30 4,120,705 4,390,276 145,477 229,646 8,886,104

10. 2030/31 3,651,217 4,406,913 232,183 380,321 5,019,417

2020/21 Actual Benefit Payout 1,851,625

The expected benefits are estimated based on the same assumptions used to measure the company’s benefit obligation at the end 
of the year and include benefits attributable to estimated future employee service.
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Employees Gratuity Trust - Details of Investment

Description Balance as at
 31/03/2021     

Balance as at
 31/03/2020      

Risk Rating

Fixed Deposit with Bank of Ceylon  34,167,806.41  31,455,011 AAA Rated Government Bank

Fixed Deposit with Bank of Ceylon  224,485.51  208,759 AAA Rated Government Bank

Fixed Deposit with Bank of Ceylon  3,616,699.17  3,311,313 AAA Rated Government Bank

Fixed Deposit with Bank of Ceylon  14,769,428.63  13,551,068 AAA Rated Government Bank

Total Investment in FD  52,778,420  48,526,151 

Governments Securities  39,907,766  38,098,110 Government Guarantee

Total Investment  92,686,186  86,624,261 

31.  DEFERRED TAX ASSET – GROUP /COMPANY

Group/Company

2021 2020

For the year ended 31st March, Temporary
Difference 

Rs.

 Tax effect 

Rs.

Temporary
Difference 

Rs.

 Tax effect 

Rs.

Deferred Tax (Assets) /Liabilities
Property, Plant and Equipment  3,043,253  730,381  5,800,608  1,624,170 
Retirement Benefit Obligations  42,697,062  10,247,295  37,064,993  10,378,198 
Carried forward Tax Loss (718,183,586) (172,364,061)  (408,183,586)  (114,291,404)
Expected credit Loss  (1,351,923,878)  (324,461,731)  (1,230,317,689)  (344,488,953)
Impairment on real estate stock  (19,858,306)  (4,765,993)  (17,858,733)  (5,000,445)
Fair value changes in investment properties  183,395,903  18,339,590  35,975,000  3,597,500 
 Right-of-use Asset  19,883,317  4,771,996  (12,138,954)  (3,398,907)
Net Change in Fair Value  10,273,658  1,027,366  7,274,186  727,419 
Net Deferred Tax (Asset) / Liabilities  (1,825,672,577)  (466,475,157) (1,582,384,175)  (450,852,422)

31.1  Deferred Tax Asset - Group /Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance  as at beginning of the year  as Previously Reported  (450,852,422)  (323,193,343)
Adjustment on initial application of SLFRS 16  -    (5,321,109)
Adjusted balance as at beginning of the year  (450,852,422)  (328,514,452)
Origination of temporary difference ;
Deferred tax charge/ (reversal) for the year  65,350,951  (121,130,684)
Impact on changes in tax rate  (83,542,905)  -   
Recognised in other comprehensive income  2,569,219  (1,207,285)
Balance as at end of the year  (466,475,157)  (450,852,422)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INFORMATION



NATION LANKA FINANCE PLC | ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

PAGE 145

Deferred tax asset on tax losses has been recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. The total carried forward tax loss of the Group/Company on which a deferred tax 
asset is not recognised as at 31st March 2021 amounted to Rs. 1,039,124,618/- and the unrecognised deferred tax asset as at 31st 
March 2021 of the Group/Company amounted to Rs. 249,389,908/-.

As provided for in LKAS 12 - Income taxes, deferred tax assets and liabilities should be measured at the tax rate that are expected to 
be applied in the period in which the asset will be realised or the liability will be settled, based on the tax rate (and tax laws) that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

As instructed by the Ministry of Finance on 31 January 2020, a change to the Income Tax Rate of the Company, from 28% to 24% 
has been proposed, pending formal amendments being made to the Act and to be implemented with effect from 01 January 2020. 
The Bill to amend the Inland Revenue Act No. 24 of 2017 was gazetted and issued on 18 March 2021. The Bill was presented at 
the Parliament for first reading and approved on 26th March 2021. Accordingly, the new tax rate of 24% has been considered 
to be substantially enacted as at reporting date for the computation of Current and Deferred tax computation in these financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred Tax has been computed taking into 
consideration the tax rate of 24%.For the FY 2019/20 the applicable rate was 28%.

32.  DUE TO BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Bank Overdraft  272,541,445  19,650,092  272,541,445  19,650,092 

Securitised Loan - BOC (Note 32.1)  4,783,844  14,726,360  4,783,844  14,726,360 

 277,325,289  34,376,452  277,325,289  34,376,452 

32.1  Securitised Loan - BOC

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year  14,726,360  27,785,548  14,726,360  27,785,548 

Interest expense  1,202,838  3,289,102  1,202,838  3,289,102 

Repayments during the year (11,145,354) (16,348,290) (11,145,354) (16,348,290)

Balance at the end of the year  4,783,844  14,726,360  4,783,844  14,726,360 

Revolving loan has been obtained against a mortgage over lease and hire purchase rental receivables. Annual Interest rate is AWPLR 
plus 2%. As per the loan agreement each drawdown amounts need to be settled within 24 months from the date of borrowed.
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33.  FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST-DUE TO DEPOSITORS 

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Deposits from customers (Note 33.1)  5,247,605,975  6,441,689,805  5,247,605,975  6,441,689,805 

33.1  Fixed Deposits from customers  4,920,738,038  6,013,636,022  4,920,738,038  6,013,636,022 

Customer Savings -Micro Finance  326,867,937  428,053,783  326,867,937  428,053,783 

 5,247,605,975  6,441,689,805  5,247,605,975  6,441,689,805 

34.  LEASE LIABILITY

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year  106,507,532  -    106,507,532  -   

Adjustment on Initial Application of SLFRS 16  -    117,116,331  -    117,116,331 

Adjusted balance at the beginning of the year  106,507,532  117,116,331  106,507,532  117,116,331 

Addition during the year  69,614,971  46,079,139  69,614,971  46,079,139 

Derecognition of lease liability (38,819,759)  -   (38,819,759)  -   

Interest Expenses  16,000,059  18,803,987  16,000,059  18,803,987 

Rent Expenses (69,769,651) (75,491,925) (69,769,651) (75,491,925)

Balance at the end of the year 83,533,152  106,507,532 83,533,152  106,507,532 

**Following information has been included in the Statement of Profit or Loss Account and the Statement of Cash Flow in relation to 
the lease liability.

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March,
Notes

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Interest Expense on Lease Liability 8 16,000,059  18,803,978 16,000,059  18,803,978 

Lease rental Payments SCF 69,769,651  75,491,925 69,769,651  75,491,925 

34.1  The following table sets out a maturity analysis of the Group/Company’s lease payables, showing the undiscounted lease 
payments to be paid after the reporting date until the respective maturity dates.
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Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Less than one year 46,217,145  71,180,316 46,217,145  71,180,316 

Between one and two years 32,149,103  52,581,813 32,149,103  52,581,813 

Between two and three years 20,232,229  15,572,370 20,232,229  15,572,370 

Between three and four years 19,534,280  7,300,724 19,534,280  7,300,724 

Between four and five years 12,577,480  4,936,608 12,577,480  4,936,608 

More than 5 years 440,000  4,699,761 440,000  4,699,761 

131,150,237  156,271,592 131,150,237  156,271,592 

Less: Future interest payable 47,617,085  49,764,060 47,617,085  49,764,060 

Net lease liability as at 31st March 2021 83,533,152  106,507,532 83,533,152  106,507,532 

35.  AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Nation Micro Investments Ltd  -    -    699,756  790,006 

 -    -    699,756  790,006 

36.  OTHER BORROWINGS

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year  610,613,507  147,445,632  610,613,507  147,445,632 

Interest expense  35,445,132  47,266,670  35,445,132  47,266,670 

Loans obtained during the year (Note 36.1)  300,000,000  650,000,000  300,000,000  650,000,000 

Repayments during the year (649,390,105)  (234,098,795) (649,390,105)  (234,098,795)

Balance at the end of the year  296,668,534  610,613,507  296,668,534  610,613,507 

36.1  Details of loans obtained during the year

Lender/Institution  Amount borrowed  Interest Rate Security offered

M Power Ltd  300,000,000 13.70% Assignment over lease and HP receivables for Rs.360Mn
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37.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Trade Payables  45,998,593  55,684,145  45,998,593  55,602,249 

Other Payables  155,666,697  219,513,087  155,598,201  219,513,087 

 201,665,290  275,197,232  201,596,794  275,115,336 

38.  SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES
Unlisted, unsecured, redeemable subordinated debentures were issued by the Company on the 31st March 2017. The debentures 
would be redeemable on or before 31st March 2022, and carries an interest rate of 14% p.a.  The total value of Debentures issued 
amounted to  Rs. 250,000,000. Mr. V.R. Ramanan, Chairman of Nation Lanka Finance PLC subscribed to the total issue.

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year  150,000,000  150,000,000  150,000,000  150,000,000 

Redemptions during the year  -    -    -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  150,000,000  150,000,000  150,000,000  150,000,000 

39.  STATED CAPITAL

No. of 
Shares

2021
Rs.

No. of 
Shares

2020
Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,353,792,606 1,224,042,009 1,353,792,606 1,224,042,009

Redemptions during the year  -    -    -    -   

Balance at the end of the year 1,353,792,606 1,224,042,009 1,353,792,606 1,224,042,009

All shares rank equally with regard to the company’s residual assets. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends 
as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the company.

39.1  Reserve fund
The reserve is created according to Direction No.1 of 2003 issued under the Finance Business Act No.42 of 2011. The Company 
transfers 5% of its annual net profit after tax to this reserve in compliance with this direction.

39.2  General reserve
General reserves are the retained earnings of a company which are kept aside out of company’s profits to meet future (known or 
unknown) obligations.
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39.3  Fair value reserve
This reserve is maintained to recognise the fair value changes of financial assets classified as fair value through other 
comprehensive income.

40.  TRANSACTIONS WITH/BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES
40.1  Transactions with/between subsidiaries

Name of the 
related party

Director Relationship Nature of 
Transaction

Provision
 for Doubtful 

Debts.

Amount  
Received/

(Paid) 

Rs. ’000

Net 
Outstanding 

as at 
31.03.2021 

Rs. ’000

Amount
  Received/

(Paid) 

Rs. ’000

Net 
Outstanding 

as at 
31.03.2020 

Rs. ’000

Nation Micro 

Investments Ltd 

(Note 35)

Services 

rendered

 -    90 (700)  -   (790)

Transactions with/between other 
related parties

Millennium 

Housing 

Developers Ltd

Mr. Harshith 

Dharmadasa

Chairman Receivables 2,212 4,277 

Mr. V R 

Ramanan

Deputy 

Chairman

Repayments  332 (3,711) 811 (3,497) 2,310 

Mr. J Rudra Director

Ceylinco 

Construction Co. 

Ltd (Note 21)

Services 

rendered

831  -   831  -   831 

Nawaloka 

Hospitals PLC

Mr. H K J 

Dharmadasa

Chairman Loan Granted  -   25,000 

Mr. Harshith 

Dharmadasa

Director Settlement  6,651  -   (18,349) 6,651 

Mr. V R 

Ramanan

Director

Ideal Gateways 

(Pvt) Ltd

Mr. J Rudra Director Vehicle Rent 1,700 2,900 

Mr. V R 

Ramanan

Director Payments (1,700)  -   (2,900)  -   

Ceyoka (Private) 

Ltd

Mr. Harshith 

Dharmadasa

Managing 

Director

Loans & 

Receivables 

Outstanding

2,783 

Loan 

Repayment

(3,142) 69,641 72,783 

Tropical Agro 

Livestock (Pvt) 

Ltd. (Note 21)

Mr. J Rudra Director Rent Receivable 1,550 1,950 

Repayment (825) 1,875 (2,600) 1,150 

Tropical Foliage 

Ltd (Note 21)

Mr. J Rudra Director Receivable 108  -   108  -   108 

The Company has carried out above transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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40.2  Transactions with key management personnel
According to the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 24 (LKAS 24), “Related Party Disclosure”, Key Management Personnel are those 
having responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity. Accordingly, the Board of Directors (including 
Non Executive and Executive Directors) have been classified as Key Management Personnel.

Close members of the family of a KMP are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person 
in their dealings with the entity.

Compensation of Directors and Other Key Management Personnel

Name of the Related Party Non-Executive
 Directors

Rs.

Executive 
Directors

Rs.

Other Key
 Management

 Personnel
Rs.

Total 
31st March 2021

Rs.

Total 
31st March 2020

Rs.

Short-term employment benefits 584,900 1,632,400 44,105,694 46,322,994 69,778,231

Total 584,900 1,632,400 44,105,694 46,322,994 69,778,231

Deposits Advances and Borrowings from Key Management Personnel

Name of the 
Related Party

Relationship Nature of Transaction Amount 
(received)/ 
paid 2021 

Rs. ’000

 Outstanding 
31st March 

2021 
Rs. ’000

 Amount
 (received)/ 

paid 2020 
Rs. ’000

Outstanding 
31st March 

2020 
Rs. ’000

J Rudra Director Fixed Deposit 8,130 (13,161) (126) (21,291)

Victor Ramanan Chairman Subordinated Debentures  -   (150,000)  -   (150,000)

Interest cost on 
debentures

(21,000)  -   (22,165)  -   

Settlement of interest 
cost

21,000  -   22,165  -   

Borrowings  -    -   (100,000)  -   
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40.3  Non-recurrent related party transactions
There were no any non-recurring related party transactions of which aggregate value exceeds 10% of the equity or 5% of the total 
assets whichever is lower as per the latest  audited financial statements of the Company, which requires additional disclosure in 
2019/2020 Annual Report under Colombo Stock Exchange listing rule 9.3.2 (a).

40.4  Recurrent related party transactions
All the transactions which are disclosed under note 40.1 with related parties are recurrent, of revenue or trading nature and which is 
necessary for day-to-day operations of the Company and fellow subsidiaries,associates. In the opinion of Related Party Transaction 
Review Committee, terms for these transactions are not favourable to the related party than those generally available to the public. 
Except the above,there were no any recurrent related party transactions of which aggregate value exceeds 10% of the revenue of the 
Company as per 31st March 2021 audited financial statements, which require additional disclosures in 2020/2021 Annual Report 
under Colombo Stock Exchange listing rule 9.3.2 (b).

The terms and conditions of the transactions with key management personnel and their related parties were no more favourable 
than those available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to non-key management 
personnel related entities on an arm’s length basis.

41.  FAIR VALUES
41.1  Accounting classifications and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the 
fair value hierarchy. It also includes details relating to non financial assets and liabilities.



NATION LANKA FINANCE PLC | ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

PAGE 152

Group

Carrying values
Rs.

Fair value
Rs.

As at 31st March 2021 Notes Fair Value
 Through 
Profit or 

Loss

Amortised 
Cost

Fair Value
 Through Other 

Comprehensive
 Income

Other 
financial

 liabilities

Total 
carrying
 amount

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair 
value

Financial Assets Recognised  Through 
Profit or Loss

16  30,843,505  -    -    -    30,843,505  30,843,505  -    -    30,843,505 

Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI 17  -    -    35,030,504  -    35,030,504  -    -    35,030,504  35,030,504 

Investment property 23  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    830,675,000  830,675,000 

Financial assets not measured at fair 
value

Financial Assets Measured at 
Amortised Cost

- Loans and Advances 18  -    4,409,429,298  -    -    4,409,429,298  -    -    -    -   

- Debt and Other Instruments 19  -    335,160,032  -    -    335,160,032  -    -    -    -   

Trade and Other Receivables 28  -    103,180,100  -    -    103,180,100  -    -    -    -   

Amounts Due From Related Parties 21  -    2,353,690  -    -    2,353,690  -    -    -    -   

Deposits with Licensed Commercial 
Banks

15  -    305,228,039  -    -    305,228,039  -    -    -    -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents 14  -    105,174,695  -    -    105,174,695  -    -    -    -   

 30,843,505  5,260,525,854  35,030,504  -    5,295,556,358  30,843,505  -    865,705,504  865,705,504 

Financial liabilities not measured at 
fair value

Due to Banks and Financial 
Institutions

32  -    -    -    277,325,289  277,325,289  -    -    -    -   

Financial Liabilities at amortised 
cost-due to depositors 

33  -    -    -    5,247,605,975  5,247,605,975  -    -    -    -   

Other Borrowings 36  -    -    -    296,668,534  296,668,534  -    -    -    -   

Trade and Other Payables 37  -    -    -    201,665,290  201,665,290  -    -    -    -   

Subordinated Debentures 38  -    -    -    150,000,000  150,000,000  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    6,173,265,088  6,173,265,088  -    -    -    -   

For Financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short term maturity (original maturities less than a year), it is assumed that 
the carrying amounts approximate their fair values. Further, other borrowed funds with a variable interest rate are also considered 
to be approximate to fair value. Contractual interest rates and the Market interest rates of the public deposits are almost same and 
have been taken during the period.
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Group

Carrying values
Rs.

Fair value
Rs.

As at 31st March 2021 Notes Fair Value
 Through 
Profit or 

Loss

Amortised 
Cost

Fair Value
 Through Other 

Comprehensive
 Income

Other 
financial

 liabilities

Total 
carrying
 amount

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair 
value

Financial Assets Recognised  Through 
Profit or Loss

16  30,843,505  -    -    -    30,843,505  30,843,505  -    -    30,843,505 

Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI 17  -    -    35,030,504  -    35,030,504  -    -    35,030,504  35,030,504 

Investment property 23  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    830,675,000  830,675,000 

Financial assets not measured at fair 
value

Financial Assets Measured at 
Amortised Cost

- Loans and Advances 18  -    4,409,429,298  -    -    4,409,429,298  -    -    -    -   

- Debt and Other Instruments 19  -    335,160,032  -    -    335,160,032  -    -    -    -   

Trade and Other Receivables 28  -    103,180,100  -    -    103,180,100  -    -    -    -   

Amounts Due From Related Parties 21  -    2,353,690  -    -    2,353,690  -    -    -    -   

Deposits with Licensed Commercial 
Banks

15  -    305,228,039  -    -    305,228,039  -    -    -    -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents 14  -    105,174,695  -    -    105,174,695  -    -    -    -   

 30,843,505  5,260,525,854  35,030,504  -    5,295,556,358  30,843,505  -    865,705,504  865,705,504 

Financial liabilities not measured at 
fair value

Due to Banks and Financial 
Institutions

32  -    -    -    277,325,289  277,325,289  -    -    -    -   

Financial Liabilities at amortised 
cost-due to depositors 

33  -    -    -    5,247,605,975  5,247,605,975  -    -    -    -   

Other Borrowings 36  -    -    -    296,668,534  296,668,534  -    -    -    -   

Trade and Other Payables 37  -    -    -    201,665,290  201,665,290  -    -    -    -   

Subordinated Debentures 38  -    -    -    150,000,000  150,000,000  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    6,173,265,088  6,173,265,088  -    -    -    -   

For Financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short term maturity (original maturities less than a year), it is assumed that 
the carrying amounts approximate their fair values. Further, other borrowed funds with a variable interest rate are also considered 
to be approximate to fair value. Contractual interest rates and the Market interest rates of the public deposits are almost same and 
have been taken during the period.
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Group

Carrying values
Rs.

Fair value
Rs.

As at 31st March 2020 Notes Fair Value
 Through 
Profit or 

Loss

Amortised 
Cost

Fair Value
 Through Other 

Comprehensive
 Income

Other 
financial

 liabilities

Total 
carrying
 amount

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair 
value

Financial Assets Recognised  Through 
Profit or Loss

16  16,229,355  -    -    -    16,229,355  16,229,355  -    -    16,229,355 

Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI 17  -    -    32,031,031  -    32,031,031  -    -    32,031,031  32,031,031 

Investment property 23  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    770,555,000  770,555,000 

Financial assets not measured at fair 
value

Financial Assets Measured at 
Amortised Cost

- Loans and Advances 18  -    5,949,499,039  -    -    5,949,499,039  -    -    -    -   

- Debt and Other Instruments 19  -    654,303,689  -    -    654,303,689  -    -    -    -   

Trade and Other Receivables 28  -    87,818,440  -    -    87,818,440  -    -    -    -   

Amounts Due From Related Parties 21  -    4,451,004  -    -    4,451,004  -    -    -    -   

Deposits with Licensed Commercial 
Banks

15  -    72,356,761  -    -    72,356,761  -    -    -    -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents 14  -    86,410,165  -    -    86,410,165  -    -    -    -   

 16,229,355  6,854,839,099  32,031,031  -    6,903,099,485  16,229,355  -    802,586,031  818,815,387 

Financial liabilities not measured at 
fair value

Due to Banks and Financial 
Institutions

32  -    -    -    34,376,452  34,376,452  -    -    -    -   

Financial Liabilities at amortised 
cost-due to depositors 

33  -    -    -    6,441,689,805  6,441,689,805  -    -    -    -   

Amount due to related parties 35 - - - 790,006 790,006 - - - -

Other Borrowings 36  -    -    -    610,613,507  610,613,507  -    -    -    -   

Trade and Other Payables 37  -    -    -    275,197,229  275,197,229  -    -    -    -   

Subordinated Debentures 38  -    -    -    150,000,000  150,000,000  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    7,512,666,999  7,512,666,999  -    -    -    -   
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Group

Carrying values
Rs.

Fair value
Rs.

As at 31st March 2020 Notes Fair Value
 Through 
Profit or 

Loss

Amortised 
Cost

Fair Value
 Through Other 

Comprehensive
 Income

Other 
financial

 liabilities

Total 
carrying
 amount

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair 
value

Financial Assets Recognised  Through 
Profit or Loss

16  16,229,355  -    -    -    16,229,355  16,229,355  -    -    16,229,355 

Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI 17  -    -    32,031,031  -    32,031,031  -    -    32,031,031  32,031,031 

Investment property 23  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    770,555,000  770,555,000 

Financial assets not measured at fair 
value

Financial Assets Measured at 
Amortised Cost

- Loans and Advances 18  -    5,949,499,039  -    -    5,949,499,039  -    -    -    -   

- Debt and Other Instruments 19  -    654,303,689  -    -    654,303,689  -    -    -    -   

Trade and Other Receivables 28  -    87,818,440  -    -    87,818,440  -    -    -    -   

Amounts Due From Related Parties 21  -    4,451,004  -    -    4,451,004  -    -    -    -   

Deposits with Licensed Commercial 
Banks

15  -    72,356,761  -    -    72,356,761  -    -    -    -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents 14  -    86,410,165  -    -    86,410,165  -    -    -    -   

 16,229,355  6,854,839,099  32,031,031  -    6,903,099,485  16,229,355  -    802,586,031  818,815,387 

Financial liabilities not measured at 
fair value

Due to Banks and Financial 
Institutions

32  -    -    -    34,376,452  34,376,452  -    -    -    -   

Financial Liabilities at amortised 
cost-due to depositors 

33  -    -    -    6,441,689,805  6,441,689,805  -    -    -    -   

Amount due to related parties 35 - - - 790,006 790,006 - - - -

Other Borrowings 36  -    -    -    610,613,507  610,613,507  -    -    -    -   

Trade and Other Payables 37  -    -    -    275,197,229  275,197,229  -    -    -    -   

Subordinated Debentures 38  -    -    -    150,000,000  150,000,000  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    7,512,666,999  7,512,666,999  -    -    -    -   
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Company

Carrying values
Rs.

Fair value
Rs.

As at 31st March 2021 Notes Fair Value
 Through 
Profit or 

Loss

Amortised 
Cost

Fair Value
 Through Other 

Comprehensive
 Income

Other 
financial

 liabilities

Total 
carrying
 amount

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair 
value

Financial Assets Recognised  Through 
Profit or Loss

16  30,843,505  -    -    -    30,843,505  30,843,505  -    -    30,843,505 

Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI 17  -    -    35,030,504  -    35,030,504  -    -    35,030,504  35,030,504 

Investment property 23  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    830,675,000  830,675,000 

Financial assets not measured at fair 
value

Financial Assets Measured at 
Amortised Cost

- Loans and Advances 18  -    4,409,429,298  -    -    4,409,429,298  -    -    -    -   

- Debt and Other Instruments 19  -    335,160,032  -    -    335,160,032  -    -    -    -   

Trade & Other Receivables 28  -    103,180,100  -    -    103,180,100  -    -    -    -   

Amounts Due From Related Parties 21  -    2,353,690  -    -    2,353,690  -    -    -    -   

Deposits with Licensed Commercial 
Banks

15  -    305,228,039  -    -    305,228,039  -    -    -    -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents 14  -    105,174,695  -    -    105,174,695  -    -    -    -   

 30,843,505  5,260,525,854  35,030,504  -    5,326,399,863  30,843,505  -    865,705,504  896,549,009 

Financial liabilities not measured at 
fair value

Due to Banks and Financial 
Institutions

32  -    -    -    277,325,289  277,325,289  -    -    -    -   

Financial Liabilities at amortised 
cost-due to depositors 

33  -    -    -    5,247,605,975  5,247,605,975  -    -    -    -   

Amounts Due To Related Parties 35  -    -    -    699,756  699,756  -    -    -    -   

Other Borrowings 36  -    -    -    296,668,534  296,668,534  -    -    -    -   

Trade & Other Payables 37  -    -    -    201,596,794  201,596,794  -    -    -    -   

Subordinated Debentures 38  -    -    -    150,000,000  150,000,000  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    6,173,896,348  6,173,896,348  -    -    -    -   

For Financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short term maturity (original maturities less than a year), it is assumed that 
the carrying amounts approximate their fair values. Further, other borrowed funds with a variable interest rate are also considered 
to be approximate to fair value. Contractual interest rates and the Market interest rates of the public deposits are almost same and 
have been taken during the period.
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Company

Carrying values
Rs.

Fair value
Rs.

As at 31st March 2021 Notes Fair Value
 Through 
Profit or 

Loss

Amortised 
Cost

Fair Value
 Through Other 

Comprehensive
 Income

Other 
financial

 liabilities

Total 
carrying
 amount

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair 
value

Financial Assets Recognised  Through 
Profit or Loss

16  30,843,505  -    -    -    30,843,505  30,843,505  -    -    30,843,505 

Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI 17  -    -    35,030,504  -    35,030,504  -    -    35,030,504  35,030,504 

Investment property 23  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    830,675,000  830,675,000 

Financial assets not measured at fair 
value

Financial Assets Measured at 
Amortised Cost

- Loans and Advances 18  -    4,409,429,298  -    -    4,409,429,298  -    -    -    -   

- Debt and Other Instruments 19  -    335,160,032  -    -    335,160,032  -    -    -    -   

Trade & Other Receivables 28  -    103,180,100  -    -    103,180,100  -    -    -    -   

Amounts Due From Related Parties 21  -    2,353,690  -    -    2,353,690  -    -    -    -   

Deposits with Licensed Commercial 
Banks

15  -    305,228,039  -    -    305,228,039  -    -    -    -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents 14  -    105,174,695  -    -    105,174,695  -    -    -    -   

 30,843,505  5,260,525,854  35,030,504  -    5,326,399,863  30,843,505  -    865,705,504  896,549,009 

Financial liabilities not measured at 
fair value

Due to Banks and Financial 
Institutions

32  -    -    -    277,325,289  277,325,289  -    -    -    -   

Financial Liabilities at amortised 
cost-due to depositors 

33  -    -    -    5,247,605,975  5,247,605,975  -    -    -    -   

Amounts Due To Related Parties 35  -    -    -    699,756  699,756  -    -    -    -   

Other Borrowings 36  -    -    -    296,668,534  296,668,534  -    -    -    -   

Trade & Other Payables 37  -    -    -    201,596,794  201,596,794  -    -    -    -   

Subordinated Debentures 38  -    -    -    150,000,000  150,000,000  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    6,173,896,348  6,173,896,348  -    -    -    -   

For Financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short term maturity (original maturities less than a year), it is assumed that 
the carrying amounts approximate their fair values. Further, other borrowed funds with a variable interest rate are also considered 
to be approximate to fair value. Contractual interest rates and the Market interest rates of the public deposits are almost same and 
have been taken during the period.
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Company 

Carrying values
Rs.

Fair value
Rs.

As at 31st March 2020 Notes Fair Value
 Through 
Profit or 

Loss

Amortised 
Cost

Fair Value
 Through Other 

Comprehensive
 Income

Other 
financial

 liabilities

Total 
carrying
 amount

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair 
value

Financial Assets Recognised  Through 
Profit or Loss

16  16,229,355  -    -    -    16,229,355  16,229,355  -    -    16,229,355 

Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI 17  -    -    32,031,031  -    32,031,031  -    -    32,031,031  32,031,031 

Investment property 23  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    770,555,000  770,555,000 

Financial assets not measured at fair 
value

Financial Assets Measured at 
Amortised Cost

- Loans and Advances 18  -    5,949,499,039  -    -    5,949,499,039  -    -    -    -   

- Debt and Other Instruments 19  -    654,303,689  -    -    654,303,689  -    -    -    -   

Trade & Other Receivables 28  -    87,818,440  -    -    87,818,440  -    -    -    -   

Amounts Due From Related Parties 21  -    4,451,004  -    -    4,451,004  -    -    -    -   

Deposits with Commercial Banks 15  -    72,356,761  -    -    72,356,761  -    -    -    -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents 14  -    86,410,165  -    -    86,410,165  -    -    -    -   

 16,229,355  6,854,839,099  32,031,031  -    6,903,099,485  16,229,355  -    802,586,031  818,815,387 

Financial liabilities not measured at 
fair value

Due to Banks and Financial 
Institutions

32  -    -    -    34,376,452  34,376,452  -    -    -    -   

Financial Liabilities at amortised 
cost-due to depositors 

33  -    -    -    6,441,689,805  6,441,689,805  -    -    -    -   

Amounts Due To Related Parties 35  -    -    -    790,006  790,006  -    -    -    -   

Other Borrowings 36  -    -    -    610,613,507  610,613,507  -    -    -    -   

Trade & Other Payables 37  -    -    -    275,197,229  275,197,229  -    -    -    -   

Subordinated Debentures 38  -    -    -    150,000,000  150,000,000  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    7,512,666,999  7,512,666,999  -    -    -    -   

For Financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short term maturity (original maturities less than a year), it is assumed that 
the carrying amounts approximate their fair values. Further, other borrowed funds with a variable interest rate are also considered 
to be approximate to fair value. Contractual interest rates and the Market interest rates of the public deposits are almost same and 
have been taken during the period.
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Company 

Carrying values
Rs.

Fair value
Rs.

As at 31st March 2020 Notes Fair Value
 Through 
Profit or 

Loss

Amortised 
Cost

Fair Value
 Through Other 

Comprehensive
 Income

Other 
financial

 liabilities

Total 
carrying
 amount

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair 
value

Financial Assets Recognised  Through 
Profit or Loss

16  16,229,355  -    -    -    16,229,355  16,229,355  -    -    16,229,355 

Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI 17  -    -    32,031,031  -    32,031,031  -    -    32,031,031  32,031,031 

Investment property 23  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    770,555,000  770,555,000 

Financial assets not measured at fair 
value

Financial Assets Measured at 
Amortised Cost

- Loans and Advances 18  -    5,949,499,039  -    -    5,949,499,039  -    -    -    -   

- Debt and Other Instruments 19  -    654,303,689  -    -    654,303,689  -    -    -    -   

Trade & Other Receivables 28  -    87,818,440  -    -    87,818,440  -    -    -    -   

Amounts Due From Related Parties 21  -    4,451,004  -    -    4,451,004  -    -    -    -   

Deposits with Commercial Banks 15  -    72,356,761  -    -    72,356,761  -    -    -    -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents 14  -    86,410,165  -    -    86,410,165  -    -    -    -   

 16,229,355  6,854,839,099  32,031,031  -    6,903,099,485  16,229,355  -    802,586,031  818,815,387 

Financial liabilities not measured at 
fair value

Due to Banks and Financial 
Institutions

32  -    -    -    34,376,452  34,376,452  -    -    -    -   

Financial Liabilities at amortised 
cost-due to depositors 

33  -    -    -    6,441,689,805  6,441,689,805  -    -    -    -   

Amounts Due To Related Parties 35  -    -    -    790,006  790,006  -    -    -    -   

Other Borrowings 36  -    -    -    610,613,507  610,613,507  -    -    -    -   

Trade & Other Payables 37  -    -    -    275,197,229  275,197,229  -    -    -    -   

Subordinated Debentures 38  -    -    -    150,000,000  150,000,000  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    7,512,666,999  7,512,666,999  -    -    -    -   

For Financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short term maturity (original maturities less than a year), it is assumed that 
the carrying amounts approximate their fair values. Further, other borrowed funds with a variable interest rate are also considered 
to be approximate to fair value. Contractual interest rates and the Market interest rates of the public deposits are almost same and 
have been taken during the period.
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41.2  Assets for which Fair value approximates carrying value
For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short term maturity (original maturities less than a year), it is assumed that 
the carrying amounts approximate their fair values. Further, other borrowed funds with a variable interest rate are also considered to 
be approximate to fair value.

Level Type Valuation Technique Significant Unobservable 
Inputs

Sensitivity of the Input to 
the Fair Value

Level 3 Equity 
Securities

Cash flow valuation -Cash inflows and outflows 
related to investments

The estimated fair value of 
equity securities is sensitive 
to the following variables,

-Discount rate applicable to 
relevant investments

- Change in cash flow 
assumption would increase/
(decrease) value of 
investment.

(The company has not 
invested in these type of 
investments)

- The estimated fair value of 
investment would change if 
discount rate changes.

Level 3 Investment 
Property 
-land and 
buildings

Market comparable method: This method 
considers the selling price of a similar 
property within a reasonably recent period of 
time in determining  the fair value of property 
being revalued. This involves evaluation of 
recent active market prices of similar assets, 
making appropiate adjustments for difference 
in size, nature and location of the property.

Income method: The net income generated 
by the property is used in conjunction with 
certain factors is used to calculate its fair 
value.

Price per perch / Per 
Square Foot and Cash 
flows from Investment 
property discounted at an 
appropriate rate. (Refer 
note 23)

The estimated fair value 
of Investment Property is 
sensitive to the following 
variables,

- Change in price per perch 
of land/ per square of 
building.

-Market interest rate

42.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Overview
The Company has exposure to the following risk arising from financial instruments
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk
- Operational risk

The note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s risk management 
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of capital. Further quantitative 
disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial statements. 
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Risk management Framework
In order to maintain the equitable balance between risk and return, as well as to ensure the soundness of the Company, Nation Lanka 
Finance PLC has deployed an effective risk management framework, which encompasses the scope of risks to be managed, the 
process/systems and procedures to manage risk and the roles and responsibilities of individuals involved in risk management based 
on the Risk Management Strategy.

42.1  Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that arises due to inability or unwilling to meet a financial obligation by borrower, which can lead an asset to lose 
value or become worthless.

With the adoption of SLFRS 9 – Financial Instruments, the Company manages credit quality using a three stage approach which is 
in-line with the new standard requirements as well.

SLFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition.

Stage 1: A financial asset that is not originally credit-impaired on initial recognition is classified in Stage 1. Financial instruments in 
Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the proportion of lifetime expected credit losses (LTECL) that result from 
default events possible within next 12 months (12M ECL).

Stage 2: If significant increases in credit risk (SICR) since origination is identified, it is moved to Stage 2 and the Company records an 
allowance for LTECL.

Stage 3: If a financial asset is credit-impaired, it is moved to Stage 3 and the Company recognises an allowance for LTECL, with 
probability of default at 100%.

42.1.1 Management of Credit Risk
The approach towards managing credit risk is to accept any credit risks which are within the boundary approved by the board of 
directors. The Company’s credit policy provides direction for deal with credit risks. Apart from the Company’s credit policy, The 
Company conducts periodic credit risk stress testing analysis, portfolio monitoring, identifying problem facilities and maintaining 
exposure limits to manage the credit risk. Credit Risk Management approach adopted by Nation Lanka Finance PLC is described as 
follows;
 ∫ Credit appraisal
 ∫  Credit approval
 ∫  Credit administration
 ∫  Monitoring credit portfolio
 ∫  Managing problem facilities
 ∫ Key Judgments and Estimates related to COVID-19 explain under note 18

42.1.2 The maximum exposure to credit risk
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management 
also considers the demographics of the Company’s customer base, as these factors may have an influence on credit risk. During 
2020/21 the majority of the Company’s revenue was attributable to lending transactions .However there is no concentration on credit 
risk attributable to a single customer.

Properties are sold subject to retention of title causes, so that in the event of non payment the Company have a secured claim. 
Hence the Company does not keep an additional collateral in respect of trade receivable.

When granting a loan facility the Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually 
for creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s review 
includes earning patterns of individuals and bank references. 
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Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end 
of the reporting period was as follows : 

Company

As at, 3/31/2021
Rs.

3/31/2020
Rs.

Deposits with Commercial Banks 305,228,039 72,356,761

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost-Loans and Advances 4,409,429,298 5,949,499,039

Financial Assets Recognised Through Profit or Loss-Measured at fair value 30,843,505 16,229,355

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income 335,160,032 654,303,689

Amounts Due From Related Companies 2,353,690 4,460,004

Trade & Other Receivables 103,180,100 87,818,440

 5,186,194,663  6,784,667,288 

42.1.3 Loans and Advances to Customers
Amounts arising from ECL
Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment
Significant increase in credit risk
When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the 
Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This 
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Company’s historical experience and expert credit 
assessment and including forward-looking information.

Generating the term structure of PD
PD estimates are estimates at a certain date, which are calculated, based on statistical models, and assessed using various 
categories based on homogenous characteristics of exposures. These statistical models are based on internally compiled data 
comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors. Where it is available, market data may also be used to derive the PD for large 
corporate counterparties.

Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly
The assessment of whether credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly will be one of the critical judgments used 
in expected credit loss model prescribed in SLFRS 9 – Financial instruments. The criteria for determining whether credit risk has 
increased significantly vary by portfolio and include qualitative factors, including a backstop based on delinquency.

Using its expert credit judgment and, where possible, relevant historical experience, the Company may  determine that an exposure 
has undergone a significant increase in credit risk based on particular qualitative indicators that it considers are indicative of such 
and whose effect may not otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitative analysis on a timely basis.

As a backstop, the Company considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an asset is more than 30 
days past due. Days past due are determined by counting the number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect of which 
full payment has not been received.

The Company monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify significant increases in credit risk by regular reviews.
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Definition of default
The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when ;
- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as 

realising security (if any is held); or
- the assessment of the external rating agencies indicates a default grading of the borrower; or

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Company considers indicators that are:
- qualitative – e.g. breaches of covenant;
- quantitative – e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same issuer to the Bank; and based on data 

developed internally and obtained from external sources.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may vary over time to reflect 
changes in circumstances. The definition of default largely aligns with that applied by the Company for regulatory capital purposes.

Movement between the stages
Financial assets can be transferred between the different categories depending on their relative change in credit risk since initial 
recognition. Financial instruments are transferred out of stage 2 if their credit risk is no longer considered to be significantly 
increased since initial recognition. Financial instruments are transferred out of stage 3 when they no longer exhibit any evidence of 
credit impairment.

Incorporation of forward-looking information
“The Company incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the credit risk of an instrument has 
increased significantly since its initial recognition and its measurement of ECL using a variety of external actual and forecasted 
information. The Company formulates a base case view of the future direction of relevant economic variables as well as a 
representative range (Best Case and worst Case) of other possible forecast scenarios.

This process involves developing two or more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of each 
outcome. External information includes economic data and forecasts published by both local and international sources. The base 
case represents a most-likely outcome. The other scenarios represent more optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes.

The Company has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial instruments 
and, using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships between macroeconomic variables credit risk and credit losses. 
The economic variables used by the Company based on the statistical significance include the followings.

Unemployment Rate

Interest Rate

GDP Growth Rate Base case scenario along with two other scenarios has been used (Best Case and Worst Case)

Inflation Rate

Exchange Rate

Measurement of ECL
The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:
- Probability of default (PD);
-Loss given default (LGD);
-Exposure at default (EAD). 
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ECL for exposures in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD by LGD and EAD
Lifetime ECL is calculated by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and EAD
“The methodology of estimating PD is discussed above under the “Generating the term structure of PD”. LGD is the magnitude of 
the likely loss if there is a default. The Company estimates LGD parameters based on the history of recovery rates of claims against 
defaulted counterparties. The LGD models consider the structure, collateral,’seniority of the claim, type of product and recovery costs 
of any collateral that is integral to the financial asset. They are calculated on a discounted cash flow basis using the effective interest 
rate as the discounting factor.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of  a default. The Company derives the EAD from the current exposure to the 
counterparty and potential changes to the current amount allowed under the contract including amortisation. The EAD of a financial 
asset is its gross carrying amount. For lending commitments and financial guarantees, the EAD includes the amount drawn, as 
well as potential future amounts that may be drawn under the contract, which are estimated based on historical observations and 
forward-looking forecasts.

Write- off policy
The Company writes off a loan or an investment debt/equity security balance, and any related allowances for impairment losses, 
when it determines that the loan or security is uncollectible. This determination is made after considering information such as the 
occurrence of significant changes in the borrower’s/issuer’s financial position such that the borrower/issuer can no longer pay the   
obligation, or that proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure. For smaller balance standardised 
loans, write-off decisions generally are based on a product-specific past due status.

The Company’ s policy is to pursue timely realisation of the collateral in an orderly manner. The Company generally does not use the 
non cash collateral for its own operation.

42.1.4 Credit concentration risk
Company monitors credit concentration risk under product portfolio.

Product Concentration

31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Rs. % Rs. %

Loan  2,610,248,526 59.20  3,351,532,152 56.33 

Pawning  496,332,837 11.26  874,884,915 14.71 

Hire Purchase  180,284,700 4.09  227,397,356 3.82 

Leasing  1,065,619,264 24.17  1,407,348,237 23.65 

Loans & Receivables (Repossessed Collaterals)  56,943,971 1.29  88,336,379 1.48 

Total  4,409,429,298 100.00  5,949,499,039 100.00 

Financial Investments

31st March
 2021

31st March
 2020

Rs. Rs.

Deposits in Commercial Banks  305,228,039  72,356,761 

Investments in Government Securities  335,160,032  654,303,689 

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income  35,030,504  32,031,031 

Trade and other receivables  103,180,100  87,818,440 

Amounts due from related companies  2,353,690  4,460,004 

 780,952,365  850,969,925 
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Deposits in Commercial Banks are with a local bank having its rating at A+(lka) -Fitch Ratings.

42.2  Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises due to mismatch between assets and liabilities of the Company; and as a result, inability to honor the liabilities 
when fallen due. Managing the liquidity risk is utmost important to Company like NLF since the breach of liquidity requirements will 
exposed to other risk such as reputation and compliance Hence, breach of liquidity requirements will directly affect on Company’s 
going concern and credibility among stakeholders.

The objective of liquidity risk management is to bridge the gap between asset-liability maturity mismatch and ultimately it’s 
important  for the Company  the correct  combination of liquidity and profitability.

Treasury is responsible for the management of liquidity and it has been continuously monitored and reviewed at the ALCO.  Further 
the Integrated Risk Management reporting has been done on quarterly basis to further evaluate the risks on liquid.

Note 50 include the maturity list of liabilities with contractual cash flows.

Exposure to Liquidity Risk

31st March
 2021

31st March
 2020

Rs. Rs.

Net loans/Total assets 0.61 0.70

Gross Loans/Customer deposits 1.20 1.19

Liquid Asset Ratio (LAR)

Average for the year 0.82:1 0.89:1

42.3  Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and equity prices will affect the Group’s income or 
the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 

The economic fallout and closure of the share market due to COVID-19 pandemic resulted in dynamic changes in share market 
indexes. However, indexes are gradually recovering and management is monitoring the equity price movements on regular basis.

42.3.1  Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is a key constitute of the market risk exposure of the Company due to adverse and unanticipated movements in 
future interest rate which arises from core business activities; granting of credit facilities, accepting deposits. Due to the nature of 
operations of the Company, the impact of interest rate risk is mainly on the earnings of the Company rather than the market value 
of portfolios. Several factors give rise to interest rate risk; among these are term structure risk, which arises due to the mismatches 
in the maturities of assets and liabilities; basis risk which is the threat to income arises due to differences in the bases of interest 
rates.

Excessive movements in market interest rate could result in severe volatility to Company’s net interest income and net interest 
margin.

42.3.1.1  Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is primarily associated with factors such as;
Reprising risk arising from a fixed rate borrowing portfolio where reprising frequency is different to that of the lending portfolio.
Yield curve risk arising from unanticipated shifts of the market yield curve Interest Rate risk is managed principally through 
minimizing interest rate sensitive asset liability gaps. In order to ensure interest rate margin and spreads are maintained, the 
Company’s conducts periodic reviews and re-prices its assets accordingly.
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Interest rates due to COVID-19 outbreak
The Management of the Company is closely analysing the impact on net interest margin resulting from relief measures announced 
by CBSL to support businesses and individuals affected due to COVID-19 outbreak.

42.3.1.2 Interest Rate Risk Exposure on Financial Assets & Liabilities
The table below analyses the Company’s interest rate risk exposure on financial assets & liabilities. The Company’s assets & liabilities 
are included at carrying amount and categorised by the earlier of contractual reprising or maturity dates.

Company Up to 
03 Months

Rs.

03-12 
Months

Rs.

01-05 
Years

Rs.

Non interest
 bearing

Rs.

Total as at 31st
 March 2021

Rs.

Assets

Cash and Balances Due from Banks  -    -    -    105,174,695  105,174,695 

Due from Banks and Other Financial 
Institutions

 -    305,228,039  -    -    305,228,039 

Loans and Advances to Customers  907,460,021  1,433,413,472  2,068,555,805  -    4,409,429,298 

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value 
Through Other Comprehensive Income

 35,030,504  -    -    -    35,030,504 

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised 
Cost '- Debt and Other Instruments

 -    335,160,032  -    -    335,160,032 

Total Financial Assets  942,490,525  2,073,801,543  2,068,555,805  105,174,695  5,190,022,568 

Liabilities

Balances Due to Banks  277,325,289  -    -    -    277,325,289 

Due to Customers  1,243,335,990  2,614,623,658  1,389,646,327  5,247,605,975 

Debenture Issued  -    150,000,000  -    -    150,000,000 

Other Borrowings  118,286,849  178,381,685  -    -    296,668,534 

Total Financial Liabilities  1,638,948,128  2,943,005,343  1,389,646,327  -    5,971,599,798 

Interest Sensitivity Gap  (696,457,603)  (869,203,800)  678,909,478  105,174,695  (781,577,230)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INFORMATION



NATION LANKA FINANCE PLC | ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

PAGE 167

Company Up to 
03 Months

Rs.

03-12 
Months

Rs.

01-05 
Years

Rs.

Non interest
 bearing

Rs.

Total as at 31st
 March 2020

Rs.

Assets

Cash and Balances Due from Banks  -    -    -    86,410,165  86,410,165 

Due from Banks and Other Financial 
Institutions

 -    72,356,761  -    -    72,356,761 

Loans and Advances to Customers  1,236,409,494  2,251,513,602  2,461,575,943  -    5,949,499,039 

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value 
Through Other Comprehensive Income

 32,031,031  -    -    -    32,031,031 

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised 
Cost '- Debt and Other Instruments

 -    654,303,689  -    -    654,303,689 

Total Financial Assets  1,268,440,525  2,978,174,052  2,461,575,943  86,410,165  6,794,600,685 

Liabilities

Balances Due to Banks  34,376,452  -    -    -    34,376,452 

Due to Customers  1,486,090,951  2,869,858,323  2,085,740,529  6,441,689,805 

Debenture Issued  -    -    150,000,000  -    150,000,000 

Other Borrowings  46,028  220,903  610,346,576  -    610,613,507 

Total Financial Liabilities  1,520,513,431  2,870,079,226  2,846,087,105  -    7,236,679,764 

Interest Sensitivity Gap  (252,072,906)  108,094,826  (384,511,162)  86,410,165  (442,079,079)

42.4  Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign exchange rate risk arises from the movement of the rate of exchange of one currency against another, leading to an adverse 
impact on the Company’s earnings or equity. Currently the Company is not exposed to foreign exchange rate risk.

42.5  Exposure to Other Market Risks Share Investment and Price Risk
The risk experienced by investments in share trading risk is the risk that the fair value of shares decreases as a result of changes in 
the levels of indices and the value of individual stocks.

Based on the Company policies, Treasury division ensures that reporting in respect of the shares investments and its valuation 
methodologies are appropriate and consistent, and assesses the potential impact on profits and capital.
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42.6  Operational Risk
Operational risk arises due to internal process failures, human capital losses, inadequate internal process, technological breakdowns 
and adverse impact from external events. Operational risk act as a bottleneck for many companies, due to an inadequate awareness 
on companies no operational risk indicators or insufficient internal controls. Purpose of managing operational risk is to minimise 
the normal losses incurred due to internal activities, restoring any disruption without impacting the core business of the Group and 
mitigating replication of such events in the future. Managing operational risk is prime responsibility of all Nation Lanka Finance 
PLC employees and Group has executed a well defined operational risk policy framework. Internal controls and strict system audit 
functions are kept in order to enhance the operational risk mitigating process.

 ∫ COVID Task Force was set up with selected Heads of Departments and Regional Managers to handle the situation.  
 ∫ All employees were directed to work from home during the lockdown with necessary IT support provided to enable them continue 

performing their designated job roles from the safety of their homes.
 ∫ Online  payment processing was done in order to facilitate Fixed Deposit Interests, Refunds and urgent payments and Payroll 

related payment.
 ∫ Maintained essential staff in the Head Office and at Branches as per given guidelines.
 ∫ All reports were compiled online and submitted to regulators on due dates.
 ∫ All regular and Ad-hoc Meetings were conducted Online.
 ∫ Online audits were carried out especially Pawning and Cash Operations.
 ∫ Implemented flexi-hours to minimise the number of employees present at the Head Office or at a branch at any given time.
 ∫ It was mandated that all staff reporting to work should wear a face mask at all times and Mandatory temperature checks were 

done twice a day on all employees at work.
 ∫ A strict sanitisation schedule was implemented and carried out several times a day.
 ∫ We allocated a separate area to handle the customers at the Head Office with necessary precautions implemented to ensure the 

safety of sales staff coming into contact with customers.
 ∫ We maintained a database of customers who visited the Head Office and branches on a daily basis throughout the pandemic 

period.

42.7  Capital management
The  Board’s policy is to maintain  a strong capital base so as to maintain investor , creditor  and market confidence  and sustain 
future development of the business . Capital consist of ordinary shares , retained  earnings  and non controlling interests of the 
Company. The board of directors monitor the return on  capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary share holders.

The Company’s main objective is when managing capital are:
01) to safeguarded the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders 

and benefits for other stakeholders
02) to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk; and 

Further, the Board seeks to maintain a balance between higher targeted returns that might be possible with higher level of borrowing, 
and the advantages and security afforded by the strong capital position of the Company.

The Company’s net debt to adjusted equity ratio at the reporting date is as follows.

31st March
 2021 

Rs.

31st March
 2020

Rs.

Total liabilities  6,304,453,340  7,665,828,441 

Less: cash and cash equivalents  745,562,766  813,070,615 

Net debt  5,558,890,574  6,852,757,826 

Total equity  958,179,302  1,072,611,046 

Net debt to adjusted equity ratio at 31st March  5.8  6.0 
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Total  Risk Weighted Assets Computation 

As at 31st March

Assets

2021
Amount

Rs. ‘000

2020
Restated

Amount

Rs. ‘000

2019
Restated

Amount

Rs. ‘000

Risk 
Weight

 Factor%

2021
Risk

 weighted 
Balance

Rs. ‘000

2020
Restated

Risk
 weighted

 Balance
Rs. ‘000

2019
Restated

Risk
 weighted

 Balance
Rs. ‘000

Claims on Government of Sri Lanka, Public 
Sector Entities and Central Bank of Sri 
Lanka

-Central Bank of Sri Lanka  335,160  654,304  601,717 0%  -    -    -   

Claims on Financial institutions

-Banks - AAA to BBB  358,979  121,965  138,335 20%  71,796  24,393  27,667 

Retail claims

-Retail claims in respect of motor vehicles 
and machinery

 1,187,734  1,609,186  1,694,005 100%  1,187,734  1,609,186  1,694,005 

Claims Secured by Gold

-Outstanding claim portion up to 70% of 
the market value

 26,989  825,708  539,844 0%  -    -    -   

-Remaining outstanding claim portion over 
70% of the market value

 469,344  49,177  86,559 100%  469,344  49,177  86,559 

-Retail claims that do not qualify for 
regulatory capital purposes

 1,701,167  3,848,097 100%  -    1,701,167  3,848,097 

Other retail claims  2,212,018  1,225,592 125%  2,765,023  1,531,990  -   

Other retail claims-Off Balance sheet item  18,950  -    -   125%  23,688 

Non-Performing Assets (NPAs)  -    -    -   

-Specific provisions are equal or more than 
20%

 331,798  336,489  114,317 100%  331,798  336,489  114,317 

Other claims(assets)

-Notes and Coins  51,424  36,802  48,691 0%  -    -    -   

-Fixed Assets  31,898  46,476  70,291 100%  31,898  46,476  70,291 

-Other Assets/Exposures  1,605,559  1,972,794  1,651,988 100%  1,605,559  1,972,794  1,651,988 

6,486,840 7,271,672 7,492,924

Risk Weighted Amount for Operational Risk  1,414,789  1,864,247  2,088,690 

Total Risk Weighted Amount 7,901,629 9,135,919 9,581,614

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INFORMATION



NATION LANKA FINANCE PLC | ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

PAGE 170

Total  Capital Base Computation

As at 31st March 2021
Rs. ‘000

2020
Rs. ‘000

Core Capital (Tier 1 Capital)
Tier I capital
Stated capital  1,224,042  1,224,042 
Reserve fund  131,422  131,422 
Fair value reserve  (95,662)  (98,361)
Audited retained earnings/(losses)  (196,191)  (203,650)
(less) Revaluation gains/surplus of investment property  (257,319)  (194,199)
General and other disclosed reserves  9,000  9,000 
Current year's profit(losses)  (114,432)  10,158 
Tier I capital 700,860  878,412 

Adjustments to Tier I capital
Other intangible assets (net)  (3,708)  (9,044)
SLFRS 9 day 1 impact adjustment  94,306  188,611 
Deferred tax assets (net)  (466,475)  (450,852)
Shortfall of the cumulative impairment to total provisions and interest in suspense  (19,251)  -   
Tier I Capital (after adjustments)  305,732  607,127 

Tier 2 Capital
Instruments qualified as Tier 2 capital  30,000  60,000 
Revaluation gains (50% of eligible revaluation gains)  83,749  -   
Eligible Tier 2 Capital  113,749  60,000 
Total Adjustments to eligible Tier 2 Capital  -    -   
Eligible Tier 2 Capital after adjustments  113,749  60,000 
Total Capital  419,481  667,127 

Capital Adequacy Ratio

As at 31st March 2021

%

2020
Restated

%

Core Capital Ratio (Minimum 6.5%)

Core Capital Ratio Core Capital
X 100

3.87 6.65

Risk Weighted Assets

Total Risk Weighted Capital Ratio (Minimum 10.5%)

Total Risk Weighted Capital Ratio Capital Base
X  100

5.31 7.30

Risk Weighted Assets

As the Company has not met its Capital Adequacy requirement, the Monetary Board of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka has imposed 
CAPs on Deposits and Lending with effect from 30th September 2019, whereby the Company should reduce from the date thereon, 
Rs.  100 Mn and Rs. 50 Mn per month from Deposit Base and Lending Base respectively. The Company signed a memorandum of 
understanding with Sinhaputhra Finance to begin the amalgamation of the two entities. We expect the merger will ensure NLF meets 
the core capital requirements that have been mandated by the Monetary Board of the Central Bank and also enable NLF to move up 
the ranks to be recognised as a “Category A” non-bank financial institution in Sri Lanka. Having made the necessary filings as at 31st 
March 2021, we are now awaiting formal approval from the Monetary Board of Sri Lanka to proceed with this amalgamation.
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43.  CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
There were no material capital commitments as at the reporting date that require adjustment to or disclosure in the Financial 
Statements.

44.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events on present 
obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is not probable or can’t be reliably measured.

As at 31st March 2021

%

2020
Restated

%

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities (Refer Note 44.1)  67,498,129  -   

Commitment

Up drawn commitment  -    -   

Capital commitment  -    -   

44.1  The company has reversed a provision for Financial VAT,NBT and DRL liability of Rs.67Mn during the year which relates to 
the year of assessment 2018/19. The said liability has been reversed based on an amended return filed with department of Inland 
Revenue. However, the amended return is still under the review of Inland Revenue department. No finality has been reached on the 
final liability based on the amended return as at 31st March 2021. The Management of the view that there is no additional liability to 
the financial statements.

44.2  IFRIC 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Deferred tax on Investment Properties
The Inland Revenue Act No.24 of 2017 and new tax rates including capital gains taxes were effective from 1 April 2018. Accordingly 
the income tax charge for the year ended 31 March 2021 has been computed at rates applicable to the year of assessment 2020/21. 
The provision for deferred tax as at 31 March 2021 has been calculated at 10% on capital gains arising from revalued Investment 
Properties applicable post 1 April 2018.

The uncertain tax treatment relates to the interpretation of the new law relating to Investment properties for tax purpose, where the 
group had to exercise judgement to determine the provision required for deferred taxes on capital gains applicable to Investment 
Properties. The group is of the view that the Investment properties used in the business falls under the category of “Investment 
Assets” and that it is likely that the taxation authorities would accept the group’s tax treatment and accordingly,deferred tax has 
been provided on the related gain on revaluation post 1 April 2018.

45.  COMPARATIVE INFORMATION
Comparative figures  have been reclassified, where necessary, in order to conform to the current period’s presentation. However, such 
reclassifications did not have any effect on the net profit or equity of the comparative year except the impact from the adjustment 
for correction of prior year adjustment disclosed.
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46.  EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Subsequent to the reporting date other than the events described below there were no circumstances that have arisen which would 
require adjustments to or disclosure in the Financial Statements.

47.  IMPACT ARISING FROM COVID-19 PANDEMIC
The outbreak of COVID - 19 which spread globally since January 2020 caused massive negative impact on economies leading 
to uncertainty in the entire world. However, Sri Lanka as a country exposed to this risk in late March 2020 and as an immediate 
precautionary measure the Government imposed island wide curfew with a Lock-down strategy depending on risk. As a result, 
the Group was compelled to limit the operations and “work from home’ while facilitating the key management personnel and the 
key required personnel to work with remote access. The subsequent announcement by the Government that Banks and Non-Bank 
Financial Institutions are an essential Service Provider, Group operated with critical functions to ensure uninterrupted service to its 
valued customers and statutory reporting while maintaining skeleton staff at branches. Timely payment of Fixed Deposit Interest and 
staff remunerations were facilitated through on-line banking process.

Liquidity was a major concern and cash flow monitoring was commenced immediately where Management Meetings were held using 
online facilities. All possible cost reduction measures were initiated to secure available liquid assets. The Group temporarily halted 
the new lending and focused on recovery of rentals and other dues while Recovery staff as well as the Marketing staff was assigned 
with a recovery targets to ensure a smooth inflow of cash flows.

Since March 2020 Based on the guidelines issued by Central Bank of Sri Lanka and Company’s own initiatives various forms of 
assistance to customers including debt moratorium were granted.

The moratorium on loan repayment is considered to be a loan modification under SLFRS 9. Modifications to the original terms and 
conditions of the loans due to COVID-19 moratorium did not result in a derecognition of the original loans if the modification does 
not result in cash flows that are substantially different. Accordingly based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, 
the Company records a modification gain or loss which have been netted off under the interest income.

Accordingly, a modification loss recognised during the year ended 31 March 2021 under net interest income in Note 7 resenting the 
difference between the original carrying value of the loan (before modification) and the discounted present value of the revised cash 
flows (at the Original EIR) at the date of the loan modification.

Hence, the actual economic conditions are likely to be different from the anticipated events. The effect of those differences may 
have significant impact on accounting judgement and estimates included in these Financial Statements. The Management evaluated 
the key assumptions used in the above estimates and judgements under probable stress scenarios such as, retention ratio of Fixed 
Deposits, Ratio of Rental Collection and Re-imposing of CBSL liquid asset requirement. The Group continues its effort in the possible 
merger with another Financial Institute in order to meet required Core-capital.

By evaluating the above actions and strategies, after due consideration of the range and likelihood of outcomes, the Management 
is satisfied that the Group have ability and adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and 
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing and presenting these financial statements.
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48.  MATURITY ANALYSIS
48.1  Definition of Maturity Analysis
An analysis of the interest bearing assets and liabilities employed by the Company as at 31st March 2021, based on the remaining 
period at the balance sheet date to the respective contractual maturity date is given below.

As at 31st March 2021 Total Less than 
3 Months

Rs.

 3 to 12 
Months

Rs.  

 1 to 3 
Years

Rs.

 More than 
3 Years

Rs.

Maturity analysis of financial assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents  105,174,695  105,174,695  -    -    -   

Deposits with Commercial Banks  305,228,039  -    305,228,039  -    -   

Financial assets measured at fair value 
through profit or loss 

Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL  30,843,505  -    30,843,505  -    -   

Investment securitie

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value 
Through Other Comprehensive Income

 35,030,504  -    -    -    35,030,504 

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

- Loans and Receivable From Customers - 
Gross

 6,373,485,257  1,316,493,060  2,079,517,382  1,880,597,533  1,096,877,282 

- Debt and Other Instruments  335,160,032  -    335,160,032  -    -   

Advances and other receivables

Amounts Due From Related Companies  2,353,690  -    2,353,690  -    -   

Right-to-use Asset  103,416,469  -    -    -    103,416,469 

Trade & Other Receivables  103,180,100  22,752,717  80,427,383  -   

Total  7,393,872,291  1,444,420,472  2,833,530,030  1,880,597,533  1,235,324,255 

Maturity analysis of financial liabilities 

Non-derivative liabilities 

Interest bearing liabilities

Due to Banks and Financial Institutions  277,325,289  -    277,325,289  -    -   

Deposits liabilities

Due to Customers  5,247,605,975  1,243,335,990  2,614,623,658  675,944,122  713,702,205 

Interest bearing borrowings

Lease liability  83,533,152  -    -    -    83,533,152 

Amounts Due to Related Companies  699,756  -    699,756  -    -   

Other Borrowings  296,668,534  118,286,849  178,381,685  -   

Subordinated debentures  150,000,000  -    150,000,000  -    -   

Total  6,055,832,706  1,361,622,839  3,221,030,388  675,944,122  797,235,357 
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49.  OPERATING SEGMENTS
The Company has four reportable segments, as described below, which are the Company’s strategic business lines. The strategic 
business lines offer different products and services, and are managed and monitored separately based on the Company’s 
management and internal reporting structure. The following summary describes the operations in each of the company’s reportable 
segments:

Lending - Includes Leasing/Hire Purchases/Term Loans/Pawning/Micro Lending (Note 18)

Property Development Gain on Land and Property Development- Real estate business (Note 22)/Changes in Fair Value of Investment 
Properties (Note 23)

Services - Fees and Commission Income

Investments & Others - Income from Trading of shares (Note 9)/Other Comprehensive Income

Lending Property Development Services Investments & Others Company Total

As at 31st March 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Total Revenue  1,224,213,724  1,967,493,820  164,443,817  83,602,124  9,063,904  10,883,079  114,378,694  53,924,304  1,512,100,139  2,115,903,327 

Inter Segment  -    -    -    -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Segment Revenue (Net)  1,224,213,724  1,967,493,820  164,443,817  83,602,124  9,063,904  10,883,079  114,378,694  53,924,304  1,512,100,139  2,115,903,327 

Segment Income  1,224,213,724  1,967,493,820  164,443,817  83,602,124  9,063,904  10,883,079  114,378,694  53,924,304  1,512,100,139  2,115,903,327 

Segment Expenses  (753,291,342)  (1,031,030,283)  (42,154,802)  (15,041,941)  -  -  -  -  (795,446,144)  (1,046,072,224)

Depreciation  -  -  -  -  -  -  (75,078,157)  (96,726,471)  (75,078,157)  (96,726,471)

Other Operating  
Expenses

 (417,536,086)  (511,575,290)  -  -  (2,758,676)  (2,947,510)  (243,799,706)  (362,186,008)  (664,094,468)  (876,708,808)

Operating  Profit/(Loss)  53,386,296  424,888,247  122,289,015  68,560,183  6,305,228  7,935,569  (204,499,169)  (404,988,175)  (22,518,630)  96,395,824 

Impairment for fall In 
Value of Investments

 -  -  -  -  -  -  14,454,166  (2,091,683)  14,454,166  (2,091,683)

Impairments charges for 
Loan and other Losses

 (193,480,683)  (156,527,158)  1,607,314  -  (419,477)  -  84,162,775  -  (108,130,071)  (156,527,158)

 (140,094,387)  268,361,089  123,896,329  68,560,183  5,885,751  7,935,569  (105,882,228)  (407,079,858)  (116,194,534)  (62,223,017)

Vat on Financial Services  -  -  -  -  -  -  (16,429,164)  (48,749,357)  (16,429,164)  (48,749,357)

Income Tax  -  -  -  -  -  -  18,191,954  121,130,684  18,191,954  121,130,684 

Segment Result After 
Tax 

 (140,094,387)  268,361,089  123,896,329  68,560,183  5,885,751  7,935,569  (104,119,438)  (334,698,531)  (114,431,744)  10,158,310 

Segment  Assets  5,049,817,369  6,676,159,489  1,148,265,908  1,098,583,983  404,936,838  316,377,839  659,612,527  647,318,176  7,262,632,642  8,738,439,487 

Segment  Liabilities  5,524,931,264  6,476,066,257  201,596,794  275,115,336  150,000,000  150,000,000  427,925,282  764,646,848  6,304,453,340  7,665,828,441 
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49.  OPERATING SEGMENTS
The Company has four reportable segments, as described below, which are the Company’s strategic business lines. The strategic 
business lines offer different products and services, and are managed and monitored separately based on the Company’s 
management and internal reporting structure. The following summary describes the operations in each of the company’s reportable 
segments:

Lending - Includes Leasing/Hire Purchases/Term Loans/Pawning/Micro Lending (Note 18)

Property Development Gain on Land and Property Development- Real estate business (Note 22)/Changes in Fair Value of Investment 
Properties (Note 23)

Services - Fees and Commission Income

Investments & Others - Income from Trading of shares (Note 9)/Other Comprehensive Income

Lending Property Development Services Investments & Others Company Total

As at 31st March 2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

2021
Rs.

2020
Rs.

Total Revenue  1,224,213,724  1,967,493,820  164,443,817  83,602,124  9,063,904  10,883,079  114,378,694  53,924,304  1,512,100,139  2,115,903,327 

Inter Segment  -    -    -    -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Segment Revenue (Net)  1,224,213,724  1,967,493,820  164,443,817  83,602,124  9,063,904  10,883,079  114,378,694  53,924,304  1,512,100,139  2,115,903,327 

Segment Income  1,224,213,724  1,967,493,820  164,443,817  83,602,124  9,063,904  10,883,079  114,378,694  53,924,304  1,512,100,139  2,115,903,327 

Segment Expenses  (753,291,342)  (1,031,030,283)  (42,154,802)  (15,041,941)  -  -  -  -  (795,446,144)  (1,046,072,224)

Depreciation  -  -  -  -  -  -  (75,078,157)  (96,726,471)  (75,078,157)  (96,726,471)

Other Operating  
Expenses

 (417,536,086)  (511,575,290)  -  -  (2,758,676)  (2,947,510)  (243,799,706)  (362,186,008)  (664,094,468)  (876,708,808)

Operating  Profit/(Loss)  53,386,296  424,888,247  122,289,015  68,560,183  6,305,228  7,935,569  (204,499,169)  (404,988,175)  (22,518,630)  96,395,824 

Impairment for fall In 
Value of Investments

 -  -  -  -  -  -  14,454,166  (2,091,683)  14,454,166  (2,091,683)

Impairments charges for 
Loan and other Losses

 (193,480,683)  (156,527,158)  1,607,314  -  (419,477)  -  84,162,775  -  (108,130,071)  (156,527,158)

 (140,094,387)  268,361,089  123,896,329  68,560,183  5,885,751  7,935,569  (105,882,228)  (407,079,858)  (116,194,534)  (62,223,017)

Vat on Financial Services  -  -  -  -  -  -  (16,429,164)  (48,749,357)  (16,429,164)  (48,749,357)

Income Tax  -  -  -  -  -  -  18,191,954  121,130,684  18,191,954  121,130,684 

Segment Result After 
Tax 

 (140,094,387)  268,361,089  123,896,329  68,560,183  5,885,751  7,935,569  (104,119,438)  (334,698,531)  (114,431,744)  10,158,310 

Segment  Assets  5,049,817,369  6,676,159,489  1,148,265,908  1,098,583,983  404,936,838  316,377,839  659,612,527  647,318,176  7,262,632,642  8,738,439,487 

Segment  Liabilities  5,524,931,264  6,476,066,257  201,596,794  275,115,336  150,000,000  150,000,000  427,925,282  764,646,848  6,304,453,340  7,665,828,441 
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50.  NON COMPLIANCE WITH CENTRAL BANK REQUIREMENTS AND GOING CONCERN
The Company has not complied with the Capital Adequacy requirements (Direction No 03 of 2018) and Minimum Core Capital 
(Direction No 02 of 2017) as at the reporting date.

The Company’s current year total comprehensive loss is 114,431,744/- resulting a accumulated losses of Rs. 310,622,889/- as at 
31 March 2021(31 March 2020 - Rs. 193,491,619/-). The core capital level of the Group is currently at a deficit of Rs.1,300 Mn as 
at 31 March 2021 (Rs.1,122 as at 31 March 2020), against the minimum regulatory core capital of Rs. 2,000 Mn resulting in non-
compliance with the Minimum Core Capital Direction No 02 of 2017. The Total capital adequacy ratio of the Group is currently at 
3.87% as at 31 March 2021 (6.65% as at 31 March 2020) against the minimum regulatory requirement of 10.50%  resulting in non-
compliance with the Capital Adequacy Direction No 03 of 2018. 

Further, impact arising from COVID-19 to the Company was discussed in note 47 to the financial statements. Notwithstanding this, 
these financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis with the view of new capital adequacy direction imposed 
by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka and also meeting Company’s growth strategies, the management of Nation Lanka Finance PLC 
has been pursuing options of a Merger or an Equity Investor since September 2018. Periodic discussions held with Investment 
Agents, prospective investors & partners with merger option local & international, Central Bank officials and as a prerequisite, a Due 
Diligence was carried out by a consultancy firm, effective December 2019 to ascertain the Net Asset Value. Although, no agreements 
reached at the time of the financial year end, the Company is aggressively engaged on the equity enhancement drive and hoping to 
meet its capital adequacy obligations and funding targets by or before 31st December 2021.
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

 Group  Company 

For the year ended 31st March, 2021
Rs. 000

2020
Rs. 000

2021
Rs. 000

2020
Rs. 000

Value Added

Value added income earned by Key Business 
Activities

 1,246,750  1,982,193  1,246,750  1,982,193 

Cost of services bought from outside  (1,096,475)  (1,554,320)  (1,096,398)  (1,554,325)

 150,276  427,873  150,352  427,868 

Other income  227,764  115,005  227,764  115,005 

Expected credit loss charge  (108,130)  (156,527)  (108,130)  (156,527)

Value Added  269,909  386,351  269,986  386,346 

 Group  Company 

For the year ended 31st 
March,

2021
Rs. 000

2020
Rs. 000 %

2021
Rs. 000

2020
Rs. 000 %

Distribution of Value added

To Employees  320,988  404,813 119  320,988  404,813 119

To Providers of Capital  -    -    -    -    -    -   

To Government Revenue

- Income Tax  (18,192)  (121,131) (-7)  (18,192)  (121,131) (-7)

- VAT on Financial Services  16,429  48,749 6  16,429  48,749 6

To Expansion & Growth 0

- Retained income  (124,394)  8,592 (-46)  (124,317)  8,586 (-46)

- Depreciation  75,078  45,328 28  75,078  45,328 28

 269,909  386,351 100  269,986  386,346 100
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TEN YEAR SUMMARY - GROUP

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

For the Year ended 31st March 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Statement of Income (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000)

Revenue 1,188,081 1,949,608 2,317,633 2,299,948 2,341,171 2,338,992 1,215,341 1,610,180 1,148,520  895,571  1,412,857 

Profit/(Loss) before provision & taxation& 
share of associate co. profit/(loss) (17,950) 92,732 439,182 544,366 933,795 646,993 (314,318) (250,228) 37,731  (127,574)  (132,143)

Impairment for fall in value of investments  -    -   (2,017)  (9,857)

Impairment charges for Loan & other Losses (108,130) (156,527) (118,849) (596,826) (601,041) (340,911) (283,652) 180,029 10,517  (321)

Provision for diminution in value of share  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    22,840 

Impairment for Obsolete Inventories  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    4,418 

Extraordinary items/(provisions)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (7,102)  (214,661)

Profit/(Loss) before taxation & associated 
profit/(Loss) (126,080) (63,795) 320,333 (52,461) 332,754 306,082 (597,970) (70,199) 36,611  (140,436)  (323,964)

Share of associate co. profit/(loss) 7,477 5,699 4,891 11,637  13,681 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation (126,080) (63,795) 320,333 (52,461) 332,754 313,560 (592,271) (65,308) 48,248  (126,755)  (323,964)

VAT on Financial Services (16,429) (48,749) (82,826) (43,966) (60,560) (54,454) (169) (13,785)  (919)

Income tax expenses 18,192 121,131 15,982 48,650 16,209 (59,198) (3,498) (5,177) (51,251)  (22,206)  (36,447)

Profit/(Loss) after taxation (124,317) 8,586 253,489 (47,776) 288,403 199,908 (595,938) (84,270) (3,922)  (148,961)  (360,411)

Other Comprehensive Income 9,886 1,572 219 (6,709) 320 (4,055) (1,082) 11,100  (9,148)

Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations 25,290  130,302 

Non Controlling Interest  22,837  (5,112) (15,663)  (6,062)  (19,809)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to share holders (114,432) 10,158 253,708 (54,485) 288,723 195,853 (548,893) 52,020 (28,733)  (155,023)  (380,220)

Retained Profit/(Loss)  brought forward  -    -   (1,640,320) (1,760,037) (1,722,654)  (1,466,275)  1,299,650 

Direct Cost on Right Issue  -    -    (4,358)

Effects due to changes in accounting policy  -    -    1,296  (176,805)

Profit available for appropriation (114,432) 10,158 253,708 (54,485) 288,723 195,853 (2,189,213) (1,708,017) (1,751,387)  (1,624,360)  742,625 

Appropriations

Effect of Acquisitions,Disposals & Change in 
percentage Holdings in Subsidiaries  -    -    -    -    -    -    (9,907)  -   (8,651)  (98,294)  -   

Change in Holdings  -    -    -    -    -    -    23,277  -    -    -   

Transfer to reserves/adjustments  -    -    -    -    -    -   5,342 44,419  -    -    466,624 

Preference dividends  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Ordinary dividends  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Retained profit  carried forward  (114,432)  10,158  253,708  (54,485)  288,723  195,853  (2,193,778)  (1,640,321)  (1,760,038)  (1,722,654)  1,209,249 

Basic Earnings/(Loss) per share  (0.09)  0.01  0.24  (0.06)  0.24  0.71  (2.18)  0.17  (0.08)  (0.70)  (5.94)

Dividends per share  (0.31)  -   
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TEN YEAR SUMMARY - GROUP

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

For the Year ended 31st March 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Statement of Income (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000)

Revenue 1,188,081 1,949,608 2,317,633 2,299,948 2,341,171 2,338,992 1,215,341 1,610,180 1,148,520  895,571  1,412,857 

Profit/(Loss) before provision & taxation& 
share of associate co. profit/(loss) (17,950) 92,732 439,182 544,366 933,795 646,993 (314,318) (250,228) 37,731  (127,574)  (132,143)

Impairment for fall in value of investments  -    -   (2,017)  (9,857)

Impairment charges for Loan & other Losses (108,130) (156,527) (118,849) (596,826) (601,041) (340,911) (283,652) 180,029 10,517  (321)

Provision for diminution in value of share  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    22,840 

Impairment for Obsolete Inventories  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    4,418 

Extraordinary items/(provisions)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (7,102)  (214,661)

Profit/(Loss) before taxation & associated 
profit/(Loss) (126,080) (63,795) 320,333 (52,461) 332,754 306,082 (597,970) (70,199) 36,611  (140,436)  (323,964)

Share of associate co. profit/(loss) 7,477 5,699 4,891 11,637  13,681 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation (126,080) (63,795) 320,333 (52,461) 332,754 313,560 (592,271) (65,308) 48,248  (126,755)  (323,964)

VAT on Financial Services (16,429) (48,749) (82,826) (43,966) (60,560) (54,454) (169) (13,785)  (919)

Income tax expenses 18,192 121,131 15,982 48,650 16,209 (59,198) (3,498) (5,177) (51,251)  (22,206)  (36,447)

Profit/(Loss) after taxation (124,317) 8,586 253,489 (47,776) 288,403 199,908 (595,938) (84,270) (3,922)  (148,961)  (360,411)

Other Comprehensive Income 9,886 1,572 219 (6,709) 320 (4,055) (1,082) 11,100  (9,148)

Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations 25,290  130,302 

Non Controlling Interest  22,837  (5,112) (15,663)  (6,062)  (19,809)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to share holders (114,432) 10,158 253,708 (54,485) 288,723 195,853 (548,893) 52,020 (28,733)  (155,023)  (380,220)

Retained Profit/(Loss)  brought forward  -    -   (1,640,320) (1,760,037) (1,722,654)  (1,466,275)  1,299,650 

Direct Cost on Right Issue  -    -    (4,358)

Effects due to changes in accounting policy  -    -    1,296  (176,805)

Profit available for appropriation (114,432) 10,158 253,708 (54,485) 288,723 195,853 (2,189,213) (1,708,017) (1,751,387)  (1,624,360)  742,625 

Appropriations

Effect of Acquisitions,Disposals & Change in 
percentage Holdings in Subsidiaries  -    -    -    -    -    -    (9,907)  -   (8,651)  (98,294)  -   

Change in Holdings  -    -    -    -    -    -    23,277  -    -    -   

Transfer to reserves/adjustments  -    -    -    -    -    -   5,342 44,419  -    -    466,624 

Preference dividends  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Ordinary dividends  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Retained profit  carried forward  (114,432)  10,158  253,708  (54,485)  288,723  195,853  (2,193,778)  (1,640,321)  (1,760,038)  (1,722,654)  1,209,249 

Basic Earnings/(Loss) per share  (0.09)  0.01  0.24  (0.06)  0.24  0.71  (2.18)  0.17  (0.08)  (0.70)  (5.94)

Dividends per share  (0.31)  -   



NATION LANKA FINANCE PLC | ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

PAGE 180

As at 31st March, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Statement of Financial Position (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000)

Assets

Property, Plant & Equipments 35,606 46,476 81,741 118,562 127,042 92,575 199,411 231,393 342,853  301,722  196,421 

Long Term Investments 30,844 16,229 18,321 547,165 27,565 52,241 91,191 4,851 4,586  40,373  123,785 

Non Current Assets 7,196,183 8,675,734 8,526,600 7,910,906 7,506,550 7,153,520 5,330,224 2,391,383 2,403,398  1,790,921  732,663 

Net Current Assets/(Liabilities) (723,994) (794,990) (115,221) 40,854 355,278 (84,474) (189,221) 44,429 516,816  590,076  40,622 

Total Asset less Current Liabilities  6,538,639  7,943,450  8,511,441  8,617,488  8,016,435  7,213,863  5,431,605  2,672,056  3,267,653  2,723,092  1,093,491 

Non Current Liabilities (5,580,460) (6,870,838) (7,434,602) (8,017,517) (7,361,980) (6,770,989) (5,642,261) (2,133,260) (2,871,722)  (2,386,062)  (987,897)

 958,179  1,072,611  1,076,839  599,971  654,455  442,874  (210,656)  538,796  395,931  337,030  105,594 

Financed by

Stated Capital/Ordinary shares 1,224,042 1,224,042 1,224,042 623,661 623,660 2,329,043 1,826,717 1,818,415 1,817,952  1,817,952  1,018,336 

Preference shares

Share Premium

Statutory Reserve Fund 131,422 131,422 129,705 96,290 96,290 13,641 8,336 7,550 7,550  7,550 

Other Reserves 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,660 83,755 83,755 134,302  89,546 

Retained Earnings (310,623) (193,492) (181,000) (128,980) (74,495) (1,909,391) (2,193,779) (1,639,535) (1,760,037)  (1,677,899)  (1,089,583)

Investment Fund Reserve  -    -    5,342 

Fair Value Reserve (95,662) (98,361) -104,908.00  -    -   

Non Controlling Interest  -    -   (79) 64,315 263,269 196,164  99,881  176,841 

958,179 1,072,611 1,076,839 599,971 654,455 442,874 (210,656) 538,796 395,931  337,030  105,594 

Net Assets/(Liability) per share  0.71  0.97  1.43  0.80  1.43  0.59  (1.10)  1.10  0.80  1.69  (0.51)

TEN YEAR SUMMARY - GROUP

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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TEN YEAR SUMMARY - GROUP

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

As at 31st March, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Statement of Financial Position (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000) (Rs. 000)

Assets

Property, Plant & Equipments 35,606 46,476 81,741 118,562 127,042 92,575 199,411 231,393 342,853  301,722  196,421 

Long Term Investments 30,844 16,229 18,321 547,165 27,565 52,241 91,191 4,851 4,586  40,373  123,785 

Non Current Assets 7,196,183 8,675,734 8,526,600 7,910,906 7,506,550 7,153,520 5,330,224 2,391,383 2,403,398  1,790,921  732,663 

Net Current Assets/(Liabilities) (723,994) (794,990) (115,221) 40,854 355,278 (84,474) (189,221) 44,429 516,816  590,076  40,622 

Total Asset less Current Liabilities  6,538,639  7,943,450  8,511,441  8,617,488  8,016,435  7,213,863  5,431,605  2,672,056  3,267,653  2,723,092  1,093,491 

Non Current Liabilities (5,580,460) (6,870,838) (7,434,602) (8,017,517) (7,361,980) (6,770,989) (5,642,261) (2,133,260) (2,871,722)  (2,386,062)  (987,897)

 958,179  1,072,611  1,076,839  599,971  654,455  442,874  (210,656)  538,796  395,931  337,030  105,594 

Financed by

Stated Capital/Ordinary shares 1,224,042 1,224,042 1,224,042 623,661 623,660 2,329,043 1,826,717 1,818,415 1,817,952  1,817,952  1,018,336 

Preference shares

Share Premium

Statutory Reserve Fund 131,422 131,422 129,705 96,290 96,290 13,641 8,336 7,550 7,550  7,550 

Other Reserves 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,660 83,755 83,755 134,302  89,546 

Retained Earnings (310,623) (193,492) (181,000) (128,980) (74,495) (1,909,391) (2,193,779) (1,639,535) (1,760,037)  (1,677,899)  (1,089,583)

Investment Fund Reserve  -    -    5,342 

Fair Value Reserve (95,662) (98,361) -104,908.00  -    -   

Non Controlling Interest  -    -   (79) 64,315 263,269 196,164  99,881  176,841 

958,179 1,072,611 1,076,839 599,971 654,455 442,874 (210,656) 538,796 395,931  337,030  105,594 

Net Assets/(Liability) per share  0.71  0.97  1.43  0.80  1.43  0.59  (1.10)  1.10  0.80  1.69  (0.51)
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SHAREHOLDERS & INVESTOR INFORMATION

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

1.  TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

No. Name No of shares
As at 31/03/2021

% No of shares
As at 20/03/2020

%

1. Mr. V R  Ramanan 751,556,976 55.52 751,556,976 55.52

2. DFCC Bank PLC /  Mr. U H Dharmadasa 141,587,275 10.46 141,587,275 10.46

Mr. U H Dharmadasa 94,274,100 6.96 94,274,100 6.96

3. Mr. H.K.J. Dharmadasa 87,536,211 6.47 87,536,211 6.47

4. Mr. J  Rudra 38,899,235 2.87 38,899,235 2.87

Mr. & Mrs. Rudra (Joint) 6,187 - 6,187 -

5. Mr.  K C C Perera 38,403,900 2.84 43,074,228 3.18

6. Seylan Bank PLC/Mr. H T Wijesinghe 13,566,023 1.00 13,566,023 1.00

7. Sampath Bank PLC/Dr. T Senethilverl 10,053,955 0.74 10,053,955 -

8. Hatton National Bank PLC/Mr. R E Rambukwella 7,800,000          0.58 7,753,301 0.19

9. Richard Pieris Financial Services (Private) Ltd / Mr. H J C Perera 6,000,000 0.44 14,875,000 1.10

Mr. H J C Perera 2,725,000 0.20 2,725,000 0.20

10. Mr. A.P.L. Fernando 4,400,000 0.33 4,400,000 0.33

11. Mr. S.P.R. Karunarathne 3,954,376 0.29 3,954,376 0.29

12. Seylan Bank PLC /Mr. R P Sugathadasa 3,470,930 0.28 3,733,305 0.29

13. Mr. V Sivasudhan   2,888,888 0.21   2,888,888 0.21

14. Miss. I T Madanasinghe 2,700,000 0.20 - -

15. Mr. D S Deerasinghe 2,650,000 0.20 - -

16. Ceylinco Securities Share Ownership Trust (Pvt) Ltd 2,475,600 0.18 2,475,600 0.18

17. Mr. A D I Pushpakumara 2,420,650 0.18 61,000  -

18. Merchant Bank of Sri Lanka & Finance PLC/. N P Gunaratna    2,365,513 0.17 2,607,720 -

19. Mr. P P Thevarajah  2,095,593 0.15 2,045,593 0.15

20. Mr. A D Edussuriya 1,900,000          0.14 - -

Total 1,223,730,412 90.39 1,244,045,112 91.89
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SHAREHOLDERS & INVESTOR INFORMATION

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

2.  STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Nation Lanka Finance PLC is a Public Quoted Company. Its issued ordinary shares were listed with the Colombo Stock Exchange on 
30thJune 1994.

3.  DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS – 31ST MARCH 2021

 Resident Non – Resident Total

Value Band No of
 Share      

Holders    

No of 
Shares     

% No of
 Share 

Holders     

No of 
Shares     

% No of 
Share 

Holders     

No of 
Shares     

%

1 - 1,000 10,770 1,919,610 0.14% 23 10,300 -    10,793 1,929,910 0.14%

1,001 - 10,000 1,733 7,074,214 0.52% 13 93,957 0.01% 1,746 7,168,171 0.53%

10,001 - 100,000 818 28,434,031 2.10% 8 219,524 0.02% 826 28,653,555 2.12%

100,001 - 1,000,000 235 67,323,812 4.97% 4 1,129,385 0.08% 239 68,453,197 5.05%

1,000,001 & above 38 570,888,970 42.17% 1 676,698,803 49.99% 39 1,247,587,773  92.16%

Total  13,594  675,640,637 49.91% 49 678,151,969 50.09% 13,643 1,353,792,606 100.00%

4.  CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

2020/2021 2019/2020

Categories of 
Shareholders

No of Shares Shareholders No of  % No of Shares Shareholders No of  %

Individuals 1,139,338,206 13,406 84.16% 1,142,026,705 13,262 84.36%  

Institutions 214,454,400    237 15.84% 211,765,901 232 15.64%   

Total 1,353,792,606 13,643 100.00% 1,353,792,606 13,494   100.00%
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SHAREHOLDERS & INVESTOR INFORMATION
6.  SHARE INFORMATION 

Book value (group) 20/21 19/20

Share price

Highest 1.4 1.4

Lowest 0.4 0.4

31st March 0.7 0.7

Public holding

Total number of public share holders 13,640 13,489

Percentage of public holding 24.19% 16.42%

Float adjusted market capitalisation 229,237,702 155,604,922

The float adjusted market capitalisation of the company falls under option V of rule 7.13.1 (a), of the Listing Rules of the Colombo 
Stock Exchange and the company has complied with the minimum public holding requirement applicable under the said option.

SHAREHOLDERS & INVESTOR INFORMATION

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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NOTICE OF MEETING

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE THIRTY FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NATION LANKA 
FINANCE PLC WILL BE HELD AS AN ONLINE AUDIO-VISUAL MEETING ON THURSDAY THE 30th SEPTEMBER 2021, AT 10.00 A.M. AT THE 
REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT NO. 690, GALLE ROAD, COLOMBO 03, FOR THE FOLLOWING PURPOSES:

AGENDA
1. To receive and consider the Report of the Board of Directors and the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 

2021 together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.
2. To elect, Mr. N J K Dissanayake, a Director, who retires by rotation in terms of Article 95 of the Articles of Association of the Company.
3. To re-appoint M/s. KPMG, Chartered Accountants, Auditors of the Company, for the ensuing financial year 2021/2022 and to 

authorise the Board of Directors to determine their remuneration.
4. To authorise the Board of Directors to determine contributions to charities and other donations for the financial year 2021/2022.
5. To transact any other business of which due notice has been given.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Corporate Arcade Ltd
Company Secretaries

27th August 2021

NOTE:
The Board of Directors, having taken into consideration the health and safety  guidelines issued by the Health Authorities in view of 
the COVID - 19 pandemic and the guidelines issued by the Colombo Stock Exchange to Listed Entities to hold Shareholder Meetings 
virtually, has decided to hold the Annual General Meeting (AGM) through Audio or Audio/ Visual means in conformity with the 
regulatory provisions of the Company.

Please refer instructions to participate at the Annual General Meeting via online.
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INSTRUCTIONS TO PARTICIPATE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING (AGM)

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

a)  Shareholders who wish to participate at the AGM (on-line) are requested to email the following information to  
agmnationlanka@gmail.com

DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDER

1. Full name : ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

2. Address : ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

3. National Identify Card number/Company 
Registration number

: ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

4. CDS Account number : ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

5. Contact number : Land line: ………………………………………… Mobile: …………………………………………………

6. Email address (to which the on-line 
meeting link should be forwarded by the 
Company)

: ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

b)  A Shareholder is entitled to appoint a proxy to participate and vote (on-line) on his/her behalf.

c)  A Proxy Holder need not be a Shareholder of the Company. A Form of Proxy is enclosed for this purpose.

d)  The completed Form of Proxy should reach 48 hours before the time fixed for the Annual General Meeting, either by:

(i) Post or hand  delivered to the Company Secretaries, Corporate Arcade Ltd at No.9/4, 1 – B, Edmonton Road, Colombo 06  
 or
(ii) Scanned and emailed to the email address: agmnationlanka@gmail.com

Only registered Shareholders and registered Proxy Holders will be permitted to log in to participate at the AGM via on-line.
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FORM OF PROXY

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

I/We……………………………….…………………………………………...................................….. of .................................…………………………..……………………………

………………………………………………............................................................................................................………………………………………… being a Member/

Members of Nation Lanka Finance PLC hereby appoint …………………..…………………………….……………………………….…………………… holder of  

NIC No. ……..………………...………..……………………… of ………………………………………..……………………………..……………..…………. or failing him /her.

Victor Rajamanner Ramanan of Colombo – 6 whom failing
Jayaprakash Rudra of Colombo – 6 whom failing
Nayana Jagath Kumar Dissanayake of Rajagiriya  

as my / * our proxy to represent me / * us on my/ * our behalf as indicated below at the Thirty Fourth Annual General Meeting of the 
Company to be held on the 30th day of September 2021 and at any adjournment thereof.

Please indicate your preference by placing a  against the Resolution No.  

For Against

(1) To receive and consider the Report of the Board of Directors and the Audited Financial Statements 
for the Year ended 31st March 2021 together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

(2) To elect Mr. N J K Dissanayake, a Director, who retires by rotation in terms of Article 95 of the 
Articles of Association of the Company

(3) To re-appoint M/s. KPMG, Chartered Accountants, Auditors of the Company for the ensuing 
Financial Year 2021/2022 and to authorise the Board of Directors to determine their remuneration.

(4) To authorise the Directors to determine contributions to charities and other donations for the year 
2021/2022.

As witness my/ our hand/s this ..............………....................... day of ....……..........................  2021.

.........................                                                                                      ..........................
NIC / REG. NO Signature
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE COMPLETION OF PROXY
(1) Please perfect the form of proxy overleaf, by signing in the space provided and 

filling in the date of signature, after filling in legibly your full name and address.
(2) Please return the completed Form of Proxy after deleting one or other of the 

alternative words indicated by asterisks in the body of the form, if he/she wishes 
his/her proxy holder to participate at the AGM online, shall e-mail  the above 
information to agmnationlanka@gmail.com

(3) To be valid, completed form of Proxy should be deposited either by e-mail 
agmnationlanka@gmail.com or by posted/delivered to the Company Secretaries 
at No.9/4, 1 – B, Edmonton Road, Colombo 06, not less than 48 hours before the 
time appointed for the holding of the meeting.

(4) If the form of Proxy has been signed by an attorney, the relative Power of Attorney 
should also as Company the completed form of Proxy for registration, if such 
Power of Attorney has not already been registered with the Company.

(5) If the shareholder is a Company or a corporate body, the Proxy should be 
executed under its Common Seal (where applicable) in accordance with its 
Articles of Association or Constitution.

(6) If there is any doubt as to how the vote is to be exercised by reason of the manner 
in which the Form of Proxy has been completed, no vote will be recorded.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FORM OF PROXY
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

NAME OF THE COMPANY
Nation Lanka Finance PLC

FORMER NAMES OF THE COMPANY
Ceylinco Securities & Investments Ltd
Ceylinco Securities & Financial Services PLC
Ceylinco Finance PLC

LEGAL STATUS
A Public Quoted Company with Limited 
Liability incorporated in Sri Lanka on 
15th July 1987. Approved Credit Agency 
under the Mortgage Act   No.6 of 1949   
and   Inland   Trust Receipts   Act No.14 of 
1990.  Registered as a Finance Leasing 
Establishment w.e.f. 01/08/2002 under the 
Finance Leasing Act No.56 of 2000 and 
Registered as a Finance Company w.e.f 5th 
March 2012 under the Finance Business Act 
No.42 of 2011.

REGISTRATION NUMBER
PQ 33

ACCOUNTING YEAR END 
31st March 

TAX PAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 
(TIN)

134001518

REGISTERED / BUSINESS OFFICE
No. 690, Galle Road,
Colombo 03
Tel: 4760800
Fax: (941) 4760867
E-Mail: info@nationlanka.com
Web: www.nationlanka.com

SUBSIDIARIES
Nation Micro Investment Ltd

BANKERS
Bank of Ceylon
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC
Sampath Bank PLC
Seylan Bank PLC
Hatton National Bank PLC
National Development Bank PLC 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mr. V R Ramanan
Chairman (Non - Executive)

Mr. J Rudra
Director – Recoveries (Executive)

Mr. N J K Dissanayake
(Non-Executive, Independent Senior 
Director) 
Appointed on 30.11.2020

Mr. H J C Perera
Director (Executive)
Ceased to function on 31.08.2020

Mr. P M L K Karunaratne
Senior Director (Non - Executive / 
Independent) 
Retired on 30.09.2020

Mr. U H Dharmadasa
Deputy Chairman (Non - Executive) 
Retired on 22.12.2020

Mr. K M S Kandegedara 
Director (Non - Executive / Independent) 
Retired on 10.02.2021

COMPANY SECRETARIES & 
REGISTRARS 
Corporate Arcade Ltd
No.9/4, (1-B) Edmonton Road, 
Colombo 06

Tel : 2514420 / 2514421
E-Mail : cal@sltnet.lk 

AUDITORS
M/s. KPMG  
Chartered Accountants
P.O. Box 186, Colombo

LAWYERS
Ms. W D A Priyabhashini,                                    
Attorney-at-Law
No.690, Galle Road,
Colombo 03



No. 690, Galle Road, Colombo 03.
Tel: +94 11 4760 800 | Fax:+94 11 4760 867
E-Mail: info@nationlanka.com | Web: www.nationlaka.com


